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ACHIEVING OUR GOALS

The cover image graphically depicts Assured Guaranty's track record of sustained
accomplishments toward our key strategic goals since our initial public offering.
These accomplishments are listed below:

2004 Assured Guaranty Ltd. completes its initial public offering
Moody's Investors Service upgrades the financial strength rating of Assured Guaranty Corp. to Aal (stable)
Assured Guaranty issues $200 million of senior notes
Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. is granted permission to write financial guaranty insurance in the United
Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority
Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. receives passporting authority to write financial guaranty insurance in the
countries comprising the European Economic Area

2005 Assured Guaranty Corp. and Assured Guaranty Re Lid. sell singie-name corporate credit default swap
book of business
Fitch Ratings assigns a financial strength rating of AAA (stable} to Assured Guaranty Corp. and
Assured Guaranty (UK) Lid.
Standard & Poaor’s upgrades the rating outlook for Assured Guaranty Corp. and Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.
to stable and affirms their AAA financiat strength rating
Assured Guaranty Corp. and Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. comptete novation agreement with Financiat Security
Assurance Inc.
Assured Guaranty's Financial Guaranty Direct annual par written market share reaches 3.4%

'006 Moody's Investors Service upgrades the rating outlook for Assured Guaranty Corp. and Assured Guaranty

(UK} Ltd. to positive from stable and affirms their Aal financial strength rating

Assured Guaranty issues $150 million of enhanced junior subordinated debentures

Assured Guaranty Ltd. completes $150 mitlion repurchase of its common shares from ACE Limited

Assured Guaranty's Financial Guaranty Direct annual par written market share is estimated to be in excess of 7%

Financial Guaranty Direct net par outstanding exceeds Financial Guaranty Reinsurance net par
outstanding for the first time




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

2006 WAS ANOTHER YEAR of sustained accomplishments at
Assured Guaranty. These included a company record for new business production,

our highest par market share ever in the financial guaranty direct business,
further upward migration of our financial strength ratings, and the execution of
our underwriting discipline as exhibited by our favorable credit experience and
the high credit quality of our insured portfolio.

As we begin our fourth fiscal year as a public company, we remain facused on
our five key strategic goals: developing the direct financial guaranty business,
maintaining the reinsurance franchise, sustaining underwriting discipline,
improving our financial strength ratings, and managing capital efficiently.
We exhibited continued progress in all areas during 2006.

Without question, we made significant progress on our goal of developing
Assured Guaranty Corp., our principal direct insurance subsidiary, as a leading
player in the AAA-rated monoline financial guaranty insurance industry. We
achieved our highest par written market share ever, estimated to be in excess of
7% for the year, more than double our 3.4% share in 2005. Moody's investors
Service {Moody's) has indicated that par market share is an important factor in
its analysis for determining whether Assured Guaranty Corp. has met the
requirements for a Aaa insurance financial strength rating.

Direct gross par written was $41.7 billion and direct net par outstanding totaled
$67.8 billion, which meant that for the first time in the company’s history our
financial guaranty direct net par outstanding exceeded financial guaranty rein-
surance net par outstanding. New business production was also a record. The
present value of financial guaranty direct gross written premiums, or PVP, a
non-GAAP financial measure, was $302 million, more than four times what we
wrote in 2004 and more than double what we achieved in 2005. Our financial

Dominic J. Frederico
President and Chief Executive Officer

PRESENT VALUE OF FINANCIAL GUARANTY

AND MORTGAGE GUARANTY GROSS WRITTEN

PREMIUMS (PVYP)*

{Dollars in millions}

2004 2005 2006
B Financial Guaranty Direct

$ 69.7 $145.5 $302.2
B Financial Guaranty Reinsurance

$192.8 $127.8 $151.5
M Mortgage Guaranty

$ 27.1 $ 13.1 $ —
Total PVP:

$289.6 $286.3 $453.6

*For an explanation of PYP, a non-GAAP financial measure,
please refer to the Explanation of Nen-GAAP Financial
Measures on page B.




GROSS PAR WRITTEN AND
NET PAR QUTSTANDING
{Doltars in billions)

-

2004 2005 2006
Gross Par Written
B Financial Guaranty Direct

$13.0 $17.2 $41.7
H Financial Guaranty Reinsurance

$10.4 $ 9.2 $ 9.1
Total Gress Par Written:

$23.4 $26.3 $50.9
Net Par Qutstanding
0O Financial Guaranty Direct

3316 $ 383 $ 67.8
M Financial Guaranty Reinsurance

$64.0 $ 64.1 $ 645
Total Net Par Qutstanding:

$95.6 $102.5 $132.3

DISTRIBUTION OF NET PAR OUTSTANDING
BY RATING AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

0.9%

13.7%

43.1%

24.9%

17.4%

Total: $132.3 billion

B AAA/Aaa

W AA/Aa

B AA

O BBB/Baa

B Below investment grade

guaranty direct business also achieved progress by expanding asset classes,
geographic reach and market acceptance. Fixed income investors are looking to
newer financial guaranty companies in order to diversify their risk, and we have
been very pleased with the demand for our wrapped securities.

Our reinsurance business continues to be robust. We have the largest amount
of par insured and capital of any monoline company in the financial guaranty
reinsurance market. Reinsurance PVP increased to $152 million, up 19% from the
prior year, driven by strong growth in facultative demand and also an increase in
new business from large reinsurance deals, which we define as PVP in excess of
$1 million for a transaction.

Underwriting discipline and credit quality remain of paramount importance.

| am very pleased that we have consistently maintained our focus on underwriting
discipline. This is a critical element of our strategy. In 2004, we decided not
to underwrite direct subprime residential mortgage-backed securities (RMBS)
deals that had shadow ratings of less than AAA. In 2005 and again in 2006, we
focused on higher credit quality transactions in the global structured finance
markets, given the narrow credit spreads and competitive market conditions,
'n a market where it is difficult to get paid for taking risk, we preferred to stick
to the higher credit quality arena as a way to minimize the impact of tight credit
spreads and maintain our underwriting focus. Gross par written in 2006 had an
average rating of AA, of which 67% had an underlying rating of AAA.

As a result of this credit discipline, our insured portfolio again maintained an
average credit rating of AA-, even with the significant growth experienced during
the year. At year-end, 43% of net par outstanding was rated AAA, up from 34%
in the prior year, across both portfolios. We did not experience any significant
credit events during the year, despite market concerns in some areas, notably
the subprime RMBS market. in fact, we continued tc have favorable credit
experience on some older transactions, including loss recoveries in lines of business
that we exited prior to our IPO. The performance of our closely monitored credits,
or CMC list, also attests to this positive experience. Since the IPO, the dollar
amount of par on our CMC list has declined by more than 30%.

We also made progress on the ratings front. Moody's upgraded Assured
Guaranty Corp.’s insurance financial strength rating outlook to positive in
the second guarter of 2006 and subsequently announced in March 2007
that Assured Guaranty Corp. is under review for possible upgrade to Aaa.
As many of you are aware, Moody's has indicated that continued progress in
executing our business plan, while broadening cur mix of business, maintaining




hard and total capttal ratios above 1.5x, and achieving a sustainable market

share of greater than 5% of industry gross par written, could lead to an upgrade.
We have met all of Moody's requirements and have exceeded the market share

goal in each of the last five quarters.

During 2006 we also delivered on our commitment to manage shareholder
capital efficiently. In May we announced a 1 million share repurchase plan that
was substantially completed by year end. More recently, we completed a separate
$150 million share repurchase from ACE Limited at the end of December. We
financed this purchase by issuing $150 million of enhanced junior subordinated
debentures that received significant equity credit from the rating agencies,
thereby improving our cost of capital. Assured Guaranty’s book value per share
also grew to $24.44, a 10% increase compared to the prior year.

In Aprit 2007 it will have been three years since our IPO. Over that time we have
made major progress on our strategic goals, including our many accomplishments
in 2006, and | anticipate continued progress in 2007. Looking forward, | remain
confident that we will continue to achieve our goals and create a leading financial
guaranty company based on the goals and strategy that we laid out at the time
of the IPO.

JW)&M

Dominic J. Frederico
President and Chief Executive Officer
Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Executive Management Team (left to right):
Howard Albert, Don Paston, Dave Penchoff, Jim Michener, Mike Schozer, Dominic Frederico,
Bob Miils, Sabra Purtill, Rob Bailenson, Andrew Pickering

ADJUSTED BOOK VALUE* PER SHARE

2004 2005 2006

l Book value per share
$20.19 $22.22 $24.44

B Net present value of estimated future
installment premiums in force* per share,
after tax

$ 3.93 $ 4.38 $ 6.71

B Net unearned premium reserve less DAC
per share, after tax

$ 3.26 $ 379 $ 5.4zZ
Adjusted book value per share:
$27.38 $30.39 $36.57

*For explanations of adjusted book value and net present
value of estimated future installment premiums in force, both
non-GAAP financial measures, please refer to the Expfanation
sf Non-GAAF Financial Measures on page 8.




FINANCIAL GUARANTY DIRECT

FINANCIAL GUARANTY DIRECT PVP*

{Dollars in millions}

2004 2005 2006
B U.S. Structured Finance

$52.1 $ 92.9 $146.8
A International

$11.9 $ 326 $119.7
B U.S. Public Finance

$ 5.7 $ 20.0 $ 35.7
Total Financial Guaranty Direct PVP:

$69.7 $145.5 $302.2

*For an explanation af PVYP, a non-GAAP financial measure,
please refer to the Explanation of Non-GAAP Financial
Measures on page 8,

DISTRIBUTION OF FINANCIAL GUARANTY
DIRECT GROSS PAR WRITTEN BY RATING
IN 2006

5.4%

79.5%

Total: $41.7 billion

W AAA/Aa2
W AA/Aa

W A/A

O BBB/Baa

ASSURED GUARANTY'’S financial guaranty direct business made
significant strides during 2006. We set a company record for new business
production while also expanding our staff and investing in numerous initiatives
to support growth, including technology, marketing, surveillance and credit
infrastructure. For the full year, we underwrote more than $41.7 billion in gross
par, up 143% from 2005, for an estimated par market share in excess of 7%,
our highest ever. Our financial guaranty direct PVP was $302 million, up 108%

from the prior year.

Each business group contributed to our performance over the course of the year.
U.S. structured finance, which comprises 66% of our direct net par outstanding,
had a phenomenal year, underwriting $26.8 billion of gross par and $147 million
of PVP in 2006, up 108% and 58%, respectively, compared to 2005. We
contintue to expand this sector and to date have made significant progress in
RMBS, commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS), student loans, future
flow, insurance securitization and commercial assets, such as dealer floor plan
loans and aircraft equipment transactions. We also had a very successful year in
collateralized debt obligations (CDOs}, building on our success in 2005, and we
have established ourselves as a market leader in several segments, notably
market value and trust preferred CDOs. We also ranked second in the industry

for guarantees in Regulation XXX life insurance securitizations.

The U.S. structured finance growth that we have generated is more notable given
the challenges presented by our split rating and our conservative outlook on U.S.
RMBS. Since our IPO, we have underwritten onky AAA-rated subprime RMBS.
As we expected, delinquency statistics for recently originated subprime and
prime RMBS have begun to deteriorate, which maa:w translate into better under-
writing and pricing opportunities in those markets in 2007 Our current book of
direct RMBS credits is highly rated, with an average credl’t rattng of AAA on our
subprime RMBS exposure and A on our prime’ RMBS gxposure desplte some
deterioration in our older pre-IPO book of busmess. "v’r/l_- »,?7,\ }\” "‘ '

' 'f'.
’.’ N

Qur international team had an outstanding year, expandi'ng_ upon t}'1e —frar'newor-k .
we began building in 2004 after receiving our license to underwrite European
business. International had the highest growth rate of our three markets,

producing $13.2 billion of gross par written and $120 million of PVP, up 303%

and 267% from 2005, respectively. Transactions in this market spread across




Financial Guaranty Direct Management Teamn
{left to right):

Marc Bajer, Stephen Donnarumma,
Mike Schozer, Kathy Evers,

Paul Livingstone

many asset classes and markets, ianUding German RMBS, EUrOpean CDQOs, FINANCIAL GUARANTY DIRECT GROSS PAR

WRITTEN AND NET PAR OUTSTANDING

CMBS, U K, ufilities and pooled infrastructure transactions. We expect continued .-
(Dollars in billions)

expansion into new asset classes as well as new markets in 2007, supported by
our recent appointment of a managing director focused on the Australian and

Asian Pacific markets.

Assured Guaranty's U.S. public finance group posted significant increases in
both gross par written and PVP for the year, up 75% and 79%, respectively,
compared to 2005. Our U.S. public finance group underwrote a wide diversity of

asset classes including healthcare, school districts, private higher education,

general government and municipal utility districts. The trading differential for
> ;.1
2004 2005 2006

our wrapped long-term paper tightened by five to ten basis points during the

year, benefiting from Moody's upgrade of Assured Guaranty Corp.'s insurance

Financial Guaranty Direct Gross Par Written

financial strength rating outlook to positive and increased liquidity and name B US Structured Finance

recognition in the marketplace. We are making steady progress in this market, $11.8 $12.9 $26.8
W International
which remains our most challenging due to our split rating. Our average par n$er1n_aolona $ 3.3 $13.2
written per deal almost doubled in 2006, indicative of the favorabie response B U.S. Public Finance
$ 0.2 $ 09 $ 1.7

we are receiving as a new financial guaranty name in this sector. Total:
$13.0 $17.2 $41.7

Financial Guaranty Direct Net Par Outstanding
O U.S. Structured Finance

$25.2 $28.9 $44.5
B International

$ 4.3 $ 6.4 $19.9
{0 U.S. Public Finance

$ 2.2 $ 3.0 $ 35
Total:

$31.6 $38.3 $67.8




REINSURANCE

FINANCIAL GUARANTY REINSURANCE
GROSS PAR WRITTEN AND NET PAR
OUTSTANDING

(Dollars in billions)

g

i
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2004 2005 2006

Financial Guaranty Reinsurance Gross Par
Written

M U.S. Public Finance

$ 6.3 $ 51 $ 52
B Interpational

$ 1.7 $ 1.1 $ 26
B U.S. Structured Finance

$ 23 $ 3.0 $ 13
Total:

$10.4 $ 9.2 $ 9l

Financial Guaranty Reinsurance Net Par
Outstanding

U.S. Public Finance

$48.2 $47.7 $48.8
B International

$ 59 $ 6.7 $ 8.5
0O U.S. Structured Finance

$ 9.8 $ 9.7 $ 7.1
Total:

$64.0 $64.1 $64.5

ASSURED GUARANTY has been a leading provider of financial
guaranty reinsurance for more than 19 years, In 2006, we achieved our strategic
goal of maintaining our reinsurance market leadership with $64.5 billion in
consolidated third-party reinsurance net par outstanding, more than any other
monoline financial guaranty reinsurance 6ompany. Assured Guaranty Re Ltd.
(AG Re}, our monoline financial guaranty reinsurance company, also has the
largest capital base among the manoline reinsurers, with $869 million in

shareholder’s equity.

Qur reinsurance team, headed by Dave Penchoff, had a very successful year.
New business production, as measured by PVP, was $152 million, up 19% over
2005, and gross par written was $9.1 billion, even with the prior year. We have
transitioned our operations from a largely treaty model to a mixed treaty and
facultative model, adding experienced underwriting and surveillance personnel
in our targeted markets. We organized our operations to enable us to provide
timely underwriting decisions on new deals in the market. During 2006, 44% of
our new business volume was from the facultative market, as compared to

approximately 10% at the time of Assured Guaranty’s IPQ. We currently have

facultative agreements with every AAA-rated direct financial guaranty company.

The growth of the facultative business has introduced more volatility into our
new business activity, given that the facultative market is frequently used to
reinsure larger risks or capacity constrained names. About two-thirds of our

2006 new business premiums came from large deals, which we define as PVP
greater than $1 million. For instance, our first quarter 2006 new business volume
was lower than market expectations because of the lack of large deals, while
the remainder of the year was above expectations due to a higher amount of

large deals,

AG Re's financial returns remain attractive, especially given the cost advantage
of operating in Bermuda. Current industry pricing is acceptable despite the tight
credit spreads found in most markets and the excess capital held by the primary
monoline insurers, which reduces their need for reinsurance. AG Re's financial
returns have also been supported by our large in-force book of business and

efficient operating structure.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS!

Years ended December 31,

{Dollars in millions except per share amounts}) 2006 2005 2004

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS:

Net written premiums $ 319 $ 217 $ 80

Net earned premiums 207 199 188

Net investment income 112 97 95

Total expenses 132 65 115

Net income 160 188 183

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Total investments and cash $2,470 $2,256 $2,158

Total assets 2,935 2,696 2,704

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 121 128 236

Unearned premium reserves 645 537 521

Senior notes 197 197 197 !

Series A enhanced junior subordinated debentures 150 — —

Shareholders’ equity 1,651 1,662 1,528

PER SHARE: ’

Net income per diluted share $ 2.15 $ 253 $ 244 f
Less: After-tax realized (losses) gains on investments {0.02) 0.02 0.10 '
Less: After-tax unrealized gains {losses) on derivatives 0.05 (0.04) 0.45 |

Operating income? per diluted share $ 212 $ 2.55 $ 1.88 !

Book value per share $24.44 $22.22 $20.19 !
Plus: Net unearned premium reserve less DAC, after tax 542 3.79 3.26 -
Plus: Net present value of estimated future installment premiums
in force?, after tax 6.71 4.38 3.93

Adjusted book value? per share $36.57 $30.39 $27.38 '

Present value of financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty gross
written premiums (PVP)?2

Financial guaranty direct $ 302 $ 145 $ 70
Financial guaranty reinsurance 152 128 193
Mortgage guaranty — 13 27
Total PVP? $ 454 $ 286 $ 290
Less: Installment premium PVP 271 184 164
Less: Upfront premium due to novations — 18 —
Pius: Installment gross written premiums 139 136 140
Plus: Other segment gross written premiums 4 32 (75)
Total gross written premiums $ 326 $ 252 $ 191

1. Sorne amounts may not add due to rounding.
2. This is a non-GAAP financial measure, which is defined below in the Explanation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures.

EXPLANATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES:
The following section defines non-GAAP financial measures presented in this annuat report and describes why they are useful for investors.

Operating income, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as net income excluding after-1ax realized gains {losses) on investments and after-tax unrealized gains (Iosses) on derivative financial
instruments. Operating return on equity (ROE) represents operating income as a percentage of average shareholders' equity, excluding accumylatec other comprehensive income. We believe that operating
inceme and operating ROE are useful measures for management, equity analysts and investors because the presentation of operating income and cperating ROE enhance the understanding of our results

o operations by highlighting the underlying prfitability of our insurance business, We exclude net realized gains {losses} on investments and net unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments

because the amount of these gains (losses) is heavily influenced by, and fluctuates in part according to, market interest rates, credit spreads, and cther factors that management cannot control or predict,
These measures should nat be viewed as substitutes for net income or ROE determined in accordance with GAAP. .

Adjusted book value, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as sharehelders’ eguity {book value) plus the after-tax value of the financial guaranty and mortgage guaraniy unearned premium

reserve net of prepaid reinsurance premiums and deferred acquisition costs plus the net present value of estimated future instaliment premiums in force, less future ceding commissions, after tax, discounted at
£%. We believe adjusted book value is a useful measure for management, equity analysts and investors because the calcutation of adjusted book value permits an evaluation of the net present value of the
company's in-force premiums and capital base. The premiums described above will be earned in future periads, but may differ materially frem the estimated amounts used in determining current adjusted
book value due te changes in market interest rates, refinancing or refunding activity, prepayment speeds, policy changes or terminations, credit defaults, and other factors that management cannot control

or predict. This measure should not be viewed as a substitute for book value determined in accordance with GAAP.

Net present value of estimated future installment premiums in force, which is @ non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as the present value of estimated future financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty
instaliment premiums from our in-force book of business, net of reinsurance and discounted at 6%. We believe net present value of estimated future installment premiums in force is a useful measure for
management, equity analysts and investors because it permits an evatuation of the value of future estimated installment premiums. Estimated Future premiums may change from period to period due to
changes in par outstanding, maturity, or other factors that management cannot control or predict that result from market interest rates, refinancing or refunding activity, prepayment speeds, policy changes
or terminations, credit defaults, or other factors. There is ne comparable GAAP financial measure.

Present value of financial guaranty and morigage guaranty gross written premiums or PYP, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as gress upfront and installment premiums received and the
present value of gross estimated future installment premiums, an contracts written in the current period, discounted at 6% per year. We believe PVP is a useful measure for management, equity analysts
and investors because it permits the evaluation of the value of new business production for Assured Guaranty by taking into account the value of estimated future installment premiums on new contracts
underwritten in a reporting period, which GAAP gross premiums written does not adequately measure. Actual future net earned or writlen premiums may differ from PVP due to factors such as prepayments,
amartizations, refundings, contract terminations or defaults that may or may not be influenced by market interest rates, refinancing or refunding activity, prepayment speeds, policy changes or terminations,
credit defaults, or other fattars that management cannot control o predict. This measure should not be viewed as a substitute for gross written premiums determined in accordance with GAAP.

For adjusted book value, net present value of estimated future installment premiums in force, and present value of financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty gross written premiums or PVP, we use 6%
as the present value discount rate because it is the approximate taxable equivalent yield on our investment portfolio for the periods presented.

8

Annual report design: Morgan Design
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER

INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the
annual general meeting of Assured Guaranty Ltd.

May 3, 2007
8:00 a.m. Atlantic Daylight Time

The Fairmont Hamilton Princess
Princess Louise Room

76 Pitt's Bay Road

Hamilton HM CX

Bermuda

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Assured Guaranty Lid.
30 Woodbourne Avenue
Hamitton HM 08
Bermuda

Phone: 441-299-9375

SUBSIDIARY OFFICES

Bermuda

Assured Guaranty Re Ltd.
30 Woodbourne Avenue
Hamifton HM 08
Bermuda

Phone: 441-296-4004

New York

Assured Guaranty Corp.

1325 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

Phone: 212-974-0100

United Kingdom

Assured Guaranty (UK} Lid.

1 Finsbury Square

London EC2A 1AE

United Kingdom

Phone: 44 (0)20 7562 1900

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Assured Guaranty Ltd. is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol AGO.

INVESTOR AND MEDIA INQUIRIES

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, proxy statement, quarterly earnings releases,
investor information, and media packets may be obtained
at no cost by contacting the investor Relations Department.
Links to our SEC filings, press releases, and product and
other information may be found on our website at
www.assuredguaranty.com.

Our Code of Conduct, Governance Guidelines and
Categorical Standards of Director Independence, Board
Committee Charters, and other information relating to
corporate governance are also available on our website
at www.assuredguaranty.com and in print upon request
by contacting the Investor Relations Department.

The Investor Relations Department can be contacted at:

Assured Guaranty Lid.

Investor Relations Department

30 Woodbourne Avenue

Hamilton HM 08

Bermuda

Phone: 441-299-9375

E-mail: info@assuredguaranty.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
300 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10017

TRANSFER AGENT OF SHAREHOLDER RECORDS
The Bank of New York

Investar Services

Church Street Station

P.0O. Box 11258

New York, NY 10286-1258

Phone: 800-898-6077

E-mail: shareowners@bankofny.com

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

In 2006 our Chief Executive Officer provided to the
New York Stock Exchange the annual CEC certification
regarding our compliance with the New York Stock
Exchange's corporate governance listing standards.

In addition, in 2006 we filed with the SEC all certifications
of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.




CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN?™
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$100.00 $109.67 $142.36 $149.98
......... S&P 500 Index

$100.00 $107.65 $112.93 $130.77
- = = = S&P 500 Financials index

$100.00 $108.25 $115.29 $137.45

*The chart and table depict the value on April 22, 2004; December 31, 2004; December 31, 2005; and December 31, 2006, of a $10C investment made on April 22, 2004, with atl dividends reinvested.
Saurce: Bloomberg

2005-2006 COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

QUARTER ENDED CLOSE HIGH LOW DIVIDENDS
March 31, 2006 $25.00 $27.45 $24.64 $0.035
June 30, 2006 $25.37 $26.03 $23.50 $0.035
September 30, 2006 $25.93 $27.40 $24.40 $0.035
December 31, 2006 $26.60 $27.43 $24.40 $0.035
March 31, 2005 $17.95 $19.92 $17.51 $0.03
June 30, 2005 $23.36 $23.48 $17.31 $0.03
September 30, 2005 $23.93 $24.52 $21.33 $0.03
December 31, 2005 $25.39 $27.42 $21.45 $0.03

Stock prices are from the New York Stock Exchange composite tape.

FINANCIAL RATINGS

STANDARD & POOR'S MOODY'S FITCH

Assured Guaranty Corp. Financial Strength Rating AAA (Stable) Aal* AAA (Stable)

Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. Financial Strength Rating AAA (Stable) Aal* AAA (Stable)

Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. Financial Strength Rating AA (Stable) Aa2 (Stable) AA (Stable)
Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc.:

Senior Debt Rating A+ (Stable) Al* A+ (Stable)

Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures Rating A- (Stable) A2* A (Stable)

*As of March 16, 2007, these ratings are under review by Moody's for possible upgrade.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements under “Business,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere-in this Form 10-K may include forward looking
statements which reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance. These
statements include forward looking statements both with respect to us specifically and the insurance and
reinsurance industries in general. Statements which include the words “expect,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe,” “project,” “anticipate,” “may,” “will,” “continue,” “further,” “seek,” and similar words or
statements of a future or forward looking nature identify forward looking statements for purposes of the

federal securities laws or otherwise. ;

" All forward’ lookmg statements address matters that involve risks and-uncertaintics. Accordingly, there
are or will be important factors that could cause our actual results to-difféf materially from those indicated
in these statements. We believe that these factors include the following:

b N1 b N1

. dowrlgrades of the financial strength ratings assigned by the major rating agencies to any of our
insurance subsidiaries at any time, which has occurred in the past

i

» our inability to execute our business strategy; ‘' - - '
» reduction in the amount of reinsurance ceded by one or more of our principal ceding companies;
s contract cancellations;

* developments in the world’s financial and capital markets that adversely affect our loss experience,
the demand for our products or our investment returns; . .

* more severe or frequent losses associated with our insurance products;

¢ changes in regulation or tax laws applicable to us, our subsidiaries or customers;
+ governmental actions;

+ natural catastrophes;

¢ dependence on customers;.

¢ decreased demand for our 1nsurance or reinsurance products or increased competmon in our

.

markets; : ' - “
¢ loss of key personnel; '
* technological developments; o N - . L
¢ the effects of mergers, acquisitions and divestitures; T

o changes in accounting policies or practices (see Part I1 - Item 7.-Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations under the heading “—Critical
-Accounting Estimates—Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses”, for more 1nformatlon'

* changes in general economic conditions, mcludmg interest rates and other factors

¢ other risks and uncertainties that have not been identified at this time; and | .
* management’s response to these factors. * - - o : : et
The foregoing review of important factors should not be construed as exhaustive, and should be read -
in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included in this Form 10-K. We, undertake no
obligation to update publicly or review any forward lookmg statement, whether as a result of i new

information, future developments or otherwise.

If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties matenahze or if our underlymg assumptlons
prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially from what we projected. Any forward lookmg
statements you read in this Form 10-K reflect our current views with respect to future events and aré
subject to these and other risks, uncertainties and assumpnons relating to our. operanons results of .
operations, growth strategy and liquidity. . . - . : . : ce

For these statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, R ot

. T . + N ¥
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ITEM 1.. BUSINESS |

Overwew ‘

Assured Guaranty Ltd (hcreafler “Assured Guaranty,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) is a
Bermuda based holding company that provides, through its operating subsidiaries, credit enhancement

products to the public finance, structured finance and mortgage markets. Credit enhancement products are
financial guaranty or other types of financial support, including credit derivatives, that improve the credit

of underlying debt obligations. A derivative is a financial instrument whose characteristics and value
depend upon the characteristics and value of an underlying security or commodity. We apply our credit
expertise, risk management skills and capital markets experience to develop insurance, reinsurance and
derivative products that meet the credit enhancement needs of our customers. We market our products
directly and through financial institutions, servirig the U.S. and international markets.

Assured Guaranty Ltd. was incorporated in Bermuda in August 2003. We operate, through wholly

owned subsidiaries including Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc., Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. (“AG Re”),

and Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas Ltd. (“AGFOL”). Qur prmcrpal operatmg subsidiaries are
Assurcd Guaranty Corp (“AGC”) and AG Re.

e Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc., a Delaware holding company, owns 100% of AG Financial
Products Inc., a Delaware corporation, and AGC. AGC, a Maryland-domiciled insurance company,
was organized in 1985 and commenced operations in January 1988. It provides insurance and
reinsurance of investment-grade financial guaranty exposures and credit default swap transactions.
In December 2006, Assured Value Insurance Company, a Maryland domiciled insurance company
and former AGC subsidiary, merged into AGC. AGC owns 100% of Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd,,
a United Kingdom (“UK”) 1ncorporated company licensed as-a UK insurance company.’

AG Re is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and is lrcensed as a Class 3 Insurer and a Long-
Term Insurer under the Insurance Act 1978 and related regulations of Bermuda. AG Re owns
Assured Guaranty Overseas US Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation, which owns the entire share
capital of a Bermuda reinsurer, Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. (“AGRO”). AGRO, in turn,,
owns Assured Guaranty Mortgage Insurance Company (“Assured Guaranty Mortgage”), a New
York corporation. AG Re and AGRO underwrite financial guaranty and residential mortgage
reinsurance. AG Re and AGRO write business as direct reinsurers of third-party primary insurers
and as reinsurers/retrocessionaires of certain affiliated companies and also provide portfolio credit
default swaps, where the counterparty is usually an investment bank. Under a reinsurance
agreement, the reinsurer, in consideration of a premium paid tg it, agrees to indemnify another
insurer, called the ceding company, for part or all of the liability of the ceding company under one
Or more insurance pohc;es that the ceding company has issued.

AGFOL, based in the UK, is regulated by the Financial Services Authonty as an Arranger that
markets and sources derivative transactions. AGFOL does not take risk in the transactions it
arranges or places, and may not hold funds on behalf of its customers.




Our Operating Segments

Our financial results include four principal business segments: financial guaranty direct, financial
guaranty reinsurance, mortgage guaranty and other. We primarily conduct our business in the United
States, Bermuda and the European community. The following table sets forth our gross written premiums
by segment for the periods presented: '

' Gross Written Premiums By Segment

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
. . ($ in millions)
Financial guaranty direct: . ‘ .o .
Structured finance ........... PR P e $ 888 $751 $ 749
Public finance .. ........oovi i L1004 211 5.9,
Total financial guaranty direct. . .........vvevreniesioeeennenenenns 189.2 96.2 80.8
Financial guaranty reinsurance:
Structured finance ..................... el . 31.7 351 414
Public finance . .................... S s 922 629 1189
Total financial guaranty reinSUrance .. ........c.oviiiiiieirneennans. 123.9 08.0 1603
Mortgage BUATaNtY. .. ..ottt e 8.4 25.7 24.4
Total financial guaranty gross written premiums.............. RO 3216 2199 2655
Other ...... e et T DI e 4.1 322 (74.6)

o) -1 - $3257 $252.1 $190.9

. Financial Guaranty Direct

Financial guaranty direct insurance provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty that protects
the holder of a financial obligation against non-payment of principal and interest when due. Financial
guaranty insurance may be issued to the holders of the insured obligations at the time of issuance of those
obligations, or may be issued in the secondary market to holders of public bonds and structured securities.
Both issuers of and investors in financial instruments may benefit from financial guaranty insurance.
Issuers benefit because the insurance may have the effect of lowering an issuer’s cost of borrowing to the
extent that the insurance premium is less:than the value of the difference between the yield on the insured
obligation (which carries the credit rating of the insurer) and the yield on'the obligation if sold on the basis
of its uninsured credit rating. Financial guaranty insurance also improves the marketability of obligations
issued by infrequent or unknown issuers, as well as obligations with complex structures or backed by asset
classes new to the market. Investors benefit from increased liquidity in the secondary market, added
protection against loss in the event of the obligor’s default on its obligation, and reduced exposure to price
volatility caused by changes in the credit quality of the underlying issue. ' ‘

As an alternative to traditional financial guaranty insurance, credit protection relating to a particular
security or issuer can be provided through a credit derivative, such as a credit default swap. Under the
terms of a credit default swap, the seller of credit protection makes a specified payment to the buyer of
credit protection upon the occurrence of one or more specified credit events with respect to a reference
obligation or entity. Credit derivatives typically provide protection to a buyer rather than credit
enhancement of an issue as in traditional financial guaranty insurance. Credit derivatives may be preferred
by some customers because they generally offer ease of execution and standardized terms.

Financial guaranty direct products are generally provided for structured finance and public finance
obligations in the U.S. and international markets.

Structured Finance—Structured finance obligations are generally backed by pools of assets, such as
residential mortgage loans, consumer or trade receivables, securities or other assets having an




ascertainable cash flow or market value, which are generally held by a special purpose issuing entity.
Structured finance obligations can be “funded” or “synthetic.” Funded structured finance obligations
generally have the benefit of one or more forms of credit enhancement, such as over-collateralization and
excess cash flow, to cover credit risks associated with the related assets. Synthetic structured finance
obligations generally take the form of credit derivatives or credit linked notes that reference a pool of -

" securities or loans, with a defined deductible to cover credlt risks associated with the referenced securities
or loans.

Publie Fi manca—Publlc finance obhganons consist primarily of debt obligations issued by or on behalf
of states or their political subdivisions (counties, cities, towns and villages, uvtility districts, public
universities and hospitals, public housing and transportation authorities), other public and quasi public
entities (including non-U.S. sovereigns and subdivisions thereof), private universities and hospitals, and
investor owned utilities. These obligations generally are supported by the taxing authority of the issuer, the
issuer’s or underlying obligor’s ablllty to collect fees or assessments for certain projects or public services or
revenues from operations. This'market also includes project finance obligations, as well as other structured
obligatlons supporting mfrastructure and other publlc works pro_lects - 8

Financial Guaranty Remsurance .o

Financial guaranty reinsurance indemnifies a primary insurance company against part of a loss that
the latter may sustain under a policy that it has issued. The reinsurer may itself purchase reinsurance -
protection (“retrocessions”) from other reinsurers, thereby reducing its own exposure:

Reinsurance agreements take two major forms: “treaty” and “facultative.” Treaty reinsurance requires
the reinsured to cede, and the reinsurer to assume, specific classes of risk underwritten by the ceding
company over a specified period of time, typically one year. Facultative reinsurance is the reinsurance of
part of one or more specified policies, and is subject to separate negotiation for each cession.

Financial Guaranty Portfolio

The principal types of obligations covered on a global basis by our financtal guaranty direct and our
financial guaranty reinsurance businesses are structured finance and public finance obligations. Because
both businesses involve similar risks, we analyze and monitor our financial guaranty direct portfolio and
our financial guaranty reinsurance portfolio on a unified process and procedure basis. In the tables that
follow, our reinsurance par outstanding on treaty business is reported on a one-quarter lag due to the
timing of receipt of reports prepared by our ceding companies. Our 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on
facultative business is reported on a current quarter basis while 2005 and 2004 are reported on a one-
quarter lag. The following table sets forth our financial guaranty net par outstanding by product line:

Net Par Outstanding By Product Line

As of December 31,

2006 2005 2004

. (% in billions)

Structured Finance: .
¢ 2 DI $ 557 §$ 339 3284
T ) ool 10.0 12.9 12.7
Total structured finance . ... ... i i i e e e 65.7 46.8 . 41.1

Public Finance:. . . C
DI Ct . . o e e 121 4.4 3.2
Reinsurance .................... e e 34.5 513 : 513
Total public finance. ...t e 66.6 35.7 545
Total net paroutstanding. .. ............ i $1323 §$1025 3956




Structured Finance Obligations—We insitre and reinsure a number of drfferent types of structured
finance obllgatlons including the following:

Collateralized Debt Obligations—These include securities prlmarlly backed by pooled corporate debt
obligations, such as corporate bonds, bank loans or loan participations, asset backed securities, residential
and commercial mortgage-backed securities and trust preferred secuntles These securities are often
issued in “tranches,” with subordinated tranches providing credit support to the more senior tranches. Our
financial guaranty exposures generally are to the more senior tranches of these issues. Prior to 2004 we also

wrote-equity layer credit protection on CDOs; these exposures are reported-in our other segment.
{

Mortgage-Backed and Home Equz’ty'—Tflese include obiigations backed by closed-end first mortgage
loans and closed- and open-end second mortgage loans or home equity loans on one-to-four family
residential properties, including condominiums and cooperative apartments The majority of our insured
U.S. residential mortgage loan pools tend to be in the “sub-prime” sector, charactenzed by lower quality
borrowers and higher levels of structural credit protectlon through subordmatlon and/or excess spread.

Commercial Receivables—These include obhgattons backed by commercial mortgages, equipment
leases, business loans and trade receivables. Credit support is derived from the cash flows generated by the
underlying obligations, as well as property or equipment values as applicable Additional credit protection
for our exposure may be in the form of over-collateralization, excess spread, cash reserves, first loss letters
of credit, subordinated securities or a combination of the foregoing. The properties backing commercial
real estate backed obligations include hotel properties, office buildings and warehouse properties,

Consumer Receivables—These include obligations backed by non-mortgage consumer receivables, such
as automobile loans and leases, credit card receivables and other consumer receivables. Credit support is
generally derived from the cash flows generated by the underlying obligations; as well as property,
automobile or equipment values as applicable. Additional credit protection for our exposure may be 'in the
form of over-collateralization, excess spread, cash reserves, first loss letters of credit, subordinated
securities or a combination of the foregoing.

Other Structured Finance—Other structured finance exposures in ourportfolio include bonds or other
securities backed by assets not generally described in any of the other four categones S

The followmg table sets forth our structured finance direct and reinsurance gross par written by asset
type (stated as a percentage of total structured finance dlrect and reinsurance gross par) for the periods
presented:

[

Structured Finance Gross Par Written by Asset Type '

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
( in billions)
Collateralized debt obligations ............. ... 46.5% 50.0% 20.9%
Mortgage-backed and home equity. ... ... ..ovvveieniineiiiiin e, 254% 308% 63.4%
Commercial receivables . .......... . i e 158% 82% 65%
Cornisumer receivables .................... e e 47%  25% 53%
Other structured fmance .............................................. 7.6% 85%  39%
17 | 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Total structured finance gross par written.................. ..o, $354 §$191 §$ 152

The following table sets forth our structured finance direct and reinsurance net par outstanding by
asset type (stated as a percentage of total structured finance direct and reinsurance net par outstanding) as
of the dates indicated: :




««  Structured Finance Net Par Outstanding by Asset Type

As of December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(% in billions)

Collateralized debt obligations ... - 473% 492% 42.0%
Mortgage-backed and home equity. ... 249% 25.6% 29.0%
Commercial receivables ........... OO R 153% 115% '11.7%
Consumer recelvables e ST 42%  55%  84%
Other structired fmancc. e e 83% 82% ' 89%

Total.......... SUTUUTDION e .. _1000% 100.0% 100.0%

Total structured ﬁnancc paroutstanding. .......... ... - $657 $468 § 4Ll

The table below shows our ten largest financial guaranty structured finance direct and reinsurance
exposures by revenue source as a,percentage of total financial guaranty net par outstanding as of

December 31, 2006:
Ten Largest Structured Finance Exposures
Percent of Total
Net Par Net Par Internal
o - _QOutstanding Qutstanding Rating(1)
’ T - L (§ in millions)
Private-Mortgage Backed Securities.................. e $1,501 1.1% AAA
Paragon Mortgages (No.13) Ple* ............... S L 1,376 1.0% AAA
Graphite Mortgages Plc 2005-2*................. .. ..., 1,238 . 0.9%. AAA
Field Point III & IV, Limited*.......... e e e . 924 - 0.7% © AA-
Structured Finance Corporate Pool.......... ...t ‘ 014 0.7% . AAA
Synthetnc CDO—IG Corporate........ SR P 740 0.6% AAA
Sandelman Finance 2006-1 Limited* ........................ 723 "t 05% AA
Private CDO L.\ ettt ettt et e e e 710 0.5% AAA
Nemus Funding No. L Ple*. . ... . ... . ... .. ... .. 701 0.5% AAA
Private-CDO. .. ...... ... e 658 0.5% AAA
Total of top ten exposures .......... ..o, $9,485 . 1.0%

(1) These ratings represent our internal assessment of the underlying credlt quality of the insured

obligations. Our scale is comparable to that of the nationally recognized rating agencies.

*  Public transactlon

Public Fmance Obligations—We insure and reinsure a number of different types of publlc obligations,

including the following:

International Infrastructure—These include obligations issued by a variety of entities engaged in the
financing of international infrastructure projects, such as roads, airports, ports, social infrastructure,
electric, water and gas utilities and other physical assets delivering essential services supported either by
long-term concession arrangements with a public sector entity or a regulatory regime. The majority of our

international infrastructure business is conducted in the UK.

Investor-Owned Utility Bonds—These include obligations primarily backed by investor-owned utilities,
first mortgage bond obligations of for-profit electric or water utilities providing retail, industrial and
commercial service, and also include sale-leaseback obligation bonds supported by such entities.




General Obligation Bonds—These include full faith and credit bonds that are issued by states, their
political subdivisions and other municipal issuers, and are supported by the general obligation of the issuer
to pay from available funds and by a pledge of the issuer to levy ad valorem taxes in an amount sufficient to
provide for the full payment of the bonds.

Tax-Backed Bonds—These include a variety of obligations that are supported by the issuer from
specific and discrete sources of taxation and include tax-backed revenue bonds, general fund obligations
and lease revenue bonds. Tax-backed obligations may be secured by a lien on specific pledged tax
revenues, such as a gasoline or excise tax, or incrementally from growth in property tax revenue associated
with growth in property values. These obligations also include obligations secured by special assessments
levied against property owners and often benefit from issuer covenants to enforce collections of such
assessments and to foreclose on delinquent properties. Lease revenue bonds typically are general fund
obligations of a municipality or other governmental authority that are subject to annual appropriation or
abatement; projects financed and subject to such lease payments ordinarily include real estate or
equipment serving an essential public purpose. Bonds in this category- also include moral obligations of -
municipalities or governmental authorities.

Healthcare Bonds—These include obligations of healthcare facilities including community based
hospitals and systems. In addition to healthcare facilities, obligors in this category include a small number
of health maintenance organizations and long-term care facilities.

Municipal Utility Bonds—These include the obligations of all forms of municipal utilities, including
electric, water and sewer utilities and resource recovery revenue bonds. These utilities may be organized in
various forms, including municipal enterprise systems, authorities or joint action agencies.

Transportation Bonds—These include a wide variety of revenue-supported bonds, such as bonds for
airports, ports tunncls municipal parking facilities, toll roads and toll bridges.

Higher Education Bonds—These include obligations secured by revenue collected by either public or
private secondary schools, colleges and universities. Such revenue can encompass all of an institution’s
revenue, including tuition and fees, or in other cases, can be speCIfically restricted to certain auxnllary
sources of revenue.

Housing Revenue Bonds—These include obligations relating to both single and multi fami]y housing,
issued by states and localities, supported by cash flow and, in some cases, insurance from such entities as
the Federal Housing Administration.

Other Public Bonds—These include other debt issued, guaranteed or otherwise supported by U.S.
national or local governmental authorities, as well as student loans, revenue bonds, and obligations of
some not-for-profit organizations. Also included in this category are international public obligations,
including the obligations of sovereign and sub-sovereign non-U.S. issuers, project finance transactions
involving projects leased to or supported by payments from non-U.S. governmental or quasi governmental
entities, as well as other obligations having international aspects, but which otherwise would fall within the
other described categories. .

+




The following table sets forth our public finance direct and reinsurance gross par written by bond type
(stated as a percentage of total public finance direct and reinsurance gross par written) for the years.

presented: ' X
Public Finance Gross Par Written by Asset Type
' : Year Ended December 31,
. ' s 2006 2005 2004
. o . ($ in billions)

International'infrastructure . .............. ... o 350% 118%  8.3%
Investor-owned utilities. . ... it rrr e s 194%  3.0% 3.2%
General obligation.................. i e 14.6% 221% 174%
Tax-backed ...... ..o e L. T131%  269%  222%
HealthCare. . . ... .ovte et ST 89%  25% ' 154%
Municipal UHLGES ... ov e C48%  83%  124%
TranSportation .. ........uun it iitiar i i iianan 24% 144% & 24%
Highereducation.......... . ... i) N, O 13% 45% 2.0%
3 (T PP "02%.  12%' 2.4%
Otherpublicfinance ... ... ... ool 03%  53% 143%

Total......... e e ©100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Total public finance gross par WIitlen . .. ......coovereeeerenreaennnn. $ 154 $ 72§ 82

The following table sets forth our public finance direct and reinsurance net par outstandmg by bond
type (stated as a percentage of total public finance direct and reinsurance net par outstanding) as of the
dates indicated:

Public Finance Net Par Outstanding by Asset Type -

As of December 31,
. . Y 2006 ] 2005 2004
S . {$ in billions)
General obligation. ......... .. i e 203% 215% 21.8%
Tax-backed ... ... i e e 182% 192% 18.5%
Municipal utilities ...........o i 14.6% -18.6% 19.7%
International infrastructure ... .. ii ittt ettt e 12.4% 6.5% 2.7%
Healthcare.............. e e '9.9% 108% 11.5%
Investor-oﬁ{nedutilities..f.............................’ ........... e 9.6%° 2.6% 24%
Transportation .......... e 95% 11.5% 10.9%
Higher education ... ..... e 19% 21% . 17%
HOUSINE . ..o el 16% 21% 21%
Structured'municipal ... ... .. L e e 0.9% 15%  2.5%
Other public finance .................. e aeasaeioaaiiiaiiesiicanes 11% 36% 62%
Total. .. o.oin s SRR 1000% 100.0% 100.0%
Total public finance net par outstanding............ J ... $ 666 $ 557 §$ 545




The table below shows our ten largest financial guaranty public finance direct and reinsurance
exposures by revenue source as a percentage of total financial guaranty net par outstanding as of
December 31, 2006:

Ten Largest Public Finance Exposures

Percent of Total
Net Par Net Par Internal
Qutstanding Outstanding Rating(1)
($ in millions) .

Epic Il o e s $1,065 0.8% AAA
International Infrastructure Transaction Pool ................. 993 0.8% AAA
International Infrastructure Transaction Poot ................. 955 0.7% AAA
International Infrastructure Transaction Poot ................. 927 0.7% AAA
California State General Obligation & Leases................. 838 0.6% A
New York City General Obligation .......................... 685 0.5% A+
Stichting Profile SecuritisationI .................... ... ... 677 0.5% AAA .
Long Island Power Authority. . ............co oo e 670 0.5% A-
New Jersey State General Obligation & Leases................ 662 0.5% AA-
Washington State General Obligation........................ 640 - 05% AA
Total of 10P 1N EXPOSUTES . . . ... vvvvvrrenrenreenrrnrenrnns.. $8,112 6.1%

(1) These ratings represent our internal assessment of the underlying credit quality of the insured
obligations. Our scale is comparable to that of the nationally recognized rating agencies.

Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Internal Rating

The following table sets forth our financial guaranty portfolio as of December 31, 2006 by internal
rating:

Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Internal Rating
Percent of‘ Tou;l

' Net Par Net Par
Rating Category(1) Outstanding Outstanding .
($ in billions) P
AA A e e $ 57.0 431%
A e e 23.0 17.4%
A 328 24.9%
BBB..............ooll e e e e 18.2 13.7%
Belowinvestmentgrade .............. ... i, 1.3 __09%
Total....... el P $1323 100.0%

(1) These ratings represent our internal assessment of the uﬁderiyjng credit quality of the insured
obligations. Our scale is comparable to that of the nationally recognized rating agencies.




Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Geographic Area

The following table sets forth the geographic distribution of our financial guaranty portfolio as of
December 31, 2006: i

Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Geographic Area

Percent of Total

Net Par Net Par
Qutstanding Qutstanding
($ in billions) .
United States:
California ... ...t e $ 76 5.7%
New YOrK ..ottt e e e e 5.9° 4.4%
Texas oo e Cieen 32. 2.4%
Ilnois . ..o e e L. 30 . 23%
Florida.........ooovvveiinneninnnnnn. e, e 2.8 2.1%
Massachusetts. . ..o vvr e ie e i ea e, 2.6 2.0%
Pennsylvania............ e e 21 1.6%
Washington. . ..ot it e s 2.0 1.5%
NEW JEISEY ..t e i e el U 20 1.5%
Puerto RiCo. . ... .o i i ettt i 1.7 1.3%
L0113 1 721 (= A S P 19.4 14.79%
Mortgage and structured (multiple states) ............. tee.. 51.6 _39.0%
Total US......... e e e e e - 1039 - 785%
International. .. ................ ... ... S . 284 _21.5%
Total oo e e o $132.3 100.0%

Financial Guaranty an‘foliq by Issue Size

We seek broad coverage of the market by insuring and reinsuring small and large issues alike. The
following table sets forth the distribution of our portfolio as of December 31, 2006 by original size of our

exposure:
1

. Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Issue Size

N Percent of Total . ' % of Total
. Number of Numberof | = NetPar ° - NetPar
Original Par Amount Per Issue . Issues | Issues Outstanding  Qutstanding
) ’ ) ($ in billions)
Less than $10.0 million .. ... P, 7,690 - NBY% $ 74 - 5.6%

" $10.0 through $24.9 million ... '....._. 1,100 10.6% 11.7 8.9%
$25.0 through $49.9 million .. . ... PR 610 5.9% 14.5 10.9%
$50.0 million and above .............. 1,001 " 96% 987  746%

Total. . ... s P 10,401 100.0% $132.3 100.0% -




Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Source ' oo L S

The following table sets forth our financial guaranty portfolio for and as of the year ended
December 31, 2006 by source: .

- Financial -Guaranty Portfolio by Source .-

e ) _ Gross Par  Gross Par

Written In Force
. . (§ in billions)

Direct.... .. ...0coeennn. e e e e e $41.7 $ 684

Reinsurance: ‘
Financial Security Assurance Inc ............... S e 39 - 279
Ambac Assurance Corporation....................... SO 1.9 12.1
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company..............ooiiuniu.. 24 10.5
MBIA Insurance Corporatlon ................... S, e — 122
Other ceding compames ............. I e 0.9 2.2
Total. .. $509 © '$1333

Mortgage Guaranty Insamnce/Remsurance

Mortgage guaranty insurance is a specialized class of credlt insurance that provides protection to
mortgage lending institutions against the default of borrowers on mortgage loans that, at-the time of the
advance, had a loan-to-value (“LTV”) in excess of a specified ratio. In'the United States, governmental
agencies and private mortgage guaranty insurance compete in this market, while some lending institutions
choose to self insure against the risk of loss on high LTV mortgage loans.

Reinsurance in the mortgage guaranty insurance industry is used to increase the insurance capacity of
the ceding company, to assist the ceding company in meeting applicable regulatory and rating agency
requirements, to augment the financial strength of the ceding company, and to manage the ceding -
company’s risk profile. L .-

The U.S. private mortgage guaranty insurancé industry, composed of only monoline insurance
companies as required by law, provides two basic types of coverage: primary insurance, which protects
lenders against default on individual residential mortgage loans by covering losses on such loans to a stated
percentage, and pool insurance, which protects lenders against loss on an underlying pool of individual
mortgages by covering the full amount of the loss (less the proceeds from any applicable primary coverage)
on individual residential mortgage loans in the pool, with an aggregate limit usually expressed as a
percentage of the initial loafrbalances in the pool. Primary and pool insurance are used to facilitate the
sale of mortgage loans in the secondary mortgage market, principally to the Federal National Mortgage
Association (“Fannie Mae”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatlon (“Freddie Mac”). Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac provide indirect funding for approximately half of all mortgage loans originated in
the United States. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are prohibited by their charters from purchasing
mortgage loans with LTV's of greater than 80% unless the loans are insured by a designated mortgage
guaranty insurer or some other form of credit enhancement is provided. In addition, pool insurance is
often used to provide credit support for mortgage-backed securities and other secondary mortgage market
transactions.

Mortgage guaranty reinsurance comprises the buik of our in force mortgage business. We have
provided reinsurance of primary mortgage insurance and pool insurance in the United States on a quota
share and excess of loss basis. Quota share reinsurance describes all forms of reinsurance in which the
reinsurer shares in a proportional part of the original premiums and losses of the business ceded by the
primary company (subject to a ceding commission). Excess of loss reinsurance refers to reinsurance which
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indemnifies the ceding company for that portion of the loss that exceeds an agreed upon “retention.”
There has been a decrease in demand for our quota share mortgage guaranty reinsurance products over
the last five years, as primary mortgage insurers have expanded their capital bases. -

We have been a leading provider of excess of loss reinsurance to lender captives and third party
insurers in the United Kingdom. There is not a consistent demand for mortgage insurance guaranty
(“MIG”) reinsurance in the United Kingdom although business opportunities may arise from time to time.-
We have entered into multi year reinsurance arrangements with several lenders and third party insurers:

We have also participated in the mortgage reinsurance markets in Ireland, Hong Kong and Australia.
We have participated in'these markets on an excess of-loss basis with high attachment pomts and believe
that our risk of loss on these transactions is remote. :

The mortgage guaranty segment has a decreasing portfoho and is opportunistic with limited
possibilities for new business due to our change in business strategy and the overall market for mortgage
insurance. New business in this segment will be generated at irregular intervals.

Mortgage Portfolio

N

The following table sets forth our mortgage insurance and reinsurance risk in force by geographic
region as of December 31, 2006: . -

‘Mortgage Guaranty Risk In Force By Geographic Region

Risk In Force Percent
' : ($ in millions)
United Kingdom ........... . i $1,300.1 71.4% .
Ireland. . ..ot e 395.2 21.7%
United States ............. e e 98.3 5.4%
Australia............... PP C e ' 28.2 1.5%
101 | $1,821.8 100.0%

The following table sets forth our mortgage guaranty risk in force by treaty type as of December 31,
2006: . . .

Mortgage Guaranty Risk In Force By Treaty Type

Rlsk In Force ‘Percent l

. ($ in miltions)
Excessofloss .................. e s $1,818.5 99.8%
Quotashare ..ot i e e i rrara s 33 0.2%
Total .. e e .$1,821.8 100.0%

Other

We have participated in several lines of business that are reflected in our historical financial
statements, but that we have exited, including equity layer credlt protection, trade credit reinsurance, title
reinsurance, and auto residual value reinsurance.

Our equ:ty layer credit protection business generally consisted of first loss and mezzanine layer
participations in credit derivatives or total rate of return swaps written on portfolios of primarily
investment grade corporate credits and highly rated classes of structured securities. We stopped writing
new business in this line in early 2003. We have terminated all of these transactions during 2003 and 2004.
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Trade credit insurance protects sellers of goods andservices from the risk of non-payment of trade
receivables. We participated in this market as a reinsurer. We ceased writing new trade credit business.
during 2004. All of our trade credit business was either retroceded or novated to a subsidiary of ACE
Limited (“ACE”), our former parent, effective April 1, 2004,

We had offered title reinsurance products derived from excess of loss and quota share reinsurance
products, on both a treaty and facultative basis, in the United States. ACE Capital Title Reinsurance
Company, the company through which we had written U.S. titlé reinsurance business, was sold-to ACEin
April 2004.

Auto residual value reinsurance protects automoblle lessors and balloon note lenders against the risk
that the actual value of an automobile at lease end or loan maturity will be less than the projected residual -
value of the automobile. We stopped writing new business in this line in 2001. All of this busmess was.
either retroceded toa subsndlary of ACE or commuted effective April 1, 2004.

Underwriting S

The underwriting, operations and risk management guidelines, policies and procedures of our
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are tailored to their respective busmesses providing multiple levels
of credit review and analysis. .

Exposure limits and underwriting criteria are established, as appropriate for sectors, counitries, single
risks and in the case of structured finance obligations, servicers. Single risk limits are established in relation
to the Company’s capital base and are based on our assessment of poténtial severity of loss as well as other
factors. Sector limits are based on our assessment of intra sector correlation, as well as other factors.
Country limits are based on long term foreign currency ratings, history of pohtlcal stabxl:ty, size and
stability of the economy and other factors. :

Critical risk factors for proposed public finance exposures include, for example, the credlt quallty of
the issuer, the type of issue, the repayment source, security pledged, the presence of restrictive covenants,
and the issue’s maturity. Underwriting consideration for exposures include (1) class, reflecting economic
and social factors affecting that bond type, including the |mportance of the proposed project, (2) the
financial management of the project and of the issuer, and (3) various legal and administrative factors. In
cases where the primary source of repayment is the taxing or rate setting authority of a public entity, such
as general obligation bonds, transportation bonds and municipal utility bonds, emphasis is placed on the
overall financial strength of the issuer, the economic and demographic characteristics of the taxpayer or
ratepayer base and the strength of the legal obligdtion to repay the debt. In cases of quasi-public entities
such as healthcare bonds and private higher education bonds, emphasis is placed on the financial stability
of the institution, its competitive position and its management.

Structured finance obligations generally present three distinct forms of risk: (1) asset risk, pertaining
to the amount and quality of assets underlying an issue; (2) structural risk, pertaining to the extent to which
an issue’s legal structure provides protection from loss; and (3) execution risk, which is the risk that poor
performance by a servicer contributes to a decline in the cash flow available to the transaction. Each risk is
addressed in turn through our underwriting process. Generally, the amount and quality of asset coverage
required with respect to a structured finance exposure is dependent upon the historic performance of the
subject asset class, or those assets actually underlymg the risk proposed to be insured or reinsured. Future
performance expectations are developed from this history, taking into account economic, social and
political factors affecting that asset class as well as, to the extent feasible, the subject assets themselves.
Conclusions are then drawn about the amount of over-collateralization or othér credit enhancement
necessary in a particular transaction in order to protect investors (and therefore the insurer or reinsurer) -
against poor asset performance. In addition, structured securities usually are designed to protect investors -
(and therefore the guarantor) from the bankruptcy or insolvency of the entity which-originated the
underlying assets, as well as the bankruptcy or insolvency of the servicer of those assets.
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For international transactions, an analysis of the country.or countries in which the risk resides is
performed. Such analysis includes as'assessment of the political risk as well as the economic and
demographic characteristics of the country or countries. For each transaction, we perform an assessment of
the legal regime governing the transaction and the laws affecting the underlymg assets supporting the
obligations. - - oo :

Underwriting Procedures

The Risk Oversight Committee of the Board of Directors oversees our credit underwriting process.
Subject to limits established by the Risk Oversight Committee, the Portfolio Risk Management. Committee
implements specific underwriting. procedures and limits for the Company. The Portfolio Risk Management
Committee also allocates underwriting capacity among the Company’s subsidiaries. The'Portfolio Risk
Management Committee focuses on the measurement and management of credit, market and liquidity risk
for the overall company and its main operating subsidiaries. It has established and maintains underwriting
limits, policies and procedures and meets.at least quarterly to review and set policy. Each insurance,
facultative reinsurance and credit derivative transaction after passing an initial assessment intended to
consider-the desirability of the proposed exposure, is assigned to a team including relevant underwriting
and legal personnel. Finance personnel review the proposed exposure’ for. compliance with applicable
accounting standards and investment guidelines. The team reviews the structure of the transaction, and the
underwriter.reviews credit.issues pertinent to the particular line of business. In our structured financial
guaranty and mortgage guaranty lines, underwriters generally apply computer models to stress cash flows
in their assessment of.the risk.inherent in a particular transaction, For reinsurance transactions, stress
model results may be provided by the primary insurer. Stress models may also be developed internally by
our underwriting department and reflect both empirical research as well as information gathered from
third parties, such as rating agencies, investment banks or servicers. Where warranted to assess a particular
credit risk properly, we may perform a due diligence review in connection with a transaction. A due
diligence review may include, among other things, meetings with issuer management, review of
underertmg and operational procedures file reviews, and review of financial procedures and computer
- systems. The structure of a transaction is also scrutlmzed from a legal perspective by in house and, where
appropriate, external counsel and Spec1alty legal’ expertise is consulted when our legal staff deems it
appropriate. | ’

' ' . ' i

Upon completion of underwriting analysis, the underwriter prepares a formal credit report that is
submltted to an underwriting committee for review. In the vast majority of cases, an oral presentation is
made to the committee, followed by questions from committee members and discussion among the
committee members and the underwrltcrs In some cases, addltlonal 1nf0rmat10n may be presented at the |
meeting or required to be submitted prior to approval. Slgnatures of committee members are received and
any further requirements, such as specific terms or evidence of due diligence, is noted. At the discretion of
the Chief Credit Officer, for submissions that are of a re]atlvely, low-risk nature or where the transact:on is
substantlally snmlar to others that have been submitted in the past, a formal meeting may be foregone A
formal submission and signatures of the committee members are required whether a formal meeting is
held or not. U.S, dlrect business is submitted to AGC’s Credit Committee, which consists of senior
professionals mcludmg underwriting officers, the President and Chief Credit Officer and other senior ' i
officers of AGC. Certain pubhc finance and residential mortgage-backed securities transactions that meet
specific criteria with respect to'size, ratmg and type of risk, may be eligible for an expedited approval
process, in which the submission may be approved by two of four designated senior officers of AGC, one of
whom must be either the President or Chief Credit Officer. Transactions submitted by Assured Guaranty
(UK) Ltd. must be approved by Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.’s Underwriting Committee, c0n51stmg of
senior officers of Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd., and a further to Supervisory Underwriting Committee
containing AGC Credit Committee. Transactions submitted for execution in AGRO must be
recommended by the AG Intermediary Credit Committee, consisting substantially.of senior officers of *
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AGC including the President and Chief Credit Officer, and approved by AGRO’s underwriting managers
in Bermuda. Transactions submitted for approval within AG Re must be approved by the AG Re Ry
Underwriting Committee, containing senior officers of AG Re, including the President and Chief
Operating Officer. Certain transactions submitted for approval within AG Re that meet specific criteria -
with respect to size, rating and type of risk, require further approval of one of four designated officers of
Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Treaty Underwriting

The procedures for underwriting treaty business differ somewhat from those for facultatwe
reinsurance, as we make a forward commitment to reinsure business from a ceding company for a specified
period of time. Although we have the ability to exclude certain classes or categories of risk from a treaty,
we have a limited ability to control the individual risks ceded pursuant to the terms of the treaty. Asa
result, we enter into reinsurance treaties only with ceding companies with proven track records and after
extensive.underwriting due diligence with respect to the proposed cedant. Prior to entering into a
reinsurance treaty, we meet with senior management, underwriters, risk managers, and accounting and.
systems personnel of the proposed cedant. We evaluate the ceding company’s underwriting expertise and .
experience; capital position, in-force book of business, reserves, cash flow, profitability and financial
strength. We actively monitor ceded treaty exposures. Collected data is evaluated regularly to detect ceded
risks that are inconsistent with ocur expectations. If appropriate and permitted under the terms of the
treaty, we add exclusions in response to risks identified during our evaluations. Our surveillance
department conducts periodic audits of each ceding company. The audits entail review of underwriting and
surveillance files, as well as meetings with management. Information gathered during these audits-is used
to re-evaluate treaties at the time of renewal. g

Risk Management

The Risk Oversight and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees our risk managemen't '
policies and procedurés. Within the limits established by the board committees, specific risk p011c1es and
limits are set by the Portfolio Risk Management Committee, which includes members of senior
management and senior Credit and Surveillance officers. As part of its risk management strategy, the -
Company may seek to obtain third party reinsurance or retrocessions and may also penodlcally enter into
other arrangements to alleviate all or a portion of this risk. .

Our Risk Management and Surveillance personnel are responsible for monitoring and reporting on all
transactions in the insured portfolio, mcludmg exposures in botti the Direct and Reinsurance segrnents '
The primary objective of the surveillance process is to monitor trends and changes in transaction credit
quality, detect any deterioration in credit quality, and take such remedial actions as may bé necessary or ™
appropriate. All transactions in the msured portfolio are risk rated, and surveitlance personnel are
responsible for adjusting those ratings to reflect changes in transaction credit quality. Surveillance
personne] are also responsiblé for managing work-out and loss situations when necessary. For transacuons
where a loss is considered probable, surveillance personnel make recommendations on case loss reserves to
a reserve committee. The reserve committee is made up of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fmancml
Officer, Chief Surveillance Officer, General Counsel and Chief Accountmg Officer. The reserve
committee considers the recommendations of the survelllance personnel when reviewing reserve
recommendatlons of our operating sub51d1ar1es

Direct Businesses

We conduct surveillance procedures to track risk aggregations and monitor performance of each nsk
The review cycle and scope vary based upon transaction type and credit quality. In general, the review -
process includes the collection and analysis of information from various sources, including trustee and
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servicer reports, financial statements and reports, general industry or sector news and analyses, and rating
agency reports. For Public Finance risks, the surveillance process includes monitoring general economic
trends, developments with respect to state and municipal finances, and the financial situation of the
issuers. For Structured Finance transactions, the surveillance process can include monitoring transaction
performance data and cash flows, compliance with transaction terms and conditions, and evaluation of
servicer or collateral manager performance and financial condition. Additionally, the Company uses’
various quantitative tools and 'models to assess transaction performance and identify situations where there
may have been a change in credit quality. For all transactions, surveillance activities may include
discussions with or site visits to issuers, servicers or other parties to a transaction.
! . ! '

Reinsurance Businesses

For transactions in our Reinsurance segment, the primary insurers are responsible for conducting
ongoing surveillance, and our surveillance personnel monitor the activities of the primary insurers through
a variety of means, such as review of surveillance reports provided by the primary insurers, and meetings
and discussions with their analysts. Qur surveillance personnel take steps to ensure that the primary insurer
is managing risk pursuant to the terms of the applicable reinsurance agreement. To this end, we conduct
periodic reviews of ceding companies’ surveillance activities and capabilities. That process may include the
review of the primary insurer’s underwriting, surveillance, and claim files for certain transactions. In the
event of credit deterioration of a particular exposure, more frequent reviews of the ceding company’s risk
mitigation activities are conducted. Our surveillance personnel also monitor general news and information,
industry trends, and rating agency reports to help focus surveillance activities on sectors or credits of
particular concern. For certain exposures, we also will undertake an independent analysis and remodeling
of the transaction. '

15




Closely Monitored Credits . T

Our surveillance department is responsible for momtormg our portfollo of credlts and maintains a list
of closely monitored ‘credits (“CMC”) The closely monitored credits are dwlded into four categories:
Category 1 (low prlonty, fundamentally sound, greater thafi normal nsk) Category 2 (medium prlorlty,
weakening credit’ profile, may result in loss); Category’ 3 (high priority; Clalm/defau]t probable case reserve
established); Category 4 (claim pald case reserve establlshed for future payments). "The closely monltored
credits include all below investment grade (“BIG”) exposures where there is a material amount of '
exposure (generally greater than $10.0 mllllon) or a material risk of the Company incurring a loss greater
than $0.5 million. The closely monitored credits also include investment grade (“IG”) risks where credit
quality is deteriorating and where, in the view of the Company, there is significant potential that the risk
quality will fall below investment grade. As of December 31, 20086, the closely monitored credits include
approximately 97% of our BIG exposure, and thie remaining BIG exposure of $34.4 million is distributed
across 68 different credits. Other than those excluded BIG credits, credits that are not included in the
closely monitored credit list are ¢ategorized as fundamentally sound risks, The following table provides
financial guaranty net par outstanding by credit momtormg category as of December 31,2006 and 2005:

' , . , As of December 31, 2006. . . As ol' December 31 2005,
% of Net % of Net
o ' 'NetPar Par ' of Crédits Net Par Par «  # of Credits
Description: Outstanding(3) Outstanding _in Category Qutstanding(3) Outstanding in Category
. (% in millions)
Fundamentally sound . S e ‘ C
risk(1). ..o, $130,944 99.0% - .’ $100,951 98.6% S
Closely monitored credits: ' ‘ :
Category 1.............. 855 0.6% 43 872 0.9% 36 .
Category2.............. 318 0.2% 13 433 0.4% 22
Category3.............. 123 0.1% 18 131 0.1% 15
Categoryd.............. 22 — 13 23 — 11
CMCtotal(2) ......... 1,318 1.0% 87 1,459 1.4% 84
Other below investment
graderisk............... 34 — 68 55 - —_ 103
Total.,..........ccviinnn, $132,296 100.0% $102,465 100.0%

(1} As of December 31, 2006, Category 1 contains 6 credits with net par outstanding of $97.8 million and Category 2
contains 3 credits with net par outstanding of $9.7 million in geographic areas affected by Hurricane Katrina, As
of December 31, 2005, Category 1 contains 4 credits with net par outstanding of $44.8 million and Category 2
contains 7 credits with net par outstanding of $80.6 million in geographic areas affected by Hurricane Katrina.

(2} Percent total does not add due to rounding.

(3) The Company’s 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current quarter basis
while 2005 is reported on a one-quarter lag.

Losses and Reserves

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for non-derivative transactions in our financial
guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed reinsurance and mortgage guaranty business include case
reserves and portfolio reserves. See the “Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments” of the Critical
Accounting Estimates section for more information on our derivative transactions. Case reserves are
established when there is significant credit deterioration on specific insured obligations and the obligations
are in default or default is probable, not necessarily upon non-payment of principal or interest by an
insured. Case reserves represent the present value of expected future loss payments and loss adjustment
expenses (“LAE™), net of estimated recoveries, but before considering ceded reinsurance. This reserving
method is different from case reserves established by traditional property and casualty insurance
companies, which establish case reserves upon notification of a claim and establish incurred but not
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reported-(“IBNR”) reserves.for the difference between actuarially estimated ultimate losses and recorded
case reserves. Financial guaranty direct and assumed reinsurance case reserves and related salvage and
subrogation, if any, are discounted at 6%, which is the approximate taxable equivalent yield on our
investment portfolio in all periods presented. When the Company becomes entitled to the underlying
collateral of an insured credit under salvage and subrogation rlghts as a result of a claim payment, it
records salvage and subrogatlon as an asset, based on the expected level of recovery. Such amounts are
included in the Company’s balance sheet within “Other assets.”

We record portfolio reserves in our financial guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed reinsurance
and mortgage guaranty business. Portfolio reserves are established with respect to the portion of our
business for which case reserves have not been established. Portfolio reserves are not established for quota
share mortgage insurance contract types, all of which are in run-off; rather Case and IBNR reserves have
been established for these contracts.

Portfolio reserves are not established based on a specific event; rather they are calculated by '
aggregating the portfolio reserve calculated for each individual transaction. Individual transaction reserves
are calculated on a-quarterly basis by multiplying the par in-force by the product of the ultimate loss and
earning factors without regard to discounting. The ultimate loss factor is defined as the frequency of loss
multiplied by the severity of loss, where the frequency is defined as the probability of default for each °
individual issue. The earning:factor is inception to date earned premium divided by the estimated ultimate
written premium for each transaction. The probability of default is estimated from historical rating agency
data and is based on the transaction’s credit rating, industry sector and time until maturity. The severity is
defined as the complement of historical recovery/salvage rates gathered by the ratmg agencies of defaulting
issues and is based on the industry sector. o . o

Portfolio reserves are recorded gross of reinsurance. We have not ceded any amounts under these
reinsurance contracts, as our recorded portfollo reserves have not exceeded our contractual retentions,
required by said contracts. -

The Company records an incurrcd loss that is reflected in the statement of operations upon the
establishment of portfolio reserves. When we initially record a case reserve, we reclassify the .
corresponding portfolio reserve already recorded for that credit within the balance sheet. The difference
between the initially recorded case reserve and the reclassified portfolio reserve is recorded as a charge in
our statement of operations, [t would be a remote occurrence when the case reserve is not greater than the
reclassificd portfolio reserve. Any subsequent change in portfolio reserves or initial case reserves are
recorded quarterly as a charge or credit in our statement of operations in the period such estimates
change. Due to the inherent uncertainties of estimating loss and LAE reserves, actual experience may
differ from the estimates reflected in our consolidated financial statements, and the differences may be
material.

We also record IBNR reserves for our mortgage guaranty and other segments. IBNR is an estimate of
losses for which the insured event has occurred but the claim has not yet been reported to us. In
establishing IBNR, we use traditional actuarial methods to estimate the reporting lag of such claims based
on historical experience, claim reviews and information reported by ceding companies. We record IBNR
for mortgage guaranty quota-share reinsurance contracts, alt of which are in run-off, within our mortgage
guaranty segment, We also record IBNR trade credit reinsurance within our other segment. The other
segment represents lines of business we have exited or sold prior to the initial public offering (“IPO”).

For all other mortgage guaranty transactions we record portfolio reserves in a manner consistent with
our financial guaranty business. While other mortgage guaranty insurance companies do not record
portfolio reserves, rather just case and IBNR reserves, we record portfolio reserves because we write
business on an excess of loss basis, while other industry participants write quota share or first layer loss
business. We manage and underwrite this business in the same manner as our financial guaranty insurance
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and reinsurance business because they have similar characteristics as insured obhgatlons of mortgagc-
backed securities. : .

FAS No. 60, “Accountmg and Reportmg by Insurance Enterprlscs” (“FAS 607) is the authorltatwe B
guidance for an insurance enterprise. FAS 60 prescribes differing reserving methodologles depending on
whether a contract fits within its definition of a short-duration contraét or a long-duration contract.
Financial guaranty contracts havé elements of long-duration insurance contracts in that they are
irrevocable and extend over a period that may exceed 30 years or more, but for regulatory purposes are
reported as property and liability insurance, which are normally considered short-duration contracts. The
short-duration and long-duration classifications have different methods of accounting for premium
revenue and contract liability recognition. Additionaily, the accounting for deferred acquisition costs
(“DAC”) could be different under the two methods. :

We believe the guidance of FAS 60 does not expressly address the distinctive characteristics of
financial guaranty insurance, so we also apply the analogous guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”)-Issue No. 85-20, “Recognition of Fees for Guaranteeing a Loan” (“EITF 85-20"), which provides
guidance relating to the recognition of fees for guarantecing a loan, which has similarities to financiat
guaranty insurance contracts. Under the guidance in EITF 85-20, the guarantor should assess the .
probability of loss on an ongoing basis to determine if a liability should be recognized under-FAS No. 5, . |,
“Accounting for Contingencies” (“FAS 57). FAS 5 requires that a loss be recognized where it is probable -
that one or more future events will occur confirming that.a liability has been incurred as of the date of the
financial statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

The Company is aware that there are certain differences regarding the: measurement of portfolio loss
liabilities among companies in the financial guaranty industry. In January and February 2005, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff had discussions concerning these differences with a
number of industry participants. Based on these discussions, in June 2005 the Financial Accounting ..
Standards Board (“FASB”) staff decided additional guidance is necessary regarding financial guaranty,
contracts. When the FASB staff reaches a conclusion on this issue, the Company and the rest of the
financial guaranty industry may be required to change some aspects of their loss reserving policiés, but the
Company cannot cuirently assess how the FASB or SEC staffs’ ultimate resolution of this issue will impact
our reserving policy or'other balances, i.e., premiums and DAC. Until the issue is resolved, the Company
intends to continue to apply its emstmg pohcy with respéct to the estabhshment of both case and portfolio
reserves.

oy . - '
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of reserves for .
losses and LAE: '

[

" For the Years Ended December 3'1','

_ 2006, - 2005 2004
Lo , ‘ (in thousands of U.S. dollars}
Balance as of January 1................ P  $128,421  $ 236202 | $ 544,211
Less reinsurance recoverable............... ... ... PO . (12,350) (120, 220) (122,124)
Net balance as of January 1'.............. PR P ' 116,071 115982 . 422,087
Transfers to case reserves from portfolio reserves.. . ............. - 733 13,747 581
Incurred losses and loss adjustment-expenses pertammg 1o case -
and IBNR reserves(1): - ' :
Currentyear ............. A S e 772 10,609 56,666
Prior years...... R (13,028) (76,683) (81,259)
: oo ‘ ©(12,256) (66,074  (24,593)
Transfers to case rescrves from portfolio TESEIVES. . ...uiinnnnns C(733) (13,747) {581)
Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses pertaining to :
portfolioreserves. ..o i 5,500 (3,490} (7,386)
Total incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses............. . (6,756) - (69,564)  (31,979)
Loss and loss adjustment expenses paid and recovered pertaining- -~ g
to: ' o
Current year....... e P e 20 0 (143) (50,623)
Prior years{l) ... voveeieiiiniint ey e - 355 77,340 (190,960)
, . - 335 77,197 . (241,583)
Value of reinsurance businessassumed........ .. .00 = ‘ . (14,226)
Change in salvage recoverable.................. ... ... .o, 42 (2 497) (11,919)
Transfer title reserves . ............ P = T (6,620)
Foreign exchange loss {gain) on reserve's ............... . 19 - (5, 047) ' 222
Net balance as of December3i. .. .......... R . 109,711~ 116,071 115,982
Plus reinsurance recoverable(2) ..... .. FOP 10,889 © 12,350 © 120,220
Balance as of Decémber 31(2)..1......... e L $120,600 $ 128421° ' § 236,202

(1) The prior year loss recovery of $0.3 million in 2006 is due to $l3 5 million of net recoveries s from third
party litigation settlements. These recoveries were primarily offset by loss payments, of which two of
the largest were made on a U.S. Infrastructure transaction and a European Infrastructure transaction.
The prior year loss recovery of $77.3 million in 2005 is primarily due to $71.0 million in loss recoveries
from a third party litigation settlement agreement, with two parties, relating to a reinsurance claim -
incurred.in 1998 and 1999 as well as a $2.4 million recovery related to the equity layer credlt protection

. business. g

(2) Reinsurance recoverables and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves decréased in 2005 compared
with 2004 due to: 1) a quota share retrocession agreement that the Company entered into on April 28,
2004 with ACE INA Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. (“AIOIC”), a subsidiary of ACE, whereby it
ceded 100% of any ‘potential losses assoaated with an action filed by World Omni F1nanc1al Corp.

, (“World Omm”) against AG Intermednary Inc. and AGRO, sub51dtar1es of the Company, for a
‘premium, of $32 2 million. The matter was settled on December 15, 2005 between AIOIC and World
Omni. Upon settlement the Company released $54.2 million of remsurance recoverables and loss and
loss adjustment expense reserves, representing its entire obligation to World Omni, and 2) $53 3
million of released reinsurance recoverables and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, due to the

" run- off and novatlon of our trade credit business, which is mcluded in our other segment “
R b
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Investments .

Our principal objectives in managing our investment portfolio are: (1) to preserve our subsidiaries’”
financial strength ratings; (2) to maximize total after-tax net investment income while generating a
competitive total rate of return; (3) to maintain sufficient liquidity to cover unexpected stress in the
insurance portfolio; (4) to mahage investment risk within the context of the underlying portfolio of
insurance risk; and (5) to meet appllcable regulatory requirements.

We have a formal review process for all securities in our investment portfoho 1ncludmg a review for - -
impairment losses. Factors considered when assessing impairment include: (1).securities whose market
values have declined by 20% or more below amortized cost for a continuous period of at least six.months; .
(2) recent credit downgrades of the applicable security or the issuer by rating agencies; (3) the financial. ,
condition of the applicable issuer; (4) whether scheduled interest payments are past due; and (5) whether
we have the ability and intent to hold the security for a sufficient period of time to allow for anticipated
recoveries in fair value. If we believe a decline in the value of a particular investment is temporary, we
record the decline as an unrealized loss in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders” -,
equity on our consolidated balance sheets. If we believe the decline is “other than temporary,” we write
down the carrying value of the investment and record a loss on our staternents of operations. Qur
assessment of a decline in value includes management’s current judgment of the factors noted above. If
that judgment changes in the future, we may ultimately record a loss after having orlgmally concluded that
the decline in value was temporary.

As of December 31, 2006, we had no below investment grade securities or non-rated securities in our
investment portfolio. For additional information regarding our investments, sce “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-of Financial Condition and Results of Operatlons—-—quuldxty and Capltal
Resources—Investment Portfolio.”

Prior to January 1, 2005 we had retained Lazard Freres Asset Management and Hyperion Capital
Management, Inc. to manage our investment portfolio. As of January 1, 2005 this function has been placed
with BlackRock Finaricial Management, Inc. Our investment managers have dlscretlonary authority over
our investment portfolio within the limits of our investment guidelines. We compensate.each of these
managers based upon a fixed percentage of the market value of our portfolio, During the years ended,
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we paid aggregate investment management fees of $1.8 million, $1.7
million and $1.8 million, respectively, to these managers.

-Competmon !

Our prmc1pal competitors in the financial guaranty dlrect market are Ambac Assuranc:e Corporatlon
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, Financial Security Assurance Inc., MBIA Insurance.Corporation,
XL Capital Assurance Inc. and CDC IXIS Financial Guaranty, all of which have “AAA”, “AAA” and
“Aaa” ratings from Standard & Poor’s Inc., a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., Fitch Ratings
and Moody’s Investors Service. Banks, smaller and Jower-rated financial guaranty insurance comparues
and multiline insurers and reinsurers also partlclpate in'the broader credijt enhancement market. The’
principal competltwe factors are: (1) preniium rates; (2) conditions precedent to the issuance of a policy
related to the structure and secunty features of a proposed bond issue; (3) the financial strength ratings of
the guarantor and (4) the quallty of service and execution provided to 1ssuers investors and other clients
of the issucr. Financial guaranty insurance also competes domestically and internationally with other forms
of credit enhancément, 1nclud1ng the use of senior and subordinated tranches of a proposed structured
findance obhgatlon and/or overcollaterahzatlon or cash collateral accounts, as well as more tradltlonal
forms of credit support.

Our principal competltors in the financial guaranty reinsurance market are Radian Remsurance Inc.,
RAM Reinsurance Company Ltd., XL Financial Assurance Ltd., Channel Reinsurance Ltd. and BluePoint
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Re Ltd. Competition in the financial guaranty reinsurance business is based upon many factors, including
overall f1nanc1al strength, pricing, service and evaluatlon of claims paying ability by the major rating
agencies.

The U S. private mortgagc insurance mdustry consists of eight active mortgage guaranty insurers:
CMG Mortgage Insurance Company, Genworth Mortgage Insurance Corporation, Mortgage Guaranty
Insurance Company, PMI Mortgage Insurance Co., Radian Guaranty Inc., Republic Mortgage Insurance
Company, Triad Mortgage Insurance Company. and, United Guaranty Residential Insurance Company.
These mortgage. guaranty insurers do not use a material amount of third party reinsurance. They do,
however, employ various risk sharing arrangements with their affiliated companies. In addition, lender
owned “captive” companies are a significant source of reinsurance capacity for the industry. In the United
Kingdom, we face competition from affiliates of U.S. private mortgage guaranty insurers, which pnmanly
write excess of loss reinsurance for MIG captives. . . . : |

Regulation
General

The business of insurance and remsurance is regulated in most countries, although the degree and
type of regulation varies srgmﬁcantly from one ]urlSdICthl’l to another. Reinsurers are generally subject to
less direct regulation than primary insurers. We are subject to regulanon under applicable statutes in the
Unrted States the United ngdom and Bermuda.

1

1

Umted States

IS

Assured Guaranty Lid. has two operatlng insurance subsidiaries domlcrled in the United States which
we refer, to collectively as the “Assured Guaranty U.S. Subsidiaries.” . .

AGC is a Maryland domiciled insurance company licensed to write financial guaranty insurance and
reinsurance (and in some states casualty, slurety'and other lines) in 49 U.S. states, the District of Columbia’
and Puerto Rico. AGC currently has a llcense apphcatron pending in Wisconsin. AGC is also licensed as a
Class 3 insurer m Bermuda.

Assured Guaranty Mortgage a wholly-owned subsrdlary of AGRO, isa New York corporatlon
licensed as a mortgage guaranty insurer in the State of New York and in the District of Columbia and
thereby is authorized solely to transact the business of mortgage guaranty insurance and reinsurance.
Assured Guaranty Mortgage is an approved or accredrted rernsurer in the States of Cahforma Illrnms and
Wrsconsm ' '

Insurance Holdmg Company Regulatwn '

Assured Guaranty and the Assured Guaranty U.S. Subsrdlanes are subject to the insurance holchng
company laws of Maryland and New York. These laws generally require each of the Assured Guaranty
U.S. Subsidiaries to register with its respective domestic state insurance department and annually to, |
furnish financial and other information about the operations of companies within their holding company
system. Generally, all transactions among companies in the holding company system to which any of the
Assured Guaranty U.S. Subsidiaries is a party (including sales, loans, reinsurance agreements and service
agreements) must be fair and, if material or of a specified category, such as service agreements, require
prior notice and approval or non-disapproval by the insurance department where the applicable subsidiary
is domiciled.
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- Change of Control - S e N - . o <

Before a person can acquire control of a U.S. domestic insurance company, prior';,vritten approval
must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state where the domestic insurer is domiciled.
Generally, state statutes provide that control.over a domestic insurer is presumed to exist if any person,
directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with.the power to-vote, or holds proxies representing, 10% or
more of the voting securities of the domestic insurer. Prior to granting approval of an application to
acquire control of a domestic insurer, the state insurance commissioner will consider such factors as-the
financial strength of the applicant, the integrity and management of the’ applicant’s Board.of Directors and
executive officers, the acquirer’s plans for the management of the applicant’s Board of Directors and
executive officers, the acquirer’s plans for the future operations of the domestic insurer and any anti-
competitive results that may arise from the consummation of the acquisition of control. These laws may
discourage potential acquisition proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change of control involving us
that some or ali of our stockholders might consider to be desirable, including in particular unsohcrted
transactions.

State Insurance Regulation

State insurance_euthorities have broad regulatory powers with respect to various aspects of the
business of U.S. insurance companies, including licensing these companies to transact business, .
accreditation of reinsurers, admittance of assets to statutory surplus, regulating unfair trade and claims
practices, establishing reserve requtrements and solvency standards, regulating investments and dividends,
and, in certain instances, approving policy forms and related materials and approving premium rates. State
insurance laws and regulations require the Assured Guaranty U.S. Subsidiaries to file financial statements
with insurance departments everywhere they are licensed, authorized or accredited to conduct insurance
business, and their operations are subject to examination by those départments at any time. The Assured
Guaranty U.S. Subsidiaries prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with Statutory Accounting
Practices, or SAP, and procedures prescribed or permrtted by these departments State insurance
departments also conduct periodic examinations of the books and records, financial reporting, policy
filings and market conduct of insurance companies domiciled in their states, generally once every three to
five years. Market conduct examinations by regulators other than the domestic regulator are generatly
carried out in cooperation with the insurance departiments of other states under guidelines promulgated by
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. '

As stated above, financial examinations are condut:ted by the state of domicile of the insurer. The
Maryland Insurance Administration conducts a perlodrc examination of insurance companies domiciled in
Maryland every five years. During 2003, the Maryland Insurance Administration completed its field work
in connection with a five-year examination of Assured Guaranty for the period from 1997 through 2001.
The Report on Financial Examination, issued by the Maryland Insurance Administration on October 10,
2003 in connection with such examination, did not contain any materially adverse findings. The New York
Insurance Department, the regulatory authority of the domlclllary jurisdiction of Assured-Guaranty
Mortgage, conducts a periodic examination of insurance companies domiciled in New York, also at five-
year intervals. During 2003, the New York Insurance Department completed its field work in connection
with its examination of Assured Guaranty'Mortgage for the period from 1997 though 2002. The report on
the examination, issued July 11; 2003 by the New York Insurance Department, does not contain any '
materially adverse findmgs We antrcrpate that field work for the 2002- 2006 exammatron penod will begin
in 2007. K - o

The terms and conditions of reinsurance agreements generally are not subject to regulation by any
U.S. state insurance department with respect to rates. As a practical matter, however, the rates charged by
primary insurers do have an effect on the rates that can be charged by reinsurers.
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State Dividend Limitations '

Maryland.  One of the primary sources of cash for the payment of debt service and dividends by
Assured Guaranty is the receipt of dividends from AGC. If a dividend or distribution is an “extraordinary
dividend,” it must be reported to, and approved by, the Insurance Commissioner prior to payment. An
“extraordinary dividend” is defined to be any dividend or distribution to stockholders, stch as Assured
Guaranty US Holdings Inc., which together with dividends paid during the preceding twelve months
exceeds the lesser of 10% of an insurance company’s policyholders’ surplus at the preceding December 31
or 100% of AGC’s adjusted net investment income during that period. Further, an insurer may not pay any
dividend or make any distribution to its shareholders unless the insurer notifies the Insurance
Commissioner of the proposed payment within five business days following declaration and at least ten
days before payment. The Insurance Commissioner may declare that such dividend not be paid if the
Commissioner finds that the insurer’s policyholders’ surplus would be inadequate after payment of the
dividend gr could lead the insurer to a hazardous financial condition. AGC declared and paid dividends of
$13.8 million and $4.3 million durmg 2006 and 2005, respectively, to Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc.
As of December 31, 2006, the maximum amount available during 2007 for the payment of dividends by
AGC which would riot be characterized as “extraordinary dividends” was approximately $28.6 million.

New York. Under the New York Insurance Law, Assured Guaranty Mortgage may declare or pay
any dividend only out of “earned surplus,” which is defined as that portion of the company’s surplus that
represents the net earnings, gains or profits (after deduction of all losses) that have not been distributed to
shareholders as dividends or transferred to stated capital, capital surplus or contingency reserves, or
applied to other purposes permitted by law, but does not include unrealized appreciation of assets.
Additionally, no dividend may be declared or distributed in an amount which, together with all dividends
declared or distributed by it during the prccedmg twelve months exceeds the lesser of 10% of Assured
Guaranty Mortgage’s statutory surplus as shown on its latest statutory financial statement on file with the
New York Superintendent of Insurance, or 100% of Assured Guaranty Mortgage’s ad]usted net investment
income during that period, unless, upon prior appllcatlon the Supermtendent approves a greater dividend
or distribution after finding that the company will retarn suffrcrent surplus to support its obligations and
writings. Assured Guaranty Mortgage did not declare or pay dividends during 2006. As of December 31,
2006, Assured Guaranty- Mortgage had negative unassigned funds and therefore cannot pay dwrdends
durlng 2006. -

i ’

" Contingency Reserves - ' co ’ A

In accordance with Maryland i insurance law and regulatlons AGC maintains a statutory contingency
reserve for the j protection of policyholders against the effect. of adverse economic cycles. The contingency
reserve is maintained for each obligation and is equal to the greater of 50% of the premiums written or a
percentage of principal guaranteed (which percentage varies from 0. 55% to 2.5% dependmg on the nature
of the asset). The contingency reserve is put up over a period of either 15 or 20 years, depending on the
nature of the obligation, and then taken down over the same period of time. The contingency reserve may
be marntarned net of reinsurance. AGC'’s contingency reserve as of December 31, 2006 was in compliance
with these insurance laws and regulations. | . i ) B

Under the New York Insurance Law, Assured Guaranty Mortgage must establish a contingency
reserve to protect policyholders agamst the effect of adverse economic cycles. This reserve is established
out of net premivms (gross premlums less premiums returned to pohcyholders) remaining after the |
statutory unearned premium reserve is established. Contrlbutlons to the contingency reserve must equal
50% of remaining earned premiums and except as otherwise approved by the Superintendent of
Insurance, must be maintained in the contingency reserve for a period of 120 months. Reinsurers are
required to establish a contingency reserve equal to their proportionate share of the reserve established by
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the ceding company. Assured Guaranty Mortgage’s contingency reserve as of December 31, 2006 was in
compliance with these insurance laws and regulations.

Risk-to-Capital Requirements

Under the New York Insurance Law, Assured Guaranty Mortgage’s total hab;hty, net of apphcable
reinsurance, under its aggregate insurance policics may not exceed 25 times its total policyholders’ surplus,
commonly known as the “risk-to-capital” requirement. As of December 31, 2006, the consolldated risk-to-
capital ratio for Assured Guaranty Mortgage was below the limit. C -.-

Investments

The Assured Guaranty U.S: Subsidiaries are subject to laws and regulations that require
diversification of their investment portfolio and limit the amount of investments in certain asset categorles
such as below investment grade fixed maturity securities, equity real estate, other, eqmty investments, and
derivatives. Failure to comply with these laws and regulatlons would cause investments exceeding
regulatory limitations to be treated as non-admitted assets for purposes of measuring sutplus, and, in some
instances, would require divestiture of such non-qualifying investments. We believe that the investments ’
made by the Assured Guaranty U.S. Subsidiaries complied with such regulations as of December 31, 2006,
In addition, any investment must be approved by the insurance company’s Board of Directors or a
committee thereof that is responsible for supervising or making such investment., : Y

Operations of Qur Non-U. S. Insurance Subsidiaries

" The insurance laws of each state of the United States and of many other countrles égulate or pl’Ohlb]t
the sale of insurance and reinsurance within their jurisdictions by unlicensed or non-accredited insurers
and reinsurers. Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.,’AG Re and AGRO are not admitted to do business in'the
United States. We do not intend that Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd., AG Re or AGRO will maintain offices
or solicit, advertise, settle claims or conduct other i msurance activities in any jurisdiction in the United"
States where the conduct’ of such actmtles would i requxre it to be admitted or authorized.

In addition to the regulatory requnrements 1mposed by the jurisdictions in which they are licensed,
reinsurers’ business operations are affected by regulatory requirements in various states of the United
States governing “credit for reinsurance” which are imposed on their ceding companies. In general, a
ceding company which obtains reinsurance from a reinsurer that is licensed, accredited or approved by the
ceding company’s state of domicile is permitted to reflect in its statutory financial statements a credit in an
aggregate amount equal to the ceding company’s liability for unearned premnims (which are that portnon
of premiums written which apphes to the unexpiréd portion of the policy perlod) loss reserves and loss
expense reseives ceded to the reinsurer. The great majorlty of states, however, permlt a credit on the
statutory financial statement of a° ceding insurer for reinsurance obtained from a non-licensed or non-
accredited reinsurer to the extent that the reinsurer secures its reinsurance obligations to the ceding
insurer by providing a letter of credit, trust fund or other acceptable security arrangement. A few states do
not allow credit for reinsurance ceded to non-licensed reinsurers except in certain limited cxrcumstances
and others impose additional requirements that make it difficult to become accredited. '

Bermuda . \ ‘ ) I e '

Each of AG Re and AGRO, our “Bermuda Subsididries,” is an insurance company registered and
licensed as a “Class 3 insurer” and a “long term insurer” under the Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda. AGC
is permltted under a revocable permit granted under the Cornpames Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Compames Act”) to engage in and carry on trade and business limited to engaging in certain non U.S.
financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance outside Bermuda from a principal place of business in
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Bermuda, subject to compliance with the conditions attached to the permit and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act (including having a Bermuda principal representative for the Companies Act purposes,
restrictions on activities in Bermuda, publication and filing of prospectuses on public offerings of
securities, registration of charges against its assets and certain winding up provisions). AGC is also licensed
as a Class 3 insurer in Bermuda. The Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda, amendments thereto and related
regulations (collectively, the “Insurance Act”) impose on insurance companies certain solvency and
liquidity standards; certain restrictions on the declaration and payment of dividends and distributions;
certain restrictions on the reduction of statutory capital; certain restrictions on the winding up of long term
insurers; and certain auditing and reporting requirements and also the need to have a principal
representative and a principal office (as understood under the Insurance Act) in Berinuda. The Insurance
Act grants to the Bermuda Monetary Authority the power to cancel insurance licenses, supervise,
investigate and intervene in the affairs of insurance companies and in certain circumstanices share
information with foreign regulators. Class 3 insurers are authorized to carry on general insurance business
(as understood under the Insurance Act), subject to conditions attached to the license and to compliance
with minimum capital and surplus requirements, solvency margin, liquidity ratio and other requirements
imposed by the Insurance Act. Long term insurers are permitted to carry on long term business (as
understood under the Insurance Act) subject to conditions attached to the license and to similar
compliance requirements and the requirement to maintain its long term business fund (a segregated fund).
Each of AG Re and AGRO is required annually to file statutorily mandated financial statements and
returns, audited by an auditor approved by the Bermuda Monetary Authority (no approved auditor of an
insurer may have an interest in that insurer, other than as an insured, and no officer, servant or agent of an
insurer shall be eligible for appointment as an insurer’s approved auditor), together with an annual loss
reserve opinion of a Bermuda Monetary Authority approved loss reserve specialist and the required
actuary’s certificate with respect to the long term business. AGC has an exemption from such filings,
subject to certain conditions.

'

. In addition, pursuant to provisions under, the Insurance Act, any person who becomes a holder of at
lcast 10%, 20%, 33% or 50% of our common shares must notify the Bermuda Monetary Authority in
writing within 45 days of becoming such a holder or 30 days from the date they have knowledge of having
become such a holder, whichever is later. The Bermuda Monetary Authority has the power to object to a
person holding 10% or more of our common shares if it appears to the Authority that the person is not fit
and proper to be such a holder. In such a case, the Bermuda Monetary may require the holder to reduce
their shareholding in us and may direct, among other things, that the voting rights attaching to their
common shares shall not be exercisable. A person that does not comply with such a notice or direction

from the Bermuda Monetary Authority will be guilty of an offence
R |

Under a condition to its, permit granted under the Compames Act, AGC must 1nform the Minister of
Finance of any change in its beneficial ownership within 14 days of the occurrence of such change.

Restrictions on Dividends and Dzlrtribun'ons .

The Insurance Act limits the declaration and payment of dividends and other distributions by AG Re,
AGRO and AGC.

_ Under the Insurance Act:

* The minimum'share capital must be always issued and outstanding and cannot be reduced (for a
company registered both as a Class 3 insurer and a long-term insurer the minimum share capital is
US$370,000 and for a company registered as a Class 3 insurer only, the minimum share capital is
US$120,000).

* With respect to the distribution (including repurchase of shares) of any share capital, contributed
surplus or other statutory capital, certain restrictions under the Insurance Act 1978 may apply if the
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proposal is to reduce its total statutory capital. Before reducing its total statutory capital by 15% or -
more of the insurer’s total statutory capital as set out in its previous year’s financial siatements, a
Class 3 insurer or a long-term insurer must obtain the prior approval of the Bermuda Monetary
Authority. ‘

 With respect to the declaration and payment of dividends:

(a) the insurer may not declare or pay any dividends during any financial year if it would cause the
insurer to fail the applicable solvency margin or liquidity ratio (the “relevant margins™);

(b) if the insurer failed to meet any of its relevant margifls on the last day of any financial year the
insurer may not, without the prior approval of the Bermuda Monetary Authority, declare or pay any
dividends during the next financial year; and ‘

(c) . a Class 3 insurer which at any time fails to meet its general business solvency margin may not
declare or pay any dividend until the failure is rectified, and also in such circumstances the Class 3
insurer must report, within 30 days after becoming aware of its failure or having reason to believe
that such failure has occurred, to the Bermuda Monetary Authority giving particulars of the
circumstances leading to the failure and the manner and time in which the Class 3 insurer intends to
rectify the failure. :

» A long-term insurer may not:

(a) use the funds allocated to its long-term business fund, directly or indirectly, for any purpose
other than a purpose of its long-term business except in so far as such payment can be made out of
any surplus certified by the insurer’s approved actuary to be available for distribution otherwise
than to policyholders; and

(b) declare or pay a dividend to any person other than a policyholder unless the value of the assets

of its long-term business fund, as certified by the insurer’s approved actuary, exceeds the extent (as

so certified) of the liabilities of the insurer’s long-term business, and the amount of any such

dividend shall not exceed the aggregate of (1) that excess; and (2) any other funds properly

available for the payment of dividends being funds arising out of the business of the insurer other
-than its long-term business. o

Under the Companies Act, a Bermuda company (such as Assured Guaranty, AG Re and AGRO) may
only declare and pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus (as understood under the
Companies Act) if there are reasonable grounds for believing that the company is and after the payment
will be able to meet and pay its liabilities as they become due and the realizabie value of the company’s
assets will not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts. The Companies Act also regulates and restricts the reduction and return of capital and paid in .
share premium, including the repurchase of shares and imposes minimum issued and outstanding share
capital requirements. '

Certain Other Bermuda Law Considerations

Although Assured Guaranty Ltd. is incorporated in Bermuda, it is classified as a non-resident of
Bermuda for exchange control purposes by the Bermuda Monetary Authority. Pursuant to its non-resident
status, Assured Guaranty may engage in transactions in currencies other than Bermuda dollars and there
are no restrictions on its ability to transfer funds (other than funds denominated in Bermuda dollars) in
and out of Bermuda or to pay dividends to U.S. residents who are holders of its common sliares.
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Under Bermuda law, “exempted” companies are companies formed for the purpose of conducting ’
business outside Bermuda from a principal place of business in Bermuda. As an “exempted” company, = .
Assured Guaranty (as well aseach of AG Re and AGRO) may not, without the express authorization of
the Bermuda legislature or under a license or consent granted by the'Minister of Finance, participate in
certain business and other transactions, including: (1) the acquisition or holding of land in Bermuda
(except that held by way of lease or tenancy agreement which is required for its business and held for a
term not exceeding 50 years, or which is used to provide accommodation or recreational facilities for its
officers and employees and held with the consent of the Bermuda Minister of Finance, for a term not
exceeding 21 years), (2) the taking of mortgages on land in Bermuda to secure a principal amount in excess
of $50,000 unless the Minister of Finance consents to a higher amount, and (3) the carrying on of business
of any kind or type for which it is not duly licensed in Bermuda, except in certain limited circumstances,
such as doing business with another exempted undertakmg in furtherance of Assured Guaranty’s business
carried on outside Berqua.

The Bermuda government actively encourages foreign investment-in “exempted” entities like Assured
Guaranty that are based in Bermuda, but which do not operate in competition with local businesses.
Assured Guaranty is not currently subject to taxes computed on profits or income or computed on .any
capital asset, gain or appreciation. Bermuda companies and permit companies, such as AGC, pay, as '
applicable, annual government fees, business fees, payroll tax and other taxes and duties. See “Material
Tax Considerations—Taxation of Assured Guaranty and Subsidiaries—Bermuda.”

Special considerations apply to our Bermuda operations. Under Bermuda law, non-Bermudians, other
than spouses of Bermudians and individuals holding permanent resident certificates or working reside'nt'
certificates, are not permitted to engage in any gainful occupation in Bermuda without a work permit
issued by the Bermuda government. A work permit is only granted or extended if the employer can show
that, after a proper public advertisement, no Bermudian, spouse of a Bermudian or individual holding a-
permanent resident certificate is available who meets the minimum standards for the position. The
Bermuda government has a policy that places a six-year term limit on individuals with work permits,*
subject to specified exemptions for persons deemed to be key employees. Currently, all of our Bermuda
based professional employees who require work permits have been granted work permits by the Bermuda
government. This includes the following key employees: Messrs. Frederico, Mills, Mlchener Albert,
Pickering and Bailenson and Ms. Purtill each of whom has recelved a work permlt

.

United Kingdom
General ;

Since December 1, 2001, the regulation of the financial services industry in the United Kingdom has
been consolidated under the Financial Services Authority (“FSA UK?”). In addition, the regulatory regime
in the United Kingdom must comply with certain European Union (“EU") dlrectlves blndmg onall EU
member states.

The FSA UK is the single statutory regulator résponsible for regulating the financial services industry
in the UK, having the authority to oversee the carrying on of “regulated activities” (including deposit
taking, insurance and reinsurance, investment management and most other financial services), with the
purpose of maintaining confidence in the UK financial system, providing public understanding of the
system, securing the proper degree of protection for consumers and helping to reduce financial crime. It is
a criminal offense for any person to carry'on a regulated activity in the UK untess that-person is authorized
by the FSA UK and has been granted permission to carry on that regulated activity, or otherwise falis .
under an exemption to such regulation. ¥

Insurance business'in the United Kingdom falls into two main categories: long-term iﬁsur_ance (which
is primarily investment related) and general insurance. It is not possible for a new insurance company to be
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authorized in both long-term and general insurance business. These two categories are both divided into
“classes” (for example: permanent health and pension fund management are two classes of long-term
insurance; damage to property and motor vehicle liability are two classes of general insurance). Under the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (“FSMA?), effecting or carrying out contracts of insurance,
within a class of general or long-term insurance, by way of-business in the UK, constitutes a “regulated
activity” requiring authorization. An authorized insurance company must have permlssron for each class of;
insurance business it intends to write. - , : Lo CrL

Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. is authorized to effect and carry out certain classes of non:life i msurancc
spemflcally classes 14 (credit), 15 (suretyship) and 16 (m1scellaneous financial loss) This scope of
permission is sufficient to enable Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. to effect and carry out financial guaranty
insurance and reinsurance. The insurance and reinsurance businesses of Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. are
subject to clése supervision by the FSA UK. In addition to its requ1rements for senior management
arrangements, systems and controls of insurance and reinsurance companies under its jurisdiction, the FSA
UK is placing an increased emphasis on risk identification and management in relation to the prudential
regulation of insurance and reinsurance business in the United Kingdom. There have been a number of ;
recent changes to the FSA UK’s rules that will affect insurance and reinsurance companies authorized in
the UK. For example, the FSA UK has introduced rules on the sale of general insurance, known as
insurance mediation, and has introduced the “General Prudential Sourcebook (GENPRU) and the
Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers (INSPRU)” which includes measures such as risk-based capital -
adequacy rules, including individual capital assessments which are intended to align capital requirements
with the risk proflle of each insurance company and proposals aimed at €nsuring adequate dlverSlflcatlon
of an insurer’s Or reinsurer’s exposures to any credit risks of its reinsurers. Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.
has calculated its mlmmum required capital accordmg to the FSA’s new individual capltai adequacy
criteria and is'in comphance '

. '
L

Asa consequence of the new insurance mediation rules, Assured Guaranty (UK} Ltd. now also has
permission to arrange and advise on deals in financial guaranty’s which it underwrites. - f

. Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas, Ltd. is not authorlzed as an insurer. It is authorized by the FSA
UK as a “Category D” company to carry out designated 1nvestment business activities in that it may “advise
on investments (except on pension transfers and pension opt outs)” rclatmg to most investment "
instruments. In addition, it may arrange or bring about transactions in investments and make
“arrangements with a view to transactions in investments.” It should be noted that Assured Guaranty .
Finance Overseas, Ltd. does not itself take risk in the transactions it arranges or places, and may not hold
funds on behalf of its customers. -

S uperws:on

The FSA UK carries out thc prudcntlal supervision of insurance companies through a variety of
methods, including the collection of information from statistical returns, review of accountants’ reports,
visits to insurance compames and regular formal mtervrews

The FSA UK has adopted: a risk-based approach. to the supervision of insurance compames Under
this approach, the FSA UK pericdically performs a formal risk assessment of insurance companies or
groups carrying on‘business in the UK which varies in scope according to the risk profiie of the insurer. . -
The FSA UK performs its risk assessment by analyzing information which it receives during tlie normal
course of its supervision, such-as regular prudential returns on the financial position of the insurance . -
company, or which it acquires through a series of meetings with senior management-of the insurance - - -
company. After each risk assessment, the FSA UK will inform the insurer of its views on the insurer’s risk
profile. This will include details of any remcdlal actlon that the FSA UK requires and the likely
consequences if thls action is not taken

“ ' . . L
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Solvency Requirements

The Integrated Prudential Sourcebook requires that non-life insurance companies such as Assured
Guaranty (UK) Ltd. maintain a margin of solvency at all times in respect of the liabilities of the insurance
company, the calculation of which depcnds on the type and amouint of insurance business a company
writes. The méthod of calculation of the solvency margin (known as the minimum capital requifement) is
set out in the Prudential Sourcebooks, and for these purposes, the insurer’s assets and liabilities are subject
to specified valuation rules. The Prudential Sourcebooks also requires that Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.
calculates and shares with the FSA UK its “enhanced capital requirement” based on risk-weightings
applied to assets held and lines of business written. This enhanced capital requirement is not yet a legalty-
binding requirement but is required to form the basis of Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.’s individual capital
assessment which is then discussed with the FSA UK. It is currently not expected that the enhanced capital
requirement will become legally binding before 2007. Failure to maintain capital at least equal to the
higher of the minimum capital requirement and the individual capital assessment is one of the grounds on
which the wide powers of intervention conferred upon the FSA UK may be exercised.

To the extent that the amount of premiums for such classes exceed certain specified minimum
thresholds, each insurance company writing property, credit and other specified categories of insurance or
reinsurance business is required by the Prudential Sourcebooks to maintain an equalization reserve
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Integrated Prudential Sourcebook,

These solvency requirements came into force on January 1, 2005. They may need to be amended in
order to implement the European Union’s proposed “Solvency I1” directive on risk-based capital but that
is not expected to be implemented until 2010 or 2011.

In addition, an insurer {other than a company conducting only reinsurance business) is required to
perform and submit to the FSA UK a group capital adequacy return in respect of its ultimate parent and, if
different, its ultimate EEA parent (see definition of “EEA” under “Passporting” below). The calculation at
the level of the ultimate EEA parent is requ1red to show a positive result from December 31, 2006. There
is no such requirement in relation to the report at the level of the ultimate parent, although if the report at
that level raises concerns the FSA may take regulatory action. Public disclosure of the EEA group
calculation is also required. The purpose of this rule is to prevent leveraging of capital arising from
involvements in other group insurance firms. Given the current structure of the Company, the main
aspects of the Company’s capital regime will not apply to Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd.’s ultimate parent,
because it is incorporated in Bermuda, nor to the intérmediate holding companies, because they are
incorporated in the United States, but reporting-will be required to the FSA UK up to the ultimate parent.

Further, an insurer is required to report in its annual returns to the FSA UK all material related party
transactions (e.g., intragroup reinsurance, whose value is more than 5% of the insurer’s general insurance
business amount).

Restrictions on Dividend Payments

UK company law prohibits Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. from declaring a dividend to its shareholders
unless it has “profits available for distribution.” The determination of whether a company has profits
available for distribution is based on its accumulated realized profits less its accumulated realized losses.
While the UK insurance regulatory iaws impose no statutory restrictions on a general insurer’s ability to
declare a dividend, the FSA UK’s capital requirements may in practice act as a restriction on dividends.

Reporting Requirements oo " L

UK insurance companies must prepare their financial statements under the Companies Act of 1985
(as amended), which requires the filing with Companies House of audited financial statements and related

29




reports. In addition, UK insurance companies are required to file regulatory returns with the FSA UK,
which include a revenue account, a profit and loss account and a balance sheet in prescribed forms. Under
sections of the Interim Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers (which have remained in force following the
Integrated Prudential Sourcebook replacing most of its terms on 1 January 2005), audited regulatory
returns must be filed with the FSA UK within two months and 15 days of the f1nanc1a] year end (or three
months where the delivery of the return is made electronically).

Supervision of Management

The FSA UK closely supervises the management of insurance companies through the approved
persons regime, by which any appointment of persons to perform certain specified “controlled functions”
within a regulated entity must be approved by the FSA UK.

Change of Control

FSMA regulates the acquisition of “control” of any UK insurance company authorized under FSMA.
Any company or individual that (together with its or his associates) directly or indirectly acquires 10% or
more of the shares in a UK authorized insurance company or its parent company, or is entitled to exercise
or control the exercise of 10% or more of the voting power in such authorized insurance company or its
parent company, would be considered to have acquired-“control” for the purposes of the relevant .
leglslatlon as would a person who had significant influence over the management of such authorized
msurance company or its parent company by virtue of hls shareholdmg or voting power in either.

Under FSMA, any person proposing to acquire “control” of a UK autharized insurance company
must give prior notification to the FSA UK of its intention to do so. The FSA UK then has three months to
consider that person’s application to acquire “control.” In considering whether to approve such
application, the FSA UK must be satisfied that both the acquirer is a “fit and proper” person to have
“control” and that the interests of consumers would not be threatened by such acquisition of “control.”
“Consumers” in this context includes all persons who may use the services of the authorized insurance
company. Failure to make the relevant prior application could result in action being taken by the lfSA UK.

Intervention and Enforcement

The FSA UK has extensive powers to intervene in the affairs of an authorized person, culminating in
the ultimate sanction of the removal of authorization to carry on a regulated activity. FSMA imposes on
the FSA UK statutory obligations to monitor compliance with the requirements imposed by FSMA, and to
enforce the provisions of FSMA related rules made by the FSA UK such as the Integrated Prudential
Sourcebook and those parts of the Interim Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers which remain in force. The
FSA UK has power, among other things, to enforce and take disciplinary measures in respect of breaches
of both the Integrated Prudential Sourcebook and breaches of the conduct of business rules generally
applicable to authorized persons.

The FSA UK also has the power to prosecute criminal offenses arising under FSMA, and io prosecute
insider dealing under Part V of the Criminal Justice Act of 1993, and breaches of money laundering
regulations. The FSA UK'’s stated policy is to pursue criminal prosecution in all appropriate cases.

“Passporting”

EU directives allow Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas, Ltd. and Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. to
conduct business in EU states other than the United Kingdom in compliance with the scope of permission
granted these companies by FSA UK without the necessity of additional licensing or authorization in other
EU jurisdictions. This ability to operate in other jurisdictions of the EU on the basis of home state
authorization and supervision is sometimes referred to as “passporting.” Insurers may operate outside

30




their home member state eithér on a “services” basis or on an “establishment” basis. Operating on a
“services” basis means that the company conducts permitted businesses in the host state without having a
physical presence there, while operating on an establishment basis means the company has a branch or
physical presence in the host state. In both cases, a company remains subject to regulation by its home
regulator, and not by local regulatory authorities, although the company nonetheless may have to comply
with certain local rules. In addition to EU member states, Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein (members of
the broader European Economic Area or “EEA™) are jurisdictions in which this passporting framework
applies. Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. is permitted to opérate on a passport basis in various countries
throughout the European Union; Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas, Ltd. is permitted to operate on a
services basis in Austria, Belgium, Finland, France, Germany, the Republic of Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg,
the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain and Sweden.

. 4
Fees and Levies

r

Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. is subject to FSA UK fees and levies based on Assured Guaranty (UK)
Ltd.’s gross written premiums. The FSA UK also requires authorized insurers to participate in an
investors’ protection fund, known as the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (the “FSCS”). The
FSCS was established to compensate consumers of financial services, including the buyers of insurance,
against failures in the financial services industry. Individual policyholders and small businesses may be
compensated by the FSCS when an authorized insurer is unable, or likely to be unable, to satisfy
policyholder claims. Agsured Guaranty (UK} Ltd. does not expect to write any insurance business that is
protected by the FSCS

Tax Matters
Taxation of Assured Guaranty and Subsidiaries ..
Bermuda

Under current Bermuda law, there is no Bermuda income, corporate or profits tax or w1thholc_hng tax,
capital gains tax or capital trarisfer tax payable by us. Assured Guaranty, AGC, and the Bermuda
Subsidiaries have each obtained from the Miister of Finance under the Exempted Undertakmgs Tax
Protection Act 1966, as amended, an assurance that, in the event that Bermuda enacts Ieglslauon 1mposmg
tax computed on profits, income, any capital asset, gain or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance, then the imposition of any such tax shall not be applicable to:Assured Guaranty, AGC
or the Bermuda Subsidiaries or to any of their operations or their shares, debentures or other obligations,
until March 28, 2016. This assurance is subject to the proviso that it is not to be construed so as to prevent
the application of any tax or duty to such persons as are ordinarily resident in Bermuda, or to prevent the
application of any tax payable in accordance with the provisions of the Land Tax Act 1967 or otherwise
payable in relation to any land leased to Assured Guaranty, AGC or the Bermuda Subsidiaries. Assured
Guaranty, AGC and the Bermuda Subsidiaries each pay annual Bermuda government fees, and the
Bermuda Subsidiaries and AGC pay annual insurance license fees. In addition, all entities employing
individuals in Bermuda are required to pay a payroll tax and there are other sundry taxes payable, directly
or indirectly, to the Bermuda govemment

United States

We have conducted and intend to conduct substantially all of our foreign operations outside the
United States and to limit the U.S. contacts of Assured Guaranty and its foreign subsidiaries (except
AGRO, which has elected to be taxed as a U.S. corporation) so that they should not be engaged in a trade
or business in the United States. A foreign corporation, such as AG Re deemed to-be engaged in a trade or
business in the United States would be subject to U.S. income tax at regular-corporate rates, as well as the
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branch profits tax, on its income which is treated as effectively connected with the conduct of that trade or
business, unless the corporation is entitled to relief under the permanent establishment provision of an
applicable tax treaty, as discussed below. Such income tax, if imposed, would be based on effectively
connected income computed in a manner generally analogous to that applied to the income of a U.S.
corporation, except that a foreign corporation may generally be entitled to deductions and credits only if it
timely files a U.S. federal income tax return, Assured Guaranty and AG Re have and will continue to file
protective ULS, federal income tax returns on a timely basis in order to preserve the right to claim income
tax deductions and credits if it is ever determined that they are subject to U.S. federal income tax. The
highest marginal federal income tax rates currently are 35% for a corporation’s effectively connected
income and 30% for the “branch profits” t ' S

Under the income tax treaty between Bermuda and the United States (the “Bermuda Treaty™), a
Bermuda insurance company would not be subject to U.S. income tax on any insurance income found to be
effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business unless that trade or business is conducted through a
permanent establishment in the United States. AG Re curréntly intends to conduct its activities so that it
does not have a permanent establishment in the United States.

An insurance enterprise résident in Bermuda generally will be entitled to the benefits of the Bermuda
Treaty if (i) more than 50% of its shares are owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by individual
residents of the United States or Bermuda or U.S. citizens and (ii) its income is not used in substantial
part, directly or indirectly, to make disproportionate distributions to, or to meet certain liabilities of,
persons who are neither residents of either the United States or Bermuda nor U.S. citizens. We believe
AG Re qualifies for Bermuda treaty benefits. Assured Guaranty is not eligible for treaty benefits because it
is not an insurance company.

Foreign insurance companies carrying on an insurance business within the United States have a
certain minimum amount of effectively connected net investment income, determined in accordance with a
formula that depends, in part, on the amount of U.S. risk insured or reinsured by such companies. If
AG Re is considered to be engaged in the conduct of an insurance business in the United States and is not
entitled to the benefits of the Bermuda Treaty in general (because it fails to satisfy one of the limitations
on treaty benefits discussed above), the Code could subject a significant portion of AG Re’s investment
income to U.S. income tax. -

The United States also imposes an excise tax on insurance and reinsurance premiums paid to foreign
insurers or reinsurers with respect to risks located in the United States. The rates of tax applicable to
premiums paid to AG Re and Assured Guaranty UK are 4% for casualty insurance premiums and 1% for
reinsurance premium on life insurance premiums, subject to reduction to 0% under the U K. Treaty with*
respect to premiums paid to Assured Guaranty UK.

Assured Guaranty US Holdings is a Delaware holding company. Its direct subsidiaries are AGC,a
Maryland corporation and AG Financial Products, a Delaware corporation. Assured Guaranty Overseas
US Holdings is a Delaware corporation and its subsidiary, AGRO, is a Bermuda company which has
elected under the Code to be taxed as a U.S. corporation. AGRO’s subsndlary is Assured Guaranty
Mortgage, which is a New York corporation. As such, each corporation is subject to taxation in the United
States at regular corporate rates. Dividends paid, if any, by Assured Guaranty US Holdmgs to Assured
Guaranty will be subject to a 30% U.S. withholding tax.

Taxation of Shareholders .
Bermuda Taxation

Currently, there is no Bermuda withholding or other tax payable on prmc1pal interests or dividends -
paid to the holders of the common shares of Assured Guaranty.
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United States Taxation

This discussion is based upon the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder and any relevant
administrative rulings or pronouncements or judicial decisions, all as in effect on the date hereof and as ‘
currently interpreted, and does not take into account possnble changes in such tax laws or interpretations
thereof, which may apply retroactively. This discussion does not include any dcscrlptlon of the tax laws of
any state or local governments within the United States.

The following summary sets forth the material U.S. federal income tax conSIderatlons related to the
purchase, ownership and disposition of common shares. Unless otherwise stated, this summary deals only

" with holders that are U.S. Persons (as definéd below) who purchase their common shares and who hold

their common shares as capital assets within the meaning of section 1221 of the Code. The following
discussion is only a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax matters as described herein and does
not purport to address all of the U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to a particular
shareholder in light of such shareholder’s specific circumstances. For example, special rules apply to
certain shareholders, such as partnerships, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, real
estate investment trusts, financial asset securitization investment trusts, dealers or traders in securities, tax
exempt organizations, expatrlates persons who are considered with respect to any of us as “United States
shareholders” for purposes of the controlled foreign corporation (“CFC”) rules of the'Code (generally, a
U.S. Person, as defined below, who owns or is deemed to own 10% or more of the total combined voting
power of all classes of Assured Guaranty or the stock of any of our foreign subsidiaries entitled to vote
(i.e., 10% U.S. Sharcholders)), or persons who hold the common shares as part of a hedging or conversion
transaction or as part of a short-sale or straddle. Any such shareholder should consult their tax advisor.

For purposes of this discussion, the term “U.S. Person” means: (i) a citizen or resident of the United
States, (ii) a partnership or corporation, or entity treated as a corporation, created or organized in or
under the laws of the United States, or any political subdivision thereof, (iii) an estate the income of which
is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source, (iv) a trust if either (x) a court within the
United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of such trust and one or more
U.S. Persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of such trust or (y) the trust has a valid
election in effect to be treated as a U.S. Person for U.S. federal income tax purposes or (v) any other
person or entity that is treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as if it were one of the foregomg

Taxation of Dividends. Subject to the discussions below relating to the potential application of the
CFC, rélated person insurance income (“RPII”), passive foreign investment company (“PFIC”) and
foreign personal holding company (“FPHC”) rules, cash distributions, if any, made with respect to the
common shares will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid out of
current or accumulated earnings and profits of Assured Guaranty (as computed using U.S. tax principles).
Under current legislation, certain dividends paid to individual shareholders before 2009 are eligible for
reduced rates of tax. Dividends paid by Assured Guaranty to corporate sharcholders will not be ellglble for
the dividends received deduction. To the extent such distributions exceed Assured Guaranty s earnings and
profits, they will be treated first as a return of the shareholder’s basi$ in the common shares to the extent
thereof, and then as gain from the sale of a capital asset. '

Classification of Assured Guaranty or its Foreign Subsidiaries as Controlled Forezgn Corporanan Each
10% U.S. Shareholder (as defined below) of a foreign corporation that is a CFC for an uninterrupted
period of 30 days or more during a taxable year, and who owns shares in the CFC, directly or indirectly
through foreign entities, on the last day of the CFC’s taxable year, must include in its gross income for U.S.
federal income tax purposes its pro rata share of the CFC’s “subpart F income,” even if the subpart F
income is not distributed. A foreign corporation is considered a CFC if 10% U.S. Shareholders own
(directly, indirectly through foreign entities or by attribution by application of the constructive ownership
rules of section 958(b) of the Code (i.c., “constructively”)) more than 50% of the totat combined voting
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power of all classes of voting stock of such foreign corporation, or more than 50% of the total value of all
stock of such corporation on any day during the taxable year of such corporation. For purposes of taking
into account insurance income, a CFC also includes a foreign insurance company in which more than 25%
of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock (or more than 25% of the total value of the stock)
is owned by 10% U.S. Shareholders, on any day durmg the taxable year of such corporation. A “10% U.S.
Shareholder” is a U.S. Person who owns (directly, indirectly through foreign entities or constructively) at
least 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote of the forelgn
corporation. We believe that because of the dispersion of our share ownership, provisions in our -
organizational documents that limit voting power (these provisions are described in “Description of Share
Capital”) and other factors, no U.S. Person who owns shares of Assured Guaranty directly or indirectly
through one or more foreign entities should be treated as owning (directly, indirectly through foreign
entities, or constructively), 10% or mare of the total voting power of all classes of shares of Assured
Guaranty or any of its foreign subsidiaries. It is possible, however, that the IRS could challenge the
effectiveness of these provisions and that a court could sustain such a challenge.

The RPII CFC Provisions. The followmg discussion generally is appllcable only if the RPII of AG Re
determined on a gross basis, is 20% or more of AG Re’s gross insurance income for the taxable year and
the 20% Ownership Exception (as defined below) is not met. The following dlscusswn generally would not
apply for any fiscal year in which AG Re’s gross RPIH falls below the 20% threshold or the 20% OWﬂerShlp
Exception is met. Although we cannot be certain, Assured Guaranty believes that AG Re was in prior
vears of operations and will be for the foreseeable future below either the 20% threshold or 20%
Ownership Exception for each tax year

e
RPII is any “insurance income’ (as defined below) attributable to policies of insurance or reinsurance
with respect to which the person (directly or indirectly) insured is a “RPII shareholder” (as defined below)
or a “related perSon {as defmed below) to such RPII shareholder. In general, and subject to certain
limitations, “insurance income” is income (including premium and investment income) attributable to the
issuing of any insurance or reinsurance contract which would be taxed under the portions of the Code
relating to insurance companies if the income were the income of a domestic i insurance company For
purposes of inclusion of the RPII of AG Re in the income of RPII shareholders, unless an exception
applies, the term “RPII shareholder” means any U.S. Person who owns (directly or indirectly through
foreign entities) any amount of Assured Guaranty’s common shares. Generally, the term “related person”
for this purpose means someone who controls or is controlled by the RPII shareholder or someone who is
controlled by the same person or persons which control the RPII shareholder. Contrel is measured by
either more than 50% in value or more than 50% in voting power of stock applying certain constructive
ownership principles. AG Re will be treated as a CFC under the RPII provisions if RPII shareholders are
treated as owning (directly, indirectly through foreign entities or constructwe[y) 25% or more of the shares
of Assured Guaranty by vote or value. Do -

. RPII Exceptions. The special RPII rules do not apply if (i) at all times durmg the taxable year less
than 20% of the voting power and less than 20% of the value of the stock of Assured Guaranty (the “20%
Ownership Exception”) is owned (directly or indirectly) by persons whose (directly or indirectly) insuréd
under any policy of insurance or reinsurance issued by AG Re or related persons to any such person,

(ii} RPII, determined on a gross basis, is less.than 20% of AG Re’s gross insurance income for the taxable
year (the “20% Gross Income Exception™), (iii) AG Re elects to be taxed on its RPII as if the RPII were
effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business, and to waive all treaty benefits with
respect to RPII and meet certain other requirements or (iv) AG Re elects to be treated asa U.S.
corporation and waive all treaty benefits and meet certain other requirements; Where none of these -
exceptions applies, each U.S. Person owning or treated as owning any shares in Assured Guaranty (and -
therefore, indirectly, in AG Re) on the last day of AsSured Guaranty’s taxable year will be required to
include in its gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes its share of the RPII for the portion of the
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taxable year during which AG Re was a CFC under the RPII provisions, determined as if all such RPII
were distributed proportionately only to such U.S. Persons at that date, but limited by each such U.S.
Person’s share of AG Re’s current-year earnings and profits as reduced by the U.S. Person’s share, if any,
of certain prior-year deficits in earnings and profits. AG Re intends to operate in a manner that is intended
to ensure that each qualifies for either the 209 Gross Income Exception or 20% Ownership Exception.

Computation of RPII. For any year in which AG Re’s gross RPH is 20% or more of its gross insurance
income for the year and AG Re does not meet the 20% Ownership Exception, Assured Guaranty may also
seek information from its shareholders as to whether beneficial owners of common shares at the end of the
year are U.S. Persons so that the RPII may be determined and apportioned among such persons; to the
extent Assured Guaranty is unable to determine whether a beneficial owner of common shares is a U.S.
Person, Assured Guaranty may assume that such owner is not a U.S. Person, thereby increasing the per
share RPII amount for all known RPII shareholders. The amount of RPII inctudable in the income of a
RPII shareholder is based upon the net RPII income for the year after deducting related expenses such as
losses, loss reserves and operating expenses. |

If gross RPII is less than 209 of gross insurance income or AG Re meets the 20% Ownership
Exception, RPII shareholders will not be required to include RPII in their taxable income. The amount of
RPII includable in the income of a RPII shareholder is based upoen the net RPII income for the year after
deducting related expenses such as losses, loss reserves and operating expenses.

Apportionment of RPII to U.S. Holders. Every RPII shareholder who owns common shares on the
last day of any taxable year of Assured Guaranty in which AG Re’s gross insurance income constituting
RPII for that year equals or exceeds 20% of AG Re’s gross insurance income and AG Re does not meet
the 20% Ownership Exception should expect that for such year it will be required to include in gross
income its share of AG Re’s RPI1 for the portion of the taxable year during which AG Re was a CFC
under the RPII provisions, whether or not distributed, even though it may not have owned the shares -
throughout such period. A RPII sharecholder who owns common shares during such taxable year but not on
the last day of the taxable year is not required 1o include in gross income any part of AG Re’s RPIIL

Uncertainty as to Application of RPI1. The RPII provisions are complex, have never been interpreted
by the courts or the Treasury Department i in final regulations, and regulations interpreting the RPII
provisions of the Code exist only in proposed form. It is not certain whether these regulations will be
adopted in their proposed form or what changes or clarifications might ultimately be made thereto or .
whether any such changes, as well as any interpretation or application of RP1I by the IRS, the courts or
otherwise, might have retroactive effect. These provisions include the grant of authority to the Treasury
Department to prescribe “such regulations as may be necessary to carry out the purpose of this subsection
including regulations preventing the avoidance of this subsection through cross insurance arrangcrncnts or
otherwise.” Accordingly, the meaning of the RPII provisions and the application thereof to AG Re is
uncertain. In addition, we cannot be certain that the amount of RPII or the amounts of the RPII inclusions
for any particular RPII shareholder, if any, will not be subject to adjustment based upon subsequent IRS
examination. Any prospective investor which does business with AG Re and is considering an investment
in common shares should consult his tax advisor as to the effects of these uncertainties.

Tax-Exempt Shareholders. Tax-exempt entities will be required to treat certain subpart F insurance
income, including RPI, that is includible in income by the tax-exempt entity as unrelated business taxable
income. Prospective investors that are tax exempt entities are urged to consult their tax advisors as to the
potential impact of the unrelated business taxable income provisions of the Code. A tax-exempt
organization that is treated as a 10% U.S. Shareholder or a RPII Shareholder also must file IRS
Form 5471 in certain circumstances.

Dispositions of Common Shares.  Subject to the discussions below relating to the potential application
of the Code section 1248 and PFIC rules, holders of common shares generally should recognize capital
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gain or loss for U S. federal income tax purposes on the sale, exchange or other disposition of common
shares in the same manner as on the sale, exchange or other disposition of any other shares held as capital
assets. If the holding period for these common shares exceeds one year, any gain will be subject to tax at a’
current maximum marginal tax rate of 15% for individuals and 35% for corporations. Moreover, gain, if
any, generally wili be a U.S. source gain and generally will constitute “passive income” for foreign tax
credit limitation purposes.

Code section 1248 provides that if a U.S. Person sells or exchanges stock in a foreign corporation and
such person owned, directly, indirectly through certain foreign entities or constructively, 109 or more of
the voting power of the corporation at any time during the five-year period ending on the date of
disposition when the corporation was a CFC, any gain from the sale or exchange of the shares will be
treated as a dividend to the extent of the CFC’s earnings and profits (determined under U.S. federal
income tax principles) during the period that the shareholder held the shares and while the corporation
was a CFC (with certain adjustments). We believe that because of the dispersion of our share ownership,
provisions in our organizational documents that limit voting power and other factors that no U.S.
shareholder of Assured Guaranty should be treated as owning (directly, indirectiy through foreign entities
or constructively) 10% of more of the total voting power of Assured Guaranty; to the extent this is the case
this application of Code Section 1248 under the regular CFC rules should not apply to dispositions of our
common shares. It is possible, however, that the IRS could challenge the effectiveness of these prqvisions '
and that a court could sustain such a challenge. A 10% U.S. Shareholder may in certain circumstances be
required to report a disposition of shares of a CFC by attaching IRS Form 5471 to the U.S. federal income
tax or information return that it would normally file for the taxable year in which the disposition occurs. In
the event this is determined necessary, Assured Guaranty will provide a completed IRS Form 5471 or the
relevant information necessary to complete the Form. Code section 1248 also applies to the sale or
exchange of shares in a foreign corporation if the foreign corporation would be treated as a CFC for RPII -
purposes regardless of whether the shareholder is a 10% U.S. Shareholder or whether RPII constitutes
20% or more of the corporation’s gross insurance income or the 20% Ownership Exception applies. .
Existing proposed regulations do not address whether Code section 1248 would apply if a foreign '
corporation is not a CFC but the foreign corporation has a subsidiary that is a CFC and that would be
taxed as an insurance company if it weré a domestic corporation. We believe, however, that this application
of Code section 1248 under the RPII rules shoutd not apply to dispositions of common shares because
Assured Guaranty w1ll not be directly engaged in the insurance business. We cannot be certain, however,
that the IRS will not interpret the proposed regulations in a contrary manner or that the Treasury
Department will not amend the proposed reguiations to pr0v1de that these rules will apply to dispositions
of common shares. Proqpectlve investors should consult their tax advisors regardmg the effects of these
rules on a disposition of common shares.

Description of Share Capithl '

+
’

The following summary of our share capital is qualified in its entirety by the provisions of Bermuda
law, our memorandum of association and Bye-Laws, copies of which are incorporated by reference as
exhibits to this Annual Réport on Form 10-K. In this section, the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer
to Assured Guaranty Ltd. and not to any of its subsidiaries.
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General

We have an authorized share capital of $5,000,000 divided into 500,000,000 shares, par value U.S.
$0.01 per share, of which 67,637,942 common shares were issued-and outstanding as of February 22, 2007.
Except as described below, our common shares have no preemptive rights or other rights to subscribe for
additional common shares, no rights of redemption, conversion or exchange and no sinking fund rights. In
the event of liquidation; dissolution or winding-up, the holders of our common shares are entitled to share
equally, in proportjon to the number of common shares held by such holder, in our assets, if any remain
after the payment of all our debts and liabilities and the liquidation preference of any outstandmg
preferred shares. Under certain circumstances, we have the right to purchase all or a portion of the shares
held by a shareholder. See “—Acquisition of Commeon Shares by Us” below.,

Yoting Rights and Adjustments ' o ' g

In general, and except as prowded below shareholders have one vote for each common share held by
them and are entitled to voté with respect to their fully paid shares at all meetings of shareholders
However, if, and so long as, the common shares (and other of our shares) of a sharcholder are treated as

“controlled shares” (as determined pursuant to section 958 of the Code) of any “United States person’ as
defined in the Code (a “U.S. Person”) and such controlled shares constitute 9.5% or more of the votes
conferred by our issued and outstandmg shares, the voting rights with respect to the controlled shares
owned by such U.S. Person shall be limited, in the aggregate, to a voting power of less than 9.5% of the
voting power of all issued and outstanding shares, under a formula specified in our Bye-laws. The formula
is applied repeatedly until there is no U.S. Person whose controlled shares constitute 9.5% or more of the
voting power of all issued and outstanding shares and who generally would be required to recognize
income with respect to us under the Code if we were a controlled foreign corporation as defined in the
Code and if the ownership threshold urider the Code were 9.5% (as defined in our Bye-Laws as a “9.5%
U.S. Shareholder”). In addition, our Board of Directors may determine that shares held carry different
voting rights when it.deems it appropriate to do so to (i) avoid the existence of any 9.5% U.S. Shareholder;
and (ii) avoid advérse tax, legal or regulatory consequences to thé Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any direct or indirect holder of shares or its affiliates, “Controlled shares” includes, among other things, all
shares of Assured Guaranty that such U.S. Person is deemed to own directly, indirectly or constructively
(within the meaning of section 958 of the Code). The foregoing provision does not apply to ACE because it
is not a U.S. Shareholder. Further, these provisions do not apply in the eVent one shareholder owns greater
than 75% of the voting power of all issued and outstanding shares. .

Under these provisions, certain shareholders may have their voting rights limited to less than one vote
per share, while other shareholders may have voting rights in excess of one vote per share. Moreover, these
provisions could have the effect of reducing the votes of certain shareholders who would not otherwise be
subject to the 9.5% limitation by virtue of their direct share ownership. Our Bye-laws provide that we will
use our best efforts to notify shareholders of their voting interests prior to any vote to be taken by them.

Our Board of Directors is authorized to require any shareholder to provide information for purposes .
of determining whether any holder’s voting rights are to be adjusted, which may be information on
beneficial share ownership, the names of persons having beneficial ownership of the shareholder’s shares,
relationships with other shareholders or any other facts our Board of Directors may deem relevant. If any
holder fails to respond to this request or submits incomplete or inaccurate information, our Board of .
Directors may eliminate the shareholder’s voting rights. All information provtded by the shareholder will,
be treaied by us as confidential information and shall be used by us solely for the purpose of establlshlng
whether any 9.5% U.S. Shareholder exists and applying the adjustments to voting power (except as
otherwise required by applicable law or regulation).
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Restrictions on Transfer of Common Shares

Our Board of Directors may decline to register a transfer of any common shares under certain-.
circumstances, including if they have reason to believe that any adverse tax, regulatory or legal
consequences to us, any of our subsidiaries or any of our shareholders or indirect holders of shares or its
Affiliates may occur as a result of such transfer (other than such as our Board of Directors considers de. '
minimis). Transfers must be by instrument unless otherwise permitted by the Companies Act.

The restrictions on transfer and voting restrictions described above may have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a change in control of Assured Guaranty.

Acquisition of Common Shares by Us

Under our Bye-Laws and subject to Bermuda law, if our Board of Directors determines that any
owncrshlp of our shares may result in adverse tax, legal or regulatory consequences to us, any of our
subsidiaries or any of our shareholders or indirect holders of shares or its Affiliates (other than such as our
Board of Directors considers de mmlmls) we have the option, but not the obligation, to require such’
shareholder to sell to us or to a third party to whor we assign the repurchase right the minimum number
of common shares necessary to avoid or cure any such adverse consequences at a price determined in the
discretion of the Board of Directors to represent the shares’ fair market value (as defined in our Bye-
Laws).

¥

Other Provisions of Our Bye-Laws

Our Board of Directors and Corporate Action.  Qur Bye-Laws provide that our Board of Directors shall
consist of not less than three and not more than-21 directors, the exact number as determined by the Board of
Directors. Our Board of Directors consists of ten persons, and is divided into three classes. Each elected
director generally will serve a three year term, with termination staggered according to class, Shareholders
may only remove a director for cause (as defined in our Bye-Laws) at a general meeting, provided that the
notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a director shall contain a statement,of
the intention to do so and shall be provided to that director at least two weeks before the meeting. ,
Vacancies on the Board of Directors can be filled by the Board of Directors if the vacancy occurs in those
events.set out in our Bye-Laws as a result of death, disability, disqualification or resignation of a director,
or from an increase in the size of the Board of Directors, .

Generally under our Bye-Laws, the affirmative votes of a majority of the votes cast at any meeting at
which a quorum is present is required to authorize a resolution put to vote at a meeting of the Board.of
Directors. Corporate action may also be taken by a unanimous written resolution of the Board of Directors
without a meeting. A quorum shall be at least one-half of directors then in office present in person or
represented by a duly authorized representative, provided that at least two directors are present in person.

Shareholder Action. At the commencement of any general meeting, two or more persons present in
person and representing, in person or by proxy, more than 50% of the issued and outstanding shares
entitled to vote at the meeting shalil constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In general, any
questions proposed for the consideration of the shareholders at any general meeting shall be decided.by
the affirmative votes of a majority of the votes cast in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The Bye-Laws contain advance notice requirements for shareholder proposals and nominations for
directors, including when proposals and nominations must be received and the information to be included.

Amendment. The Bye-Laws may be amended only by a resolution adopted bj( the Board of Directors
and by resolution of the shareholders.
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Voting of Non-U.S. Subsidiary Shares.  If we are required or entitled to vote at a general meeting of
any of AG Re, AGFOL or any other directly held non-U.S. subsidiary of ours, our Board of Directors shall
refer the subject matter of the vote to our shareholders and seek direction from such shareholders as to
how they should vote on the resolution proposed by the non-U.S. subsidiary. Our Board of Directors in its
discretion shall require substantially similar provisions are or will be contained in the bye-laws (or
equivalent governing documents) of any direct or indirect non-U.S. subsidiaries other than UK and
AGRO.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 135 employees. None of our employees are subject to collective
bargaining agreements. We believe that employee relations are satisfactory.

Available Information

We maintain an Internet Web site at www.assuredguaranty.com. We make available, free of charge,
on our Web site (under Investor Information / SEC Filings).our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78m (a) or 780(d)) as soon as
reasonably practicable after we file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. -

We also make available free of charge through our Web site (under Investor Information / Corporate
Governance) links to our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Code of Conduct and Charters for our
Board Committees. These documents are also available in print to any shareholder who requests them
from our secretary by: : : -

telephone (441) 278-6679
facsimile (441) 296-1083
e-mail jmichener@assuredguaranty.com

Nothing on our website should be considered incorporated by reference in this report.

ITEM 1A.. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following information, together with the other information contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The risks and uncertainties described below are.not the only ones we face.
However, these are the risks our management believes are material. Additional risks not presently known to us
or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business or results of operations. Any of the risks
described below could result in a significant or material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial
condition.

Risks Related to Qur Company

A downgrade of the financial strength or financial enhancement ratings of any of our insurance
subsidiaries could adversely affect our business and prospects and, consequently, our results of
operations and financial condition.

Financial strength ratings have become an increasingly important factor in establishing the
competitive position of insurance and reinsurance companies. The objective of these ratings is to provide
an opinion of an insurer’s financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations to its policyhelders.
Ratings reflect the rating agencies’ opinions of our financial strength, and are neither evaluations directed
to investors in our common shares nor recommendations to buy, sell or hold our common shares.

39




As of the date of this Form 10-K, our insurance company submdlanes have been assigned the:
followmg insurance financial strength ratings: ‘

1, i

Moody’s ‘ \ S&P , “ Fiteh'

AGC.. ... .. . Aal(Excellent) AAA(Extremely Strong) . AAA(Extremely Strong)
AGRe...........ooieit, . Aa2(Excellent) AA(Very Strong) -, - AA(Very Strong)
AGRO .............. s Aa?(Excellent) AA(Very Strong) AA(Very Strong)
Assured Guaranty Mortgage .. Aa2(Excellent) AA(Very Strong) AA(Very Strong)
Assured Guaranty (UK} Ltd .. Aal(Excellent) AAA(Extremely Strong) AAA(Extremely Strong)

“Aal” (Excellent) is the second highest ranking and “Aa2” (Excellent) is the third highest ranking of
21 ratings categories used by Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”). A “AAA” (Extremely Strong) rating
is the highest ranking and “AA” (Very Strong) is the third highest ranking of the 21 ratings categories used
by Standard & Poor’s Inc. (“S&P”). “AAA” (Extremely Strong) is the highest ranking and “AA” (Very
Strong) is the third highest ranking of the 24 ratings categories used by Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”). An
insurance financial strength rating is an opinion with respect to an insurer’s ability to pay under its
insurance policies and contracts in accordance with their terms. The opinion is not specific to any
particular-policy or contract. Insurance financial strength ratings do not refer to an insurer’s ability to meet
non insurance obligations and are not a recommendation to purchase or discontinue any policy or contract
issued by an insurer or to buy, hold, or sell any security issued by an insurer, including our common shares..

- The major rating agencies have developed and published rating guidelines for rating financial
guaranty and mortgage guaranty insurers and reinsurers. The insurance financial strength ratings assigned
by S&P, Moody’s and Fitch are based upon factors relevant to policyholders and are not directed toward
the protection of investors in our common shares. The rating criteria used by the rating agencies in
establishing these ratings include consideration of the sufficiency of capital resources to meet projected
growth {as well as access to such additional capital as may be necessary to continue to meet applicable
capital adequacy standards), the company’s overall financial strength, and demonstrated management
expertise in financial guaranty and traditional reinsurance, credit analysis, systems development, '
marketing, capital markets and investment operations. Obligations insured by AGC generally are rated
Aal, AAA and AAA by Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, respectively, by virtue of such insurance. These ratings
reflect only the views of the respective rating agencies and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any
time.

The rating agencies grant credit to primary companies in their calculations of required capital and
single risk limits for reinsurance ceded. The amount of credit is a function of the financial strength rating
of the reinsurer. For example, S&P has established the following reinsurance credit for business ceded to a
monoline reinsurer, including AG Re and AGRO: ‘

Monoline Reinsurer Rating

Ceding Company Rating . AAA AA A RBB
AAA e e e e e 100% 0% 50% n/a
AA ..ol e et 100% 75% 70% 50%

< N O 100% 80% 5% 0%
Below A: Not applicable. -

For reinsurance ceded to a mu]tllme reinsurer, S&P has re-examined its methodology for the
deterrmnatlon of reinsurance credit. In the course of its examination, S&P considered the effect of havmg
both monoline and multiline companies in the mdustry, determining that multiline reinsurers had not '
demonstrated sufficient commitment to participation in the industry and occasionally had handled claims’
for financial guaranty reinsurance as they handle claims in their other business lines. S&P therefore
determined that no rating agency reinsurance credit would be accorded cessions to multiline reinsurance
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companies that had not demonstrated their willingness and ability to make timely payment, which
willingness and ability is measured by a financial enhancement rating (“FER”) from S&P. A financial
enhancement rating reflects not only an insurer’s perceived ability to pay claims, but also its perceived
willingness to pay claims. FERSs are assigned by S&P to multiline insurers requesting the rating who meet
stringent criteria identifying the company’s capacity and willingness to pay claims on a timely basis. S&P
has established the following reinsurance credit for business ceded to a multiline reinsurer carrying an
FER: '

Multiline Reinsurer Rating

Ceding Company Rating AAA AA A BBB

AAA o . 95% 6% 45% ula
A e e 95% 0% 65% 45%
A e 95% T5% T0% 65%

Below A: Not applicable.

The ratings of AGRO, Assured Guaranty Mortgage and Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. are dependent
upon support in the form of keepwell agreements. AG Re provides a keepwell to its subsidiary, AGRO. '
AGRO provides a keepwell to its subsidiary, Assured Guaranty Mortgage. AGC provides a keepwell to its
subsidiary, Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. Pursuant to the terms of these agreements, each of AG Re,
AGRO and AGC agrees to provide funds to thclr respectwc subsidiaries sufficient for those subsidiaries to
meet their obligations.

The ratings assigned by S&P, Moody’s and Fitch to our insurance subsidiaries are subject to periodic
review and may be downgraded by one or more of the rating agencies as a result of changes in the views of
the rating agencies or adverse developments in our subsidiaries’ financial conditions or results of
operations due to underwriting or investment losses or other factors. As a result, the ratings assigned to
our insurance subsidiaries by any of the rating agencies may change at any time. If the ratings of any of our
insurance subsidiaries were reduced below current levels by any of the rating agencies, it could have an
adverse effect on the affected subsidiary’s competitive position and its prospects for future business
opportunities. A downgrade may also reduce the value of the reinsurance we offer, which may no longer be
of sufficient economic value for our customers to continue to cede to our subsidiaries at economically
viable rates. d

With respect 1o a significant portion of our in-force financial guaranty reinsurance business, in the
event of certain downgrades, the ceding company has the right to recapture business ceded to the affected
subsidiary and assets representing substantially all of the statutory unearned premium and loss reserves
(if any) associated with that business, with a corresponding negative impact to earnings, which could be -
significant. Alternatively, the ceding company can increase the commissions it charges us for cessions. Any
such increase may be retroactive to the date of the cession, requiring the affected subsidiary to refund a
portion of related premium previously earned, with a corresponding negative impact to earnings, which
could be significant. In the event of 4 downgrade of any of our subsidiaries that write or insure exposures
relating to contracts that allow for the use of derivative instruments to transfer credit risk, or credit
derivatives, a downgrade below negotiated levels may allow a counterparty to terminate its agreements,
resulting in the possible payment of a settlement amount. A downgrade also will increase the possibility
that we may have to pledge collateral for the benefit of a counterparty..

A downgrade may also negatively impact the affected company ’s ability to write new business or
negotiate favorable termis on new business. .
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Our success depends on our ability to successfully execute our business strategy.

Our strategy is to focus on two core businesses: (1) financial guaranty direct insurance and
(2) financial guaranty reinsurance. '

The fact that AGC, through which we write financial guaranty insurance, carries a triple-A rating from
S&P and Fitch, but not from Moody’s, places it at a competitive disadvantage against companies rated
triple-A by S&P, Fitch and Moody’s. The absence of a triple-A rating from Moody's may adversely affect
the desirability of our financial guaranty insurance, and in fact may preclude us from successfully
marketing our financial guaranty insurance in certain markets, Furthermore, while we have a substantial
in-force book of financial guaranty direct business, the majority of that exposure was written in the credit
derivatives market rather than in the more traditional third party financial guaranty insurance market. We
may not be able to successfuily expand relationships with issuers, servicers and other parties that are
necessary to generate business in the traditional financial guaranty insurance market.

We are dependent on a small number of ceding companies to provide us with a substantial part of our.
reinsurance business. '

We have derived a substantial portion of our revenues from financial guaranty reinsurance premiums.
A significant reduction in the amount of reinsurance ceded by .one or more of our principal ceding
companies would have an adverse effect upon eur reinsurance business. A number of factors could cause. .
such a reduction, such as, reluctance among our principal ceding companies to cede business tous as a
result of competition with them in the direct financial guaranty business. In addition, primary insurers may
retain higher levels of risk than in the past.”Also, the volume of municipal bond and structured securities
new issuances, together with the levels of and changes in interest rates and investor demand, may
significantly affect the new business activities of primary financial guaranty insurers and, consequently,
their use of reinsurance. '

Additionally, our ability to receive profitable pricing for our reinsurance depends largely on prices
charged by the primary insurers for their insurance coverage and the amount of ceding commissions paid
by us to these primary insurers. :

General econemic factors, including fluctuations in interest rates and housing prices, may adversely affect
our loss experience and the demand for our products.

Our business, and the risks associated with our business, depend in large measure on general
economic conditions and capital markets activity. Our loss experience could be materially adversely
affected by extended national or regional economic recessions, business failures, rising unemployment
rates, interest rate changes or volatility, changes in investor perceptions regarding the strength of financial
guaranty providers and the policies or guaranties offered by such providers, investor concern over the
credit quality of municipalities or corporations, terrorist attacks, acts of war, or combinations of such
factors. These events could also materially decrease demand for financial guaranty insurance. In addition
to exposure to general economic factors, we are exposed to the specific risks faced by the particular
businesses, municipalities or pools of assets covered by our financial guaranty products.

Prevailing interest rate levels affect capital markets activity which in turn affects demand for financial
guaranty insurance. Higher interest rates may result in declines in new issue and refunding volume which
may reduce demand for our financial guaranty products. Lower interest rates generally are accompanied
by narrower interest rate spreads between insured and uninsured obligations. The purchase of insurance
during periods of narrower interest rate spreads generally will provide lower cost savings to the issuer than
during periods of wider spreads. These lower cost savings could be accompanied by a corresponding
decrease in demand for financial guaranty insurance. However, the increased level of refundings during
periods of lower interest rates historically has increased the demand for insurance.
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Under the standard mortgage insurance policies that we reinsure, a-default on the underlying
mortgage generally will give the insurer the option to pay the entire loss amount and take title to the
mortgaged property or pay the coverage percentage in full satisfaction of its obligations under the policy.
Due to a strong housing market in recent years, insurers have been able to take advantage of paying the
entire loss amount and selling propertlcs quickly. If housing values dcpremate or fail to appreciate, the |
primary insurers’ ability to recover amounts paid on defaulted mortgages may be reduced or delayed,
which in turn may lead to increased losses under our related reinsurance contracts and have a material
adverse affect on our results of operations or our financial condition in general.,

4 v ' "y
If claims exceed our loss reserves, our financial results could be significantly adversely affected.

Our results of operations and financial condition depend upon our ability to assess accurately and
manage the potential loss associated with the risks that we insure and reinsure. We establish loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves, based on estimates involving statistical projections of our expectations of the
ultimate settlement and administration costs of claims on the policies we write. We use statistical models as
well as historical insurance industry loss development patterns as estimates of future trends in claims
severity, frequency and other factors to establish our estimate of loss reserves. Establishing loss reserves is
an inherently uncertain process. Accordingly, actual claims and claim expenses paid may deviate, perhaps
materially, from the reserve estimates reflected in our consolidated financial statements. *

If our loss reserves at any time are determined to be madequate we will be requnred 10 increase loss
reserves at the time of such determination. This could cause a material increase in our llabllltles and a
reduction in our profltablllty, or possibly an operatmg loss and reduction of capital.

1
I

Adverse selection by ceding companies may a'dversely affect our financial results.

" A portion of our reinsurance business is wntten under treaties, which generally give the cedmg
company some ability to select the risks ceded 1o us as long as they are covered by the terms of the treaty.,
There is a risk under these treaties that the ceding companies will adversely select thie risks ceded to us by
ceding those exposures that have higher.rating agency capital charges or that the ceding companies expect
to be less profitable. We attempt to mitigate this risk in a number of ways, including requiring ceding.
companies to retain a minimum amount, which varies by treaty, of the ceded business. If we are -
unsuccessful in mitigating this risk, our financial results may be adversely affected.

Our financial guaranty products may subject us to significant risks from individual or correlated credits.

We.could be exposed to corporate credit risk if the credit’s securities are contained in a portfolio of
collateralized debt obligations (“CDCs”) we insure, or if it is the originator or servicer of loans or other
assets backing structured securities that we have insured. A CDO is a debt security backed by a pool of .
debt obligations. While we track our aggregate exposure to single names in our various lines of business
and have establishéd underwriting criteria to manage risk aggregations, there can be ho assurance that our
ultimate exposure to a single name will not exceed our underwriting guidelines, or that an event with
respect to a single name will not cause a significant loss. In addition, because we insure or reinsure
municipal bonds, we can have significant exposures to single municipal risks. While the rl%k of a complete
loss, where we pay the entire principal amount of an issue of bonds and interest thereon with no recovery,
is generally lower than for corporate credits as most municipal bonds are backed by tax or other revenues,
there can be no assurance that a smgle default by a mumcnpahty would not have a matenal adverse effect |
on our results of operatlons or f1nanc1al condltlon

- L . by
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Some of our direct financial guaranty products may be riskier than traditional financial guaranty
insurance, . I :

A substantiaI portion of our financial guaranty direct exposures have been assumed as credit
derivatives. Traditional financial guaranty insurance provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty
that protects the holder of a municipal finance or structured finance obligation agamst non payment of
principal and interest, while credit derivatives provide protection from the occurrence of specified credit
events, including non payment of pr1nc1pal and interest. In general the Company structures derivative |,
transactions such that the method for making loss payments is similar to that for traditional financial
guaranty policies or only occurs as losses are realized on the underlying reference obligation. Nonetheless,
credit derivative transactions are governed by ISDA documentation and may operate differently from
traditional financial guaranty policies wnh respect to loss payments control rights..

L

Competition in our industry may adversely affect our revenues.

We face significant competmon in our business, and our revenues and profitability could declme asa
result of competition.

‘

‘The financial guaranty industry is highly competitive. The principal sources of direct.and indirect .
competition are other financial guaranty insurance companies, most of which have greater financial
resources and superior financial strength ratings than we do. We also face competition from other forms of
credit enhancement, including structural enhancement incorporated in structured and other obllgatlons
and letters of credit, guaranties and credit derivatives provided primarily by foreign and domestic banks
and other financial institutions, some of which are govemmental enterprises or have been assigned the
highest ratings awarded by one or more of the major rating agencies.

.

- oL
There are also a relatively limited number of financial guaranty reinsurance companies. As a result,

the industry is particularly vulnerable to swmgs in capacity based on the entry or cx1t of one or a small

number of finanmal guaranty remsurers '

New entrants into the financial guaranty lndustry could have an adverse effect on our prospects elthcr
by furthering price competition or by reducing the aggregate demand for our reinsurance as a result of
additional insurance capacity. The most significant barriers to entry for new financial guaranty competitors
are rating agency requirements and regulatory capital requirements. New entrants or additional '

reinsurance capacity would likely have an adverse effect on our business.

With respect to mortgage?guaranty reinsurance, we compete with a number of other reinsurance
companies as well as with alternatives to reinsurance, including risk sharing arrangements with affiliates of
.the mortgage insurers and lender owned captives. Many of these competitors have greater experience and
relationships in these markets. . -

We are dependent on key executives and the loss of any of these executives, or our inability to retain other.
key personnel, could adversely affect our business. : .

Our success substantially dépends upon our ability to attract and retain quahﬁed employees and upon
the ability of our senior managemient and other key employees to lmplement our business strategy. We .
believe there are only a limited number of available qualified executives in the business lines in which we
compete, Although we are not aware of any planned departures, we rely substantlally upon the services of -
Dominic J. Frederico, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and other executives. Although
Mrt. Frederico and certain other executives have employment agreements with us, we cannot assure you
that we will be able to retain their services. The loss of the services of either of these individuals or other
key members of our management team could adversely affect the implementation of our business strategy.
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Our business could be adversely affected by Bermuda employment restrictions.

Our location in Bermuda may serve as an impediment to attracting and retaining experienced
personnel. Under Bermuda law, non-Bermudians, other than spouses of Bermudians and individuals
holding permanent resident certificates or working resident certificates, are not permitted to engage in any
gainful occupation in Bermuda without a work permit issued by the Bermuda.government. A work permit
is only granted or extended if the employer can show that, after a proper public advertisement, no
Bermudian, spouse of a Bermudian or individual holding a permanent resident certificate or working
resident certificates is available who meets the minimum standards for the position. The Bermuda
government’s policy places a six year term limit on individuals with work permits, subject to specified
exemptions for persons deemed to be key employees. All of our Bermuda based employees who require
work permits have been granted permits by the Bermuda government,.including our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and Secretary, Chief Accounting Officer,
Chief Credit Officer and Chief Surveillance Ofﬁcer It is possible that we could lose the services of one or
more of Gur key employees if we are unable to obtain or renew thelr work permits.

We may be adversely affected by mterest rate changes aﬁectmg the performance of our investment
portfolio.

Our operating results are affected, in part, by the performance of our investment portfolio. Changes
in interest rates could also have an adverse effect on our investment income. For exampte, if interest rates.
decline, funds reinvested will earn less than expected. Our invesiment portfolio contains interest rate-
sensitive instruments, such as bonds, which may be adversely affected by changes in interest rates.
Increases in interest rates will reduce the valie of these securities, resulting in unrealized losses that we are
required to include in shareholder’s equity as a change in accumulated other comprehensive income.
Accordingly, interest rate increases could reduce our shareholder s equity. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condmon dand Results of Operatlons—Crltlcal Accounting Policies—Valuation

of Investments.”

*

In addition, our investment portfolio includes mortgagc-backed securities. As.of December 31, 2006,
mortgage-backed securities constituted approximately 29% of our invested assets. As with other fixed
maturity investments, the fair market value of these securities fluctuates depending on market and other
general economic conditions and the interest rate environment. Changes in interest rates can expose us to:
significant prepayment risks on these investments. In periods of declining interest rates, mortgage
prepayments generally increase and mortgage-backed securities are prepaid more quickly, requiring us to’
reinvest the proceeds at then-current market rates. During periods of rising interest rates, the frequency of
prepayments generally decreases. Mortgage-backed securities having an amortized value less than par (i.e.,
purchased at a discount) may incur a decrease in yield or a loss as a result of slower prepayment.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including monetary policies, domestic and.
international economic and political conditions and other factors beyond our control. We do not engage m
active management, or hedging, of interest rate risk, and may not be able to mitigate interest rate
sensitivity effectively. < ’

+

The performance of our invested assets affects our results of operations and cash flows,

Income from our investment portfolio is one of the prlmary sources of cash flows supportmg our
operatlons and claim payments. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, our net
investment income was $111.5 million, $96.8 million and $94.8 million, respectively, in each case exclusive
of net realized gains-(losses) and unrealized gains (losses) on investments. If our calculations with respect
to our pohcy liabilities are mcorrect or if we improperly structure our investments to meet these liabilities,
we could have unexpected losses, including losses resulting from forced liquidation of lnvestments before
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their maturity. The investment policies of our insurance subsidiaries are subject toinsurance law -
requirements, and may change depending upon regulatory, economic and market conditions and the |
existing or anticipated financial condition and operating requuements lncludlng the tax position, of our
busmesses ‘

We have retained BlackRock Financial Management (“BlackRock”) to manage our investment
portfolio. The performance of our invested assets is subject to their performance in selecting and managing
appropriate investments. BlackRock has dlscretlonary authorlty over our investment portfoho within the
limits of our investment gu1de11nes S -

, . : . - e
Our net income may be volatile because a portion of the credit risk we assume is in the form of credit
derivatives that are accounted for under FAS 133, wluch réquires.that these instruments be marked-to-

market quarterly. ' N 2 i

Any event causing credit spreacls (i.e., the dlfference in mterest rates between comparable securities
having different credit risk) on an underlying security referenéed in a ¢redit derivative in our portfoho
either to widen or to tighten will affect the fair value of the credit derivative and may increase the volatility
of our earnings. Derivatives must be accounted for either as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
measured at fair market value. Although there is no cash flow effect from this “marking to market,” net
changes-in the fair market value of the derivative are reported in our statement of operations and -
therefore will affect our reported earnings. If the derivative is held to maturity and no credit lossis  *
incurred, any gains.or losses' previously reported would be offset by corrésponding gains or lossesat - !
maturity. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Critical Accounting Policies—Valuation of Derivative’ Fin'ancial Instruments.” :

b

Common evehts that may cause credit spreads on an underlymg mun1c1pal or corporate secunty 1
referenced in a credit derivative to fluctuate include changes in the state of national or regional economic
condltlons industry cyclicality, changes to a company’s competitive position within an industry, _
management changes, changes in the ratings of the underlying security, movements in interest rates,
default or failure to pay interest, or any other:factor leading itivestors to revise expectations-about the
issuer’s ability to pay principal.and interest on its debt obligations. Similarly, common events-that may . .
cause credit spreads on an underlying structured security referenced in a'credit derivative to fluctuate may -
include the occurrence and severity of collateral defaults, changes in demographic-trends and their impact-.
on the levels of credit enhancement, rating changes, changes in interest rates or prepayment speeds, or any
other factor leading investors to revise expectations about the risk of the collateral or the ability of the -
servicer- to-collect payments.on the underlying assets sufficient to pay principal and interest. '

An increase in our subsidiaries’ nsk-to—capltal ratio or leverage ratlo may prevent them from wrltmg new
insurance.

Ratmg agencies and i insurance regulatory authontles impose capital reqmrements on our insurance .
subsidiaries. These capital requirements; which include risk-to-capital: ratios, leverage ratios and surplus
requirements, limit the amount of insurance that our subsidiaries may write. Our insurance subsidiaries
have several alternatives available to contro! their risk-to-capital ratios and leverage ratios, including
obtaining capitat contributions from us, purchasing reinsurance or entering into other loss mitigation
agreements, or reducing the amount of new business written. However, a materlal reductionin the |
statutory capltal and surplus of a subSLdlary, whether rtesultlng from underwrltlng or investment losses or,
otherwise, or a dlsproportxonate increase in the amount of risk in force, could increase a subsidiary’s rlsk- .
to-capltal ratio or levelrage ratio. This in turn could require that sub51dlary to obtain reinsurance for
existing business (which may not be avallable or may be avajlable on terms that we consider unfavorab]e)
or add to its capital base to maintain its financial strength ratings. Fallure to mamtam such ratmgs could
limit that subsidiary’s ability to write new business.
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We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or may be available only on
unfavorable terms.

Our capital requirements depend on many factors, including our in-force book of business and rating
agency capital requirements. To the extent that our existing capital is insufficient to meet these
requirements and/or cover losses, we may need to raise additional funds through financings or curtail our
growth and reduce our assets. Any equity or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are not
favorable 1o us. Equity financings could result in dilution to our shareholders and the securities may have
rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of our common shares. If our need for capital
arises because of significant losses, the occurrence of these losses may make it more difficult for us to raise
the necessary capital.

Adequate soft capital support may not be available.

.Financial guaranty insurers and reinsurers typically rely on providers of lines of credit, credit swap
facilities and similar capital support mechanisms (often referred to as “soft capital”) to supplement their
“hard capital.” The ratings of soft capital providers directly affect the level of capital credit which the
rating agencies attribute to the financial guaranty insurer or reinsurer when rating its financial strength.
We intend to maintain soft capital facilities with providers having ratings adequate to provide the desired
capital credit, although no assurance can be given that one or more of the rating agencies will not
downgrade or withdraw the applicable ratings of such providers in the future. In addition, we cannot assure
you that an acceptable replacement provider would be available in that event.

We may require additional liquidity in the futilre, which may not be available or may be ayﬁils_1|ble only on
unfavorable terms. : ' ' C

We require liquidity in order to pay our operating expenses, interest on our debt and dividends on our
common shares, and to make capital investments in our operating subsidiaries. We anticipate that our
need for liquidity will be met by (1) the ability of our operating subsidiaries to pay dividends or to make
other payments to us, (2) external financings and (3) investment income from our invested assets. Some of
our subsidiaries are subject to legal-and rating agency restrictions on their ability to pay dividends and
make other permitted payments, and external financing may or may not be available to us in the future on
satisfactory terms. Our other subsidiaries are subject to legal restrictions on their ability to pay dividends
and distributions. See “Business—Regulation.” While we believe that we will have sufficient liquidity to
satisfy our needs over the next 12 months, there can be no assurance that adverse market conditions,
changes in insurance regulatory law or changes in general economic condition that adversely affect our
liquidity will not occur. Similarly, there can be no assurance that adequate liquidity will be available to us
on favorable terms in the future. '

Liquidity at our operating subsidiaries is used to pay operating expenses, claims, payment obligation
with respect to credit derivatives, reinsurance premiums and dividends to Assured Guaranty US Holding
for debt service and dividends to us, as well as, where appropriate, to make capital investments in their own
subsidiaries. While we believe that the operating cash flows of our subsidiaries will be sufficient to meet
their needs, we cannot assure you that this will be the case, nor can we assure you that existing liquidity
facilities will prove adequate to their needs, or be available to them on favorable terms in the future.

Changes in tax laws could reduce the demand or profitability of financial guaranty insurance, or
negatively impact our investment portfolio.

Any material change in the U.S. tax treatment of municipal securities, the imposition of a “flat tax,”
the imposition of a national sales tax in lieu of the current federal income tax structure in the United
States, or changes in the treatment of dividends, could adversely affect the market for municipal
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obligations and, consequently, reduce the demand for financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance of such
obligations.

Changes in U.S. federal, state or local laws that materially adversely affect the tax treatment of
municipal securities or the market for those securities, or other changes negatively affecting the municipal
securities market, also may adversely impact our investment portfolio, a significant portion of which is
invested in tax-exempt instruments. These adverse changes may adversely affect the value of our tax-
exempt portfolio, or its liquidity.

Legislative and regulatory changes and interpretations could harm our business.

Changes in laws and regulations affecting insurance companies, the municipal and structured’
securities markets, the financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty insurance and reinsurance markets and
the credit derivatives markets, as well as other governmental regulatlons may subject us to additional legal
liability, or affect the demand: for the products that we provide. For example, recent uncertainty regarding
the accounting for structured securities significantly, though temporarlly, reduced new issuances of certain
types of structured securities.

Our ability to meet our obligations may be constrained by our holding company structure.

Assured Guaranty is a holding company and, as such, has no direct operations of its own. We do not
expect to have any significant operations or assets other than our ownership of the shares of our
subsidiaries. Dividends and other permltted payments from our operating subsidiaries are expected to be
our primary source of funds to meet ongoing cash requirements, including any future debt service
payments and other expenses, and to pay dividends to our sharcholders. Our insurance subsidiaries are
subject to regulatory and rating agency restrictions limiting their ability to declare and to pay dividends and
make other payments to us. In addition, to the extent that dividends are paid from our U.S. subsidiaries,
they presently would be subject to U.S. withholding tax at a rate of 30%. The inability of our insurance
subsidiaries to pay sufficient dividends and make other permitted payments to us would have an adverse
effect on our ability to satisfy our ongoing cash requirements and on our ability to pay dividends to our
shareholders. If we do not pay dividends, the only return on your investment in our Company, if at all,
would come from any appreciation in the price of our common shares. For more information regarding
these limitations, see “Business—Regulation.”

Our ability to pay dividends may be constrained by certain regulatory requirements.and restrictions.

We are subject to Bermuda regulatory constraints that will affect our ability to pay dividends on our

common shares and to make other payments. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, as amended (the
“Companies Act”), we may declare or pay a dividend out of distributable reserves only (1) if we have

reasonable grounds for believing that we are, and after the payment would be, able to pay our liabilities as
they become due and (2) if the realizable value of our assets would not be less than the aggregate of our
liabilities and issued share capital and share preminm accounts. While we currently intend to pay
dividends, if you require dividend income you should carefully consider these risks before investing in our
company. For more information regardmg restrictions on our ablllty to pay dividends, see “Business—
Regulation.”

There are provisions in our Bye-Laws that may reduce or increase the voting rights of our common shares.

If, and so long as, the common shares of a sharcholder are treated as “controlled shares” (as
determined under section 958 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) of any
U.S. Person (as defined in “Tax Matters—Taxation of Shareholders”) and such controlled shares
constitute 9.5% or more of the votes conferred by our issued shares, the voting rights with respect to the
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controlled shares of such U.S. Person (a “9.5% U.S. Shareholder”) shall be limited, in the aggregate, to a
voting power of less than 9.5%, under a formula specified in our Bye-Laws. The formula is applied -
repeatedly until the voting power of all 9.5% U.S. Shareholders has been reduced to less than 9.5%. In
addition, our Board of Directors may limit a shareholder’s votihg rights where it deems appropriate to do
so to (1) ‘avoid the existence of any 9.5% U.S. Shareholders, and (2) avoid certain material adverse tax
legal or regulatory consequences to us or any of our subsidiaries or any shareholder or its affiliates.
“Controlled shares” include, among other things, all shares of Assured Guaranty that such U.S. Person is
deemed to own directly, indirectly or constructively (within the.meaning of section 958 of the Code).

Under these provisions, certain shareholders may have their voting rights limited to less than one vote
per share, while other shareholders may have voting rights in excess of one vote per share. Moreover, these
provisions could have the effect of reducing the votes of certain shareholders who would not otherwme be
subject to the 9.5% limitation by virtue of their direct share ownership. Qur Bye-Laws provide that
shareholders will be notified of their voting interests prior to any vote taken by them.

As 4 result of any reallocation of votes, your voting rights might increase above 5% of the aggregate
voting powert of the outstanding common shares, thereby possibly‘r‘esulting in your becoming a reporting
person subject to Schedule 13D or 13G filing requirements under the Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). In addition, the reallocation of your votes ‘could result in your becoming sub]ect 1o the
short swing profit recovery and fllmg requirements under Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

We alsohave the authority under our Bye-Laws to request information from any shareholder for the
purpose of determining whether a shareholder’s voting rights are to be reatlocated under the Bye-Laws. If
a shareholder fails to respond to our request for information or submits incomplete or inaccurate

nformatlon in response to a request by us, we may, in our sole discretion, eliminate such shareholdcr §

voting rights. ,
There are provisions in our Bye-Laws that may restrict the ability to transfer common shares, and that
may require shareholders to sell their common shares.

Our Board of Directors may decline to approve or register a transfer of any common shares (1) if it
appears to the Board of Directors, after taking into account the limitations on voting rights contained in
our Bye-Laws, that any adverse tax, regulatory or legal consequences to us, any of our subsidiaries or any
of our shareholders may occur as a result of such transfer (other than such as the Board of Directors
con51ders to be de minimis), or (2) sub]ect to any applicable requn‘ements of or commltments 10 the New
York Stock Exchange if a written opinion from counsel supporting the legality of the transaction under
u.s. securmes laws has not been provided or if any required governmental approvals have not been

obtained. ‘ o

Our Bye-Laws also provide that if our' Board of Directors determines that share ownershipbya
person may result in adverse tax, legal or regulatory consequences.to us, any of our subsidiaries or any of
our shareholders (other than such as the Board of Directors considers to be de minimis), then we have the
option, but not the obligation, to require that shareholder to selt to us or to third partics'to whom we
assign the repurchase right for fair market value'the. minimum number of commeon shares held by such
person which is necessary to eliminate such adverse tax, legal or regulatory consequences. See “Descrlptlon
of Share Capital.” _ . ‘

Applicable insurance laws may make it difficult to effect a change of control of the Company. -

Before a person can acquire control of a U.S. insurance company, prior written approval must be
obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state where the domestic insurer is domiciled. See
“Regulation—Change of Control.” Because a person acquiring 10% or more of our common shares would

1
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indirectly control the same percentage of the stock of our. U.S. insurance company subsidiaries, the -
insurance change of control laws of Maryland and New York would likely apply to such a transaction.

These laws may discourage potential acqulsltron proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change
of control of our company, including through transactions, and in particular unsollmted transactlons that
some or all of our shareholders might consider to be desnable

© Whilé our Bye-Laws limit the voting power of any shareholder (other than ACE) to less than 10%, -
there can be no ‘assurance that the applicable regulatory body would agree that a shareholder who owned
10% or more of our common shares did not, notwithstanding the limitation on the voting power of such
shares control the applicable i msurance company subsrdlary

Some reinsurance agr_eement_ terms may make it dlﬁicult to eﬁecit achange of control of the Company

Some of our reinsurance agreéments have-change of control provisions that are triggeréd if a third
party acquires a designated percentage of our shares. If these change of control provisions are triggered,
the ceding company may recapture somie of all of the reinsurance business ceded to us in the past. Any
such recapture could adversely affect our future i mcome or ratmgs These provisions may discourage
potential acquisition proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change of control of our Company,
including through transactlons that some or alI of our shareholders might consrder to be desirable.

Anti-takeover provisions in our Bye-Laws could impede an attempt to replace or remove our drrectors,
which could diminish the value of our commeon shares.: . ' v

Our Bye -Laws contain provisions ‘that may make it more difficult for shareholders to replace directors
even if the shareholders consider it beneficial to do so. In addition, these provisions could delay or prevent
a change of control that a shareholder might consider favorable. For example, these provisions may
prevent a shareholder from recelvmg the benefit from any premlum over the market price of our common
shares offered by a bidder in a potential takeover. Even in the absence of an attempt to effect a change in
management or a takeover attempt, these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of
our common shares if they are.viewed as dlscouragmg takeover attempts in the future. -

Our non-U S compames other than AGRO may be subject to-U.S. tax.-

We intend to manage our business so that' Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re, Assured Guaraaty Finance
Overseas, and Assured Guaranty (UK) will operdte in such a manner that none of them will be subject to
U.S. tax (other than U.S. excise tax on insurance and reinsurance premlum income attributable. to imisuring
or reinsuring U.S. risks, and U.S. withholding tax on certain U.S. source investment income). However,
because there is considerable uncertainty as to the activities which constitute being engaged in a trade or
business within the United States, we cannot be certain that the/U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) will
not contend successfully that Assured Guaranty or any of our foreign subsidiaries is/are engaged in a trade
or business in the United States..If Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re; Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas,
or Assured Guaranty {UK) were considered to be engaged in a.trade or business in the United States, each
such company could be subject to U.S. corporate income and branch profits taxes on the portion of its
earnings effectively connected to such U.S. business. See “Tax Matters—Taxation of Assured Guaranty
and Subsidiaries—United States.”

We may become subject to taxes in-Bermuda after 2016, which may have a material adverse effect on our .
results of operatlons and on your investment,

The Bermuda Minister of Finance, under- Bermuda s Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act
1966, as amended, has given Assured Guaranty, AGC, AG Re.and AGRO an'assurance that if any
legislation is enacted in Bermuda that would impose tax computed on profits or income, or computed on
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any capital asset, gain or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax, then
subject to-certain limitations the imposition of any such tax will not be applicable to Assured Guaranty,
AGC or.our Bermuda subsidiaries, or any of our or their operations, shares, debentures or ather
obligations until 2016. See “Tax Matters—Taxation of Assured Guaranty and Subsidiaries—Bermuda.”
Given the limited duration of the Minister of Finance’s assurance, we cannot be certain that we will not be
subject to Bermuda tax after 2016. ' . K

.S, Persons who hold common shares will be subject to adverse tax consequences ifwe or any of our
Subsidiaries are considered to be a Personal Holding Company (“PHC>). :

Assured Guaranty or a subsidiary might be subject to U.S. tax on a portion of its income (which in the
case of a foreign subsidiary would only include income from U.S. sources and foreign source income
effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business) if Assured Guaranty or such subsidiary is considered 2
personal holding company (“PHC”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes. This status will depend on
whether 50% or more of our shares could be deemed to be owned {pursuant to certain constructive
ownership rules) by five or fewer individuals and whether 60% or more of Assured Guaranty’s income, or
the income of any of its subsidiaries, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes, consists of
“personal holding company income.” We believe that neither Assured Guaranty nor any of its subsidiaries
should be considered a PHC. Additionally, we intend to manage our business to minimize the possibility
that we will meet the 60% income threshold. However, because of the lack of complete information
regarding our ultimate share ownership (i.e., as determined by the constructive ownership rules for PHCs),
we cannot be certain that Assured Guaranty and/or any of its subsidiaries will not be considered a PHC.

U.S. Persons who acquire 10% or more of our common shares may be subject to taxation under the
“controlled foreign corporation” (“CFC”) rules. . : : ‘ "

* Each “10% U.S. Shareholder” of a foreign corporation that is a CFC for an uninterrupted period of '
30 days or more during a taxable year, and who owns shares in the CFC directly or indirectly through '
foreign entities on the last day of the CFC’s taxable year, must inchude in its gross income for U.S. federal
income tax purposes its pro rata share of the CFC’s “subpart F income,” even if the subpart F income is
not distributed. Sec “Tax Matters—Taxatlon of Shareholders—United States Taxation.”

We believe that because of the dispersion of our share ownership, provisions in our Bye-Laws that
limit voting power and other factors, no U.S. Person who owns our common shares directly or indirectly
through one or more foreign entities should be treated as a 10% U.S. Shareholder of us or of any of our
forelgn subsidiaries. It is pOSSlble however, that the IRS could challenge thc effectiveness of these
provisions and that a court could sustain such a challenge.

U.S. Persons who hold common shares may be subject to U.S. income taxation at ordinary income rates on
their proportlonate share of our “related person insurance mcome” (“RPII”).

- If the gross RPII of AG Re was to equal or exceed 20% of AG Re’s gross insurance income in any
taxable year and direct or indirect insureds (and persons related to such insureds) own (or are treated as
owning directly or indirectly through entities) 20% or more of the voting power or value of our common
shares, then a U.S. Person who owns our common shares (directly or indirectly through foreign entities) on
the last day of the taxable year would be required to include in its income for U.S. federal income tax
purposes such person’s pro rata share of AG Re’s RPII for the entire taxable year, determined as if such
RPII were distributed proportionately only to U.S. Persons at that date, regardless of whether such income
is distributed. In addition, any RPII that is includible in the income of a U.S. tax-exempt organization may
be treated as unrelated business taxable income. The amount of RPil earned by AG Re (generally,
premium and related investment income from the direct or indirect insurance or reinsurance of any direct
or indirect U.S. holder of common shares or any person related to such holder) witl depend on a number
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of factors, including the geographic distribution of AG Re’s business and the identity of persons directly or.
indirectly insured or reinsured by AG Re. We believe AG Re did not in prior years of operation and will
not in the foreseeable future have either. RPII income which equals or exceeds 20% of gross insurance © +*
income or have direct or indirect insureds, as provided for by RIIP rules, of AG Re (and related persons)
directly or indirectly own 20% or more of either the voting power or value of our common shares.
However, we cannot be certain that this will be the case because some of the factors which determine the
extent of RPII may be beyond our control.
U.S. Persons who dispose of our common shares may be subject to U.S. income taxation at.ordinary
income tax rates in a portion of their gain, if any.

The RPII rules provide that if a U.S. Person disposes of shares in a forelgn insurance corporatron in
which U:S. Persons own 25% or more of the'shares (even if the amount of gross RPII is less than 20% of
the corporation’s gross insurance income and the ownership of its shares by direct or indirect insureds and
related persons is less than the 20% threshold), any gain from the disposition will generally be treated as
ordinary income to the extent of the holder’s share of the corporation’s undistributed - earnings and profits
that were accumulated during the period that the holder owned the shares (whether or not such earnings
and profits are attributable to RPII). In addition, such a holder will be required to comply with certain
reporting requirements, regardless of the amount of shares owned by the holder. These RPII rules should
not apply to dispositions of common'shares because we will not ourselves be diréctly engaged in the
insurance business; however, the RPII provisions have never been interpreted by the courts or the U.S.
Treasury Department in final regulations, and regulations interpreting the RPII provisions of the Code .
exist only in proposed form. It is not certain whether these regulations will be adopted in their proposed
form, what changes or clarifications might ultimately be made thereto, or whether any such changes, as
well as any interpretation or application of RPIL by the IRS, the courts, or otherwise, might have
retroactive effect. The U.S. Treasury Department has authority to impose, among other things, additional
reporting requirements with respect to RPIL Accordmgly, the meaning of the RPII provisions and the
application thereof to Assured Guaranty and AG Re is uncertain.

U.S. Persons who hold common shares will be subJect to adverse tax consequences if we are considered to
be a Passive Foreign Investment Company (“PFIC”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

If Assuréd Guaranty is consrdered a PFIC for U.S. federal i income tax purposes aUsS. person who
owns any shares of Assured Guaranty will be subject to adverse tax consequences, including sub_]ectmg the
investor to greater tax Ilablhty than ‘might otherwise apply and subjecting the investor to tax on amounts in
advance of when tax would otherwise be imposed, which could materially adversely affect your 1nvestment
We believe that Assured Guaranty is not, and we currently do not expect Assured Guaranty to become, a
PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes; however we cannot assure you that Assured Guaranty will not.
be deemed a PFIC by the IRS. There are Currently no regulations regardmg the application of the PFIC
provisions to an insurance company. New regulations or pronouncements interpreting or clarifying these
rules may be forthcoming. We cannot predict what impact, if any, such gu1dance wotuld have on an lnvestor
that is sub]ect to U S. federal income taxation. : :
Changes in U.S. federal income tax law could materlally adversely affect an investment in our common -
shares. - \ ' :

U.S. federal income tax laws and interpretations regzirding whether a company is engaged in a trade
or business within’ the United States, is a PFIC, or whether U. S. Persons would bé required 1o include in
their gross income thie * ‘subpart F income” of a CFC or RPIT are subjéct to change, possibiy on a
retroactive basis. There currently are no regulations regardmg the application of the PFIC rules to
insurance comparues and the regulations regarding RPII are still in proposed form. New regulations or
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pronouncements interpreting or clarifying such rules may be forthcoming. We cannot be certain if, when,
or in-‘what form such regulations or pronouncements may be: 1mplemented or made, or whether such-
guidance will have a retroactive effect . -

The Organization for Economic Cnoperatlon and Development and the European Umon are conmdermg
measures that might increase our taxes and reduce our net income. o '

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (the “OECD”) has published reports
and launched a global dialogue among member and non-member countries on measures to limit harmful
tax competition. These measures are largely directed at counteracting the effects of tax havens and
preferential tax regimes in countries around the world. In the OECD’s report dated April 18, 2002 and
updated as of June 2004 and November 2005 via a “Global Forum,” Bermuda-was not listed as.an -
uncooperative tax haven jurisdiction because it had previously committed to éliminate harmful tax .-,
practices and to embrace international tax standards for transparency, exchange of information and the -
elimination of any aspects of the regimes for financial and other services that attract business with no
substantial domestic activity. We are not able to predict what changes will arise from the commitment or
whether such changes will subject-us to additional taxes. ' :

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None. o S \ . .

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES, . ... A co

We and our subsidiaries currently occupy apprommately 62,000 square feet of leased office space in
Bermuda, New York and London. Management believes that the office space is adequate fot its current
and anticipated needs. ! '

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS |

Lawsuits arise in the ordmary course of the Company 5 busmess It is the opinion of the Company ]
management, based upon the information available, that the expected outcome of these matters,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or liquidity, although an adverse resolution of a number of these items could
have a material adverse effect on the Company s results of operations or liquidity in a particular quarter or
fiscal year. , . . . . . .

.

In the ordinary course of their respective businesses, certain of our subsidiaries assert claims in legal
proceedings against third parties to recover losses paid in prior periods. The amounts, if any, the Company
will recover in these proceedings are uncertain, although recoveries in any one or more of these -
proceedings during any quarter or fiscal year could be material to the Company’s results of operations in
that particular quarter or fiscal year. : . -. o

During 2006, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. -~
(“AGRO™), and a number of other parties, completed various settlements with defendants in the fr re:
National Century Financial Enterprises Inc. Investment Litigation now pending in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Ohlo Eastern District. AGRO received approximately $13.5 million
(pre-tax) in 2006, from the settlements. AGRO originally paid claims in 2003 of approximately $41.7,

million (pre-tax) related to National Century Financial Enterprises Inc. To date including the settlements
described above, the Company has recovered $18.8 million (pre-tax), These are a partial settlement of the
litigation, and the litigation will continue against other partles

‘
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In April 2005, Assured Guaranty Corp. (*AGC”) received a Notice of Order to Preserve (“Order”)
from the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Georgia (“Commissioner”). The Order was
directed to “ACE Limited, and all affiliates” and requires the preservation of documents and other items
related to “finite insurance” and a broad group of other insurance and reinsurance agreements. Also in
April, AGC, and numerous other insurers, received a subpoena from the Commissioner related to the

“initial phase” of the Commissioner’s investigation into “finite-risk™ transactions. The subpoena requested
information on AGC’s assumed and ceded remsur‘ance contracts in force during 2004. AGC provided the
required mformat}on in response to the subpoena in January 20()6 and has not been asked by the
Commissioner for any further information.

On April 28, 2004 the Company entered into a quota share retrocession agreement with ACE INA
Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. (“AIOIC”), a subsidiary of ACE, whereby it ceded 100% of any
potential losses associated with an action filed by World Omni Financial Corp. (*World Omni”) against
" AG Intermediary Inc. and AGRO, subsidiaries of the Company, for a premium of $32.2 million, which was
retained by the Company on a funds withheld basis. The matter was settled on December 15, 2005 between
AIOIC and World Omni. Upon settlement, the Company paid its $34.4 million funds withheld liability to
AIOIC. Also in connection with the settlement the Company released $54.2 million of reinsurance
recoverables and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, representing its entire obligation to World
Omni.

In 2005 AGRO, settled claims brought against three defendants {n re: CFS-Related Securities Fraud
Litigation in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma. The proceeds of the
settlements was $71.0 million. The settlements resolved claims relating to the issuance of asset-backed debt
securities by entities sponsored by Commercial Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”), a now defunct Tulsa,
Oklahoma-based collector of defaulted credit card debt, Assured Guaranty brought the claims as part of a
multi-plaintiff group pursuant to its rights as a reinsurer of financial guaranty insurance policies issued in
1997 and 1998.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report. . ) o

Executive Officers of the Company

The table below sets forth the names, ages, positions and business experience of the executive officers
of Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Name Age Position(s) )

Dominic J. Frederico. . .. .. 54  President and Chief Executive Officer; Deputy Chairman
Michael J. Schozer. ....... © 49  President of Assured Guaranty Corp. '
Robert B. Mills........... 57  Chief Financial Officer

James M. Michener...:.... 54  General Counsel and Secretary

Robert A. Bailenson ... ... 40  Chief Accounting Officer

Dominic J. Frederico has been President and Chief Executive Officer of Assured Guaranty since
December 2003. Mr. Frederico served as Vice Chairman of ACE from June 2003 until April 2004 and
served as President and Chief Operating Officer of ACE and Chairman of ACE INA Holdings, Inc.
(“ACE INA”) from November 1999 to'Juné 2003. Mr. Frederico was a director of ACE since 2001, but
retired from that board when his term expired on May 26, 2005. Mr. Frederico has also served as
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of ACE INA from May 1999 through November 1999.
Mr. Frederico previously served as President of ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. (“ACE Bermuda®) from
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July 1997 to May 1999, Executive Vice President, Underwriting from December 1996 to July 1997, and as
Executive Vice Premdcnt Financial Lines from January 1995 to December 1996. Prior to joining ACE,
M. Frederico spent 13 years workmg for various sub51dlarles of American International Group (“AlG”)
Mr. Frederico completed his employment at AIG after serving as Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of AIG Risk Management. Before that, Mr. Frederico was Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of UNAT; a wholly owned subsidiary of AIG headquartered in Paris, France.

Michael J. Schozer has been President of Assured Guaranty Corp. since December 2003. M. Schozer
was Managing Director—Structured Finance and Credit Derivatives of Ambac Assurance Corporation
from 1996 to December 2003 where he was also a member of Ambac’s senior credit committee.

Robert B.-Mills has been Chief Financial Officer of Assured Guaranty since January 2004. Mr. Mills
was Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer—Americas of UBS AG and UBS Investment Bank
from April 1994 to January 2004 where he was also'a member of the Investment Bank Board of Directors.
Previously, Mr. Mills was with KPMG from 1971 to 1994 where his responsibilities included being partner-
in-charge of the Investment Banking and Capital Markets practice.

James M. Michener has been General Counsel and Secretary of Assured Guaranty smce
February 2004. Mr. Michener was Genetral Counsel and Secretary of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.
from January 2002 to February 2004. From April 2001 to-January 2002, Mr. Michener served as general
counsel of Citigroup’s Emerging Markets business. Prior to joining Citigroup’s Emerging Markets
business, Mr. Michener was General Counsel of Travelers. Insurance from April 2000 to April 2001 and
General Counsel of Travelers Property Casualty Corp. from May 1996 to April 2000. -

Robert A. Bailenson has been Chief Accounting Officer of Assured Guaranty since May 2005 and has
been with Assured Guaranty and its predecessor companies since 1990. In addition to this posmon '
M. Bailenson serves as the Chief Accounting Officer of the Company s subsndlary, Assured Guaranty
Corp; a position he has held since 2003. He was Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Assured
Guaranty Re Ltd. from 1999 until 2003 and was prev10usly the Assistant Controller of Capital Re Corp., *
which was acquired by ACE Limited in.1999. - .

Informatlon pertalnmg to thls item is incorporated by reference to'the sections entitled “Proposal
No. 1:Election of Directors”, “Corporate Governance-Did our Officers and Directors Comply with
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting in 20062”, “Corporate Governance- How are Directors
Nominated?”, “Corporate Governance- The Committees of the Board—The Audit Committee” of the
definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 3, 2007, which
involves the election of directors and will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of
the fiscal year pursuant to regulation 14A.

55

o




. PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
‘MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under symbol “AGO.” The tab]e
below sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the reported high and low sales prices and amount of
any cash dividends declared:

2006 : 2005

Sales Price Cash . Sales Price . Cash

’ High Low Dividends High Low Dividends
FirstQuarter......oooovvuvunnns. waeee b 82745 $2464  $0.035  $1992  $17.51 ¢ $0.03
Second Quarter ........c.iiiiiirrann. 26.03 23.50 0.035 23.48 1731 - 0.03
Third Quarter...............¢....... e 2740 2440 0.035 24.52 21.33 - 0.03

Fourth Quarter........................0. 2743 2440 0.035- 2742 2145 0.03

On February 12, 2007, the closing price for our common stock on NYSE was $26.77, and the
approximate number of shareholders of record at the close of busmess on that date was 3,049.

The Company is a holding company whose prmcrpal source of income is net investment income and
dividends from its operating subsidiaries. The ability of the operating subsidiaries to pay dividends to us
and our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders, are each subject to legal and regulatory restrictions:
The declaration and payment of future dividénds will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and
will be dependent upon the profits and financial requirements of Assured Guaranty Ltd. and other factors,
including legal restrictions on the payment of dividends and such other factors as the Board of Dlrectors
deems relevant For more information concerning our dividends, please refer to Item 7 under caption
“quuldlty and Capnal Resources” and Note 13 “Insurance Regulations” to the consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

On May 4, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program for 1. 0
million common shares. Share repurchases take place at management’s discretion depending on market
conditions. Durmg 2006 we repurchased approxrmately 0.8 million common shares at an average price of
$24.79.

The followmg table reflects the Company share repurchase act1v1ty durmg the three months ended
December 31,2006. :

]

[l
- LA

{¢) Total Number of (d) Maximum Number

. (a) Total (b) Average ~ Shares Purchased as of Shares that
‘ Number of Price Paid Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Period Shares Purchased Per Share Announced Program Under the Program
October 1—October 31......... 3911y  $26.30 — 171,460
November 1—November 30. .. .. 21,507(2) $25.10 21,000 150,460
December 1—December 31..... 5,692,599(3) $26.35 — 150,460
Total....................... ‘ 5,714,497 $26.35 21,000

(1) 391 shares were repurchased from employees in connection with the payment of withholding taxes
due in connection with the vesting of restricted stock awards.

(2) 507 shares were repurchased from employees in connection with the payment of withholding taxes
due in connection with the vesting of restricted stock awards.
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(3) Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc., a subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Ltd., entered into an
agreement on December 20, 2006 with ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd., a subsidiary of ACE Limited to
purchase 5,692, 599 of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s common shares for $150 0 million. '

Set forth below are a line graph and a table comparing the dollar change in the cumulatwe total
shareholder return on the Company’s Common Shares from April 22, 2004 through December 31, 2006 as
compared to the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the cumulative
total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Financials Index. The chart and table depict the value on
April 22, 2004, December 31, 2004, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006 of a $100 mvestment made
on April 22, 2004, with all dividends reinvested. W

$160.00 N
| $150.00 -
$140.00 A
$130.00 - -
1'$120.00" +
1$110.00 -
$100.00 -
$90.00 - ' ; . : S
04/22/04 . - - 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 -
. ———tp— Assured Guaranfy = 4 - S&P 500 index - A— S&P 500 Financials index ‘
S&P 500
) Assured Guaranty  S&P 500 Index  Financial Index
04/22/04 . oo $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
12731004 . o e $109.67 $107.65 $108.25
12731005 . e $142.36 $112.,93 $115.29
1273206 . ot e $149.98 $130.77 $137.45

Source: Bloomberg
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA PN

The followmg selected financial data should be read together with the other mformatnon contained in
this Form 10-K, including “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition'and Results of
" Operations” and the consohdated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this
Form. 10 K. : x

13 . ¢ * . . o
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
. (3 in millions, except per share amounis)
.

Siatement of opefations data:’ . o
Gross WIItten premiums ... ......vveeinnenernennenennns $325.7 $2521 $190.9 $349.2 $417.2

Net written premiums(1) ............... ... ..oo.. .. ... 3187 2173 79.6 4915 3525
Netearned premiums .......cooeiviiii i, 206.7 1987 1879 3109 2474
Net investment income ... .........oiviinneiaa .. 1115 9.8 948 963 972
Net realized investment (losses) gains ................... 2.0 22120 5.5 79
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial

IMSITUMENTS ..o i e ee e 55 (3.5) 525 984 (54.2)
Other inCome . ......0. 0. iue i i 04 _ 02 08 ., 12.° 36
TOtal FEVEMUES 1+ .o\ e ettt ie et 3221 2945 3479 5123 3020
Loss and loss adjustment expenseS .. ..........cooeiia... (6.8) (69.6) (32.0) /1446 - 1203
Profit commission expense. . ..... ... iviiiiniie .. 9.5 12.9 15.5 9.8 8.5
Acquisition costs ......... e 450 453 50.9 649 , 484
Operating CXpenses . . .. ovveuerevnrrerrvnenannnns PO 680 590 678 41.0 310
Otherexpense(2)..........ooiiiiii i e 2.5 3.7 1.6 — —
Interest expense . .. ... P ... 13.8 135 107 57 106
Totalexpenses .......... ... coiiiiiii i 1321, 649 1146 2661 2188
Income before provision for income taxes.......... s 190.0 229.6 . 2333 2462 .» 83.2
Provision forincometaxes . ..........coveiiiinana.n. 302 412 505 . 317 10.6
Netincome ... ..ot et iiiaienanaanaas $159.7 $188.4 $182.8 $2145 § 726
Earnings per share: (3) . .

Basic. ... .ooiueeiiinni..! OO L '$ 218 $ 255 § 244 § 286 $ 097

Diluted. . ... $ 215 $ 253 $ 244 $ 286 $ 097
Dividends pershare.: ... & .. :o.niulln, IR $014 $012 $006 § — § —

*  Some amounts may not add due to rounding.

oty L
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Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
($ in millions, except per share amounts)

Balance sheet data (end of period): o ) .
Investmentsand cash. .................. $24699 $22560 §$21579 $22221 $2,061.9
Prepaid reinsurance premiums .......... 7.5 12.5 © 152 11.0 1795

"Totalassets .. .ooo.ovvneinniiaei.. 02,9353 - - 2,696.3 2,703.7 2,8794 27699
Unearned premlum TESEIVES ... ovvuyyes 6445 S371 0 5213 6254 613.3
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment . ) ] , ) . .

EXPEISES. o e ee it 120.6 128.4 236.2 544.2 508.9
Long-termdebt. ... ... ... .. ... .. 3471 1973 1974 75.0 75.0
Total liabilities . ....................... 1,284.6  1,0348 1,176.1 1,441.8 15127
Accumulated other comprehenswe (o o o .

income ... PR 41.9 45.8 79.0 812 89.0
Shareholders’ equity ................... 1,650.8 1,661.5, 1,527.6 1,437.6  1,257.2
Book value pershare(3}................ C24.44 22,22 20.19 19.17 16.76

GAAP financial information: .

Loss and loss adjustment expense rat10(4) (33)% (35.00% (17.0% 46.5% 48.6%
Expense ratio{5)..... .4 ... o o 592% 58.9% :65.4% 37.2% 35.5%
Combined ratio. ...............0....... 55.9% 23.9% 48.4% 83.7% 84.1%

Combined statutory financial information: o _ ‘ 7
Contingency reserve(6)................. $ 6458 $ 5729 § 4918 § 4105 § 3155
Policyholders’ surplus(7)................ 1,0100 - 9773 906.2 911.3 8841

Additional financial gnaranty mformatmn '

(end of period):
Net in-force business (principal and
interest)(8Y ........... i $180,174 $145,694 $136,120 $130,047 $124,082

Net in-force business (principal only)(S) . 132,296 102,465 95,592 87,524 80,394

(1) Net written premiums exceeded gross written premiums for the year ended December 31, 2003 due to $154.8
million of return premium from two terminated ceded reinsurance contracts. - .

(2) Amounts for 2005 represent investment banking fees and put option premiums associated with Assured Guaranty
Corp.’s $200.0 million committed capital securities, while 2006 includes put option premiums. During 2004, a
goodwill impairment of $1.6 million was recognized for the trade credit business which the Company exited as
part of its IPO strategy. The goodwill arose from ACE's acquisition of Capital Re Corporation as of
December 31, 1999. Beginning January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer amortized, but rather is evaluated for .
impairment at least annually in accordance with FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” No such
impairment was recognized in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2003 and 2002.

{3} Per share data for 2003 and 2002 are based on.75,000,000 shares outstanding prior to the IPO. .

{4} The loss and loss adjustment expense ratio is calculated by dividing loss and loss adjustment expenses by net
earned premiums.

(5) The expense ratio is calculated by dividing the sum of prof it commission expense, acqu1smon costs and operating
expenses by net earned premiums.

(6) Under US. statutory accounting prlnc:lples, financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty insurers are required to

| establish contingenty reserves based on a specified percentage of premiums. A contingency reserve is an

: additional liability established to protect policyholders agalnst the effects of adverse econcmic developments or

i cycles or other unforeseen circumstances. :

(7) Combined policyholders’ surplus represents the addltlon of our combined U.S. based statutory surplus and our
Bermuda based statutory surplus “ :

(8) The Company’s 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current quartcr basis
while 2005 and prior years are reported on a one-quarter lag.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS]S OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of opemnons should be read *
in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes which appear élsewhere in
this Form 10-K. It contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Please see “Forward
Looking Statements” for more information. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in
this Form 10-K, particularly under the headings “Risk Factors™ and “Forward Looking Statements.”

Executive Summary

Assured Guaranty Ltd. is a Bermuda based holding company which provides, through its operating
subsidiaries, credit enhancement products to the public finance, structured finance and mortgage markets.
We apply our credit expertise, risk management skills and capital markets experience to develop insurance,
reinsurance and credit derivative products that meet the credit enhancement needs of our customers. We
market our products directly and through financial institutions. We serve the u. S. and mternattonal
markets.

Our financial results include four principal business segments: financial guaranty direct, financial.
guaranty reinsurance, mortgage guaranty and other. The other segment consists of a number of businesses
that we have exited including equity layer credit protection, trade credlt reinsurance, tltle reinsurance and
auto residual value reinsurance.

We derive our revenues principally from premiums from our insurance, reinsurance and credit
derivative businesses, net investment income, net realized gains and losses from our investment portfolio
and unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial instruments. Qur premiums are a function of thie
amount and type of contracts we write as well as prevailing market prices. We receive premjums on an
upfront basis when the policy is issued or the contract is executed and/or on an installment basis over the
life of the applicable transaction.

. ¢

Investment income is a function of invested assets and the yield that we earn on those assets. The
investment yield is a function of market interest rates at the time of investment as well as the type, credit -
quality and maturity of our invested assets. In addition, we could realize capital losses on securities in our
investment portfolio from other than temporary declines in market value as a result of changing market
conditions, including changes in market interest rates, and changes in the credit quahty of our invested
assets. ) '

Unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial instruments are a function of changes in the
estimated fair value of our credit derivative contracts. We expect these unrealized gains and losses to
fluctuate primarily based on changés in credit spreads and the credit quality of the referenced entities. We
generally hold these derivative contracts to maturity. Where we hold a derivative contract to maturity, the
cumulative unrealized gains and losses will net to zero if we incur no credit losses on that contract.

Our expenses consist primarily of losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”), profit commission
expense, acquisition costs, operating expenses, interest expense and income taxes. Losses and LAE are a
function of the amount and types of business we write. Losses and LAE are based upon estimates of the
ultimate aggregate losses inherent in the portfolio. The risks we take have a low expected frequency of loss
and are investment grade at the time we accept the risk. Prior to the initial public offering (“IPO”}, the
majority of the risks we underwrote were investment grade, however some risks accepted were below
investment grade. Profit commission expense represents payments made to ceding companies generally
based on the profitability of the business reinsured by us. Acquisition costs are related to the production of
new business. Certain acquisition costs that vary with and are directly attributable to the production of new
business are deferred and recognized over the period in which the related premiums are earned. Operating
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expenses consist primarily of salaries and other employee related costs, various outside service providers,
rent and related costs and other expenses related to maintaining a holding company structure. These costs
do not vary with the amount of premiums written, Interest expense is a function of outstanding debt and
the contractual interest rate related to that debt. Income taxes are a function of our profltablhty and the
applicable tax rate in the various jurisdictions in which we do busmess

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements inctude amounts that, either by their nature or due to
requirements of accountmg prmmples ‘generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) are
determined using estimates and assumptions. The actual amounts realized could ultimately be materially
different from the amounts currently provided for in our consolidated financial statements. We believe the
items requiring the most inherently subjective and complex estimates to be reserves for losses and LAE,
valuation of derwatlve financial instruments, vatuation of investments, other than temporary 1mpa1rments
of investments, premlum revenue recognition, deferred acqunsmon costs and déferred income taxes. An _
understanding of our accounting policies for these items is of critical 1mp0rtance to understandmg our
consolidated financial statements. The following dlscussmn provides more information regarding the’
estimates and assumptions used for these items and should be read in conjunction with the notes to our’
consolidated financial statements. '

Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for non-derwatwe transactions in our financial
guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed reinsurance and mortgage guaranty business include case
reserves and portfolioTeserves. See the “Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments” of the Critical
Accouriting Estimates section for' more information on our derivative transactions. Case reserves are
established when there is significant credlt deterioration on specific insured obligations and the, obl:gatlons
are in défault or defailt is probable, not necessarily upon non- payment of principal or interest by an
insured. Case reserves represent the present value of expected future loss payments and LAE, net of
estimated recoveries, but before considering ceded reinsurance. This reserving method is ditferent from
case reserves established by traditional property and casualty insurance companies, which establish case -
reserves upon notification of a claim and establish incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) reserves for the
difference between actuarially estimated ultimate losses and recorded case reserves. Financial guaranty
insurance and assumed reinsurance case reserves and related salvage and subrogatnon if any, are
discounted at 6%, which is the approximate taxable equivalent yield on our investment portfolio in all
periods presented. When the Company becomes entitled to the underlying collateral of an insured credit
under salvage and subrogation rights as a result of a claim payment, it records salvage and subrogation as
an asset, based on the expected level of recovery. Such amounts are mcluded in the Compcmy s balance
sheet within “Other assets.”

We record portfolio reserves in our financial guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed reinsurance
and mortgage guaranty business. Portfolio reserves are established with respect to the portion of our
business for which case reserves have not been established. Portfolio reserves are not established.for quota
share mortgage insurance contract types, all of which are in run-off; rather Case and IBNR reserves have
been established for these contracts. . :

Portfolio reserves are not established based on a specific event; rather they are calculated by
aggregating the portfolio reserve calculated for each individual transaction. Individual transaction reserves
are calculated on a quarterly basis by multiplying the par in-force by the product of the ultimate loss and
earning factors without regard to discounting. The ultimate loss factor is defined as the frequency of loss
multiplied by the severity of loss, where the frequency is defined as the probability of default for each
individual issue. The earning factor is inception to date earned premium divided by the estimated ultimate
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written premium for each transaction. The probability of default is estimated from historical rating agency

data and is based on the transaction’s credit rating, industry sector and time vntil maturity. The severity is -
defined as the complement of historical recovery/salvage rates gathered by the rating agencies of defaulting
issues and is based on the industry sector. : : "

Vv

Portfolio reserves are recorded gross of reinsurance. We have not ceded any amounts under these’
‘reinsurance contracts, as our recorded portfolio reserves have not exceeded our contractuai retentnons
required by said contracts.

The Company records an incurred loss that is reflected in the statement of operatlons upon the
establishment of portfolio reserves. When we mltlally record a case reserve, we recla551fy the
corresponding portfollo reserve already recorded for that credit within the balance sheet. The dlfference N
between the initially recorded case reserve and the reclassified portfolio reserve is recorded as a charge in
our statement of operatlons It would be a remote occurrence when the case reserve is not greater than thie
reclassified portfollo réserve. Any subsequent change in portfolio reserves or the initial case reserves are
recorded quarterly as a charge or credit in our statement of operations in the period such estimates
change. Due to the inherent uncertainties of estnmatmg loss and LAE reserves, actual experience may
differ from the estlmates reflected in our consolldated financial statements, and the dlfferences may be
material.

The chart below demonstrates the portfolio reserve’s sengitivity to frequency and severity
assumptions. The change in these estimates represent management’s estimate of reasonably possible *.
material changes and are based upon our analysis of historical experience. Portfolio reserves were
recalculated with changes made to the default and severity assumptions. In all scenarios, the starting point
used to test the portfolio reserve’s sensitivity to the changes in the frequency and séverity assumptions was
the weighted average frequency and severity by rating and asset class of our insured portfolio. Overall the
weighted average default frequency was 0.82% and the weighted average severlty was 18.0% at
December 31, 2006. For example, in the first scenario where the frequency was increased by 5.0%, each
transaction’s contribution to the portfolio reserve was recalculated by adding 0.04% (i.e. 5.0% mu]tlphed
by 0.82%) to the individual transaction’s default frequepcy

' a " Portfolic  Reserve  Percentage
' . Reserve Increase Change . .
(in thonsands of U.S. dollars)

Portfolio reserve as of December 31; 2006....0...  $69238 § — L .
5% Frequency Increase ..................... ..o 13,580 4342  6.27% Y
10% Frequency Increase .................... e 77921 8,683  12.54%
5% Severity Increase............ R Lo 72,228 2,990 4.32%
'10% Severity Increase. . . ... . e, 75,217 5,979 8:64%
5% Fréquency and Severity Incréase........... . 76,806 7568 © 1093%

In addition to analyzing the sensitivity of our portfolio reserves to possible-changes in frequency and
severity, we have also performed a sensitivity analysis on our financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty
case reserves. Case reserves may change from our original estimate due to changes in severity factors. An
actuarial analysis of the historical development of our case reserves shows that it is reasonably possible that
our case reserves could develop by as much as ten percent. This analysis was performed by separately
evaluating the historical development by comparing the initial case reserve established to the subsequent
development in that case reserve, excluding the effects of discounting, for each sector in which we currently
have sxgmﬁcant case reserves, and estimating the possible future development. Based on this analysis, it is
reasonably possible that our current financial guaranty and mortgage guaranty case reserves of $37.2
million could increase by approximately $3.0 million to $4.0 million in the future. This would cause an
increase in incurred losses on our statement of operations and comprehenswe income.
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A sensitivity analysis is not appropriate for our other segment reserves and our mortgage guaranty
IBNR, since the amounts are fully reserved or reinsured.

We also record IBNR reserves for our mortgage guaranty and other segments. IBNR is an estimate of
losses for which the insured event has occurred but the claim has not yet been reported to us. In
establishing IBNR, we use traditional actuarial methods to estimate the reporting lag of such claims based
on historical experience, claim reviews and information reported by ceding companies. We record IBNR
for mortgage guaranty quota-share reinsurance contracts, all of which are in run-off, within our mortgage
guaranty segment. We also record IBNR for title reinsurance, auto residual value reinsurance and trade
credit reinsurance within our other segment. The other segment represents lines of business we have exited
or sold prior to the IPO.

For all other mortgage guaranty transactions we record portfolio reserves in a manner consistent with
our financial guaranty business. While other mortgage guaranty insurance companies do not record
portfolio reserves, rather just case and IBNR reserves, we record portfolio reserves because we write
business on an excess of loss basis, while other industry participants write quota share or first layer loss
business. We manage and underwrite this business in the same manner as our financial guaranty insurance
and reinsurance business because they have similar characteristics as insured obligations of mortgage-
backed securities.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises” (“FAS 607) is the authoritative guidance for an insurance enterprise. FAS 60
prescribes differing reserving methodologies depending on whether a contract fits within its definition of a
short-duration contract or a long-duration contract. Financial guaranty contracts have elements of long-
duration insurance contracts in that they are ‘irrevocable and extend over a period that may exceed 30 years
or more, but for regulatory purposes are reported as property and liability insurance, which are normally
considered short-duration contracts. The short-duration and long-duration classifications have different
methods of accounting for premium revenue and contract liability recognition. Additionally, the
accounting for deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”) could be different under the two methods.

We believe the guidance of FAS 60 does not expressly address the distinctive characteristics of
financial guaranty insurance, so we also apply the analogous guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) Issue No. 85-20, “Recognition of Fees for Guaranteeing a Loan” (“EITF 85-20"), which provides
guidance relating to the recognition of fees for guaranteeing a loan, which has similarities to financial
guaranty insurance contracts. Under the guidance in EITF 85-20, the guarantor should assess the
probability of loss on an ongoing basis to determine if a liability should be recognized under FAS No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies” (“FAS 5”). FAS 5 requires that a loss be recognized where it is probable -
that one or more future events will occur confirming that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. '

The following tables summarize our reserves for losses and LAE by segment, by type of reserve and by
segment and type of reserve as of the dates presented For an explanation of changes in these reserves
see “—~Consolidated Results of Operations.” ,

As of December 31,
2006 2005

($ in millions)

By segment:

Financial guaranty direct ............... e $§ 93 §$ 131

Financial guaranty reinsurance..................oooivvinne. . 94.8 932

MoOrtgage gUaramty .. ......vvrrrrrrereeenrernnarraereeaenn- 23 7.0

Other. .o e 14.2 15.1
Total oo e e e $1206 $1284
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As of December 31,
2006 2005

(§ in millions) et

By type of reserve: | . _ o
CASE e e e e $ 440 § 531
112330 S T 74 116
Portfolio ...t e i £9.2 63.7
Total .o s $1206 $128.4
? As of December 31, 2006
Financiat Financial

Guaranty Guaranty Mortgage :
Direct Reinsurance  Guaranty  Other Total
($ in millions) o

CaS€ o e $1.0 . $361 $0.1 $.68. % 440
IBNR ... - = — 74 . 74
Portfolio................., ...................... 83 587 22, — 69.2
) PP $93 $94.8 $23  $142 $1206
As of December 31, 2005
Financial Financiat

Guaranty Guaranty Mortgage
'Direct Reinsurance  Guaranly Other Total
($ in millions)

CasE e i e $ 45 | 8407 $0.3 $ 76 § 531
IBNR ....... e e Fa s e -— — 4.1 7.5 11.6
Portfolio. ..o i e e , _86 525 2.6 — 63.7

Total. ... $13.1, $93.2 $7.0 $151 $1284

The following table sets forth the financial guaranty in-force portfolio by underlying rating:

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005

i + Net par % of Net par Net par % of Net'par

Ratings(1) . , . outstanding(2) outstanding  outstanding(2) outstanding

) (in billions of U.5. dollars)

AAA............. e et T $570 : 431% $ 345 33.7%

AA e e PRI e ¢ 23.0 17.4% 20.0 ' 19.5%

7 e 328 24.9% 303 29.5%
BBB ... i e e e e 18.2 13.7% 16.4 16.0% -

Below investment grade ............. e : 1.3 0.9% 1.3 1.3%

Total exposures .............ccoviiinen.n $132.3 100.0% $102.5 100.0%

(1) These ratings represent the Company’s internal assessment of the underlying credit qu'ality of t}{e ‘
insured obligations. Our scale is comparable to that of the nationally recognized rating agencies.

(2) The Company’s 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current
quarter basis while 2005 is reported on a one-quarter lag.
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Our surveillance department is responsible for monitoring our portfolio of credits and maintains a list
of closely monitored credits (“CMC”). The closely monitored credits are divided into four categories:
Category 1 (low priority; fundamentally sound, greater than normal risk); Category 2 {(medium priority;
weakening credit profile, may result in loss); Category 3 (high priority; claim/default probable, case reserve
established); Category 4 (claim paid, case reserve established for future payments). The closely monitored
credits include all below investment grade (“BIG™) exposures where there is a material amount of
exposure (generally greater than $10.0 million) or a material risk of the Company incurring a loss greater
than $0.5 million. The closely monitored credits also include investment grade (“1G”) risks where credit
quality is deteriorating and where, in the view of the Company, there is significant potential that the risk
quality will fall below investment grade. As of December 31, 2006, the closely monitored credits include
approximately 97% of our BIG exposure, and the remaining BIG exposure of $34.4 million is distributed
across 68 different credits. As of December 31, 2003, the closely monitored credits include approximately
96% of our BIG exposure, and the remaining BIG exposure of $55.2 million is distributed across 103
different credits. Other than those excluded BIG credits, credits that are not included in the closely -
monitored credit list are categorized'as fundamentally sound risks. :

The following table provides financial guaranty net par outstanding by credit momtormg category as.
of December 31, 2006 and 2005: .

' As of December 31, 2006

Net Par % of Net Par  # of Credits Case
Description: Outstanding(3)  Ouistanding in Category Reserves
o . ($ in millions) . .
Fundamentally sound risk(1)..................... $130,944 99.0%
Closely monitored credits: - '
Category I......oooiiiiniiiii i, 855 0.6% 43 - —
CategOTY 2. oot s 318 0.2% 13 —
CategOIY 3. e ie ettt e 123 01% 18 18
Category 4. .. ... 22 — 3 - 14
CMCtotal(2) ... 1,318 1.0% 87 32
Other below investment grade risk . ............... 34 = 68 —

TOtal. ..ot e . $13229 100.0% $32

(1) Asof December 31, 2006, Category 1 contains 6 credits with net par outstanding of $97.8 million and
Category 2 contains 3 credits with net par outstanding of $9.7 million related to Hurricane Katrina,

(2) Percent total does not add due to rounding.

(3) The Company’s 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current
quarter basis while 2005 is reported on a one-quarter lag.
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As of December 31, 2005 .
Net Par % of Net Par  # of Credits Case

Description: : Outstanding(2) Outf;a_ndin';i’,r i)n Category  Reserves
_ in millions :
Fundamentally sound risk(1)..... e $100,951 98.6%
Closely monitored credits: . :
Category l.................. e 872 0.9% 36 §—.
Category2..... U _ 433 0.4% 22 —
Category3.. ... 131 0.1% 15 . 16 .
Category 4. . e e e .23 = 11 15
CMCtotal............. AT e 1,459 _14% 84 3
Other below investment graderisk................ 55 = 103 —
Total.... ... : $102,465 100.0% $31

(1) As of December 31,.2005, Category 1 contains 4 credits with net par outstanding of $44.8 million and
Category 2 contains 7 credits with net par outstanding of $80.6 million related to Hurricane Katrina.

(2) The Company’s 2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current
quarter basis while 2005 is reported on a one-quarter lag. i

The following table summarizes movements in CMC exposure by risk category:

. Net Par Qutstanding ' Category1  Category2  Categoryl  Categoryd gvi%
’ {$ in millions)
Balance, December 31,2005 ................. $872 $ 433 $131 . $23 $1,459
Less: Amortization. .............ooevnvini... 21n (20) 46 3 240
Add: Additions from: .
Firsttimeon CMC........................ 408 3 16 — 427
Upgrades............ooiiiiiii i, 143 16 — — 159
Downgrades .......... ..ot — 37 95 2 134
Less: Deletions from: . ) .
Upgrades................... ...t 320 96 7 — 487
Downgrades ............ ..., 37 95 2 — 134
NetChange..................oiiiiiaa, . (17) (115) (8) (D) 141
Balance, December 31,2006 ........ e $855 § 318 $123 $22 $1,318
Industry Methodology

The Company’s is aware that there are certain differences regarding the measurement of portfolio
loss liabilities among companies in the financial guaranty industry. In January and February 2003, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff had discussions concerning these differences with a
number of industry participants. Based on those discussions, in June 2005, the Financial Accounting
standards Board (“FASB”) staff decided additional guidance is necessary regarding financial guaranty
contracts. When the FASB staff reaches a conclusion on this issue the Company and the rest of the
financial guaranty industry may be required to change some aspects of their loss reserving policies, but the
Company cannot currently assess how the FASB or SEC staff’s ultimate resolution of this issue will impact
our reserving policy or other balances, i.e., premiums and DAC. Until the issue is resolved, the Company
intends to continue to apply its existing policy with respect to the establishment of both case and portfolio
reserves,
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Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments . . .

The Company follows FAS No:'133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“FAS 133”) and FAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“FAS 149”), which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments.
FAS 133 and FAS 149 require recogmtlon of all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. *°

We issue credlt derivative financial instruments, which prior to 2004 included a few index based
derivative financial instruments, that we view as an extension of our financial guaranty business but which
do not qualify for the financial guaranty insurance scope exception under FAS 133 and FAS 149 and
therefore are reported at fair value, with changes in fair value included in our earnings. :

Since we view these derivative contracts as an extension of our financial guaranty business, we believe
that the most meaningful presentation of these derivatives is to reflect revenue as earned premium, to
record estimates of losses and LAE on specific credit events as incurred and to record changes in fair value
as incurred. Reserves for losses and LAE are established on a similar basis as our insurance policies. Other
changes in fair value are included'in unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial instruments. We
generally hold derivative contracts to maturity. However, in certain circumstances such as for risk
management purposes or as a result of a decision to exit a line of business, we may decide to terminate a-
derivative contract prior to maturity, Where we hold a derivative contract to maturity, the cumulative
unrealized gains and losses will net to zero if we incur no credit losses on that contract. However, in the
event that we terminate a derivative contract prior to maturity the unrealized gain or loss will be realized
through premiums.earned and losses incurred.

The fair value of these instruments depends on a number of factors including credit spreads, changes
in interest rates, recovery rates and the credit ratings of referenced entities. Where available, we use
quoted market prices to determine the fair value of these credit derivatives. If the quoted prices are not
available, particularly for senior layer collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”), the fair value is estimated
using valuation models for each type of credit protection. These models may be developed by third parties,
such as rating agencies, or developed internally based on market conventions for similar transactions,
depending on the circumstances. These models and the related assumptions are continuously reevaluated
by management and enhanced, as appropriate, based upon improvements in modeling techniques and
availability of more timely market information. The majority of our single name credit derivatives were
vaheed using third party market quotes. These exposures were substantially liquidated in the first quarter of
2005 as we are no longer involved in the single name credit derivatives business. Our exposures to CDOs
are typically valued using a combination of rating agency models and internally developed models.

Valuation models include the use of management estimates and current market information.
Management is also required to make assumptions on how the fair value of derivative instruments is
affected by current market conditions. Management considers factors such as current prices charged for
similar agreements, performance of underlying assets, and our ability to obtain reinsurance for.our insured
obligations. Due to the inherent uncertainties of the assumptions used in the valuation models to
determine the fair value of these derivative products, actual experience may differ from the estimates
reflected in our consolidated financial statements, and the differénc?s may be material.

During the first quarter 2005 review of its valuation models, management identified a limitation in its
valuation models highlighted by the then widening credit spread environment. Management adjusted its
valuation models for this limitation in the first quarter 2005 resulting in an adjustment to unrealized gains
on derivative financial instruments of $4.3 million, net of income taxes. Management continues to perform
addltlonal analysis, as necessary, to address market anomalles and their effect on its valuation models.

The fair, value ad]ustment recogmzed in our statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2006 was a $5.5 million gain compared with a $3.5 million loss for the year ended December 31, 2005 and a
$52.5 million gain for the year ended December 31, 2004. The 2006 gain of $5.5 million primarily relates to
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the run-off of transactions and changes in credit spreads, the 2005 loss of $3.5 million primarily relates to
the run-off of transactions and a slight widening in investment grade corporate spreads over that period,
and the 2004 gain of $52.5 million primarily relates to an approximate 15-20% tightening in credit spreads.

Valuation of Investments

As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we had total mvestments of $2.5 billion, $2. 2 billion and $2 1
biilion, respectively. The fair values of all of our investments are calculated from independent market
quotations.

As of December 31, 2006, approx;mately 95% of our investments were long—term fixed matunty
securities, and our portfolio had an average duration of 3.9 years, compared with 95% and 4.4 years as of
December 31, 2005. Changes in interest rates affect the value of our fixed maturity portfolio. As interest
rates fall, the fair value of fixed maturity securities increases and as interest rates rise, the fair value of
fixed matunty securities decreases

The following table summarizes- s the estimated change in falr value net of related income taxes on our
investment portfolio as of December 31, 2006 based upon an assumed parallel shift in interest rates across

the entire yield curve: : : _ e
Estimated
Increase
: . ‘ (Decrease) in
Change in Interest Rates ' Fair Value
(5 in millions)
300 basis POINETISE ... ..nteii e eiin i eneaees $(280.6).
200 basispointrise ... PERP PR P {185.2)
. 100 basis POINLEISE « ..ot {90.5).
100 basis pomt decline ... .... P it ittt ittt it e i 83.9 .
, 200 basis point decline ..... e P e TP ' 160.8.
300 basis pointdecline .......... ... .. oo EETTI 236.7

Other Than Temporary Impatrments

We have a formal review process for all securities in our investment portfolio, including a review for -
impairment losses. Factors considered when assessing impairment include:

¢ a decline in the market value of a security by 20% or more below amortized cost for a contmuous
period of at least six months;

e adecline in the market value of a seeunty for a continuous period of 12 months
» recent credit downgrades of the applicable security or the issuer by rating agencnes

s the financial condition of the appltcable issuer;

- » whether scheduled interest payments are past due; and

o whether we have the ability and mtent to hold the security for a sufficient period of time to allow, for
_ anticipated recoveries in fair value.

fr

If we believe a decline in the value of a partlcular investment is temporary, we record the decline as an
unrealized loss on our balance sheet in “accumulated other comprehensive income” in shareholders
equity. If we believe the decline is “other than temporary,” we write down the carrying value of the .
investment and record a realized loss in our statement of operations. Our assessment of a decline in value
includes management’s current assessment of the factors noted above. If that assessment changes in the
future, we may ultimately record a loss after having originally concluded that the decline in value was
temporary.

We did not record any realized losses due to other than temporary declines in 2006, 2005 and 2004
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The following table summarizes the unrealized losses in our investment portfolio by type of security
and the length of time such securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of the dates' -

indicated:
' As of December 31,2006 As of December 31, 2005
Estimated Gross " Estimated . Gross |
: Fair Unrealized ' Fair ' Unrealized
Length of Time in Continuous Unrealized Loss Position Value Losses Value Losses
($ in millionsy -
Municipal securities . ] . Lo ‘!
0-6months............oco i, e $.86 . $ (05 $103.2 .§ (0.9
T-12months. . ..o i e e . —_ = 119 - (0.3)
Greater than 12 months ......... e 24.0 (0.4) 13.1 L (04)
C . - : . 112.6 (0.9) 128.2 (1.6)
Corporate securities : . <
0-6mMOnthS. . ..uvvuerinienaeinn.s e 470 02) . 214 (04)°
7-12months............. PP e . 34— 134 . (0.2) -
Greaterthan 12months . ........... ... .......... . ... . 487 . -(1.2) .. 16.8 (0.7
i K ' 99.1 {1.4) 516 - - (13)
U.S. Government obligations ' .
O6months........... . 20.2 01y, , 1605 - (0.8)
7-12months............. O o .329 . (0.4) 8.7 - (0.2).
Greater than 12months . .. i, ..., e . 592 - . (09 132 ¢ (04) -
: T 112.3- 14y 1824 14y
Mortgage and asset-backed securities . L.
0-6 months. .. ... B e e e e 197.6 (1.7 318.8 4.7
7-12months................. e i . 256 .. (03) 136.8° {2.6)
Greaterthan 12months ...................coooauat 382.7 (8.8) 89.7 (2.9
' ‘ 605.9 (10.8) 3453 (10.2)
Total.................... e e $929.9 $(145)  §907.5 $(14.5)
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The foltowing table summarizes the unrealized losses in our investment portfolio by type of security

and remaining time to maturity as of the dates indicated: . - 4
As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
- Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Remaining Time to Maturity . Value Losses Value Losses

. ($ in millions)
Municipal securities

Dueinoneyear orless ........covviivniiiiinennenn.. $ — $ — $ —  § =
Due after one year through fiveyears ................. 26.2 (¢.1) 03 T —
Due after five years throughtenyears .:............... 43.2 (0.5) . 60.1 (1.2)
Due after ten years........ e e 432 - (0.3) 67.8 (0.4)
112.6 0.9) 128.2 (1.6)
Corporate securities ‘ N
Dueinone yearorless ............. e 13.0 . — — D=
Due after one year through fiveyears ................. 55.1 (0.9) 443 (1.0)
Due after five years through tenyears................. 251 02y - 42 —_—
Due after ten Years. . .. ...venvenurirenierieraneainans 59 (0.3) 3.1 (0.3)
: ' 99.1 (1.4) .. 516 (1.3) -
U.S. Government obligations . . :
Due inone yedrorless ............. N 8.6 A0.1) 57.8 (0.2)
Due after one year through fiveyears ................. 11.9 (0.1} 39.5 (0.3)
Due after five years throughtenyears ................. 42.9 0.5y . 45.2 (0.6)
Due after ten years. .......oovvennnns e 489 . (0.7) 399 o . (03)
' . L1123 (14) . 1824 ¢ (1.4)
Mortgage and asset-backed securities-................. . 6059 (10.8) 545.3 (10.2)
Total, . oo e $929.9.  $(14.5) . 89075 $(14.5)
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The following table summarizes, for all securities sold af a'loss through December 31, 2006 and 2005,
the fair value and realized loss by length of time such securities were in a continuous unrealized loss

position prior to the date of sale: . ' "
, Year Ended
‘ December 31,
2006 T 2005
;+ Estimated Gross Estimated = Gross -
) . Fair Realized Fair Realized
Length of Time in Continuous Unrealized Loss Position Prior to Sale - - Value Losses » Value Losses *

- ($ in millions)
Municipal securities

0-6 months. ... .. U, U -$ 345  §(02) .$.208  $ —
7-12months. . ........... e cee. 228 (05 . 55 . (00)
Greater than 12months .............. . s e e , 140 (0.6) 138, - _(04).
o 4, 713 (1.3) 401 -, (0.5)
Corporate securities . oo
O-6months. ....... ... — — 5.3 —
T-12months. ..o e — — 94 (0.2)
Greater than 12 months ............... I see 2.0 0.1y 141 (0.5)

- | 20 (0.1 288  (0.7)
U.S, Government securities

0-6months. ................. oL e e oo 1522 21y 1491 (1.0)
" 7-12months........... e eeaaeaeac i, BO20 (0T 213 -(0.2)
Greater than 12 months ...............:c........ S o, 11 -— 0.1 =
, S p ‘ o 2395 (2.8) 170.5 (1.2)

Mortgage and asset-backed securities S : ' SRR T

0-6months................. RN e S - 310 (0.2) 31.0 (0.3)
7-12 months. . ..... AU R e Yo 91 - (0D 6.7 - (0.1
Greater than 12 months-.......... T Goean 0 — L e 10.0 (0.4)
e o : c- 400 (03) . 477 . _(0.8)

<Total.......... e i e e $3529 0 $(4.5) $287:1 $(3.2) -

Premium Revenue Recognition

Premiums are received either upfront or in installments. Upfront premiums are earned in proportion
10 the expiration of the amount at risk. Each installment premium is earned ratably over its installment
period, generally one year or less. Premium earnings under both the upfront and installment revenue
recognition methods are based upon and are in proportioh to the prmmpal amount guaranteed and
therefore result in higher premium earnings during periods where guaranteed pnncnpal is higher. For
insured bonds for which the par value outstanding is declining during the insurance period, upfront
premium earnings are’ greater in the earlier periods thus matching revenue recognition with the underlymg
risk. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, approximately 58%, 49%and 66%,
respectively, of our gross written premlums were received upfront, and 42%, 51% and 34%, Tespectively,
were received in installments. The premiums are allocafed in accordance with the principal amortization
schedule of the related bond issue and are earned ratably over the amortization period. When an insured
issue is retired early, is called by the issuer, or is in substahce paid in advance through a refunding
accomplished by placing U.S. Government securities in escrow, the remaining unearned premium reserves
are earned at that time. Unearned premium reserves represent.the portlon of premiums written that is
applicable to the unexpired amount at risk of insured bonds. '

Lt o . - 1
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. In our reinsurance businesses, we estimate the ultimate written and earned premiums to be received
from a ceding company at the end of each quarter and the end of each year because some of our ceding
companies report premium data anywhere from 30 to 90 days after the end of the reievant period. Written
premiums reported in our statement of operations are based upon reports received from ceding companies
supplemented by our own estimates of premium for which ceding company reports have not yet been
received. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 the assumed premium estimate and related ceding
commissions included in our consolidated financial statements are $25.1 million and $7.9 million, $14.3
million and $4.5 million and '$30.4 million and $9.7 million, respectively. Key assumptions used to arrive at,
management’s best estimate of assumed premiums are premium amounts reported historically and
informal communications with ceding companies. Differences between such estimates and actual amounts
are recorded in the period in which the actual amounts are determined. Historically, the differences have -
not been material. We do not recotd a provision for doubtful accounts related to our assumed premium
estimate. Historically there have not been any material issues related to the collectlblllty of assumed
premium. No provision for doubtful accounts related to our premium receivable was recorded for 2006,
2005 or 2004,

" Deferred Acguisition Costs

* Acquisition costs incurred, other than those associated with credit derivative products, that vary with
and are directly related to the production of new business are deferred and amortized in relation to earned
premlums These costs include direct and indirect expenses such as ceding commissions, brokerage’ * :
expenses and the cost of underwriting and marketing personnel. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we -
had deferred acquisition costs of $217.0 million and $193.4 million, respectively. Ceding commissions paid
to primary insurers are the largest component of deferred acquisition costs, constituting 69% and 73% of
total deferred acquisition costs as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Management uses its
judgment in determining what types of costs should be deferred, as well as what percentage of these costs:
should be deferred. We annually conduct a study to determine which operating costs vary with, and are
directly related to, the acquisition of new business and qualify for deferral. Ceding commissions received
on premiums we cede to other reinsurers reduce acquisition costs. Anticipated losses, LAE and the .. :
remaining costs of servicing the insured or reinsured business are considered in determining the
recoverability of acquisition costs. Acquisition costs associated with credit derivative products are expensed
as incurred. When an insured issue is retired early, as discussed in the Premium Revenue Recognition
section of these Critical Accounting Estimates, the remaining related deferred acquisition cost is expensed
at that time. _ - ~ :

Deferred Inconie Taxes ~ - S T < . e

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 we had a net deferred i 1ncome tax llablllty of $39. 9 mllllon and
$26.6 million, respectwely Certam of our subsidiaries are subject to. U. S, income tax. Deferred i income’tax
assets and liabilities are establlshed for the temporary differences between’ the financial statement carrymg
amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. Such temporary dxfferences relate principally to "deferred acquisition |
costs, reserves for losses and LAE, unearned premium reserves, net operatmg loss carryforwards.
(“NOLS”) unrealized gains and losses on mvestments and derlvatwe financial mstruments and statutory
contingency reserves. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce a deferred tax asset to the amount that
in management’s opinion is more likely than not to be realized.. A K . .

Kl . 1 N

" *'As of December 31, 2006, Assured Guaranty Re ‘Overseas Ltd. (“AGRO”) had a stand alone NOL of
$50.0 million, compared with $59.2 million as of December, 31, 2005, which is available to offset its future
U.S. taxable income. The Company has $29.3 million of this NOL available through 2017 and $20.7 million
available through 2023. AGRO’s stand alone NOL is not permitted to offset the income of any other
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/!s consolidated group due to certain tax regulations..-Under applicable accounting rules,
establish a valuation allowance for NOLs that we believe are more likely than not to-
ywes>ted. Management believes it is more likely than not that $20.0 million of AGRO’s $50.0
o e“not be utilized before it expires and has established a $7.0 million valuation allowance
e ‘.DL deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance is subject to considerable judgment, is
e\@,‘rly and will be adjusted to the extent actual taxable income differs from estlmates of future
®'that may | be used to reahze NOLs or cap:tal losses

l . e g " ,-':;'.}.

1g for Share-Based Cﬂmpensatmn TR P N -

January 1, 2006, we accounted for our share based employee compensatlon plans under the ?’
nt and recognition provisions of Accounting.Principles Board Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for
Id to Employees” (“APB 25") and related Interpretations; as permitted by FAS No. 123, '
.ng for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123”). During the years ended December 31, 2005
. 04, we recorded no share-based employee compensation expense for options granted under the‘
_-~ssured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) as all-Options‘granted under
that plan had exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date’of grant.
Also, during the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded no compensation expense in connection with
the Assured Guaranty Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) as the purchase * *
price of the stock was not less than 85% of the lower of thé fair market value of our common stock at, the '
beginning of each offering period or at the end of each purchase period. I’ accordatice with FAS 123 and"*
FAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensanon—'l‘ransmon and Disclosure” (“FAS 148”) we
disclosed our net income and earnings per share ds if we had applied the fair value-based method in
measuring compensatlon expense for our share-based incentive programs. L

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognltlon prov1510ns of FAS No. 123 (rewsed)
“Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123R”) using the modified prospective’ transmon method. Under that ‘
transition method, compensation expense: includes: (a)’ compensatlon expense for all share-baséd payments
granted prlor to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated i in -
accordance with the original j provnsmns of FAS 123, and (b) compénsation expense for'all share-based
payments granted on or after January'1, 2006, based on the grart date falr value estimated in accordance '
with the provisions of FAS 123R. "™ - - e RS

oLt * A

As a result of adopting FAS 123R on January 1 2006 the Company ] 2006 income before mcome "l
taxes and net mcome are $4.9 million and $4.0 mllllon lower, reSpectwely, than if it had continued to
account for share-based compensatlon underAPB'25, Bz;sw and dlluted earnings per share for 2006 were
both $0.05 lower, respectively, than if the Company had contlnued to account for share- based _ " :
compensation under APB 25. In addmon the Company capltallzed $2 6 mllllon '$1.1 million and 0. 8
million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, of share-based compensatron as DAC. Because we elected to
use the modified prospective transition method, results for prior periods have not been restated.

! Lol .. L. S L e
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N\
We organize our business around four principal business segments: financial guaranty v
guaranty reinsurance, mortgage-guaranty and other. There are a number of lines of business".
exited as part of our Apnl 2004 TPO, which are included in the other segment. However, the re
these biisinesses are reﬂected in the above numbers, These businesses include equity layer crednJ

protection, trade credlt remsurance title reinsurance and auto residual value remsurance
1 L. : LI I . . PR

Net Income * " ' "' i o T

Net income was $159.7 million, $188.4 million and $182 8 mllllon for the' years ended Deceniber 31
2006 2005 and 2004, respectu*fely In¢tuded in 2006 net income are iricréased underwrltmg gains of
$4.7 million, $5.6 million and $11.1 million frétm our financial guaranty direct, mortgage guaranty and
other segments respectlvely, compared with 2005. The $4.7 million increase in our financial guaranty
direct segment is attrlbutable to greater market penetratlon as we continue to 1mplement our direct*”
busmess strafegy: The mortgage guaranty segment increase is primarily due to $4.7 million of net earned i
premitims recognlzed upon thé termination of certain mortgage guaranty transactions durlng 2006. The ~
increase of $11.1 million in our other segment is due to a greater amount of loss recoveries received in
2006 compared with 2005. Our financial guaranty reinsurance segment decreased $81.4 mnllron in2006 .
compared with 2005 primarily due to $71.0 million of loss recoveries in 2005. These loss recoveries resulted
from reinsurance of financial guaranty policies that insured certain ifivestiments in securitiés issued by
entities related to Commercial Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”). In addition to our business segment
actjvity, 2006 net investment income increased $14.7 million compared with 2005, due to increasing
investment ylelds durlng the year, combined with an increase in invested assets due to positive operating
cash flows. Also, 2006 income tax expense decreased to $30.2 million compared with $41.2 million in 2005,
as 2005 mcluded $24.9 million of i income tax expense related to the $71 0 mllhon loss recoverles in 2005.

Fl

W The mcrease of $5.6 million in 2005 compared with 2004 is primarily due to an underwriting gain of - ff
$151.1 mllllon in 2005, representing a $54.1 million increase compared with the $97.0 million underwrltmg :
gain in 2004 attributablé to the $71.0 million of loss recoveries discussed above. This underwriting gain was
offset by a $56.0 million decline in unrealized (losses) gains on derivative ﬁnanmal instruments which were
$(3.5) miltion in 2005, compared with $52.5 mllllon in 2004. Also contrrbutmg to the increase wasa . | ..
$9. 3 -million reduction in our income tax provision which was $41.2 million in 2005, compared with $50 5r
million in 2004 prlmarlly attributable to the relative distribution of taxable income across our taxable and
non-taxable jurisdictions.

4

...... fa 1. L LI

! .o o . . . . ¢ PN T
Gross Written Premiums , ‘ o o ‘ . g
[ v i E , | . P o . y . ) o . - . Year Ended December3l,r v
Gross Written Premiums T 2006 2005 v 2004
- Cow . * . . - e e (s in mlIllollS)
Fmancral guaranty dlrect ..... R N R U RPT Y UN TLSN JF:.*) 20 $'"96 2. $ '80.8'-
Fmancral guaranty remsurance DA RN PRSPPI 1239 98.0° ' 160.3"
Mortgage guaranty. AT S S " 84 - 257 - 244
Total financial | guaranty gross written premiums ................. coucooss 632160 2199, 2655
Other UL e e e ST 41 | 322 (74.6)'
Total gross wrltten premrums e TR B RN $325.7' : $252.1 $'190'-.9 ,
) ' 1! ,(

Gross wrrtten prémiums for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $325.7 million compared with ,
$252.1 million for the year ended December 31 2005 an increase of $73.6 mrlhon or 29%. Qur 2006
financial guaranty direct results include upfront gross written premjums of $“63 0 million from our . ;
international business. 2005 did not include any such premlums Our U'S. public finance business”
contributed $35.6 million in upfront gross Wwritten premiums for 2006 compared with $20.0 million for the

i LI A
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members of AGRO’s consolidated group due to certain tax regulations..Under applicable accounting rules,
we are required to establish a valuation allowance for NOLs that we believe are more likely than not to
expire before utilized. Management believes it is more likely than not that $20.0 million of AGRO’s $50.0
million NOL will not bé utilized before it expires and has established a $7.0 million valuation allowance
related to the NOL deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance is subject to considerable judgment, is
reviewed quarterly and will be adjusted to the extent actual taxable income differs from estimates of future
taxable income that may be used to realize NOLs or capital losses. '

’

Accounting for Share-Based Compensation ‘

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for our share-based employee compensation plans under the
measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting Principtes Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related Interpretations, as permitted by FAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123™). During the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004, we recorded no share-based employee compensation expense for options granted under the *
Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) as all options granted under
that plan had exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant.

Also, during the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded no compensation expense in connection with
the Assured Guaranty Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) as the purchase
price of the stock was not less than 85% of the lower of the fair market value of our common stock at the
beginning of each offering period or at the end of each purchase period. In accordance with FAS 123 and °
FAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure” (“FAS 148”) we
disclosed our net income and earnings per share as if we had applied the fair value-based method in
measuring compensation expense for our share-based incentive programs.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FAS No. 123 (revised),
“Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123R™) using the modified prospective transition method. Under that
transition method, compensation expense includes: (a) compensation expense for all share-based payments
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of FAS 123, and (b) compensation expense for all share-based
payments granted on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of FAS 123R.

As a result of adopting FAS 123R on January 1, 2006, the Company’s 2006 income before income-
taxes and net income are $4.9 million and $4.0 million lower, respectively, than if it had continued to
account for share-based compensatlon under APB'25. Basic and diluted earnings per share for 2006 were
both $0.05 lower, respectively, than if the Company had contlnucd to account for share-based
compensation under APB 25. In addition, the Company capltahzcd $2.6 million, $1.1 million and 0.8
million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, of share-based compensation as DAC. Because we elected to
use the modified prospective transition method, results for prior periods have not been restated.
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The following table presents pre DAC and pre tax share-based compensation cost by share-based

expense type
1 ' eyl

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004(1)

: : .(in thousands of U.S. dollars}
Share-Based Employee Compensation Cost

Restricted Stock . . )
Recurring amortization. .. .........oooi i $ 7676 $5,481 $2,674
Accelerated amortization for retirement eligible employees..... .. PR 1,534 — —
SUBtOtA]l . . ... e e e e 9210 5481 2,674
Stock Options : . e o
Recurring amortization.,.......... e e e 3,581 — =
Accelerated amortization for retirement- eligible employees............ 635 — —
Subtotal.......coveriiiiiiii et e e e e, . 4,236 — —
ESPP. .o N 125 — —
Total Share-Based Employee Compensation Cost. . ... e 13,571 5,481 2,674
Share-Based Directors Compensation Cost : :
Restricted Stock ..................... OTUI T . 289 275 . 184
Restricted Stock Uniits .. ........... ..., e e s 843 663 420
Total Share-Based Directors CompensationCost....................... 1,132 938 604
Total Share-Based CompensationCost............................ e L $514,703 0 $6419 $3,278

(1) 2004 excludes $0.6 million of share-based cost recognized for ACE restricted stock.

At December 31, 2006, there was $19.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under all equity compensation plans. Total
unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures. We expect to
recognize that cost over a weighted average period of 1.4 years. As a resuit of the adoption of FAS 123R,
the income tax effects of compensatory stock options are included in the computation of the income tax
expense (benefit), and deferred tax assets and liabilities, subject to certain prospective adjustments to
sharcholders’ equity for the differences between the income tax effects of expenses recognized in the
results of operations and the related amounts deducted for income tax purposes. Prior to the adoption of
FAS 123R, the tax benefits relating to the income tax deductions for compensatory stock options were
recorded dlrectly to shareholders equity.

The welghted average grant -date fair value of options granted were $6.71, $4.63 and $4.00 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of options issued is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes optlon—pncmg model, with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2006, ZOQS a|n(_i 2004:

' S o 2006 2005 2004
Dividendyield ........ .. i 0.5% 0.7% 0.7%
Expected volatility . ... 2043% 20.80% 17.03%
Risk free INterest FALE . oo v et ieiine e anseenans 4.6% 4.1% 4.4%
Expectedlife. . ... ..o 5years Svyears 5years
FOrfeiture fatle . ..ottt et ie et iia e s anneentans 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

These assumptions were based on the following:

» The expected dividend yield is based on the current expected annual dividend and share price on
the grant date,

o Expected volatility is estimated at the date of grant based on the historical share price volatility,
calculated on a daily basis,
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» The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury Zero-coupon
issues with an equivalent remaining term to the granted stock optrons :

* The expected life is based on the average expected term of our gurdelme companres which are
defined as similar or peer entmes since the Company has insufficient expected life data,

o The forfeiture rate is based on the rate used by our guideline companies, since the Company has
insufficient forfeiture data. Estimated forfeitures will be reassessed at each balance sheet date and
may change based on new facts and circumstances.

For options granted before January 1, 2006, the Company amortizes the fair value on an accelerated
basis. For options granted on or after January 1, 2006, the Compény amortizes the fair value on a'straight-
line basrs All options are amortized over the requisite setvice periods of the awards, whlch are generally
the vesting perrods with the exceptron of retirement- ellgrble employees. Stock options are generally
granted once a year with exercise prices equal to the closing price on the date of grant. The Company may
elect to use different assumptions under the Black-Scholes option valuation model in the future, which
could materially affect the Company’s net income or earnings per share.

Consolidated Results of Operauons

The followmg table presenis summary consohdated results of 0peratrons data for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. :

e ‘ RS ‘ ot YearEnded‘Decem‘berM:gl!
L . vt : " : 2006 2005 2004

(% in millions)

Revenues:

Gross WEHHEIPIEIMIUIMIS . . ... ..ottt ettt et e e e e $325.7 $252.1 $1909
Netwhtten premiums . ... ...ttt it i e eii e iaanann 3187 2173 79.6
Net earned premivms ............. e e 206.7 198.7 187.9
Net investment income . ...t 111.5 -96.8 94.8
Net realized investment (losses) gains ............. e (2.0) 22 12.0
Unrealized gains (losses) on derwatwe financial mstruments e 5.5 (3.5 525
Otherincome ... ... e e e e 0.4 0.2 0.8
Totalrevenues ..................oio i S 322.1 2945 3479
Expenses: ' Co o '
Loss and loss adjustment eXpenses ... ......uvvrvrtreenraenninenennns (6 6) * (69'.6)‘ (32.0)
Profit commisSion eXPense ... ... ..ttt i ittt 9.5 129 15.5
ACQUISTHION COBLS. . . o oottt ittt e e 45.0 45.3 50.9
OPpEerating €XPENSES . ..o\ttt ittt e e 68.0 59.0 67.8
Other expenses............oiiiiii i e 16.3 17.3 12.3
Total expenses ...... e e e 132.1 649 114.6
Income before-provision for income taxes..............cooiiiiiaa. 190.0 2296 2333
Provision for income 1. G L. 302 41.2 50.5
Netincome................... ..., O ... $1597 $1884 $182.8
Underwriting gain {loss) by segment(2): : -
Financial guaranty direct ................ e e $ 308 §$ 261 $ 276
Financial guaranty reinsurance .............coeitiiiiiiiienineann.. 300 1114 49.0
MOTEEAZE BUATANLY. . . .o\ttt et ettt e e et e e e, 16.7 11.1 26.7
Other .............. e e et 13.5 24 (6.7)
Total. . ... S PO L e $910 31511 § 97.0

(1} Some amounts may not add due to roundmg

(2) Prior year segment amounts have been adjusted to reflect current year operating expense allocations |
for comparability purposes.

75




We organize our business around four principal business segments: financial guaranty direct, financial
guaranty reinsurance, mortgage guaranty and other. There are a number of lines of business that we have
exited as part of our April 2004 1PO, which are included in the other segment. However, the results of
these businesses are reflected in the above numbers. These businesses include equity layer credit
protection, trade credit reinsurance, title reinsurance and auto residual value reinsurance. '

Net Income

Net income was $159.7 million, $188.4 million and $182.8 millibn for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in 2006 net income are increased underwriting gains of
$4.7 million, $5.6 million and $11.1 million from our financial guaranty direct, mortgage guaranty and
other segments, respectively, compared with 2005. The $4.7 million increase in our financial guaranty
direct seginent is attributable to greater market penetration as we continue to implement our direct
business strategy. The mortgage guaranty segment increase is primarily due to $4.7 million of net earned
premiums recognized upon the termination of certain mortgage guaranty transactions during 2006. The
increase of $11.1 million in our other segment is due to a greater amount of loss recoveries received in
2006 compared with 2005. Our financial guaranty reinsurance segment decreased $81.4 million in 2006
compared with 2005 primarily due to $71.0 million of loss recoveries in 2005. These loss recoveries resulted
from reinsurance of financial guaranty policies that insured certain investments in securities issued by
entities related to Commercial Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”). In addition to our business segment
activity, 2006 net investment income increased $14.7 million compared with 2005, due to increasing
investment yields during the year, combined with an increase in invested assets due to positive operating
cash flows. Also, 2006 income tax expense decreased to $30.2 million compared with $41.2 million in 2005, .
as 2005 included $24.9 million of income tax expense related to the $71.0 million loss recoveries in 2005.

* The increase of $5.6 million in 2005 compared with 2004 is primarily due to an underwriting gain of -
$151.1 million in 2005, representing a $54.1 million increase compared with the $97.0 million underwriting
gain in 2004 attributable to the $71.0 million of loss recoveries discussed above. This underwriting gain was
offset by a $56.0 million decline in unrealized (losses) gains on derivative financial instruments which were
$(3.5) million in 2005, compared with $52.5 million in 2004. Also contributing to the increase was a
$9.3 million reduction in our income tax provision which was $41.2 miliion in 2005, compared with $50.5
million in 2004, primarily attributable to the relative distribution of taxable income across our taxable and
non-taxable jurisdictions. )

Gross Written Premiums

Year Ended December 31, :

Gross Written Premiums ‘ ' 3006 3605 2004
' i : : ($ in millions)

Financial guaranty direct ........: e T e e e . $1892 $ 962 § 808
Financial guaranty reinSurance . ..........ooeeveuieeercnsaeen. AP 123.9 98.0  160.3
MOTEZAEE EUATANLY. . .« e eene ettt e et e e aan e n e acies 84 - 257 244
Total financial guaranty gross written premiums . ...............ooivnonn. 321.6 2199 2655
Other ....... ST TR U PP PR PPRIP 41 322 (746

Total gross written premiums . .........ooeeuvenon e e - $3257 $252.1 $190.9

Gross written premiums for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $325.7 million compared with
$252.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $73.6 million, or 29%. Our 2006
financial guaranty direct results include upfront gross written premiums of $63.0 million from our '
international business. 2005 did not include any such premiums. Our U.S. public finance business
contributed $35.6 million in upfront gross written premiums for 2006 compared with $20.0 million for the
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same period last year. Our financial guaranty reinsurance segment increased $25.9 million in 2006
compared with 2005 due to increased upfront treaty and facultative assumed premiums in 2006, whereas
2005 had more installment treaty premiums. In addition, in 2005, Financial Security Assurance Inc.
(“FSA”) reassumed from Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. (“AG Re”) $18.4 million of healthcare related
business (“FSA transaction”). Gross written premiums for 2006 in our mortgage guaranty segment
decreased $17.3 million compared with 2005 prlmarlly attnbutable to a single transaction executed in 2005
which contributed $16.3 million to gross written premlums '

Gross written premiums for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $252.1 million compared with
$190.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $61.2 million,.or 32%. Gross written
premiums from our financial guaranty opcratlons decreased $45.6 million i in 2005 compared with 2004.
The financial guaranty direct segment increased $15.4 million in 2005 compared with 2004 primarily due to
a $16.1 mijllion increase in public finance transactions which are generally recéived upfront. This increase
was offset by decreased business in our financial guaranty reinsurance segment.attributable to one cedant
relationship that was termmated and business from a second cedant that was decreased, effective July 1,
2004 and to FSA reassuming from AG Re $18.4 million of healthcare related business during 2005.
Offsetting the decreased gross written premium from our financial guaranty operations was an increase of -
$106.8 million in 2005 compared with 2004 in our other segment. The increase was due to $25.8 million i in
gross written premlum in 2005, which was immediately retroceded to a subsuinary of ACE Limited |
(“ACE”), our former parent; as part of a pre-IPO reinsurance agreement under which we prov1ded
reinsurance to CGA Group Ltd. (“CGA”) and retroceded 100% of this exposure to that ACE subsidiary.
In addition, 2004 gross premiums written were reduced $97.8 mllllon as part of the IPO due to the
unwinding of equity layer credlt protection products I

[ -

. Net Earned Premrums
) . T . , . ‘ Year Ended December 31,
Net Earned Premiums . : 2006 2005 2004
r Lot R - (8 in millions)" *

Financial guaranty direct ...................0........ e $ 89.7. § 745 +§ 888
Financial guaranty reinSurance .. ......ovrinereneinmnenenarneaneeanns 944 1056 1144
Mortgage guaranty....... [P Teeieeiaas e taaaaaeeaaas L2279 -18.6 33.7
Total financial guaranty net earned premiums. . ............. P . 2067 1987  236.8
Other ........coooviiiiiiii., S e — . — (489

$206.7 $198.7 $1879

Net earned premiums for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $8.0 million, or 4%, compared,
with the year ended December 31, 2005. Net earned premiums from our financial guaranty direct
operations increased to $89.7 million in 2006 compared with $74.5 million in 2005, as our direct written
premiums have increased as a result of greater market penetration, resulting in increased net earned
premiums. Our financial guaranty reinsurance segment decreased $11.2 million in 2006 compared with
2005 due to the non-renewal of certain treaties.

Net earned premiums for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased by $10.8 million, or 6%,
compared with the year ended December 31, 2004. Financial guaranty net earned premiums decreased
$38.1 million in 2005 compared with 2004, due to a $14.3 million decline in the financial guaranty direct
segment, which included $24.2 million of net earned premium related to the unwinding of a transaction in
2004 and a $15.1 million decrease in our mortgage guaranty segment, reflecting the run-off of our quota
share treaty business. This decrease was offset by an increase of $48.9 million in our other segmént in 2004,
attributable to the retrocession in 2004 of lines of business that we no'longer underwrite: '

+
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_Net Investment Income S

Net investment income was $111.5 million, $96.8 million and’'$94.8 million and had pre-tax yields to
maturity of 5.1%, 4.9% and 4.8% for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
increase in net investment income in 2006 compared with 2005 was due to increasing investment yields
during the year, combined with increased invested assets due to positive opcratmg cash flows. The increase
in net investment income in 2005 compared with 2004 : was due to the increase in investment yields as well
as an increase in our invested assets during the year.

Net Realized Investment (Losses) Gains S

Realized gams and losses are deteimined using the specific ldentlflcatlon method and are credlted or,
charged to income. Net realized investment (losses) gains, prmmpally from'the sale of fixed maturity
securities, were $(2.0) million, $2.2 million and $12.0 miltion for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. In addition to (losses) gains from the sale of fixed maturity securities, 2004 included
realized gains of $6.0 million as a result of investments sold in coniiection with a commutation settlement
of a residual value transaction. Also inclided in net realized investment gains for 2004 was a write down of
$1.3 million related to the Company’s exited title reinsurance business. The Company had no write downs
of investments for other than temporary impairment losses in 2006, 2005 or 2004. Net realized investment
(losses) gains, net of related income taxes, were $(1.5) million, $1.8 million and $7.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Deri vative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value as requ1red by FAS 133 and FAS 149
However, as explained under “—Critical Accounting Estimates,” we record part of the change in fair value
in the loss and LAE reserves as well as in unearned premium reserves. The fair value adjustment for the
year ended December 31, 2006 was a $5.5 million gain compared with a $3.5 million loss for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and a $52.5 million gain for the same period in 2004. The fair value change of
$5.5 million for 2006 is related to many factors but primarily due to run-off of transactions and tightening
in credit spreads. The 2005 loss of $3.5 million primarily relates to the run-off of transactions and a slight
widening in investment grade corporate spreads. The 2004 gain of $52.5 million primarily relates to an
approximate 15-20% tightening in credit spreads. - e ‘ .

The gain or loss created by the estimated fair value adjustment will rise or fall based on estimated .
market pricing and may not be an indication of ultimate claims. Fair value is defined as the amount at
which an asset or liability could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties, We
generally plan to hold derivative financial instruments to maturity. Where we hold derivative financial
instruments to maturity, these fair value adjustments would generally be expected to reverse resulting in no
gain or loss over the entire'term of the contract. '

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses' .

Year Ended December 31,
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses ’ -2006 . 2005 2004
. ($ in millions} .

Fmancnal guaranty QITECE v e neee el (2 0) $ (22) $ 148
Financial guaranty IeNSUrance. .. ............ e (131 . (61.3) 154
Mortgage guaranty ..............co0vnnn. [, 1 44y (3.7 (11.9)
Total financial guaranty loss and loss adjustment” ' )

EXPENSES « .\ vvveieeaeaeen s e PO 6.7 (67.2) 183
(07117 P (13.5) (24) (503)

Total loss and loss adjustment expenses . ............. $ (6.8) $(69.6) $(32.0)
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. Loss and LAE for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 -and 2004 were $(6.8) million,
$(69.6) million and $(32.0) million, respectively. In 2006, the financial guaranty direct segment had loss.
and loss adjustment expenses of $(2.0) million mainly due to a-$4.8 million .release of portfolio reserves
primarily as a result of the early termination of 20 swap transactions based on the counterparties right to
terminate and transaction run-off offset by an increase of $4.5 million associated with the increase in net
earned premiums and downgrades of a sub-prime mortgage transaction. 2006 case loss reserves include a
net recovery of $1.6 million relating to the settlement of a sub-prime mortgage transaction. The financial
guaranty reinsurance segment had loss and loss adjustment expenses of $13.1 million due to $6.8 million of
net case loss and LAE reserve addmons primarily related to the ratmgs downgrade of a'U.S. public
infrastructure transactron as well as other asset backed securitics and a $1.6 million write-down of '
expected litigation recoveries, reported from a cedant. These recoveries were established in 1998 from a
bankruptcy estate. In addition, the Company.increased portfolio reserves $6.2 million primarily due to the
ratings downgrade of a European infrastructure transaction and’ management updating its rating agency
default statistics, as part of our normal portfolro TESETVE Process and due to the rating downgrade of
various credits. The other segment includes $(13. 5) mrlhon of loss recoverres from third party litigation'
settlements.

Included in 2005 financial guaranty direct results, is a reduction of $7.0 million in portfolio reserves
attributable to changes in credit quahty and from continued runoff from maturing CDO exposures, as well
as management updatmg its loss reserving data, as part of our normal portfolio reserve process, to include
the most current rating agency, default studies, primarily offset by $4 5 million of incurred case reserve
activity. The financial guaranty reinsurance segment included $71.0 million in loss recoveries from a third
party litigation settlement agreement, with two parties, relating 10 a reinsurance claim incurred in 1998 and
1999. This recovery was offset by an addition to loss reserves of $6.0 million, consisting of a $10.4 million
addition to case reserves and a reduction of $4.4 million to portfolio reserves due to a reinsurance client
ceding losses on two Northwest Airlines Enhanced Equrpment Trust Certificate (EETC) credits with net
par outstanding of $66.1 million. Our other segment in 2005 was impacted by the commutation and
retrocession of certain lines of business that we no.longer underwrite as well as a $2.4 million recovery,
related to the equlty layer credit protectlon business. '

Included in 2004 financial guaranty dlrect results is $12.3 mllllon related to the closmg out of ,

. transaction types that we no longer underwrite, The 2004 financial guaranty reinsurance segment included
a $3.7 million addition in portfolio reserves as'a result of credit downgrades. In addition, durmg 2004
management updated its loss estimates for the mortgage guaranty segment resuiting in a release of '
reserves, as a result of changes in our statistical assumptions driven by the completlon of a ratrng agency
review of our book of business during the year coupled with favorable loss development related to older
experience rated quota share contracts, which were running off. Our other segment included
$(50.3) million in 2004, as a result of exiting those lines of business we no longer underwrite.

! ' !

Profit Commasswn Expense - - .

Profit commissions, which.are primarily related to our mortgage guaranty segment allow the ceding
company to share favorable experience on a.reinsurance contract due to lower than expected losses.
Expected or favorable loss development generates profit commission expense, while the inverse occurs on
unfavorable loss development. Portfolio reserves are not a component of these prefit commission
calculations. In future years the primary component of profit commissions will be from the FSA
transaction, discussed earlier. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 profit commissions
were $9.5 mrllton $12.9 million and $15.5 million, respectively. The decrease in profit commission expensc
for 2006 compared with 2005 is due to the run- -off of mortgage guaranty experience rated quota share
treaties, which have a large profit commission component. Also addlng to the decrease is a particular
financial guaranty reinsurance treaty, that contains a proflt commission component, that had reduced net ,
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earned premiums associated with it in 2006. Not all treaties in our financial guaranty reinsurance segment
have a profit commission component. The decrease in profit commission expense for 2005 compared with
2004 is also primarily due to the run-off of mortgage guaranty experience rated quota share treaties, which
have a large profit commission componernt.

" L ' i

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs primarily consist of ceding commissions, brokerage fees and operating expenses that
are related to the acquisition of new business. Acquisition costs that vary with and are directly related to
the acqmsmon of new business are deferred and amortlzed in relation to earned premium. For the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, acquisition costs incurred were $45.0 miillion, $45.3 million and
$50.9 million, respectively. Thé decrease of $0.3 million in 2006 compared with 2005 is primarily related to
a greater portion of 2006 earned premlum compared with 2005, coming from our financial guaranty direct
business, which has no ceding commission. The decrease of $5.6 million in 2005 compared with 2004 is
primarily related to $3.9 million of acquisition costs incurred in our other segment in 2004. There were no
acqunsmon costs incurred in our other segment durmg 200s.

Operating Expenses

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, operating expenses were $68.0 million,

$59.0 million and $67.8 million, respectively. The increase for 2006 compared with 2005 was primarily due.
to staff additions and merit increases as well as the recognition of stock option expense and the accelerated
vesting of restricted stock grants for retirement eligible employees as required by FAS 123R, which the
Company adopted on January 1, 2006. The decrease for 2005 compared with 2004 was primarily due to the
accelerated vesting of $11.3 million of employee stock awards which occurred as part of the IPO, offset by
expenses associated with maintaining a holding company platform during all of 2005. The holding company
was not activated until April 28, 2004, the date of the IPO. ' '

Oiher Expenses

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 other expenses were $16 3 million,
$17.3 million and $12.3 million, respectively. 2006 includes $2.5 million'of put option premiums associated
with Assured Guaranty Corp.’s (“AGC”) $200.0 million committed capital securities and $13.4 million of
interest expense net of amortization of our cash flow hedge, related to the issuance of our 7% Senior
Notes in May 2004. The coupon on the Senior Notes is 7.0%, however, the effective rate is approximately
6.4%, taking into account the effect of a cash flow hedge executed by the Company in March 2004. In
addition, 2006 includes $0.3 million of interest expense related to the issuance of our 6.40% Series A
Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures in December 2006. 2005 is comprised of $2.0 million of
‘investment bankmg fee$ and $1.7 mitlion of put option premiums assoc1ated with the committed capital
securities. Other expenses for 2005 also included $13.4 million of interest expense, net of amortization of
our cash flow hedge, associated with our Senior Notes. The 2004 expense is related to the issuance of our
7% Senior Notes in May 2004 and the $1.6 million write off of goodwill in our other segment. Thls amount
is related to-the trade credit business which we exited as part of the IPO.

’

Income Tax . o . . . . '

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, income tax expense was $30.2 million,
$41.2 million and $50.5 million and our effective tax rate was 15.9%, 17.9% and 21.7% for the years ended'
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our effective tax rates reflect the proportion of income
recognized by each of our’operating subsidiaries, with U.S. subsidiaries taxed at the U.S. marginal
corporate income tax rate of 35%, UK subsidiaries taxed at the UK marginal corporate tax rate of 30%,’
and no taxes for our Bermuda holding company and subsidiaries. Accordingly, our overall corporate
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effective tax rate fluctuates based on the distribution of taxable income across these jurisdictions.. 2006
includes $4.7 million of income tax expense related to the $13.5 million of loss recoveries from third party
litigation settlements related to the equity layer credit protection business. 2005 included $24.9 million of
income tax expense related to the §71.0 million loss recoveries mentioned above, partially offset by a

$7.8 million tax benefit from a transaction in which AGC and AG Re entered into a reinsurance
agreement with FSA pursuant to which substantially all of FSA’s financial guaranty risks previously ceded
to AGC (the “Ceded Business”).was assurned by AG Re. This agreement was effective as of January 1,
2005 and is consistent with the Company’s IPO strategy of AGC ceasing to write new reinsurance business
and transferring its existing reinsurance business to AG Re to optimize capital utilization. In connection
with the transaction, AGC transferred liabilities of $169.0 million, consisting primarily of unearned
premium reserves. Since this transaction transferred unearned premium reserve from AGC, a U.S. tax
paying entity, to AG Re, a non-U.S, tax paying entity, the Company released a deferred tax liability related
to differences between the book and tax carrying amounts of unearned premium reserves which resulted in
a $7.8 million tax benefit. , . ' ‘

Segment Results of Operations

Our financial results include four principal business segments: financial guaranty direct, financial
guaranty reinsurance, mortgage guaranty and other. Management uses underwrmng gains and losses as the
primary measure of each segment’s financial performance. Underwriting gain or loss includes net earned
premiums, loss and loss adjustment expenses, profit commission expense, acquisition costs and operating
- expenses that are diréctly related to the operations of our insurance businesses. This measure excludes
certain revenue and expense items, such as net investment income, realized investment gains and losses,
unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial instruments, and interest expense, that are not directly
related to the underwriting performance of our insurance operations, but are included in net income. For
the year ended December 31, 2004 our segment results exclude $11.3 mllhon of operating expenses related
to the accelerated vesting of stock awards at the IPO date. -

‘

Financial Guaranty Direct Segment

The financial guaranty direct segment consists of our primary financial guaranty insurance business
and our credit derivative business. Financial guaranty insurance provides an unconditional and irrevocable
guaranty that protects the holder of a financial obligation against non-payment of principal and interest
when due. Financial guaranty insurance may be issued to the holders of the insured obligations at the time .
of issuance of those obligations, or may be issued in the secondary market to holders of public bonds and
structured securities. As an alternative to traditional financial guaranty insurance, credit protection on'a
particular security or issuer can also be provided through a credit derivative, such as a credit default swap.
Under a credit default swap, the seller of protection makes a specified payment to the buyer of protection
upon the occurrence of one or more specified credit events with respect to a reference obligation or a
particular reference entity. Credit derivatives typically provide protection to a buyer rather than credit
enhancement of an issue as in {raditional financial guaranty insurance.

[ *

81




The table below summarizes the financial results of our financial guaranty direct segment for the
periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,
‘ 2006 2003 2004
. . . ($ in millions)
Gross written premiums. ............. e -$189.2 8962 $808
« Net written premiums. . ......... e 187.0 93.9 7.7
- Net earned premiums.............. e - 897« 745 88.8.
Loss and loss adjustment expenses........:o.......... 200 (22) 148
Profit commission expense............... e = Ce— —
AcqUiSItION COBES .. .o v v ine v i - 85 . 63 4.5
Operating expenses. . ........ oo, P . 523 443 - 418
Undérwriting gain ., . ......... L e 8308 $261  $27.6
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio................ 2% (29% 16.7%
Expenseratio.............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 67.8% 678% 52.2%
Combinedratio ............. .. .o 65.6% 649% 68.9%
) , . ) .Year Ended December 31, .
Gross Written Premiums . 2006 2005 2004
’ ' : . ’ s ($ in millions)
Public finance. .. .. R S $100.4 $211 $§ 59
Structured finance........ Cer i . ; 88.8 75.1 74.9
Total ............ P -+ $189.2 $96.2 $80.8

The financial guaranty direct ségment contributed $189.2 million, $96.2 million and $80.8 million to
overall gross written premiums, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
2006 financial guaranty direct segment includes upfront gross written premiums of $63.0 million from our
international business. 2005 did not include any upfront gross written premium from our international
business. Qur U.S. public finance business contributed $35.6 million in upfront gross written premiums for
2006 compared with $20.0 million for the same period last year. The $15.4 million increase in 2005
compared with 2004 is primarily.due to a $16.1 million increase in public finance transactions, reflecting’ |
the execution of our direct business plan. :

Generally, gross and nét written premiums from the structured finarice and credit derivative markets
have been received on an installment basis, while the public finance market premium is generally received
upfront. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, installment premiums represented 48%, 79% and 93% of gross written
premiums in this segment, or $90.1 million, $75.9 million and $75.1 million, respectively. The contribution
of upfront premiums to gross written premiums were 52%, 21% and 7% of gross written premiums, or
$99.1 million, $20.3 million and $5:7 million in 2006, 2005 and 2001}',' respectively.

-Year Ended December 31,
Net Written Premiums 2006 2005 2004
) (% in millions)
Public finance. . . ... e e e e e e $1004 $211 $ 59
Structured finance.......... P 8.6 728 718
1 $187.0 3$93.9 §77.7

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, net written premiums were $187.0 million,
$93.9 million and $77.7 million, respectively. The variances in net written premiums are consistent with the
variances in gross written premiums as we typically retain a substantial portion of this business.
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Year Ended December 31,

ms < 't 006 2005 2004

/ . - {$ in millions)

RSP $67 $22 $05
shnce......... BT SO 830 723 883

...... :-~-:¥r--5---~---3:=-~-::~:-f- "$89.7 §745 38838

iums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were $89.7 mllhon
'8 million, respectively: The increase of $15.2 million in net earned premlums in 2006
reflects our increased market penetration, which has generated additional net written
ce business, discussed above. These components contributed to the increased net
1e decrease of $14.3 million in net earned premiums in 2005 compared with 2004 is due
let earned premiums in 2004 related to the close out of a transaction in winch we no
offset by new business. '

: adjustment expenses were $(2.0) million, $(2.2) million and $14 8 mllllon for the years
.ver 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our loss and loss adjustment expenses are affected
/,.:s'in the mix, size and credit trends in our book of business, and by changes in our reserves for loss
.05s adjustment expenses for prior periods. The loss ratios for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were (2.2)%, (2.9)% and 16.7%, respectively. 2006 includes a $4.8 million release of
portfolio reserves primarily as a result of the early termination of 20 swap transactions based on the
counterpartles right to terminate and transaction run-off offset by an increase of $4.5 million associated
with the increase in par in force and related net earned premiums and dnwngrades to sub-prime mortgage
transactions. Case loss reserves for 2006 include a net recovery of $1.6 million relating to the settlement of
a sub-prime mortgage transaction.

Portfolio reserves for 2005 were reduced $7.0 million, attributable to changes in credit quality and
from continued runoff from maturing CDO exposures, as well as management updating its loss reserving
data, as part of our normal portfolio reserve process, to include the most current rating agency default
studies. Primarily offsetting this portfolio reserve decrease was an addition of $4.5 million in case reserves
for a specific mortgage transaction executed in 2002, consisting of sub-prime mortgages originated in 2000.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, acquisition costs incurred were $8.5 million,
$6.3 million and $4.5 million, respectively. 2006 acquisition costs incurred increased $2.2 million compared
with 2005 which is consistent with the increase in net earned premium. 2005 acquisition costs incurred
increased $1.8 million compared with 2004. The increase in acquisition costs incurred over the periodis
directly related to the increase in net earned premium excluding the $24.2 million of net earned premium
in 2004, due to the close out,of a transaction noted earlier, which had an immaterial amount of acquisition
costs associated with it. : P '

Operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $52.3 million,
$44.3 million and $41.8 million, respectively. During 2006, the Company implemented a new operating
expense allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating segments.
This new methodology was based on a comprehensive study and is based on departmental time estimates °
and headcount. 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show.this new methodology on a
comparative basis. The increase in operating expenses for 2006 compared with 2005 is attributable to
increased staff additions and merit increases as well as the recognition of stock option expense and the
| accelerated vesting of restricted stock grants for retirement eligible employees as required by FAS 123R,
which the Company adopted on January 1, 2006. The increase during 2005 compared with 2004 was
primarily due to salary and related expenses as the Company increased staffing levels to meet its
business needs.
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Financial Guaranty Reinsurance Segment )
_[’ LYY \

In our financial guaranty reinsurance business, we assume all or a portion of risk und
insurance companies that provide financial guaranty protection. The financial guaranty reii
business consists of public finance and structured finance reinsurance lines. Premiums on pu,
are typically written upfront and earned over the life of the policy, and premiums on structure
typlcally written on an installment ba51s and earned ratably over the installment period. \

The table below summatizes the financial results of our financial guaranty reinsurance. segme
the periods presented , e

f -1 . ’ . '
’ ¥ . B . Car - ! . ¥
. , . . . . '

Year Ended December 31,

, - b BRI PR 2006 2005 . 20047 !
L ‘ . . . ($ in millions), V.~ | -y:' 40y,
Gross written premiums. . ......... ... o e, .$123 9 $ 98.0 $160 it
Net written premiums. ......... e 1232 978 160, 1
Net earned premiums . ..... ... P AR 944 1056 - 1144
+ Loss and loss adjustment expenises......! ... 0L 131 w(613) T 154
Profit commission ¢xpense. . ... .. .. I e 1277 48 7 11
" Acquisition costs . ... L. DU [ e 34.1 369 388
Operating eXpenses.......... AU T r 145 13.8 10.1
Underwriting gaifi........ S e LA L2 $-30.0 S$1114 7§ 49.0
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio. ............. " 13.9% (S8.1)% 13.5% K
rExpenseratlo....,.._..._...._...........:...f ........ . 543%  52.5% _43.7%
Combined ratio ........ PRI e 682% (5.6)% 572%
i . ' . ' Lo Year Ended December 31,
, Gross Written Premiums | . . N . 2006 2005 2004
o ' : - 7 ($ in milljons) '
" Public finance.............. et 8922 §629  $1189 0 0
Structured finance. .. ..... PSSR e Lo 317 351 414 :

Total ..oovvvvn.... SO NPT, oo $1239° $980° $160.3 7

]

Gross written premiums for our financial guaranty reinsurance segment include upfront premiums on
transactions underwritten during the period, plus installment premiums on business primarily underwritten
in prior periods. Consequently, this amount-is affected by changes in the business mix between public -
finance and structured finance. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 68%, 52% and
68%, respectively, of gross written premiums in this segment were upfront premiums and 32%, 48% ‘and
32%, respectively, were installment premiums. :

Gross written premiums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $123.9 million,
$98.0 million and $160.3 million, respectively. The 2006 increase of: $25:9 million, or 26%, compared with -
2005 is attributable to,FSA reassuming $18.4 miilion of healthcare related reinsurance business from AG.
Re in 2005 and to greater.facultative business. 2005 gross written premiums decreased $62.3-million, or
39%, compared with 2004 primarily due to one cedant relationship that was terminated and business from .
a second cedant that was decreased, effective July 1, 2004. Further reducmg 2005 gross writteni premlum is
the FSA transacnon of $18.4 million discussed earller ’ - ' :
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The following table summarizes the Company s rernsurance gross wntten premiums by significant .

chent v AL ' e P A B At
. Tty B 'n‘Jl;‘ . ':-.?."3 LA R ' O V. uod T T
S R L T S VL3 YearEndedDecember3l [
" Gross Written Premiums by Client T 2006 2005 2004
o 05 st TSSTEN G r(Smlmlhons)l . ,

. Flnanc1al Securrty Assurance Inc (1) ............... ey $575 $453 $79 8" e e
Ambac Assurance Corporatron(Z).l. e «‘i“": . 236 . 328 "l 374 . hm
Flnancral Guaranty Insurance Company. . J e . .,.;.‘J.". .21, 1 10. 5 i 0 9 .
MBIA Insurance Corporatlon. e ‘.l.‘ ..... ."H o 105 155, 28 3 ‘

' - PR - . ! [
T I
(1) 2005 does not rnclude $18 4 mllhon of reassumed premlums related to the Company s healthcare J
business. .. . e L . -
i P s T o0 e lznth PN e ve . [ .".-.‘r'l. i
{2): On April 20, 2005, Ambac Assurance Corporatlon prov1ded notice of amon-renewal of the- quota :
share treaty.on a run off basis, effectrve July 1,2006. s v VL o oL
' .o coi, - b I L ot - A ST SRR SR S S
-3 The followrng table summarizes the Company § gross writtén' premiums-by type of contract
+ TL. R L [ BV R LI o1 I"i';l VLN R

: OV T S S S IR T O TR L TER S . YearEndedDecember.’ali N
Gross Written Premiums ‘ - ) 2006 2005 2004
- iE T L R H R T ($in I]]l"l[)]]s] srigf i
Treaty-.......... e e cec a0 8 824 0 §72.3 1 $135.8
Facultative FETRREE T R 41.5 . 257 245 .

JTotal ......... e e s $1239 $980,.$1603, ore T
M i LT . - LR RN - Fy b e H '.al 4 a
T P e T SR L e M ST BT L
e - _— Year Ended Decemher31 G

Net Written Premiums ! ! : ' o 2006 2005 2004 ot

e . - T T ($lnm|llmns) ) s
Public f1nance $ 915 $627 $’1187 .

* Structured finance. | ' : ” 3177 3. 104 ) u

Total.ovovnooorsoenanenn b TS S $1232 $978b$]601

i g N N S T T r,’r

For the years ended Decémbét 31, 2006,'2005 and 2004, net written premiurms’ were $123.2 mrlhon e
$97.8 million and $160.1 million, respectwely These differences are con51stent w1th the changes in gross‘

written prémiums described above.'™ S HERRE TALC W T Tl
I RY . HOE TL S T TV P " e Ao 'L S O et LA
b AT g T e e 50 0 vt ot Year Ended December 31, ¢ ) 2
Net Eamed Premlums ) . . . i 2006 2005 .. . 2004 '
e LI e L T — .
- o . . . (5in millions) o
. Publlcflnance ...... Ao e Lo 8612 805700 8 577 e
* ' Structured flnance...‘."_ ..... A S A S T 33.2 486 - ' '56.7 "
Total........... AR U ORI - $944  $105.6- $1144- ' 7 -
Included in public finance net earned premiums are —_—
refundings of: ............................... N $11 2 $121 $ 174
. T S PPENE

1 IR

*For the years ended Decefiber 31 2006 2005 and 2004, net eafned premiums were $94.4 million,” *
$105.6 million'and $114.4'million, réspectively. Net earned premiums decreased $11.2 million, or'11%,in -
2006 compared with 2005, due to the non-renewal of certain treaties and change in mix of business: Public'"
finance net earned premiums include refunding premiums, which reflect the unscheduled pre-payment or
refundings of underlying municipal bonds due to lower interest rates. These unscheduled refunding
premiums, which were $11.2 million for 2006, compared with $12.1 million for the same period last year,
are sensitive to market interest rates. We evaluate our net earned premiums both including and excluding
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Profit commission expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $6.8 million,
$8.0 million and $14.1 million, respectively. 2006, 2005, and 2004 include $4.1 million, $4.4 million, and
$2.1 million of proﬁt commrssron expense due to the settlement of the 1997, 1996, and 1995, respectlvely,
quota share years, dlscussed above. The remaining decrease and the decrease in profit commission expense
in 2005 compared with 2004 is due to the run-off of other mortgage guaranty quota share treaties, which
also have a profit commission component. Portfolio reserves are not a component of these profit
commission calculations, . . el : ‘.

ACQUISI[IOH costs incurred for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $2.3 mllhon
$2.0 million and $3.7 million, respectively. The changes in acquisition costs incurfed for 2006 compared
wrth 2005 and 2005 compared wrth 2004 is drrectly related to the changes in net eamed premlums

Operanng expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1.3- million, . .
$1.2 million and $1.1 miltion, respectively. During 2006, the Company implemented a new operating -
expense allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating segments -
This new methodology was based on a comprehensive study and is based on departmental time estimates
and, headcount 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show this new methodology on a
comparative basis. The increase in operating expenses for 2006 compared with 2005 is attributable to
increased salaries due to.increased staff additions and merlt increases as well as the recognition of stock
option expense and the accelerated vesting of restrrcted stock grants for retirement ehglble employees as.
required by FAS 123R, whlch the Company adopted on January 1, 2006. The i increase during 2005
compared, with 2004 was pnmanly due to salary and related expenses as the Company mcreased staffmg
Ievels to meet |ts busmess needs o

- + , N Il [ |
T T T P T ) I L R
‘Other Segment co ) i} '
H r.‘ | ¢ R - ‘ '_ ¥ ‘ . " L . -—rie ‘ J
Our other segment consists of certaln non-core busmesses that we have exited in connection with the
IPO, mcludtng equrty layer cred1t protectlon trade credlt retnsurance tltle remsurance and auto resndual
R !

value reinsurance. o

I PR T K - L

"

i v e \ . Lot . i

The following table provrdes deta1ls of net eamed premlums and underwrltmg results by lme of
busmess '
fy oo i) [ S & R IR L |
L IV T O R e T S Year Ended December 31,
R Feopgal ool o . L 2006 ¢ 2005 - 2004
o ) a . oo 'U' i y v $ inrllnillions)

Net earned premlums , ” el 1 e, ‘ o
Bquity layer eredit protection ... ... L L T et § =" 88— ¢ 54
.Trade credit reinsurance. .c i ... 0d 0L T UUUUIN P R Lt - — 2 1(25.3)
‘Title reinsurance ....... PR T, il W b — 0 — DT 320

I Auto residual value reinsurance ...V . ..., SRR L s = — N (32.2) '

Total..........;...' .................. SR e i e .o $ ‘—u$-—1 $(489)

Underwriting gain (loss) R R S : C gy
Equltylayercredlt protectron "‘ P S $135 $24 ‘8§ 31-
Trade credit reinsurance. ..+, . S A LU - L9
Title reinsurance .} rlih. ... -‘."..:‘..“..*.:.....!;....‘.' ..... PP — - = 1.0
Auto residual valué reinsuriance ¢4, ... S S e e = o (7.9)
Total....'.'.'..'.'.-....;T’:".'.’.......‘.‘." ........... el AR L $13:5 $24 $ (6.7)

oM [ v R - ' Ll T
. . . [ L . ' |
" After entering the equity layér credit p'r}otectibn market in 2601,wé'ceased\i'ritiné nev&: equit'y layer ' l‘
credit protection business during 2003. $5.4 million of net earned premiums were recognized for the year

ended December 31, 2004 from the run off of this business. The underwriting gains of $13.5 million and
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Year Ended December 31,
Net Earned Premiums 2006 2005 2004
. . : ($ in millions)
Public finance................... e $67 §$22 $05
Structured finance. . ............. e e 83.0 723 883

Total. ...\ oo e . $89.7 §$745 '$888

Net earned premlums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were $89.7 million,
$74.5 million and $88.8 million, respectively: The increase of $15.2 million in net earned premiums in 2006
compared with 2005 reflects our increased market penetration, which has generated additional net written
premiums and in-force business, discussed above. These components contributed to the increased net
earned premium. The decrease of $14.3 million in net earned premiums in 2005 compared with 2004 is due
to $24.2 million of net earned premiums in 2004 related to the close out of a transaction in which we no
longer participate, offset by new business. ' n

Loss and loss adjustment expenses were $(2.0) m11110n $(2.2) million and $14.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our loss and loss adjustment expenses are affected
by changes in the mix, size and credit trends in our book of business, and by changes in our reserves for loss
and loss adjustment expenses for prior periods. The loss ratios for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were (2.2)%, (2.9)% and 16.7%, respectively. 2006 includes a $4.8 million release of
portfolio reserves primarily as a result of the early termination of 20 swap transactions based on the
counterpartles right to terminate and transaction run-off offset by an increase of $4.5 million associated
with the increase in par in force and related net earned premiums and downgrades to sub-prime mortgage
transactions. Case loss reserves for 2006 include a net recovery of $1.6 million relating to the settlement of
a sub-prime mortgage transaction.

Portfolio reserves for 2005 were reduced $7.0 million, attributable to changes in credit quality and
from continued runoff from maturing CDO exposures, as well as management updating its loss reserving
data, as part of our normal portfolio reserve process, to include the most current rating agency default
studies. Primarily offsetting this portfolio reserve decrease was an addition of $4.5 million in case reserves
for a specific mortgage transaction executed in 2002, consisting of sub-prime mortgages originated in 2000.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, acquisition costs incurred were $8.5 million,
$6.3 million and $4.5 million, respectively. 2006 acquisition costs incurred increased $2.2 million compared
with 2005 which is consistent with the increase in net earned premium. 2005 acquisition costs incurred
increased $1.8 million compared with 2004. The increase in acquisition costs incurred over the periodis -
directly related to the increase in net earned premium excluding the $24.2 million of net earned premium
in 2004, due to the ctose out,of a transaction noted earlier, which had an immaterial amount of acquisition
costs associated with it. . A .

- Operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $52.3 million,
$44.3 million and $41.8 million, respectivety. During 2006, the Company implemented a new operating
expense allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating segments.
This new methodology was based orni a comprehensive study and is based on departmental time estimates ~.
and headcount, 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show-this new methodology on a
comparative basis. The increase in operating expenses for 2006 compared with 2005 is attributable to
increased staff additions and merit increases as well as the recognition of stock option expense and the
accelerated vesting of restricted stock grants for retirement eligible employees as required by FAS 123R,
which the Company adopted on January 1, 2006. The increase during 2005 compared with 2004 was
primarily due to salary and related expenses as the Company increased staffing levels to meet its
business needs.
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Financial Guaranty Reinsurance Segment

Y '

In our financial guaranty reinsurance business, we assume all or a portion of risk undertaken by other

"insurance companies that provide financial guaranty protection. The financial guaranty reinsurance

business consists of public finance and structured finance reinsurance lines. Premiums on public finance
are typically written upfront and earned over the life of the policy, and premiums on structured finance are
typically written on an installment basis and earned ratably over the installment period. '

-

The table below summarizes the financial results of our financial guaranty. reinsurance segment for -
the periods presented:

N 4

'Year Ended December 3,

. : ) 1
_ . : AR 2006 2005 2004 :
! , . . ($in millions) oo
Gross Written Premiums. ... ..ooooueneouiiannaarenns §1239 § 98.0 $160. 3
Net WIitten Premitums. .. ... oo e eeeerenrannannenns 1232 978 1601
Net earned premiums......... PO AR 944 1056 - 1144
* Loss and loss adjustment experises. ... ... 0h. 0 0 131 «(6133) 154
Profit commission expense .......... e .0 270 48 7 14
" Acquisition costs ... .. P e oo 341 36.9 38.8
Operating expenses.......... P e . 14.5 13.8 10.1
Underwriting gaiii........ el LS §0300 0 $1114 0§ 490 C
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio. ............. B 139% (58.1)% 13.5% ' '
Expense ratio ... ... e O 543% 52.5% _ 43. 7%
Combined ratio ................... PP 682% (5.6)% 512%
. ;. ' . ! P . Year Ended December 31,
, Gross Written Premiums L, e . . 2006 2005 2004
) o - + ($ in millions) '
‘*  Public finance...\.......... s el 89220 8629 $1189_ B
Structured finance........ e S Lot 3170 351t 414 '
Total ............. SR S S DU ' $123.9° $98.0 §160.3 °

Gross written premiums for our financial guaranty reinsurance segment include upfront premiums on
transactions underwritten during the period, plus installment premiums on business primarily underwritten
in prior periods. Consequently, this amount-is affected by changes in the business mix between public.
finance and structured finance. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 68%, 52% and
68%, respectively, of gross written premiums in this segment were upfront premiums and 32%, 48% ‘and
32%, respectively, were mstallment premiums. -

i

Gross written premiums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $123.9 million,
$98.0 million and $160.3 million, respectively. The 2006 increase of $25:9 million, or 26%, compared with -
2005 is attributable to FSA reassuming $18.4 million of healthcare related reinsurance business from AG.
Re in 2005 and to greater.facultative business. 2005 gross written premiums decreased $62.3-million, or
39%, compared.with 2004 primarily-due to one cedant relationship that was terminated and business from .
a second cedant that was decreased, effective July 1, 2004. Further reducing 2005 gross writtenl premium is
the FSA transaction of $18.4 million discussed earlier. : :

+
1
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The following table summarizes the Company’s reinsurance gross written premiums by significant

client:

\ . - Year Em.ied Decembe‘r 31,

Gross Written Premiums by Client 2006 2005 2004
' ($ in miltions) -

Financial Security Assurance Inc.(1) ..., . $575 $453 $798
Ambac Assurance Corporation(2) ... ........oevevrunnn.. 236 328 374
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company. ... R JEERRY . 211 105 .. 09
MBIA Insurance Corporation. ........... e . 105 155 283

(l‘) 2005 does not include $18.4 million of reassumed"f)remiums related to the Company’s healthcare
business. .

(2) On April 20, 2005, Ambac Assurance Corporatlon provnded notice of a non- renewal of the quota
share treaty.on a run-off basis, effective July 1, 2006. ' . :

. The following table summarizes the Company’s gross written premiums by type of contract:

. . . . . Year Ended December 31,
Gross Written Premiums 2006 2005 2004
’ o ($ in millions)
Treaty ..oooovvvennnnnns e AU PR $ 824 $723 -$1358
Facultative ........ e [ L 415 257 245
TOMAl .. vt e ... 31239 3980 $1603
. . R . Year Ended Decembtlcriil,
Net Written Premiums 2006 2005 2004 -
i (5 in millions)
Publicfinance. ... $ 915 $627 $1187,
Structured finance............ooovvnin e 317 3k 414

Total. ... e $123.2 $97.8 $160.1

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, net written premiums were $123.2 million,
$97.8 million and $160.1 million, respectively. These dlfferences are consistent wnth the changes in gross
written premlums described above.

*

Year Ended December 31,

Net Earned Premiums , 7006 _ 2005 2004
’ ($ in millions)
Public finance. . ... vr i i e $612 $ 570 3 577
Structured finance. ................. PSS e 33.2 48.6 56.7
Total.............. S PP © %944 $105.6 $114.4
Included in public finance net earned premiums are _
refundingsofi. .. ... . $11.2 $ 121 $ 174

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, net earned ﬁremiums were $94.4 million,
$105.6 million and $114.4 million, respectively. Net earned premiums decreased $11.2 million, or 11%, in
2006 compared with 2005, due to the non-renewal of certain treaties and thange in mix of business. Public
finance net earned premiums include refunding premiums, which refiect the unscheduled pre-payment or
refundings of underlying municipal bonds due to lower interest rates. These unscheduled refunding
premiums, which were $11.2 million for 2006, compared with $12.1 million for the same period last year,
are sensitive to market interest rates. We evaluate our net earned premiums both including and excluding
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these premiums. The $8.8 million decrease in 2005 net earned premiums compared with 2004 was
primarily caused by $5.3 million of reduced refundings in our public finance business. In addition, the FSA
transaction reduced net earned premiums by $3.0 million, while the termination of one cedant relationship
and decreased business from a second cedant, effective July 1, 2004, also contributed to the decline.

Loss and LAE weére $13.1 million, $(61.3) million and $15.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our loss and LAE ratios for ‘the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 were 13.9%, (58.1)% and 13.5%, respectively. The 2006 loss and loss ‘adjustment expenses
include $6.8 million of net case loss and LAE reserve additions, primarily related to the rating downgrades
of a U.S. public infrastructure transaction as well as other asset backed securities and a $1.6 million write-
down of expected litigation recoveries, reported from a cedant. These recoveries were established in 1998
from a bankruptcy estate. In addition, the Company-increased portfolio reserves $6.2 million primarily due’
to the ratings downgrade of a European infrastructure transaction and management updating its rating
agency default statistics, as part of our normal portfolio reserve process and due to the rating downgrade of
various credits. 2005 includes $71.0 million in loss recoveries from a third party litigation settlement
agreement, with two parties, relating to a reinsurance claim incurred in 1998 and 1999. This recovery was
offset by an addition to loss reserves of $6.0.million, consisting of a $10.4 miltion addition to case reserves
and a reduction of $4.4 million to portfolio reserves due to a reinsurance client ceding losses on two
Northwest Airlines Enhanced Equipment Trust Certificate (EETC) credits with net par outstanding of
$66.1 million. In addition, portfolio reserves were increased $2.8 million, due to credit downgrades causing
movements in our closely monitored credit list and increased exposure to Hurricane Katrina.

Profit commission expense was $2.7 million, $4.8 million and $1.1 million for the years endéd
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Not all of our treaties have a profit commission
component, however the changes in profit commission expense correspond with decreased net earned
premium from a treaty which has a profit commission component.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, acquisition costs incurred were $34.1 million,
$36.9 million and $38.8 million, respectively. The decreases in acquisition COsts incurred over the periods
are dlrectly related to the decreases in net earned premium.

Operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were $14.5 million, $13.8
million and $10.1 million, respectively. During 2006, the Company implemented a new operating expense
allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating segments., This new, -
methodology was based on a comprehenswe study and is based on departmental time estimates and
headcount. 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show this new methodology on a comparative
basis. The increase in operating expenses for 2006 compared with 2005 is attributable to increased staff
additions and-merit increases as well as the recognition of stock option expense and the accelerated vesting
of restricted stock grants for retirement eligible employees as required by FAS 123R, which the Company
adopted on January 1, 2006. The increase during 2005 compared with 2004 was primarily due to salary and
related expenses as the Company increased staffing levels to meet its business needs.

Mortgage Guaranty Segment !

Mortgage guaranty insurance provides protection to mortgage lending institutions agalnst the default
of borrowers on mortgage loans that, at the time of the advance, had a loan-to-value ratio in excess of a
specified ratio. We primarily function as a reinsurer in this industry and assume all or a portlon of the risks
undertaken by primary mortgage insurers.
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The table below summarizes the fmanc1al results of our mortgage guaranty segment for the periods
presented: : .

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

[ ' ! : (% in millions) L
Gross Written Premilms . ... .. enenene e imneneieinerenneaneanns . § 84 §$257 §244
Net Written premilums . . ..o .e i e e naeneas 84 257 | 244
Netearned premiums ... ... e 22.7 18.6 33.7
Loss and loss adjustment expenses .................... DI PRI 44 37 (@119
Profit commission expense..........0.......0...... e . 6.8 8.0 141
Acquisition costs.. .. ....... A U 23 20 37
Operating eXpenses . ........ovvveviieeieniann. bt e 1.3 1.2 1.1
Underwriting gain ...............coiiiiiiiiiiia. P . -$167 §111  § 267
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratlo e e e U (194)% (19.9Y%- (35.2)%
Expenseratio ........................ e e O 45.7% 603% 56.0%

Combined ratio. ................ [ D, e 263% 404% 208%

Gross written premiums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $8.4 million,
$25.7 million and $24.4 million, respectively. The decrease in gross written premiums for 2006 compared
with 2005 is pnmanly related to a single transaction executed in 2005 which contributed $16.3 million to
gross written premiums. Excluding this item, gross written premiums decreased $1.0 mllhm} due to the run-
off of our quota share treaty business. The increase of $1.3 million in 2005 from 2004 is primarily related to
the $16.3 million of gross written premiums from the single transaction mentioned above. Likewise, the
year 2004 included a single transaction which contributed $9.5 million to gross written premiums.

Net written pfemiums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $8.4 million,
$25.7 million and $24.4 million, respectively. This is consistent with gross written premiums, as we do, not
cede a significant amount of our mortgage guaranty business.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, net earned premiums were $22.7 mitlion,
$18.6 million and $33.7 miltion, respectively. The increase of $4.1 million of net earned premiums in 2006
when compared with 2005, is due to $4.7 million of net earned premium recognized upon the terminations
of mortgage guaranty transactions during 2006. The decrease in net earned premiums in 2005 compared
with 2004 reflects an $8.8 million release of unearned premium reserves related to the commutation of an
excess of loss reinsurance contract in 2004, coupied with the run-off of our quota share treaty business.

Loss and loss adjustment expenses were $(4.4) million, $(3.7) million and $(11.9) million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were (19.4)%, (19.9)% and (35.2)%, respectively. The 2006
result is primarily due to the Company releasing $4.1 million of IBNR reserves related to the settlement of
the 1997 quota share treaty year. This release however, was offset by a corresponding increase in profit
commission expense, discussed below. The 2005 amount is due to an IBNR release of $4.4 million, offset
by an increase in portfolio reserves of $0.7 million. The IBNR reduction is offset by increased profit
commission expense discussed below. The loss and loss adjustment expense for 2004 is primarily due to a
decrease of $5.5 million of portfolio reserves, as a result of changes in our statistical assumptions driven by
the completion of a rating agency review of our book of business during the year, coupled with $2.1 million
of favorable loss development related to older experience rated quota share contracts, which are running
off. This reduction in loss and loss adjustment expense was partially offset by increased profit commission
expense discussed below.
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Profit commission expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $6.8 million,
$8.0 million and $14.1 million, respectively. 2006, 2005, and 2004 include $4.1 million, $4.4 million, and
$2.1 million of profit commission expense due to the settlement of the 1997, 1996, and 1995, respectively,
quota share years, discussed above. The remaining decrease and the decrease in profit commission expense
in 2005 compared with 2004 is due to the run-off of other mortgage guaranty quota share treaties, which
also have a profit commission component. Portfolio reserves are not a component of these profit
commission calculations.

Acquisition costs incurred for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $2.3 million,
$2.0 miltion and $3.7 million, respectively. The changes in acquisition costs incurred for 2006 compared
with 2005, and 2005 compared with 2004 is directly related to the changes in net earned premiums.

Operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1.3 million,
$1.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively. During 2006, the Company implemented a new operating - .
expense allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating segments.
This new methodology was based on a comprehensive study and is based on departmental time estimates
and headcount. 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show this new methodology ona
comparative basis. The increase in operating expenses for 2006 compared with 2005 is attributable to
increased salaries due to increased staff additions and merit increases as well as the recognition of stock
option expense and the accelerated vesting of restricted stock grants for retirement eligible employees as -
required by FAS 123R, which the Company adopted on January 1, 2006. The increase during 2005
compared with 2004 was primarily due to salaryand related expenses as the Company increased staffing
levels to meet its business needs.

-

L

Other Segment

QOur other segment consists of certam non-core businesses that we have exited in connection with the
IPO, including equity layer credit protection, trade crcdlt relnsurancc txtle reinsurance, and auto residual
value reinsurance.

The following table provides details of net eamed premiums and undeantmg results by line of
business:

1l el !
: : . . - Year Ended December 31,
. B : e 2006 2005 2004
($ in millions)

Net earned premiums;

Equity layer credit ProteCtion .. ... ...t e ee e ieeeenees $ — $— § 54
Trade credit reinsurance. . ... e P P e — — - (25.3)
Title reinsurance . ... ...ttt e o= — 32
Auto residual value reinsurance ............. . i i — — (322
Total. .o e e $ — $— 83489
Underwtiting gain (loss):’ : : N
Equity layer credit protection ................... e e $13.5 %24 § 31
Trade credit reinsurance. . . .. Ve e e = = 2.9
Title reinsurance . ....: e o e — — 10
Auto residual value reinsurance . ¢, . .. P = = (09
Total.......ooove o e . $135 $24 § (6.7)

After entering the equity layer credit pr'otection market in 2001, we ceased writing new equity layer
credit protection business during 2003, $5.4 million of net earned premiums were recognized for the year
ended December 31, 2004 from the run off of this business. The underwriting gains of $13.5 million and
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$2.4 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, were attributable to salvage recoveries received during those
pericds. The $3.1 million underwriting gain in 2004 is from the unwinding of this business. .

Trade credit reinsurance net earned premiums were $(25 3) million in 2004 due to the 100%
retrocession with an affiliate of ACE, whereby we ceded 100% of the unearned premlum reserves and losq
and LAE reserves. e

On April 15, 2004, AGRO sold 100% of the common stock of its subsidiary, ACE Capltal Title
Reinsurance Company, to ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd., a subsidiary of ACE, for $39.8 million. There
was no gain or loss associated with this transaction. Net earned premlum of $3.2 million was recognized
during the period we owned the subsrdlary

Auto residual value reinsurance net earned premiums were $(32.2) mllllon in 2004 as we commuted
our remaining auto residual value reinsurance business and transferred assets with a market value of
$108.3 million to a subsidiary of ACE This transaction caused a $6 5 million underwrltmg loss, offset by a
$6.8 million reallzed gain,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity, both on a short-term ba51s (for the next twelve' months) and a long -term basis (beyond
the next twelve months), is largely depcndcnt upon: (1) the ability of our operatmg subsidiaries to pay '
dividends or niake other payments to us, (2) external financings and (3) net investment income from our
invested assets. Our liquidity requirements include the payment of our operatlng expenses, interest on our
debt, and dividends on our common shares. We may also require liquidity to make periodic capital
investments in our operating subsidiariés. In the ordinary course of our business, we evaluate our liquidity
needs and capital resources in light of holding company expenses, debt-related expenses and our dividend.:
policy, as well as rating agency considerations. Based on the amount of dividends we expect to receive from
our subsidiaries and the income we expect to receive from our invested assets, management believes that:
we will have sufficient liquidity to satisfy our needs over the next twelve months, including the ability to pay

" dividends on our common shares. Total cash paid in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for dividends to shareholders was
$10.5 million, or $0.14 per common share, $9.0 million, or $0.12 per common share, and $4.6 million, or
$0.06 per common share, respectlvely Beyond the next twelve months, the ability of our operating
subsidiaries to declare and pay dividends may be influenced by a variety of factors including market
conditions, insurance and rating agencies regulations and general economic conditions. Consequently,
although management believes that we will continue to have sufficient liquidity to meet our debt service
and other obligations over the long term, it remains possible that we may be required to seek'external debt
or equity financing in order to meet our operating expenses, debt service obhgallons or pay dividends on
our common shares.

We anticipate that a major source of our liquidity, for the next twelve month$ and for the longer term,
will be amounts paid by our operating subsidiaries as dividends. Certain of our operating subsidiaries are
subject to restrictions on their ability to pay dividends. See “Business—Regulation.” The amount available
at AGC to pay dividends in 2007 with notice to, but without the prior approval of, the Maryland Insurance
Commissioner. is approximately $28.6 million. Dividends paid by a U.S. company to a Bermuda holding
company presently are subject to a 30% withholding tax. The amount available at AG Re to pay dividends
or make a distribution of contributed surplus in 2007 in compliance with Bermuda law is $599.6 million.
However, any distribution which results in a reduction of 15% of more of AG Re’s total statutory capital,
as set out in its previous years fmancml statements, would require the prior approval of the Bermuda
Monetary Authority.

.o I ' 4 . [P . Loy

L
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Liquidity at our operating subsidiaries is used to pay operating expenses, claims, payment obligations
with respect to credit derivatives, reinsurance premiums and dividends to Assured Guaranty US Holdings
Inc. for debt service and dividends to us, as well as, where appropriate, to make capital investments in their
own subsidiaries. In addltlon certain of our operating companies may be requlred 1o post collateral in
connection with credit derivatives and reinsurance transactions. Management believes that these
subsidiaries’ operating needs generally can be met from operating cash flow, including gross written
premium and investment income from:their respective investment portfolios. :

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities were $261.6 million, $177.4 million and
$(44.8) million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 2006 operating
cash flows were primarily due to upfront premium received in both our financial guaranty direct and
financial guaranty reinsurance segments during 2006 and $13.5 million of loss recoveries from third party
litigation settlements from business, which was exited in connection with the 1PO. -

L}

Operating cash flows for 2005 were pnmarlly provided by $203.7 million of net premiums recewed and
loss recoveries of $71.0 million, partially offset by tax payments of $40.0 million and a $34.4 million
payment of funds held.

The cash flows used in operating activities in 2004 were due to the unwinding of certain transactions
related to the IPO which generated approximately $146.0 million of cash outflows. From July 1, 2004, to
December 31, 2004, we generated $68.7 million of net cash flows from operating act1v1tles These cash’
flows were primarlly prov:ded by premium réceived and investment income.

Net cash flows (used in} provided by investing activities were $(228.5) m;lllon $(155 1) million and ¢
$22.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These investing
activities were primarily net (purchases) sales of fixed maturity iivestment securities during 2006, 2005 and
2004. In addition, during'2004 AGRO, an indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Ltd., sold 100% of the -
common stock of its subsidiary, ACE Capital Title Reinsurance Company, to ACE Bermuda Insurance
Ltd. (“ACE Bermuda”), a subsidiary of ACE, for $39.8 million. There was no gain or loss associated with
the sale. _

Net cash flows (used in) provided by _t"inancing activities were $(35.1) million, $(31.9) million and $6.1 -
million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. During 2006 we paid:

¢ $21.1 million to rcpurchasefd.S million of our common shares under the Board of Directors
authorized share repurchase program for 1.0 million common shares, which was approved in
May 2006, :

e $10.5 million in d’ividends,'

v
'

« $2.1 million of notes outstanding, which were issued in connection with the IPO, and related
interest to subsidiaries of ACE,

In December 2006, Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc. (“AGUS”), a subsidiary of the Company,
issued $150.0 million Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Debentures”) due in 2066.
The Debentures pay a fixed 6.40% rate of interest until December 15, 2016 and pay a floating rate based -
on three-month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.38% with quarterly resets thereafter. Assured Guaranty US
Holdings Inc. used the proceeds to repurchase 5,692,599 of the Company s common shares from ACE
Bermuda. ~

During 2005, we paid dividends of $9.0 million, paid $3.9 million, net, under our stock award plans
and paid $19.0 million to repurchase 1.0 million of our common shares under the Board of Directors
authorized $25.0 million share stock repurchase program. Under the program we repurchased a total of 1.3
million common shares, over a two year period, at an average price of $18.69. During 2004, Assured
Guaranty US Holdings Inc. issued $200.0 million of 7.0% Senior Notes due in 2034. The proceeds of the
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offering were used to repay a $200.0 million promissory note, issued as part of the IPO related formation
transactions, issued to a subsidiary of ACE prior to the TPO in April 2004. The coupon on the Senior Notes
is 7.0%, however, the effective rate will be approximately 6.4% due to a treasury hedge executed by the
Company in March'2004. These sefiior notes are fnlly and unconditionally guaranteed by Assured
Guaranty Ltd. We expect to have ‘the capacrty to répay and/or refinance the notes as they come due.

‘During the year ended December 31 2004, ACE contributed capltal 0f'$78.9 million to us. "This non-
cash capital contribution was utilized to pay i 1nterest and prmc1pa1 on long-term debt .(see Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements)

' R . N

The followmg table. summanzes our contractual oblrganons as of December 31 2006 S

e . “ v
[ R Asof December 31 2006

Less Than 1-3 ~ 35 After '
. C . - Tatal 1 Year +Years  Years 5 Years

) " o ‘ . ($ in millions)
Senior Notes(l) ........ B S .. 85823 - $140  $280 $280 §$512.3
Series A Enhanced Junior Subordmated Debentures(l) 2453 9.6 192 192 1977
Operating Jease obligations(2).......... e o112 28 4.7 12 ° 25
Reserves for losses and Ioss adjustment expenses(3) ..... - w1206 <152 0 131 127 746
Total. o oveisenene OO SRR $9598 3416  $65.0  $66.1 $78'7.1

(1) Prrncrpal and mterest See also Note 17 “Long-Term Debt” to the consolldated financral statements in
Item 8 of ithis 10- K .

e

(2) Lease payments are subject to escalattons in bulldmg operatmg costs and- real estate taxes.
[
(3) We have estimated the timing of these payrnents based on our hnstoncal experrence and our ,
. expectation of future payment patterns. However, the timing of these payments may vary.significantly

from the amounts shown above, especially for our portfolio reserves. Co -

o, . v ‘o
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements .
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 the Company did not have any s1gn1f1cant off balance-sheet Ce
arrangements that were not accounted for or dlsclosed in the consolidated fmanctal statements.
A ' .t o . i .. . !
Credit Facrlmes e AE
2006 Credit Facility o

On November 6, 2006, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $300 0
million five-year unsecured revolving credit facility (the “2006 credit facility”) with a syndicate of banks; for
which ABN AMRO Incorporated and Bank of America Securities LLC acted as lead arrangers. Under the
2006 credit facility, each of AGC, Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. (“AG (UK)"), AG Re, AGRO and ' )
Assured Guaranty Ltd. are entltled to request the banks to make loans to such borrower or to request that
letters of credit be 1ssued for the account of such borrower ' . . .

Of the $300.0 million available to be borrowéd, no more than $100.0-million may be borrowed by
Assured Guaranty Ltd.; AG Re or AGRO, individiially or in the aggrégate, and no more than $20.0 million
may be borrowed by AG (UK). The stated amount of all outstanding letters of credit and the amount of all
unpaid drawmgs in respect of all letters of credit cannot in the aggregate exceed $100.0 million. * :

The 2006 credrt facrhty also provides ‘that Assured Guaranty Ltd. may request that the commrtment of
the banks be increased an additional $100.0 million up to a maximum aggregate amount of $400.0 million.
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'Any such incremental commitment increase is. sub]ect to certain condmons provided in the agreement and
must be for at least $25.0 million. . y : T :

The proceeds of the loans anid letters of credlt are to be used for the workmg caplta! and other general
COIporate purposes of the borrowers and to support remsurance transactlons

At the closing of the 2006 credit facrllty, (iy AGC guaranteed the obhgatrons of AG (UK) under such
facility, (ii) Assured Guaranty Ltd. guaranteed the obligations 6f AG Re and AGRO undér such facility
and agreed that, if the Company Consolidated Assets (as defined in the related credit agreement) of AGC
and its subsidiaries were to fall below $1.2 billion, it would, within 15 days, guarantee the obligations of )
AGC and AG (UK) under such facility and (iii). Assured Guaranty'Overseas US Holdings Inc., as a -
Material Non-AGC Subsidiary (as defined in the related credit agreement), guaranteed the obligations of
Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and AGRO under such facility.

' The 2006 credit facility’s financial covenants require that Assured Guaranty Ltd. (a) maintain a
minimum net worth of seventy-five percent (75%) of the Consolidated Net Worth of Assured Guaranty -
Ltd. as of the most recent fiscal quarter of Assured Guaranty Ltd. prior to the Closing Date and
(b) maintain a maximum debt-to-capital ratio of 30%. In addition, the 2006 credit facility requires that
AGC maintain qualified statutory capital of at least 75% of its statutory capital as of the fiscal quarter.
prior to the closing date of the facility. Furthermore, the 2006 credit facﬂrty contains restrictions on
Assured Guaranty Ltd: and its subsidiaries, including, among other things, in respect of their ability to
incur debt, permit liens, become liable in respect of guaranties, make loans or investments, pay dividends
or rriake"distribﬁtions,‘ dissolve or become party to a merger, consolidation or acquisition, dispose of assets’
or enter into affiliate transactions. Most of these restrictions are subject to certain minimum thresholds
and exceptions. The 2006 credit facility has customary events of default, including (subject to certain
materiality thresholds and grace periods) payment default, failure to comply with covenants, material
inaccuracy of representation or warranty, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedmgs change of control and
cross-default to other debt agreeménts. A default by one borrower will give risc to a right of the lenders to
terminate the facility and accelerate all amounts‘then outstanding. As of Decembeér 31, 2006, Assured ’
Guaranty was in compliance with all of those financial covenants.

As of December 31, 2006, no amounts were outstandmg under thls facrllty nor have there been any
borrowings under this facrhty ' R :

The 2006 credit facrhty rep]aced a $300 0 mrlhon three-year credit facrhty (the “2005 credit facrhty”)
discussed below. Letters of Credit for a total aggregate stated amount of approximately $19.6 million, ,
inctuding $19.2 million issued during the term of the 2005 credit facility, remain outstandmg as of
December 31, 2006.

2005 Credit Facllltya o N L .

On April 15, 2005, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and certain of its subsrdlarles entered into 2 $300 0 million
three-year unsecured revolving credit facility” (the “2005 credit facrhty”) wrth a syndicate of banks, for
which ABN AMRO Incotporated and Bank of América, N.A. acted as’ ‘lead' arrangers and KeyBank
National Association (“KeyBank”) acted as syndication ‘agent. Effective November 6, 2006, the 2005 credit’
facility was terminated and replaced by the 2006 credit facility discussed above. Under the 2005 credit .
facility, each of AGC, AG (UK), a subsidiary-of AGC organized under the laws of the United Kingdom,
Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and AGRO were entitled to request the banks to make loans to such
borrower or to request that letters of credit be issued for the account of such borrower. The. 2005 credit
facrlrty replaced () the $250 0 mrlhon credrt facrhty and (2) the Letter of Credlt Agreement both
discussed below

! '.;',. k T, ' . e o . \

92




- The 2005 credit facility had been available for general corporate purposes. The proceeds of the loans
and letters of credit were to be used for working capital and other general corporate purposes of the
borrowers and to support reinsurance transactions. Letters of Credit for a total aggregate stated amount of
approximately $19.2 million issued during the term of this facility remain outstanding and are deemed
issued under the 2006 credit facility.

As of December 31, 2005, no amounts were outstandmg under this facnllty nor have there been any
~ borrowings under this facility. :

$250.0 million Credit Facility

On April 29, 2004, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and certain of its sub51d1ar1es entered lnto a $250.0 million -
unsecured credit facility (“$250.0 million credit facility”), with a syndicate of banks, for which ABN AMRO
Incorporated and Bank of America, N.A. acted as co-arrangers. Each of Assured Guaranty, AGC and AG
(UK), was a party, as borrower. The $250.0 million credlt facility was terminated and replaced by the 2005
credit facility discussed above.

The $250.0 million credit facility was a 364 day facility available for general corpbrate purposes. As of
its termination, no amounts were outstanding under this facility nor had there been any borrowings under
the life of this facility. ' ‘

Letter of Credit Agreement

On November 8, 2004, Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and'AGﬁO entered into a standby ietter of '
credit agreement (the “LOC Agreement”) with KeyBank. Under the LOC Agreement, KeyBank agreed to
issue up to $50.0 million in letters of credit on our behalf. The obligations of the Company, AG Re and
AGRO under the LOC Agreement were joint and several. The letters of credit were used to satisfy AG
Re’s or AGRO’s obllgatnons under certain reinsurance agreements and for general corporate purposes.
Under the LOC Agreement, KeyBank issued two letters of credit, both on behalf of AGRO, with an
aggregate stated amount of approximately $20.7 million. The parties to the LOC Agreement have agreed
that no additional letters of credit would be issued, extended or renewed from and after the date of the
closing of the 2005 credit facility and letters of credit that were outstanding on such date will, unless
cancelled and surrendered by the respective beneficiaries thereof, remain outstanding until their respective
stated expiration dates of December 31, 2005. The LOC Agreement contained covenants that limit debt,
liens, guaranties, loans and investments, dividends, liquidations, mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, sales
of assets or subsidiaries and affiliate transactions.-Most of these restrictions were subject to certain - .
minimum thresholds and exceptions. The LOC Agreement also contained financial covenants that
required the Company: (i) to maintain the ratio of consolidated debt to total capitalization at not greater
than 0.30 to 1.0; (ii) to maintain-consolidated net worth of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of its
consolidated net worth as of June 30, 2004; and (iii) to maintain the consolidated interest coverage ratio
for any test period ending on the last day of a fiscal quarter at not less than 2.50 to 1.0. In addition, the
LOC Agreement provided that the obligations of KeyBank to issue letters of credit may be terminated, and
our obligations under the agreement may be accelerated, upon an event of default. As of December 31,
2004, no amounts were payable under any letter of credit issued under this fac1l|ty The LOC Agreement
expired on April 28, 2005 and was replaced by the 2005 credit facility discussed above

Non-_Recourse Credit Facility

AGC is also party to a non-recourse credit facility with a syndicate of banks which provides up to
$175.0 million specifically designed to provide rating agency qualified capital to further support AGC'’s
claims paying resources. The facnllty expires in December 2010. As of December 31, 2006 and

f
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December 31, 2005, no amounts were cutstanding under this fac1l1ty nor have there been any borrowings
under the life of this facility. . : .

The Company’s fallure to comply with certain covenants under our credit facilities could, subject to
grace perrods in the case of certain covenants, result in an event of default. This could require the
Company to repay any outstanding borrowings in an accelerated manner.

Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures

On December 20, 2006, AGUS issued $150.0 million of Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated
Debentures (the “Debentures”) due 2066 for net proceeds of $149.7 million. The Debentures are
guaranteed on a junior subordinated basis by Assured Guaranty Ltd, The proceeds of the offering were
used to repurchase 5,692,599 of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s common shares from ACE Bermuda Insurance
Lid., a subsidiary of ACE. The Debentures pay a fixed 6.40% rate of interest until December 15, 2016, and
thereafter pay a floating rate of interest, reset quarterly, at a rate equal to 3-month LIBOR plus a margin
equal 10 2.38%,. AGUS may elect at one or more times to defer payment of interest for one or more
consecutive periods for up to ten years. Any unpaid interest bears mterest at the then applicable.rate,
AGUS may not defer interest past the maturity date.

On any date on which accrued interest through the most recent interest payment date has not been .
paid in full, whether because of an optional deferral or otherwise, AGUS and Assured Guaranty Ltd. will
not, and will not permit any subsidiary to, declare or pay any dividends or any distributions on, or make any
payments of interest, principal or premlum OT any guarantee payments on, or redeem, repurchase,
purchase acquire or make a liquidation payment on, any of AGUS’s or Assured Guaranty Lid.’s capital
stock, debt securitiés that rank equal or junior to the Debentures or the subordinated guarantees or
guarantees that rank equal or junior to the Debentures or the subordinated guarantees, other than pro rata
payments on debt securities that rank equally with the Debentures and the subordinated guarantees with
certain excepuons

« If AGUS has optionally deferred interest payments otherwise due on the Debentures then following
the earlier of (i) the fifth anniversary of the commencement of a deferral period or (ii) a payment, during a
deferral period, of current interest on the Debentures, AGUS and Assured Guaranty Ltd. must make
commercially reasonable efforts to sell qualifying warrants and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock.
If such efforts are successful, AGUS must pay optionally deferred'interest out of the net proceeds from the
sale of such securities: AGUS cannot pay optionally deferred interest from sources other than the net
proceeds from the sale of such securities. AGUS’s and Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s obligation to make
commercially reasonable efforts to sell qualifying warrants and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock
to satisfy AGUS’s obligation to pay interest is subject to.market disruption events and subject to certain
caps , and does not apply if an event of default with respect to the Debentures has occurred and is
continuing.

In connection with the i issuance of the Debemures Assured Guaranty Ltd. and AGUS eritered into a
replacement capltal covenant (the “Replacement Capital Covenant”) in which Assured Guaranty Ltd. and
AGUS covenanted that (i) AGUS will not redeem or repurchase the Debentures and (ii) Assured '
Guaranty Ltd. will not purchase the Debentures, in each case on or before December 15, 2046, except,
subject to certain limitations, to the extent that the applicable redemption, repurchase or purchase price
does not exceed a specified amount of proceeds from the sale, during the 180 days prior to the date of that
redemption, repurchase or purchase, of common shares, rights to acquire common shares, and qualifying
capital securities. '

Subject to the Replacement Capltal Covenant, the Debentures may be redeemed in whole or in part
subject to minimum amounts outstanding, at any time, on or after December 15, 2016, at the cash
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures to be redeemed, plus accrued and
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unpaid interest, together with any compounded interest, on such Debentures to the date of rcdemption
(the “par redemption amount”) AGUS may redeem the Debentures prior to December 15, 2016, in whole
but not in part, at a price equal to the greater of (i) the par redemption amount and (ii) the applicable
make-whole redemption amount.

The junior subordinated indenture governing the Debentures provides that only the following
constitute events of default with respect to the Debentures that give a right to accelerate the amounts due
under the Debentures: (i) default for 30 calendar days in the payment of any interest on the Debentures -
when such interest becomes: due and'payable (whether or not such payment is prohibited by the
subordination provisions); however, a default under this provision will not arise if AGUS has properly
deferred the interestiin connection with an optional deferral period, (ii) any non-payment of interest,
whether due to an optional déferral or otherwise, that continues for 10 consecutive years without all
accrued and unpaid interest {including compounded interest thereon) having been paid in full, such non-
payment continues for 30 days and Assured Guaranty Ltd. fails to make guarantee payments with respect
thereto; (iii) default in the payment of the principal-of, and premium, if any, on the Debentures when due,
or (iv) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency, or receivership, whether voluntary or not. Failure to
comply with covenants is not an event of default under the junior subordinated indenture for purposes of
declaring an acceleratlon of paymem of the Debentures.

+

Committed Capltal Securities ~

On April 8, 2005, AGC entered into separate agreements (the “Put Agreements”) with each of
Woodbourne Capltal Trust 1, Woodbourne Capital Trust T, Woodbourne Capital Trust III and
Woodbourne Capital Trust I'V (each, a “Clstodial Trust”) pursuant to which AGC may, at its option,
cause each of the Custodial Trusts to purchase up to $50 000,000 of perpetual preferred stock of AGC (the
“AGC Prefp}’red Stock”). |

. a
L. !
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Stmcture

Each of the Custodial Trusts is'a newly organized Delaware statutory trust formed for the purpose of -
(i} issuing a series of flex committed capital securities (the “CCS Securities”) representing undivided
beneficial interests in the assets of such Custodial Trust; (ii) investing the proceeds from the issuance of
the CCS Securities or any redemption in full of AGC Preferred Stock in a portfolio of high-grade
commercial paper and (in limited cases) U.S. Treasury Securities (the “Eligible ‘Assets”), (iii) entering into
the Put Agreement with AGC; and (iv) entering into related agreements.

Initially, all of the CCS Securities were issued to a special purpose pass-through trust (the “Pass-
Through Trust”). The Pass-Through Trust is a newly created statutory trust organized under the Delaware
Statutory Trust Act formed for the purposes of (i) issuing $200,000,000 of Pass-Through Trust Securities to
quallﬁed institutional buyers within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as
aménded, (i} investing the procéeds from the sale of the Pass-Through Trust Securities in, and holding,
the CCS Securities issued by the Custodial Trusts and (iii) entering into related agreements. Neither the
Pass-Through Trust nor the Custodial Trusts are consolidated in Assured Guaranty’s financial statements.

Income distributions on the Pass-Through Trust Securities will be equal to an annualized rate of One-
Month LIBOR plus 110 basis points for all periods ending on or prior 1o April 8, 2008, and thereafter
d]‘;tl‘lbuthHS will be determined pursuant to a remarketing process (the “Flexed Rate Period”) or pursuant
to an auction process (the “Auction Rate Mode”). Distributions on the CCS Securities and dividends on
the AGC Preferred Stock will be determined pursuant to the same process.
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Put Agreement

Pursuant to the Put Agreement, AGC will pay a monthly put premlum to each Custodial Trust except
(1) during any period when the AGC Preferréd Stock that has been’ put to a Custodial Trust is held by that
Custodial Trust or (2) upon termination of the Put Agreement. The put premium will equal the product of
(A) the applicable distribution rate on the CCS Securities for the respective distribution period less the
excess of (i) the Custodial Trust’s stated return on the Eligible Assets for such distribution period
(including any fees and expenses of the Pass-Through Trust) (expressed as an annual rate) over (ii) the
expenses of the Custodial Trust for such distribution period (expressed as an annual rate), (B) the .
aggregate face amount of the CCS Securities of the Custodial Trust outstanding on the date the put
premium is calculated, and (C) a fraction, the numerator of which will be the actual number of days in such
distribution period and the denominator of which will be 360. In addition, and as a condition to exercising
the put option under a Put Agreement, AGC is required to enter into a Custodial Trust-Expense
Reimbursement Agreement with the respective Custodial Trust pursuant to which AGC agrees it will pay
the fees and expenses of the Custodial Trust (which includes the fees and expenses of the Pass—Through
Trust) during the period when such Custodial Trust holds AGC Preferred Stock.

Upon exercise of the put option granted to AGC pursuant to the Put Agreement, a Custodial Trust
will liquidate its portfolio of Eligible Assets and purchase the AGC Preferred Stock and will hold the AGC
Preferred Stock until the earlier of (i) the redemption of such AGC Preferred Stock and (u) the
liquidation or dissolution of the Custodial Trust. .

Each Put Agreement has no scheduled termination date or matarity, however, it will terminate if
(1) AGC fails to pay the put premium in accordance Wlth the Put Agreement, and such failure continues
for five business days, (2) during the Auction Rate Mode, AGC elects to have the AGC Preferred Stock
bear a fixed rate dividend (a “Fixed Rate Distribution Event”), (3) AGC fails to pay (i) dividends on the
AGC Preferred Stock, or (ii) the fees and expenses of the Custodial Trust, for the related dividend period,
and such failure continues for five business days, (4) AGC fails to pay the redemption price of the AGC
Preferred Stock and such failure continues for five business days, (5) the face amount of a Custodial
Trust’s CCS Securities is less than $20,000,000, (6) AGC elects to terminate the Put Agreement, or (7) a
decree of judicial dissolution of the Custodial Trust is entered. If, as a result of AGC's failure to pay the
put premium, the Custodial Trust is liquidated, AGC will be required to pay a termination payment which
will be distributed to the holders of the Pass-Through Trust Securities. The termination payment will be at
a rate equal to 1,10% per annum of the amount invested in Eligible Assets calculated from the date of the -
failure to pay the put premium through the end of the applicable period.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the put option had not been exercised.

AGC Preferred Stock 1

AGC Preferred Stock will be issued in one or more series, with each series in an aggregate liquidatioﬁ
preference amount equal to the aggregate face amount of a Custodial Trust’s outstanding CCS Securities,
net of fees and expenses, upon exercise of the put option. Unless redeemed by AGC, the AGC Preferred
Stock will be perpetual,

For each distribution period, holders of the outstandmg AGC Preferred Stock of any series, in
preference to the holders of common stock and of any other class of shares ranking junior to the AGC
Preferred Stock, will be entitled to receive out of any funds legally available therefore when, as and if
declared by the Board of Directors of AGC or a duly authonzed committee thereof, cash dividends at a
rate per share equal to the dividends rate for such series of AGC Preferred Stock for the respective
distribution period. Prior to a Fixed Rate Distribution Event, the dividend rate on the AGC Preferred
Stock will be equal to the distribution rate on the CCS Securities. The Custodial Trust’s expenses
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(including any expenses of the Pass-Through Trust) for the period wﬂl be paid separately by AGC pursuant
to the Custodial Trust Expense Reimbursement Agreement

Upon a Fixed Rate Distribution Event, the distribution rate on the AGC Preferred Stock will equal
the fixed rate equivalent of one-month LIBOR plus 2.50%. A “Fixed Rate Distribution Event” will be
deemed to have occurred during the Auction Rate Mode when AGC Preferred Stock is outstanding, if:

(1) AGC elects to have the AGC Preferred Stock bear dividends at a fixed rate, (2) AGC fails to pay
dividends on the AGC Preferred Stock for the related distribution period and such failure continues for
five business days or (3) AGC fails to pay the fees and expenses of the Custodial Trust for the related
distribution period pursuant to the Custodial Trust Expense Reimbursement Agreement and such failure
continues for five business days. ' '

During the Flexed Rate Period and for any period in which AGC Preferred Stock is held by a
Custodial Trust, dividends will be paid monthly, except that during the Auction Rate Mode dividends will
be paid every 49 days. Following a Fixed Rate Distribution Event, dividends will be paid every 90 days.

Followmg exercise of the put option during any Flexed Rate Period, AGC may redeem the AGC
Preferred Stock held by a Custodial Trust in whole and not in part on any distribution payment date by
paying a redemption price to such Custodial Trust in an amount equal to the liquidation preference
amount of the AGC Preferred Stock (plus any accrued but unpaid dividends on the AGC Preferred Stock
for the then current distribution period). If AGC redeems the AGC Preferred Stock held by a Custodial
Trust, the Custodial Trust will reinvest the redemption proceeds in Eligible Assets and, in accordance with
the Put Agreement, AGC will pay the put premium to the Custodial Trust. If the AGC Preferred Stock
was distributed to holders of CCS Securities during any Flexed Rate Period then AGC may not redeem the
AGC Preferred Stock until the end of such period. - ‘ .

97



Following exercise of the put option during the Auction Rate Mode or at the end of any Flexed Rate
Period, AGC may redeem the AGC Preferred Stock held by a Custodial Trust in whole or in part (x) on
the final distribution payment date of the applicable Flexed Rate Period and (y) on any distribution
payment date in the Auction Rate Mode, by paying a redemption price to the Custodial Trust in an
amount equal to the liquidation preference amount of the AGC Preferred Stock to be redeemed (plus any
accrued but unpaid dividends on such AGC Preferred Stock for the then current distribution period). If
AGC partially redeems the AGC Preferred Stock held by a Custodial Trust, the redemption proceeds will
be distributed pro rata to the holders of the CCS Securities and, if the Pass-Through Trust is the holder of
CCS Securities, distributed by the Pass-Through Trust to holders of Pass-Through Securities (and a
corresponding reduction in the aggregate face amount of CCS Securities and, if the Pass- Through Trust is
the holder of CCS Securities, Pass-Through Trust Securities will be made); provided that AGC must
redeem all of the AGC Preferred Stock if after giving effect to a partial redemption, the aggregate
liquidation preference amount of the AGC Preferred Stock held by such Custodial Trust immediatély
following such redemption would be less than $20,000,000. If a Fixed Rate Distribution Event occurs, AGC
may not redeem the AGC Preferred Stock for a period of two years from the date of such Fixed Rate
Dlstnbutlon Event,

Investment Portfolio ‘ !

QOur investment portfolio consisted of $2,331.1 million of fixed maturity securities, $134.1 million of
short-term investments and had a duration of 3.9 years as of December. 31, 2006, compared with $2,134.0
million of fixed maturity securities, $115.8 million of short-term investments and a duration of 4.4 years as
of December 31, 2005. Our fixed maturity securities are designated as available-for-sale in accordance with
FAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“FAS 1153”) Fixed .
maturity securities are reported at their fair value in accordance with FAS 115, and the change in fair value
is reported as part of accumulated other comprehensive income. If we believe the decline in fair value is
“other than temporary,” we write down the carrying value of the investment and record a realized loss in
our statement of operations.

The following table summarizes our investment portfolio as of December 31, 20006:

Gross Gross
Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost Gain Loss Fair Value(l)
(§ in millions)

U.S. government and agencies. . ................. $ 2565 $ 69 $ (14 § 2621
Obligations of state and political subdivisions. .. ... 874.7 43.6 (0.9) 917.4
Corporate securities. . ... ........oveiainenn e 134.8 4.4 1.2) 138.1
Mortgage-backed securities . .................... 132.5 4.0 (9.8) 726.6
Asset-backed securities. ..................... ... 2428 0.2 (0.9) 242.1
Foreign government securities. .................. 45.1 — (0.3) 44.8
Total fixed maturity securities................. 2,286.4 59.2 (14.5) 2,331.1
Short-term investments. ... ..................... 134.1 . — — 134.1
Total investments(1) ...........covvervnenn... $2,420.4 $59.2 $(14.5) $2,465.1

(1) Totals may not add across and down due to rounding.
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The following table summarizes our investment portfolio as of December 31, 2005:

Gross Gross

’ Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost Gain Loss Fair Value

. . ($ in millions)
U.S. government and agencies.................... $ 3327 $ 9.0 $ (14) § 3403
Obligations of state and political subdivisions. . . .. .. 819.5 46.8 (1.6) - 8647
Corporate Securities. .. ... vviiiiiiiiiie i 1272 6.3 (12) 1323
Mortgage-backed securities . ..................... 6432 36 {9.2) 637.6
Asset-backed securities.......................... 141.6 0.1 (1.0) 140.7
Foreign government securities. .. ................. 18.2 0.3 (0.1) 184
Total fixed maturity securities . ................. 12,082.4 66.1 (14.5) 2,134.0
Short-term investments. . .. .. [ T 11538 — — ' 1158
Total investments. . ........c...ovieniunnaenan.. $2,1982 °  $66.1 $(14.5)  $2,249.8

The amottized cost and estimated fair value of our available-for-sale fixed maturity securities as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ
from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties. .

See Note 9 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for more information on’our
available-for-sale fixed maturity securities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

As of December 31,

2006 2005

Estimated - Estimated
Amorti_zed Cost Fair Yalue Amortized Cost Fair Value

{$ in millions) “t

Due withinone year.............. SOOI $§ 251 $. 250 $ 679 $ 678

Due after one year through five years .......... 396.7 - 399.3 280.5 283.7
Due after five years through tenyears .......... 340.8 349.8 406.4 417.4
Due aftertenyears.............. .ol 791.3 830.4 684.4 727.5
Mortgage-backed securities . .................. 732.5 726.6 6432 - 6376
Total....ooviee i $2,286.4 $2,331.1 $2,082.4 $2,134.0

Fair value of the fixed maturity securities is based upon quoted market prices provided by either
independent pricing services or, when such prices are not available, by reference to broker or underwriter
bid indications. Our investment portfolio does not include any non-publicly traded securities. For a
detailed description of our valuation of investments see “—Ceritical Accounting Estimates.”

We review our investment portfolio for possible impairment losses. For additional information,
see “—Critical Accounting Estimates.” ' : '

¢ P
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The following table.summarizes the ratings distributions of our investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Ratings are represented by the lower of the Moody’s and S&P classifications.

v ' : As of
- | December 31

o e : 2006 2005 _
. "AAA orequivalent’.............. e U 81.8% 849% ~ -

AA L R F 13.5% 107% °

Al e e 47% 44%

BBB ...ttt e e — =

Total oo e 100 D% 100.0%

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our, investment portfolio did not contain any, securmes that were

not rated or rated below investment grade. T

Short-term investments include securities w1th maturity dates equal to or less than one year from the
original issue date. Our short-term investments are. composed of money market funds, discounted notes
and certain time deposits for foreign cash portfolios. Short-term.investments are reported at cost, which
approximates the fair value of these securities due to the short maturity of these investments, '

Under agreements with our cedants and in accordance with statutory requirements, we maintain fixed
maturity securities in trust accounts for the benefit,of reinsured companies and for the protection of
policyholders, generally in states where we or our subsidiaries, as applicable, are not licensed or accredited.
The carrying value of such restricted balances as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $610.5 million and
$552.8 million, respectively.

< Under certain derivative contracts, we are required to post eligible securities as collateral, generally
cash or U.S. govemment or agency securities. The need to post collateral under these transactions is
generally based on marked to market valuations in excess of contractual thresholds. The fair market values
of our pledged securities totaled $0.9 million asof December 31, 2006 and.$1.8 million'as of December 31,
2005: - th, )

Market Risk - # - ) .

“Market risk represents the potential for losses that may result from changes in the value of a f1nanc1al
instrument as a result of changes in market conditions. The primary market risks that impact the value of
our financial instruments are interest rate risk, basis risk, such as taxable interest rates relative to tax-
exempt interest rates, and credit spread risk. Each of these risks and the'specific types of financial
instruments impacted are described below. Senior managers in our surveillance department are
responsible for monitoring risk limits and applying risk measurement methodologies. The estimation of
potential losses arlsmg from adverse changes in market conditions is a key element in managing market
risk. We use various systems models and stress test scenarios to monitor and manage market risk. These
models include estimates made by management that use current and historic market information. The
valuation results from these models could differ materially from amounts that actually are realized in the
market. See “—Critical Accounting Estimates—Valuation of Investments.”

Financial instruments that may be adversely affected by changes in interest rates consist primarily of
investment securities. The primary objective in managing our investment portfolio is generation of an
optimal level of after-tax investment income while preserving capital and maintaining adequate liquidity.
As a result, our investment portfolio consists of highly rated fixed income securities with a relatively short
composite portfolio duration. Investment strategies are based on many factors, including our tax position,
fluctuation in interest rates, regulatory and rating agency criteria and other market factors. As of
~ January 1, 2005 we have retained BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. to manage our investment

100




portfolio. Prior to January 1, 2005 Lazard Freres Asset Management and Hyperion Gapital .- .~
Management, Inc. performed this function. These investrhent managers manage our fixed maturity .,
investment portfolio in accordance.with investment guidelines approved by our Board of Directors. .-+

' oL, L W . . ) . i R .ol L
See Item 7A, “Quantltatlve and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for more information.

Recént Accounting Prormuncements T R coon o .j

In February 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 155, “Accountmg for Certam Hybrld Fmancml o
Instruments” (“FAS 155”) which amends FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“FAS 133”) and FAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“FAS 140”),.and addresses issues raised in FAS 133
Implementation Issue No. D1, “Apphcatlon of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Assets.” The primary objectives of FAS 155 are: (i) with respect to FAS 133, to address the
accounting for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets and (ii) with respect to FAS 140, eliminate'
a restriction on the passive derivative instruments that a qualifying special purpose entity may hold. FAS
155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal
year that begins after September 15, 2006. Because its application is prospective, FAS 155 will not effect
our financial position or our results of operations as of December 31, 2006. However, FAS 155 will effect
the Company’s accounting for transactions entered into subsequent to January 1, 2007. In particular, FAS
155 will effect the Company s determination of which transactions are derivative or non-derivative in
nature,

4

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition, FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of FIN 48 is expected to
increase our January 1, 2007 retained earnings approximately $2.6 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“"FAS 1577).
FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures.about fair value measurements. FAS 157 applies under
other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having
previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement
attribute. Accordingly, FAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. FAS 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company plans to adopt FAS 157 beginning in the first quarter of 2008. The
Company is currenatly evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of FAS 157 will have on its results of
operations or financial position.

In October 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,106 and 132(R)”
(“FAS 1587). FAS 158 represents the completion of the first phase in the FASB’s postretirement benefits
accounting project. FAS 158 is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006, for public entities,
and at the end of fiscal years ending after June 15, 2007, for all other entities. Since the Company has no
defined benefit pension or other postretirement plans, FAS 158 will have no impact on the Company 5
results of operations or financial position.
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In September 2006, .the Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides guidance as to how errors should be
evaluated to assess materiality from a quantitative perspective. SAB 108 permits companies to initially
apply its provisions b_\'/ either restating prior financial statements or recording the cumulative effect of
initially applying the approach as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1,
2006 with an offsetting adjustment to retained earnings. At December 31, 2006, the date of required
adoption, SAB 108 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information concerning quantitatiVe and qualitative disclosures about market risk appears in Part II,
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under
the heading “~Ciritical Accounting Estimates—Valuation of Investments.”

¢’
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Management’s Responsibi]ity for Financial Statements and Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty Ltd. were prepared by management, who
are responsible for their reliability and objectivity. The statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, as such, include amounts
based on informed estimates and ]udgments of management. Financial mformatlon elsewhere in this
annual report is consistent with that in the consolidated fmancnal statements

The Board of Directors, operating through its Audit Commlttee which is composed entirely of
directors who are not officers or employees of the Company, provides 0vers:ght of the financial reporting
process and safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition. The, Audit ,
Committee annually recommends the appointment of an independent.registered public accounting firm~
and submits its recommendation to the Board of Directors for approval. .

" The Audit Committee meets with management the independent reglstered publlc accounting flrm
and the outside firm engaged to perform internal audit funcnons for the Company; approves the overall
scope of audit work and related fee arrangements; and reviews audit reports and findings. Ifi addition, the,
indépendent registered public accounting firm and the outside firm engaged to perform internal audit
functions for the Company meet separately with the Audit Committee, without management
representatives present, to discuss the results of their audits; the adequacy of the Company’s internal
control; the quality of its financial reporting; and the safeguarding of assets against unauthorized-
acquisition, use or disposition. :

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by an independent registered public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who were given-unrestricted access to all financial records
and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and committees of the Board.
The Company believes that all representations made to our mdependent registered public accounting firm
during their audits were valid and appropriate.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Assured Guaranty Ltd. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by,
or under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. :

As of December 31, 2006, management has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated
Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on this evaluation, we have concluded that Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Company included in this Annual Report, has also audited
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
The report, which expresses unqualified opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is included in this Item
under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

/s DOMINIC J. FREDERICO ‘ /s/ ROBERT B. MILLS
Dominic J. Frederico Robert B. Mills
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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..Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of D:rectors and Shareholders of Assured Guaranty Ltd.:

We have completed 1ntegrated audits of Assured Guaranty Lid.’s 2006 and 2005 consolidated fmanClal
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, and an audit of its
2004 consohdated fmdncml stateménts in accordance w1th the standards of the Public Company
Accountmg OverSIght Board (Umted States) Our opmlons based on our audits, are presented below ‘

Consolidated financial smtgmems

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Assured Guaranty Ltd. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
appearing under item 8, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
asscssment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of
internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reportmg includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
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and that receipts and expenditures-of the company are.being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements. o ~ !

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or that the degree of comphancc
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. -

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP o

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP _ : . .
New York, New York- ' . - . .
February 26, 2007 e : . . - :
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i Assured Guaranty Ltd.
: Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands'of U.S. dollars except per share and share amounts)

I ’ As of December 31,

| . 7006 2005
Assets
[ Fixed maturity securities, at fair value (amortized cost: $2,286,373 in 2006 and
$2,082,363 10 2005) .. ot e e e $2,331,071  $2,133,997
‘ Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fairvalue . ............. 134,064 115,826
Total investments. ..................ciiiiiineieni.n, i 2,465,135 2,249,823
Cash and cash equivalents ........................ PR T 4785 6,190
Accried investment INCOIME . .. ...ttt i ittt ittt iiaiiaiiaiines 24,195 22,676
Deferred acquisSition COSIS ..ottt iiir it irei it ianiniaeas 217,029 - 193,442
Prepaid reinsurance premiums .. .....ooiiteeiiiiiiite i, . 7,500 12,478
Reinsurance recoverable onceded losses ............... e - 10,889 . 12,350
Premiums receivable .. ... ... e e 41,565 33,011
GoodwWill ... o e e e 85,417 85,417
Unrealized gains on derivative financial instruments ...................... 52,596 53,037
Current income taxesreceivable . ...ttt — " 3,005
L L T3 10 - 26,229 24,896
Total ASSELS . . oo ot e $2935340  $2,696,325
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Unearned premitm FeSeIVES .. ... ...ttt iere s aneeenn, $ 644496 § 537,149
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses ...............cooeenn.. 120,600 128,421
Profit commissions payable ........ ... . . e 35,994 52,993
Reinsurance balancespayable ... ........ ... ... ... . i i, 7,199 3,724
Current income taxespayable .. ... ... .o i e 7,196 —
Deferred income taxes ... ..ottt e e 39,906 26,629
Funds held by Company under reinsurance contracts. ..................... 21,412 19,186
Unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments. ..................... 6,687 12,652
SEMIOT NOLES . e i e e e e e 197,375 197,344
Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures............ccovvu.. 149,708 —
Liability for tax basis step-up adjustment. . .......... ... ... ... .. ...l 14,990 - 20,129
Otherliabilities. . ......... ... ... o i i O e 39,016 36,585
Total liabilities. . . ................... ... ... ... et e 1,284,579 1,034,812
Commitments and contingencies ‘
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized; 67,534,024 . '
and 74,761,577 shares issued and outstanding in 2006 and 2005) .......... 675 748
Additional paid-incapital .. ..., .. ... o e e 711,256 881,998
Unearned stock grant compensation .............oovuietiiiienienanuenins —. (14,756)
Retained earnings ...... ... it i 896,947 747,691
Accumulated other comprehensive income. ................... S 41,883 45,832
Total shareholders’equity . . ......... ... ... .. .. .. i i i 1,650,761 1,661,513
Total liahilities and shareholders’equity ........................... Lo $2935340  $2,696,325

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of U.S. dollars except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended December 31,

. 2006 2005 2004
Revenues -
Gross Written Premiums . ... ovvevreeilvennenennnenenenen oo $ 325670 $252,100 §$ 190,871
Ceded premiums . ...... ...ttt aanns, (6,998) (34,778) (111,301)
Net Written PremiUmms . ... vuvrvre e vt et e e e aaenns 318,672 217,322 79,570
(Increase) decrease in net unearned premium reserves ........... (112,018)  (18,598) 108,294
Netearned premiums . . ... ... ...ttt iiiiiinnannsn ‘ 206,654 198,726 187,864
Net InVesStmMeEnt TNCOINIE « .\ v\ vt e v rrenr e s rarrarrnrerernnnnns- 111,455 96,836 04,782
Net realized investment (losses) gains ..................... P (1,994) 2,248 11,989
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments . . . ... 5,524 (3,516) 52,460
OtherinCome ...ttt e aai i 419 240 820
Total CEVENUES . ... ...c.ovttr i iaeaneeeens 322,058 294,534 347,915
Expenses ' '
Loss and loss adjustment eXpenses .. .........ooceiinennnnenn . (6,756)  (69,564) (31,979)
Profit commission eXpense . . ..o iiii i 9,528 12,909 . 15541
AcqUISItION COSES. . .. oottt i e e 44,974 45,302 50,864
Other operating EXpenses. .. ........ e iiiiiaiisis [ 68,019 59,015 67,789
Interest eXPense . . ... int e e 13,772 13,520 10,735
@141 1=1 1. (o711 -1 A 2,547 3731 1,645
Total EXPEMSES . . ...\ v v veines et e e e e eeaa e 132,084 64,913 114,595
Income before provision for incometaxes....................... 189974 229,621 233,320
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Current. ..o e e e e i 18,644 45,477 16,106
Deferred ... . 11,596 (4,304) 34,426
Total provision for incometaxes......................... ..., 30,240 41,173 50,532
Netincome ... i 159,734 188,448 182,788
Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes
Unrealized holding losses on fixed maturity securities arising :
during theyear............ e (7.533) (29,658) {7,353)
Reclassification adjustment for realized losses (gains) included
IMMEeLINCOME ... . i e e 1,458 (1,815) (7,775)
Change in net unrealized gains on fixed maturity securities....... . (6,075)  (31,473) (15,128)
Change in cumulative translation adjustment.................... 2,544 (1,237 593
Changeincashflowhedge ..., ..ot (418) (418)- 12,310
Other comprehensive loss, netoftaxes ....................... (3,949) (33,128) * (2,225)
Comprehensive income. ............ ... ... ...l $ 155,785 $155320 '§ 180,563
Earnings per share: o '
Basic.......coviiiiiiinnt. e e $ 218 $§ 255 § 244
Diluted. . ... e $ 215 § 253§ 244
Dividends pershare..........cocvuinvrvinerinroreeaeaaiinn. $ 014 § 012 $ 006

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd,

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Treasury Accumunlated
Stock Additional Unearned Other Total
Common Held Paid-in Stock Grant Retained  Comprehensive  Shareholders’
. Stock In Trust Capital Compensation _Earnings Income Equity
Balance, December 31,2003 ... ......... $ 16,403 $ — $ 955,490 5 (5,479) $390,025 § 81,185 $1,437,624
Netineome. . . .ovvvinnneirnnnnnnn... — — - — 182,788 - 182,788
Dividends ($0.06 pershare)............. — — - — (4,558) — (4,538)
Common stock issuance. . .............. 750 - - — — — 750
Restricted stock issuance, net ., ......... 10 —_ 17,863 —_— - —_ 17,873
Recapitalization due to IPO ............ (16,403) _ 16,403 — — —_ S
Common stock repurchases. ,........... (3) — (5,983) —. —_ — (5,986)
Returnofcapital. . ................... = — (202,000) — — — (202,000)
Capital contribution .. ................ — — 78,892 — —_ — 78,892
Tax benefit for stock options exercised. . , . , —_ — 5,430 —_ — - 5,430
Tax basis step-up adjustment . .. .. ....... _— —_ 28,124 — - -— 28,124
Common stock heldintrust. ... ......... . — (7.850) — 7,850 — — —
Unearned stock grant compensation, net . . . - — — (9,100) — — (9,100}
Change in cash flow hedge, net of tax of . N
$6,629 — — —_ : — — 12310 12,310
Change in curnulative translation )
adjustment. ... .........inia.,. P — — — — 593 593
Unrealized loss on fixed maturity securities,
netoftaxof 3(7,134) . .......... e —_ - —~— — — (15.128) (15,128)
Balance, December 31,2004, . .. .. TN $ 757 $(7.850) § 894219 $ (6,729 $568,255 $ 78,960 ‘$1,527,612
Netincome. ...................0.0un —_ — —_ —_ 188,448 — 188,448
Dividends ($0.12 per share}. ............ — — — == (9.012) — (9.012)
Restricted stock issuance,net ...,........ 3 — 6,593 -_— _— — 6,596
Common stock repurchases. . .. ......... (1) — (19,0043 _ — — (19,014}
Share activity under option and incentive : )
plans,pet. ... ... ... ...l ..., (2) — (3.874) — — -— (3,876)
‘Tax benefit for stock options exercised. . . . . —_ — 4,064 - — - 4,064
Vesting of common stock held intrust . . . .. - 7.850 - (7,850} — - —
Unearned stock grant compensation, net . . . — — —_ (17 — - v - (177)
Change in cash flow hedge, net of tax of
S(225) e - — - - — (418) (418)
Change in cumulative translation -
adjustment. . ................ i — — - — - (1,237) (1,237)
Unrealized loss on fixed maturity securities, .
netof taxof $(9,107) ............... —_ - — — — (31,473) (31,473}
Balance, December 31,2005, .. .......... $ 748 § —  §881998 $(14,756) $747.691 $ 45832 $1,661,513
MNetineome. . ..o vvirr i e iiinenn. —_ — —_— —_ 159,734 —_ 159,734
Dividends ($0.14 pershare). . ........... — — - — (10,478) — (10,478)
Common stock repurchases. .. ........., * (65) — (170,998) - — -— (171,063)
Shares cancelled to pay withholding taxes. . . (1} -— (2,914) — — — - {2.915)
Stock options exercises .. .............. 1 — 2,544 _— — — 2,545
Tax benefit for stock options exercised. . . .. - —_ 170 - — —_ 170
Shares issued under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan ... ................. — — 501 — - — 501
Reclassification due to adoption of
FASIZ3R ............c0iiinnnnns {10) — (14,746) 14,756 — — .-
Share-based compensation and other. . .. .. 2 — 14,701 , - — . - 14,703
Change in cash flow hedge, net of tax of
S(225) .. - — —_ — —_ (418} . (418)
Change in cumulative translation '
cadjustment. ... e - — - — — 2,544 2,544
Unrealized loss on fixed maturity securities,
netof tax of (861}, . ............... — — - - — - (6.075) {6,075)
Balance, Decernber 31,2006, .. ... ....... $§ 675 $ — $ 711,256 $ - $896,947 " § 41,883 $ 1,650,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Statements _i)f Cash Flows

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Operating activities

NeLineome . . . ... . i P

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Non-cash interest and Operating Xpenses . ..ot i i
Net amortization of premium on fixed maturity securities .. ................ ... ...
Goodwill impairment .. ... .. ... i
Provision (benefit) for deferredincome taxes. . .......... oo i i i i
Net realized investment fosses (gains). ... e
Change in unrealized (gains) losses on derivative financial instruments. .............
Change in deferred acquisitioncosts. . ............ .. ..o o i
Change in accrued inveSImMent ifCOME . ...t nes e

. Change in premiums receivable ... ... ... ... el
Change in due fromaffiliate ... ... . .
Change in prepaid teinsutance Premilms. .o oo v v vi it is i iaa i raiarrares
Change in unearned Premium FESEIVES . . .o v vt ittt ittt e iae i iiee e
Change in reserves for losses and loss adjustment

EXPEOSES, NEL . . oottt e e
Change in profit commissions payable .....0 ... ... i e
Change in value of reinsurance businessassumed. . ............ ... ... ool
Change in funds held by Company under reinsurance
F T T L

Change in CUITemt INCOME TAKES . ..ottt ittt et iae e eanes
Tax benefit for stock options exercised . . .. ... .o i i i i
Change in liability for lax basis step-up adjustinent ... s

Investing activities
Fixed maturity securities:
Purchases. . ... ..
Sl . . e e e
Maturities .. ........... e s e
(Purchases) sales of short-term investments, net. ..........0 .. .o o i
Net proceeds fromsale of subsidiary. ... ... ... .o il

Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities . .. .................. e

Financing activities
Repurchases of commonstock . ... ..o i i
Dividendspaid .. .. .. e e e
Proceeds from employee stock purchaseplan. . ... o Lol
Share activity under option and incentive plans ............ .. ... ..o ool
Tax benefit for stock optionsexercised . ....... ..o i i i i i e
Net procecds from issuance of Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures . . .
Dbl iS5 0SS, . vt h et e
Repayment of notes assumed during formation transactions .. ....... ... .. 000
Net proceeds from issuance of Senfor Notes. .. ... ... i it
Repaymentofnotepayable. ...... ... .. ... . o
Proceeds fromcashflowhedge. . ...... ..o o
Net cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities. . ... U,
Effect of exchange ratechanges ........... ... ... ... ... P
Decrease incash and cashequivalents . ..o o i i
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear .......... .. ... .. ... .,
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear. . .. ........... ... ... ... i il

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2008 2004
$ 159,734 § 188448 $ 182,788
15,455 7,062 10,629
6,075 7,026 . 8.825°
- - 1,645
11,596 {4,304) 34,426
1,994 (2,248)  (11,989)
{5.524) 3516 (52,460)
(23,587) (7,088) (7,690)
(1,519) (752) -1,124
(8,554) 7,808 23,166
- S 115,000
4,978 2,726 (4,230)
107,347 15878 ' (104,064)
(2927)  (18802) - (266,863)
(16,999) (8,678)- (8.311)
— — 14,226
2,226 (31,582) 41,133
10,201 1,559 (1,975)
- 4,064 5,630
(5,139) {746}, —.
6217 13470 (25,584)
261,574 177,357 (34,774)
(883,221)  (956.803)  (773.645)
656,958 727,016 780,505
16,495 14,675 15,657
(18,693) 60,011 (39,840)
— — 39,784
(22B461) _ (155,101) 22,461
(171,063)  (19,014) (5.986)
(10,458) (9,012) (4,558)
501 356 —
(424) (4,267) —
170 — —
149,708 — —
{1,500) - —
(2,000) — —
— — 197,300
— —  (200,000)
— — 19,338
(35,066)  (31,937) 6,094
548 (1,107) 832
(1,405) ~ (10,788)  (15387)
6,190 16,978 32,365
$ 4785 § 6190 § 16978




Assured Guaranty Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

1. Business and Organization

On April 28, 2004, subsidiaries of ACE Limited (“ACE”), completed an initial public offenng
(“IPO™) of 49,000,000 of their 75,000,000 common shares, par value $0.01 per share, of Assured Guaranty
Ltd. (the “Company”), formerly AGC Holdings Ltd. Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s common shares are traded
on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AGO”. The IPO ralsed approximately $840 1 mllllon
in net proceeds, all of which went to the selling shareholders.

On December 20, 2006, Assured Guaranty US Holdings lnc a subsidiary of the Company, completed
the issuance of $150.0 million Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures and used the proceeds
to repurchase 5,692,599 of the Company s common shares from a subsidiary of ACE. As of December 31,
2006 ACE owns apprommately 28% of the Company s'outstanding common shares.

Assured Guaranty Ltd. is a Bermuda based holding company which provndes through its operatmg
subsidiaries, credit enhancement products to the public finance, structured finance and mortgage markets.
Credit enhancement products are financial guarantees or.other types of support, including credit’ ‘
derivatives, that improve the credit of underlying debt obligations. Assured Guaranty Ltd. applies its credit
expertise, risk management skills and capital markets experience to'develop insurance, reinsurance and |
derivative products that meet the credit enhancement needs of its customers. Under a reinsurance -
agreement, the reinsurer, in consideration of a premium paid to it, agrees to indemnify another ipsurer,
called the ceding company, for part or all of the liability of the ceding company under one or more
insurance policies that the ceding company Has issued. A derivative is a financial instrument whose
characteristics and value depend upon the characteristics and value of an underlying security. Assured
Guaranty Lid. markets its products directly to and through financial institutions, serving the U.S. and
international markets. Assured Guaranty L'td.’s firiancial results include four principal businéss segments: -
financial guaranty direct, financial guaranty reinsurance, mortgage guaranty and other. These segments are
further discussed in Note 22.

Financial guaranty insurance provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty that protects the
holder of a financial obligation against non-payment of principal and interest when due. Financial guaranty
insurance may be issued to the holders of the insured obligations at the time of issuance of those
obligations, or may be issued in the secondary market to holders of public bonds and structured securities.
A loss event occurs upon existing or anticipated credit deterioration, while a payment under a policy occurs
when the insured obligation defaults. This requires the Company to pay the required principal and interest
when due in accordance with the underlying contract. The pnnc1pal types of obligations covered by the
Company'’s financial guaranty direct and financial guaranty assumed reinsurance businesses are structured
finance obligations and public finance obligations. Because both businesses involve similar risks, the
Company analyzes and monitors its financial guaranty direct portfoho and fmancral guaranty assumed
reinsurance portfolio on a unified process and procedure basrs

Mortgage guaranty insurance is a specrallzed class of credit insurance that prov1des protecnon to -
mortgage tending institutions against the default of borrowers on mortgage loans that, at the time of the
advance, had a loan to value in excess of a specified ratio. Reinsurance in the mortgage guaranty insurance
industry is used to increase the insurance capacity of the ceding company, to assist the ceding company in
meeting applicable reguiatory and rating agency requirements, to augment the financial strength of the
ceding company, and to manage the ceding company’s nsk profile. The Company provrdes mortgage
guaranty protection on an excess of loss basrs S

., . 1
. . . . !
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The Company has participated in several lines of business that arc reflected in its historical financial
statements but that the Company exited in connection with the IPO, including equity layer credit
protection, trade credit reinsurance, title reinsurance, and auto residual value reinsurance. These lines of
business make up the Company’s.other segment. ’ :

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

‘

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generaily accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expcnses durmg the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Ambounts presented prior to April 28, 2004, the IPO date, were prepared on an historical combined
basis, since Assured Guaranty Ltd. and its subsidiaries were included in the results of ACE. However, since
the entities are the same for all periods presented, the financial statements have been prepared and
reported on a consolidated basis. This presentation has no impact on the Company’s results of operations
or financial condition. Certain expenses reflected in the combined financial statements incurred prior to
April 28, 2004 include allocations of corporate expenses incurred by ACE, related to general and
administrative services provided to the Company, including tax consulting and preparation services,
internal audit services and liquidity facility costs. These expenseswere allocated based on estlmates of the
cost incurred by ACE to provide these services to the Company. -

All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain items in the prior year -
financial statements have been reclassified'to conform with the current year presentation. -

Management believes that the foregoing adjustments and allocations were made on a basis that is a
reasonable reflection of the historical results of the Company. However, these results do not necessarily
represent what the historical combined financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company would have been if the Company had been a separate and stand alone entity during the periods
presented.

Premium Revenue Recognitian

'Premiums are received either upfront or in installments. Upfront premiums are earned in proportion
to the expiration of the amount at risk. Each installment premium is earned ratably over its installment
period, generally one year or less. Premium earnings under both the upfront and installment revenue
recognition methods are based upon and are in proportion to the principal amount guaranteed and
therefore result in higher premium earnings durmg periods where guaranteed pr1nc1pal is higher. For ,
insured bonds for which the par value outstanding is declining during the insurance period, upfront
premium carnings are greater in the earlier periods thus matching revenue recognition with the undetlying
risk. The premiums are allocated in accordance with the principal amortization schedule of the related
bond issue and are eafned ratably over the amortization period. When an insured issue is retired early, is
called by the issuer, or is in substance paid in advance through a refunding accomplished by placing U.S.
Government securities in escrow, the remaining unearned premium reserves are earned at that'time. |
Unearned premium reserves represent the portion of premiums wntten that is appllcable to the unexplred
amount at risk of insured bonds,

Due to the customary lag (ranging from 30 to 90 days) in reporting premium. data by some of the
ceding companies, the Company must estimate the ultimate written and earned premiums to be received
from a ceding company as of each balance sheet date for the reinsurance business. Actual written
premiums reported in the consclidated statements of operations and comprehensive income are based
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upon reports received by ceding companies supplemented by the Company’s own estimates of premium for
which ceding company reports have not yet been received. Differences between such estimates and actual
amounts are recorded in the period in which the actual amounts are determined.

Investments : N S

' The Company accounts for.its investments in fixed maturity securities in accordance with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”)
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“FAS 115”). Management .
determines the appropriate classification of securities.at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2006
and 2005, all investments in fixed maturity securities were.designated as-available-for-sale and are carried
at fair value with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income. The fair values
of all the Company’s investments are calculated ffom independent market quotations,

The amortized cost of fiXed maturity securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion
of discounts computed using the effective interest-method. That amortization or accretion is included in
net investment income, For mortgage-backed securities, and any other holdings for which there is
prepayment risk, prepayment assumptions are evaluated and revised as necessary. Any necessary
adjustments required due to the resultmg change in effective yields and maturities are recogmzed in
current income. S S :

' Realized gains and losses on sales of invéstments are determined using the spec1f1c identification
method. Unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of apphcable deferred income taxes, are included
in accumulated other comprehenswe income in shareholders equlty The Company has a formal review
process for all securities in its investment portfolio, mcludmg a revrew for impairment losses. Factors
considered when assessmg 1mpaument mclude ‘

* adecline in the market value of a securlty by 20% or, more below amortized cost for a continuous
period of at least six months;

e adecline in the market value of a security for a contrnuous period of 12 months;
o recent credit downgrades of the apphcable security or the issuer by rating agencies;
. . B I ' I3 N M 1

» the financial condition of the applicable issuer; : : . . . \

¢ whether scheduled interest payments are past due; and

. whether the Company has the abrhty and infent to hold the securlty for a sufficient’ penod of time to
allow for anticipated recoveries in fair value.

If the Company believes a decline in the value of a particular investment is temporary, the decline is
recorded as an unrealized loss on the balance sheet in accumulated other comprehensnve income in
shareholders’ equity. If the Company believes the decline is “other than temporary,” the Company will
write down the carrying value of the investment and record a realized loss in its consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensrve income. The Company’s assessment of a decline in value includes
management’s current assessment of the factors noted above. The Company also seeks advice from its
outside investment managers, If the Company’s assessment changes in'the future, the Company may
ultimately record a Ioss after havmg orlgmally concluded that the declme in value was temporary.

Short-term mvestments are recorded at cost, which approxrmates fair value. Short-term mvestments
are those with original maturities of greater than three months but less than one year from date of
purchase .

Cash and Cash Equwalents

The Company classifies demand deposrts as cash. Cash equwalents are, short term, hrghly liquid -
investments with original maturities of three months or less. ‘

‘
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 Deferred Acquisition Costs I . G .

+ Aequisition costs incurred, other than those associated with credit derivative products, that vary with
and are directly related to the production of new business are déferred and amortized in relation to riet
earned premiums. Costs that are deferred and amortized include direct and indirect expenses such as
commissions, brokerage expenses and costs of underwriting and marketing personnel. The Company’s
management uses judgment in determining what types.of costs should be deferred, as well as the amount
of these costs that should be deferred. The Company periodically conducts a study to determine the
amount of operating costs that vary with, and are directly related to, the acquisition of new business and
therefore qualify for deferral. Ceding commissions received on premiums ceded to other reinsurers reduce
acquisition costs. Anticipated losses, loss adjustment expenses and the remaining costs of servicing the
insured or reinsured business are considered in determining the recoverability of acquisition costs.
Acquisition costs associated with credit derivative products are expensed as incurred. When an insured
issue is retired early, is,called by the issuer, or is in substance paid in advance through a refunding
accompllshed by placing U. S. Government securities in escrow, as.discussed above in the Premium ‘
Revenue Recognmon section, the related deferred acqursmon cost is expensed at that time.

~

Reserves for Losses and Loss Aa!;ustment Expenses

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for non-derivative- transactrons in the Company 5
financial guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed reinsurance and mortgage guaranty business include
case reserves and portfolio reserves. See Note 4. Derivatives, for more information on the Company’s
derlvatlve transactions. Case rcserves are established when there is srgnlfrcant credit deteriorationon .~
specific 1nsured obligations and the obligatiops are in default or default is probable, not necessarily upon
non-payment of principal or interest by an insured. Case reserves represent the present value of expected
future loss payments and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE"), net of estimated recoveries, but before
considering ceded reinsurance. This reserving method is different from case reserves established by
traditional property and casualty insurance companies, which establish case reserves upon notification of a
claim and establish incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) reserves for the difference between actuarially
estimated ultimate losses and recorded case reserves. Financial guaranty insurance and assumed
reinsurance case reserves and related salvage and subrogation, if any, are discounted at 6%, which is the
approximate taxable equivalent yield on the Company’s investment portfolio in all periods presented.
When the Company becomes entitled to the underlying collateral of an insured credit under salvage and
subrogation rights as a result of a claim payment, it records salvage and subrogation as an asset, based on
the expected lével of recovery. Such amounts are 1ncluded in the Company 5 balance sheet within
“Other assets.”

PR

The Company records portfoho reserves in its financial guaranty direct, financial guaranty assumed
reinsurance and mortgage guaranty busmess Portfoho reserves are established with respect to the port1on
of the Compaiy’s business for which case reserves have not been established. Portfolio reserves are not
established for quota share mortgage insurance contract types, all of which are in run-off; rather Case and
IBNR reserves have been establrshed for these contracts. -

Portfolio reserves are not estabhshed based on a spccrfrc event; rather they are calculatedby .
aggregating the portfolio reserve calculated for.each individual-transaction. Individual transaction reserves
are calculated on a quarterly basis by multlplylng the par in-force by the product of the ultimate loss and
earning factors without regard to discounting. The ultimate loss factor is'defined as the frequency of loss
multiplied by the severity of loss, where the frequency is defined as the probability of default for each
individual issue. The earning factor is inception to date carned premium divided by the estimated ultimate
written premium for each transaction. The probability of default is estimated from historical rating agency
data and is based on the transaction’s credit rating, industry sector and time until maturity. The severity is
defined as-the complement of historical recovery/salvage rates gathered by the rating agenc1es of defaulting
issues and is based on the industry sector.
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Portfolio reserves are recorded gross of reinsurance. We have not ceded any amounts under these
reinsurance contracts, as our recorded portfolio reserves have not exceeded our contractual retentions,
required by said contracts.

The Company records an incurred loss that is reflected in the statement of operations upon the
establishment of portfolio reserves. When the Company initially records a case reserve, the Company
reclassifies the corresponding portfolio reserve already recorded for that credit within the balance sheet.
The difference between the initially recorded case reserve and the reclassified portfolio reserve is recorded
as a charge in the Company’s statement of operations. It would be a remote occurrence when the case
reserve is not greater than the reclassified portfolio reserve. Any subsequent change in portfolio reserves
or the initial case reserves are recorded quarterly as a charge or credit in the Company’s statement of
operations in the period such estimates change. Due to the inherent uncertainties of estimating loss and
LAE reserves, actual experience may differ from the estimates reflected in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, and the differences may be material.

The Company also records IBNR reserves for its mortgage guaranty and other segments. IBNR is an
estimate of losses for which the insured event has occurred but the claim has not yet been reported to the
Company. In establishing IBNR, the Company uses traditional actuarial methods to estimate the reporting
lag of such claims based on historical experience, claim reviews and informatton reported by ceding
companies. The Company records IBNR for mortgage guaranty quota-share reinsurance contracts, all of
which are in run-off, within its mortgage guaranty segment. The Company also records IBNR for title
reinsurance, auto residual value reinsurance and trade credit reinsurance within its other segment. The
other segment représents li'ncs of business the Company has exited or sold prior to the IPO.

For all other mortgage guaranty transactions the Company records portfolio reserves in a manner
consistent with its financial guaranty business. While other mortgage guaranty insurance companies do not
record portfolio reserves, rather just case and IBNR reserves, the Company records portfolio reserves
because the Company writes business on an excess of loss basis, while other industry participants write
quota share or first layer loss business. The Company manages and underwrites this business in the same
manner as its financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance business because they have similar
characteristics as msured obligations of mortgage- -backed securities.

FAS No. 60, Accountmg and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises” (“FAS 607) is the authoritative
guidance for an insurance enterprise. FAS 60 prescribes differing reserving methodologies depending on
whether a contract fits within its definition of a short- duration contract or a long-duration contract.
Financial guaranty contracts have elements of long-duration insurance contracts in that they are
irrevocable and extend over a period that may exceed 30 years or more, but for regulatory purposes are
reported as property and liability i insurance, which are normally considered short-duration contracts. The
short- duration and long-duration cldsslflcatlons have different methods of accounting for premium
revenue and contract liability recognition. Addltlonally, the accounting for deferred acquisition costs
(“DAC") could be different under the two methods.

The Company believes the guidance of FAS 60 does not expressly address the distinctive
characteristics of financial guaranty insurance, so the Company also applies the analogous guidance of
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) [ssue No. 85-20, “Recogmtlon of Fees for Guaranteeing a Loan”
(“EITF 85-20"), which provides guidance relating to the recognition of fees for guaranteeing a loan, which
has similarities to financial guaranty insurance contracts. Under the guidance in EITF 85-20, the guarantor
should assess the probability of loss on an ongoing basis to determine if a liability should be recognized
under FAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“FAS 57). FAS 5 requires that a loss be recognized
where it is probable that one or more future events will occur confirming that a liability has been incurred
at the date of the financial statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

The Company is aware that there are certain differences regarding the measurement of portfolio loss
liabilities among companies in the financial guaranty industry. In January and February 2005, the
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Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff had discussions concerning these differences with a
number of industry participants. Based on these discussions, in June 2005, the FASB staff decided
additional guidance is necessary regarding financial guaranty contracts. When the FASB staff reaches a
conclusion on this issue, the Company and the rest of the financial guaranty industry may be required to
change some aspects of their loss reserving policies, but the Company cannot currently assess how the
FASB or SEC staffs’ ultimate resolution of this issue will impact the Company’s reserving policy or other
balances, i.¢., premiums and DAC. Until the issue is resolved, the Company intends to continue to apply its
existing policy with respect to the establishment of both case and portfolio reserves.

Profit Commissions

Under the terms of certain of the Company’s reinsurance contracts, the Company is obligated to pay
the ceding company at predetermined future dates a contingent commission based upon a specified
percentage of the net underwriting profits. The Company’s liability for the present value of expected future
payments is shown on the balance sheet under the caption, “Profit commissions payable”. The
unamortized discount on this liability was $0.7 million and $1 4 mllhon as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries assume and retrocede
business with other insurance and reinsurance companies. These agreements provide greater
diversification of business and may minimize the net potential loss from large risks. Retrocessional
contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligation to the reinsured. Reinsurance recoverable on ceded
tosses includes balances due from reinsurance compames for paid and unpaid losses and LAE that will be
recovered from reinsurers, based on contracts in force, and is presented net of any prov1510n for estimated
uncollectible reinsurance. Any change in the provision for uncollectible reinsurance is included in loss and
loss adjustment expenses. Prepaid reinsurance premiums represent the portion of premiums ceded to
reinsurers relating to the unexpired terms of the reinsurance contracts in force.

Certain of the Company’s assumed and ceded reinsurance contracts are funds held arrangements. In a
funds held arrangement, the ceding company retains the premiums instead of paying them to the reinsurer
and losses are offset against these funds in an expenence account, Because the reinsurer is not in receipt of
the funds, the reinsurer earns interest on the experience account balance at a predetermined credited rate
of interest. The Company generally earns interest at fi xed rates of between 4% and 6% on its assumed
funds held arfrangements and generally pays 'interest at fixed rates of between 4% and 6% on its ceded
funds held arrangements. The interest earned or credited on funds held arrangements is included in net
investment income. In addition, interest on funds held arrangements will continue to be earned or credited
until the experience account is fully depleted, which can extend many years beyond the expiratior of the
coverage period.

Goodwill

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least annually in accordance with FAS No, 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible' Assets”. In the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company recognized a goodwill
1mpalrment of $1.6 million for the trade credit business which the Company exited as part of its [PO
strategy. No such impairment was recognized in the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2005. See Note 5.
Goodwill, for more mformatlon ‘

Income Taxes

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are subject to U.S. income tax. In accordance with FAS
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, deferred income taxes are provided for with respect to the
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and
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liabilities, using enacted rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Such
temporary differences relate principally to deferred acquisition costs, reserves for losses and LAE,
unearned premium reserves, unrealized gains and losses on investments, unrealized gains and losses on
derivative financial instruments and statutory contingency reserves. A valuation allowance is recorded to
reduce the deferred tax asset to that amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calcutated using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. In calculating diluted earnings per share, the shares issued are increased to
include all potentially dilutive securities. All potentially dilutive securities, including unvested restricted
stock and stock options are excluded from the basic earnings per share calculation. Basic and diluted
earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income by the applicable number of shares as described -
above. See Note 20. Earnings Per Share, for more information. '

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for its share based employee compensation plans
under the measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“*APB 25”) and related Interpretations, as permitted by
FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123™). During the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded no share-based employee compensation expense for
options granted under the Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan™)
as all options granted under that plan had exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Also, during the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company
recorded no compensation expense in connection with the Assured Guaranty Ltd. Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan™) as the purchase price of the stock was not less than 85% of the
lower of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the beginning of each offering peried or
at the end of each purchase period. In accordance with FAS 123 and FAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure” (“FAS 148”) the Company disclosed its net
income and earnings per share in the notes to consolidated financial statements as if the Company had
applied the fair value- based method in measuring compensation expense for its share-based incentive
programs. -

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FAS No. 123
(revised), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123R") using the modified prospective transition method. Under
that transition method, compensation expense includes: (a) compensation expense for all share-based
payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FAS 123, and (b) compensation expense for all
share-based payments granted on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of FAS 123R. See Note 19 for further discussion regarding the
methodology utilized in recognizing share-based compensation expense.

Variable Interest Entities and Special Purpose Entities

‘The Company provides financial guarantces in respect of debt obligations of special purpose entities,
including variable interest entities (“VIE’s”). The Company’s variable interest exists through this financial
guaranty insurance or credit derivative contract. The transaction structure generally provides certain
financial protections to the Company. This financial protection can take several forms, the most common
are over-collateralization, first loss protection (or subordination) and excess spread. In the case of over-
collateralization (i.e. the prmcnpa] amount of the securitized assets exceeds the principal amount of the
structured finance obligations guaranteed by the Company), the structure allows defaults of the securitized
assets before a default is experienced on the structured finance obligation guaranteed by the Company. In
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the case of first loss, the financial guaranty insurance policy only covers a senior layer of losses of multiple
obligations issued by special purpose entities, including VIE’s. The first loss exposure with respect to the
assets is either retained by the seller or sold off in the form of equity or mezzanine debt to other investors.
In the case of excess spread, the financial assets contributed to special purpose entities, including VIE’s,
generate interest cash flows that are in excess of the interest payments on the debt issued by the special
purpose entity. Such excess spread is typically distributed through the transaction’s cash flow waterfall and
may be used to create additional credit enhancement, applied to redeem debt issued by the special purpose
entity (thereby creating additional over-collateralization), or distributed to equity or other investors in the
transaction.

There are two different accounting frameworks applicable to special purpose entities (“SPE”); the
qualifying SPE (“QSPE”) framework under FAS 140; and the VIE framework under Financial
Interpretation (“FIN") 46R “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. The applicable framework
depends on the nature of the entity and the Company’s relation to that entity. The QSPE framework is.
applicable when an entity transfers (sells) financial assets to a SPE meeting certain criteria as defined in
FAS 140. These criteria are designed to ensure that the activities of the entity are essentially
predetermined in their entirety at the inception of the vehicle; decision making is limited and restricted to
certain events, and that the transferor of the financial assets cannot exercise control over the entity and the
assets therein. Entities meeting these criteria are not consolidated by the transferor or other counterparty,
as long as the entity does not have the unilateral ability to liquidate or to cause it to no longer meet the
QSPE criteria. SPE’s meeting all of FAS 140’ criteria for a QSPE ar¢ not within the scope of FIN 46 and
as such, need not be assessed for consolidation. When the SPE does not meet the QSPE criteria,
COﬂSDlldathH is assessed pursuant to FIN 46R. Under FIN 46R, a VIE is defined as an entity that is not
assessed for consolidation by determining which party maintains a controlling financial interest. As such, a
VIE (i) lacks enough equity investment at risk to permit-the entity to finance iits activities without
additional subordinated financial support from. other parties, (ii) its equity owners lack the right to make
significant decisions affecting the entity’s operations, and (iii} its equity owners do not have an obligation
to absorb or the right to receive the entity’s losses or returns. FIN 46R requires a variable interest holder
(e.g., an investor in the entity or a financial. guarantor) to consolidate that VIE if that holder will absorb a
majority of the expected losses of the VIE, receive a majority of the residual returns of the VIE, or both.
The Company determines whether it is the primary beneficiary of a VIE by first performing a qualitative
analysis of the VIE that includes, among other factors, its capitai structure, contractual terms, which
variable interests create or absorb variability, related party relationships and the design of the VIE. When
qualitative analysis is not conclusive the Company performs a quantitative analysis. To date the results of
the qualitative and quantitative analyses have indicated that the Cémpany does not have a majority of the
variability and as a result these VIE'’s are not consolidated in the Company’s financial statements.

Qualifying Special Purpose Entmes

Durmg 2006, the Company issued a financial guaranty on financial assets that were transferred into a
special purpose entity for which the business purpose of that entity was to provrde a financial guarantee
client with funding for their debt obligation. This entity met the characteristics of a QSPE in accordance
with FAS 140. QSPE:s are not subject to the requirements of FIN 46R and accordingly are.not consolidated
in the Company’s financial statements. QSPEs are legal entities that are demonstrably distinct from the
Company, and neither the Company, nor its affiliates or its agents can unilaterally dissolve the QSPE. The
QSPE’s permitted activities are contractually limited to purchasing assets, issuing notes to fund such
purchases, and related administrative services. Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s insurance policy,
insurance premiums are paid'to the Company by the QSPE and are earned in a manner consistent with
other insurance policies, over the risk period. Any losses incurred would be included in the Company ]
consolidated stdtements of operauons
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3. Recent Aceounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments” (“FAS 155”) which amends FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and .
Hedging Activities” (“FAS 133”) and FAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial -
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“FAS 1407); and addresses issues raised in FAS 133 '
Implementation Issue No, D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Assets.” The primary objectives of FAS 155 are: (i} with respect to FAS 133, to address the -
accounting for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets-and (ii) with respect to FAS 140, eliminate
a restriction on the passive derivative instruments that a qualifying special purpose entity may hold.

FAS 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. Because its application is prospective, FAS 155 will not -
effect our financial position or our results of operations as of December 31, 2006. However, FAS 155 will: -
effect the Company’s accounting for transactions entered into subsequent to January 1, 2007. In particular,
FAS 155 will effect the Company 5 determmatlon of which transactions are derivative or non-derivative.

in nature. : i R

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertamty in Tncome
Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statemeént recognition and measurement of a tax’
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of FIN 48 is expected to*
in¢rease our January 1, 2007 retalnecl eammgs approximately $2.6 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“FAS 1575:).
FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. FAS 157 applies to other |
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously
concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute.
Accordingly, FAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. FAS 157 is effective for finantial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those
fiscal years. The Company plans to adopt FAS 157 beginning in the first quarter of 2008. Thé Company is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoptlon of FAS 157 w111 have on its resu]ts of operatlons or
financial position. ’ . Lo

In October 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 158, “Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit PenSion
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)”
(“FAS 158”). FAS 138 represents ‘the completion of the first phase in the FASB’s postretirement beneflts
accounting project. FAS 158 is effective for fiscal years endlng after December 15, 2006, for publlc entltles
and at the end of fiscal years ending after June 15, 2007, for all other entities. Since the Company has no
defined benefit pension or other postretlrement plans, FAS 158 will have no impact on the Company 5
results of operatlons or financial position. -

a

:

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Aeconntmg Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108™). SAB 108 provides guidance as to how errors should be
evaluated to assess materiality from a quantitative perspective. SAB 108 permits companies to initially
apply its provisions by either restating prior financial statements or recording the cumulative effect of
initially applying the approach as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1,
2006 with an offsetting adjustment to retained earnings. At December 31, 2006, the date of required
adoption, SAB 108 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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4. Derivatives

Certain products (principally credit protection oriented) issued by the Company have been deemed to |
meet the definition of a derivative under FAS 133 and FAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS 149”). These products consist primarily of credit
derivatives. In addition, the Company issued a few index based derivative financial instruments prior to
2004. FAS 133 and FAS 149 establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as
derivatives), and.for hedging activities. FAS 133:and FAS 149 require that an entity recognize all -
derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and measure those instruments
at fair value. If certain conditions are met, a derivative may be specifically designated as a fair value, cash
flow or foreign currency hedge. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the
inténded use of the derivative and the resulting designation. The Company had no derivatives that were
designated as hedges, except as described in Note 17. Long Term Debt, during 2006, 2005 and 2004. The
Company uses derivative instruments primarily to offer credit protection to others. The Company records
these transactions at fair value. Where available, the Company uses quoted market prices to fair value
these insured credit derivatives. If quoted prices are not available, particularly for.senior layer
collaterallzed debt obligations (“CDO”), the fair value is estimated using valuation models for each type of
credit protectlon These models may be developed by third parties, such as rating agency models, or may ,
be developed mternally, dependmg on the circumstances. These models and the related assumptions are
continually reevaluated by management and enhanced, as appropriate, based upon improvements in
modeling techniques and availability of more tlmely market information. The fair value of derivative
financial instruments reflects the estimated cost to the Company to purchase protection on its outstanding
exposures and is not an estimate of expected losses incurred. Due to the inherent uncertainties of the
assumptions used in the valuation models to determine the fair valué of these derivative products, actual
experienceé may differ from the estimates reflected in the Company’s consolldated financial statemems ?
and the dlfferences may be material.

The Company records premiums received from the issuance of derivative instruments in gross written
premiums and establishes unearned premium reserves and loss reserves. These loss reserves represent the .
Company’s best estimate of the probable losses expected under these contracts and are calculated in the
same manner as the Company’s financial guaranty business. See Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies,
Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses, for more information. Unrealized gains and losses on.
derivative financial instruments are computed as the difference between fair value and the total of the |
unearned premium reserves, losses and LAE reserve, premiums receivable, prepaid reinsurance premiums
and reinsurance iecoverable on ceded losses. Changes in unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial
mstruments are reflected in the consolidated statemients of operations and comprehensive income.
Cumulative unrealized gains are reflected as assets in the Company’s balance sheets. Unrealized galns and
losses resulting from changes in the fair value of derivatives occur because of changes in interest rates,
credit spreads, recovery raltes, the credit ratings of the referenced entities and other market factors. In the.
event that the Company terminates a derivative contract prior to maturlty as a result of a decision to exit a
line of business or for risk management purposes the unreallzed gain or loss will be reallzed through
premiums eamed and losses incurred. .

'
’ . T [l

[ P
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The Company recorded a pre-tax net unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments of $5.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2006, a pre-tax net unrealized loss on derivative financial
instruments of $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, and a pre-tax net unrealized gain on

_derivative fmanc1al mstruments of $52.5 mllllOH for the year ended December 31, 2004, .

The following table summarizes activities related to derivative financial instruments (in thousands of
U.S. doliars):

1
) 1

2006 * 2008 2004

Balance sheets as of December 31, .

Assets: : S ’ : ‘ .
Premiumsreceivable .. ... ..o o e © $ 18,792 $16,199 § 16,455
Prepaid reinsurance premiums . ... .. ... U S PR T 2,964 3,005 3,427
Unrealized gains on derivative financial instruments . .......... e - 52,596 53,037 73,157
Liabilities: - S to

Unearned premilil [ESEIVES ... v\ iteie e e eiiiene e aaeeeanninnns - 13,508 12,548 14,050
Reserves forlossesand LAE ......... i R - . 4,743 11,045 19,005
Unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments........ e 0,687, 12,652 . 29,256
Net asset—fair value of derivative financial instruments .. . .. oo 549414 83599 § 30,728
Statements of operations for the years ended December 31, o ' . .
Net written Premiums . ... ..ottt e i i e e eveaas . $62,852  $58,207  §(35,066)
Net earned premiums ... ..o i e e e i L. 61,851 59,287 89,189 *
Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred . ....................... 18,079 5678  (16,213)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments ... ...... 5,524 « . (3,516) -52,460
Total impact of derivative financial instruments. . .................. .- 585454 $61,449  §125436
5. Goodwill ' | S , C L .

Goodwill of $94.6 million arose from ACE’s acquisition of Capital Re Corporation as of
December 31, 1999 and was being amortized over a period of twenty-five years. On January 1, 2002, the
Company ceased amortizing goodwill as part of its adoption of FAS 142 and now evaluates it for =~
impairment at least annually in accordance with FAS 142, :

The following table details -goodwill by segment as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

As of December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands of
U.S. dollars)

Financial guaranty direct ..... ... ... i e $14,748 $14,748
Financial guaranty TEINSUTANCE ... ... .eiut ittt i ree i ianeansas 70,069 70,669
MOIEAZE BUATAIILY. . ottt et ittt et e e et enianiansns — —
Other .. e e e — —
TOtal . e e e $85417 §85417

In the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company recognized a goodwill impairment of $1.6 million
in its other segment for the trade credit business which the Company exited as part of the [PO. This
impairment charge is presented in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income under other expense. No such impairment was recognized in the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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6. Statutory Accounting Practices v

These consolidated financial statements are prepared ona GAAP basis, which differs in certain
respects from accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the insurance regulatory authorities,
including the Maryland Insurance Administration, the New York State Insurance Department as well as
the statutory requirements of the Bermuda Monetary Authority. -

The Company’s U.S. domiciled insurance companies prepare statutory financial statements in
accordance with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC”) and their respective Insurance Departments. Prescribed statutory accounting
practices are set forth in the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual. There are no permitted
accounting practices on a statutory basis. The combined capital and statutory surplus of the Company’s
U.S. domiciled insurance companies was $316.4 million and $325.6 million as of December 31, 2006 and
2003, respectively. The statutory combined net income of the Company’s-U.S. domiciled insurance
companies was $66.0 million, $103.0 million and $107.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively,

Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. (“AG Re”) a Bermuda regulated Class 3 insurer and Long-Term insurer
prepares its statutory financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles set forth in The
Insurance Act 1978, amendments thereto and Related Regulations. The statutory capital and surplus of
AG Re was $693.6 million and $651.7 million as of December 31, 2006 and-2005, respectively. The
statutory net income of AG Re was $91.7 million, $88.3 million and $39.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

7. Insurance in Force

-As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, net financial guaranty par in force, inciuding insured credit
default swaps (“CDS”), was approximately $132.3 billion and $102.5 billion, respectively. The Company’s
2006 reinsurance par outstanding on facultative business is reported on a current quarter basis-while 2005
is reported on a one-quarter lag. The portfolio was broadly diversified by payment source, geographic
location and maturity schedule, with no single risk representing more than 1.1% and 1.1% of the total net
par in force as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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The composition of net par in force by bond type was as follows:

L 1 1 . . LA Lo [ L
' ' As of
: . ] g ) , December 31,
| . ‘ . - 7006 2005
. W I (in billions of
: I U.S. dollars)

' U.S. public finance: .
General obligation......... Pt e e . $127 $120
‘Tax-backed ... DO B 118 - 107
" Municipal utilities ......... e B e e e e e . 9.7 104
Healthcare.................... ... i e e 66 60
TrRanSPOTLALION . . . .\ttt e e ettt n e e e e et et iaeaeaens e 63 6.4
Investor-owned utilities. .., .o..ouu..s e e e L '1.6_‘,__ 14
Higher education.......... e e ieaiea e - 13-, 12
Housing ........ovvviiiiiiiiinienn.. e e L1101
Structured municipal. . . .. e e e e e 06 . .08
Other public finance . ....... e SO e 0.6 08

Total U.S. public finance ....................c00ael e e 52.3 50.8
U.S. structured finance: ' ’ . - A ‘ o
Collateralized debt obligations ........... ..ot i 268 203
Mortgage-backed and home equity. . ... ... i i i i e 114 . .=+ 9.8
Commercial receivables ............... e e 7.9 4.4
Consumer receivables........................... e e 27 24
Other structured finance. ... . .. e e e e 28" 1dT
. Total U.S. structured finance......... e e 516 - 386
International: _ ' v
Other structuréd finance. . . . . . e i e 99 ' 55
TNFrastructure ... ..o.voeesee e ee e e PO ' 83 ' 36
Public'finance .. .............. U ST e 60" " 13
Collateralized debt obligations ....... ... ... i i 4.2 2.7
Total international. ....... R A SO P ©o 284 13l
. Total eXposures ...t $132.3 §102.5

Maturities for public finance obligations rarige from 1 to 50 years, with a weighted average life of 15
years. Structured finance transactions have legal maturities that range from 1 to 41 years with a weighted -
average life of 8 years. CDS transactions are included in all structured finance categories and tax-backed
and investor-owned utilities categories in public finance.
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The portfolio contained exposures in each of the 50 states and abroad. The distribution of net
financial guaranty par outstanding by geographic location is set forth in the following table:

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Net par % of Net par Net par % of Net par

outstanding outstanding outstanding outstanding
(in billions of U.S. dollars) ]

Domestic: :

“California. .......... e $ 76 - 57% $ 73 1.1%
NewYork ... i e 59 4.4% 5.6 55%
Texas ... o 32 2.4% 34 3.3%
Ilinois ... : 3.0 2.3% 31 3.0%
Florida:............... N 28 2.1% 2.7 " 2.6%
Massachusetts. ........c.ooviiieiiii i 2.6 20% - 2.6 " 2.6%
Pennsylvania .. ........ooeeiveneeraiannn.. L2 1.6% 22 1 22%
Washington.................. S - 2.0 1.5% - 20 1.9%
New Jersey ........... e B 2.0 1.5% " 23 2.2%
Puerto RiCO......ovvnivnie i 1.7 1.3% 1.6 - 1.6%
Otherstates. ................. S 19.4 14.7% 18.0 17.5%
Mortgage and structured (multiple states) ...... 516 39.0% 38.6 37.7%
. Total domestic exposures. .. ................ . 103.9 78.5% 89.4 87.2%

International: ' .
United Kingdom ............................ 18.9 14.3% 7.5 13%
13501 F:1 ) 3.0 2.3% - 04 - 04%
Australia ...l o 11 0.8% 09 . 0.9%
Turkey ..o 0.7 0.5% ! 0.5 . 0.5%
Ireland . ... 0.4 0.3% 04 . 04%
Other ...t 4.3 33% 34 3.3%
Total international exposures ............... 284 21.5% 131 12.8%
Total exposures ....... TN s $132.3 100.0%  $102.5 100.0%

The fo'l.l'c)wing table sets forth the net financial guaranty par outstanding by underwriting rating£ ‘

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
. . Net par % of Net par Net par % of Net par
th[ngs_!l[ S _— a0 outstandlng o(l;;s:)aiﬁ?(::gofU(.);_tfj‘:]l;:::)g outstanding
AAA.... .. . ... Ll T 8570 43.1% $ 345 33.7%
AAY ... .. LT N . 230 - 174% 20.0 19.5%
N 328 249% - 303 20.5%
BBB ... 18.2 13.7% 16.4 16.0%
Below investmentgrade .......... ... .. oL 1.3 0.9% 13 1.3%
Total eXPOSUTIES .. .uvvvvevrve e vnieeinenns $132.3 100.0%  $102.5 100.0%

(1) These ratings represent the Company’s internal assessment of the underlying credit quality of the
insured obligations. The Company’s scale is comparable to that of the nationally recognized rating
agencies.

As part of its financial guaranty business, the Company enters into CDS transactions whereby one
party pays a periodic fee in fixed basis points on a notional amount in return for a contingent payment by
the other party in the event one or more defined credit events occurs with respect to one or more third
party reference securities or loans. A credit event may be a nonpayment event such as a failure to pay,
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bahkruptcy, or restructuring, as negotiated by the parties to the CDS transaction. The total notional-
amount of insured CDS exposuré outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and included in the:
Company’s financial guaranty éxposure was $49.4 billion and $27.7 biilion; respectively. .

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s net mortgage guaranty insurance in force
(representing the current principal balance of all mortgage loans currently reinsured) was-approximately
$1.8 billion and $3.0 billion, respectively, and net risk in force was approximately $1.8 billion and $2.3
billion, respectively. These amounts are not included in the above table. o -

8. Premiums Earned from Refunded and Called Bonds

Net eamned premiums include $11.2 million, $12.1 million and $17.4 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, related to refunded’and called bonds.

9, lnvestments '

3 .

The following table summarizes the Company’s aggregate investment portfolio as of December 31,

2006:
Gross Gross ‘
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost . _Gains | Losses v _Fair Value

{in thonsands of U.S, dollars)

Fixed maturity securities - ot ' :

U.S. government and agencies. . . . . e $ 256498 $ 6931 .8 (1,374) $ 262,055
Obligations of state and political subdivisions. . . ... 874,712 43,590 (906) 917,396
Corporate securities. . ........ ey 134,822 4,430 {1,163) 138,089
Mortgage-backed securities . .................... ' 732,481 3,971 (9,845) 726,607
Asset-backed SECUTIIES it ... .. ivu e rrnrrnnnnnns 242,809 235 (914) 242,130
Foreign government securities. .. o.....ooiivvunn -45,051 31 (288) 44,794
Total fixed maturity securities ... ............... - 2,286,373 - 59,188 (14,490). 2,331,071
Short-term investments. . .......ovoiierrinnnnn. - 134,064 — e 134,064
Total investments.............. P S $2,420,437 - "$59,188 - $(14,490) $2,465,135

The following table summarizes the Company’s aggregate investment portfolio as of December 31,
2005: '

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
- (in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Fixed maturity securities o . o . L

U.S. government and agencies. ................ v % 332662 ¢ § 8978 $ (1,369) .°§ 340,271
Obligations of state and political subdivisions. .. ... 819,450 . 46,850, (1,576) 864,724
Corporate Securities. ... .......oeeneeireann.. 127,272 6,264 (1,207) 132,329
Mortgage-backed securities .. ................... 643,162 3,601 (9,208) 637,555
. Asset-backed securities . ............ ol 141,619 128 {1,043y . 140,704
Foreign government securities. . ................. 18,198 303 (87 18,414
Total fixed maturity securities . .................. 2,082,363 66,124 (14,490) 2,133,997
Short-term investments. . .........coieeiniie . 115,826 - — 115,826
Total investments. .. ...oeee ey een s - $2,198,180  $66,124 $(14,490) $2,249,823
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Approximately 29% and 28% of the Company’s total investment portfolio as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively, was composed of mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”), including collateralized
mortgage obligations and commercial mortgage-backed securities. As of both December 31, 2006 and
2005, the weighted average credit quality of the Company’s entire investment portfolio was AAA.

The-amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale fixed maturity securities as of
December 31, 2006, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ.from
contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost .. _Fair Value

. (in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Duewithinonevyear ...............ccovaiiiiiinninn '$ 25099 $ 25015
Due after one year through fiveyears ................... 396,701 399,278
Due after five years through ten years ................... 340,808 349,761
Due.aftertenyears ........... e e U P 791,284 830,410
Mortgage-backed securities. ............. ool 732,481 726,607 :
8 0 $2,286,373  $2,331,071

Proceeds from the sale of avallable for-sale f]XCd maturity securities were $657.0 million,
$727.0 million and $780.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Net realized invéstment (losses) gains consisted of the following:

' | . For the YEI;I‘S Ended Cf
* December 31,
, 2006 __ 2005 2004
t ‘. (in thousands of U.S. dollars)
: L T 173 $ 2467 § 5471 $14,296
T LOSSES v.iiiieinaas S (4461) (3,223) (2,307)
Other than temporary impairments . ............... = = e— -
. Netrealized investment (losses) gains............ $(1,994) $ 2,248 $11,989

The chz_mge in net unrealized gains of available-for-sale fixed maturity securities consists of:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
. 2006 2005 2004
* N ’ {(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Fixed maturity securities .................ooon... $(6,936) $(40,580) $(22,262)
Less: Deferred income taxbenefit................ (861) (9,107) . .(7,134)
Change in net unrealized gains on fixed maturity ‘

= e)) 1 51 P - $(6,075) $(31,473) $(15,128)
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The following tables summarize, for all securities in an unrealized loss position as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time the amountshave
continuously been in an unreaiized loss position.

. As of December 31, 2006
Less than 12 months . | 12 months or more . Total

Fair Unrealized -  Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value loss value loss ' value loss
({in millions of U.S, dollars}
U.S. government and agencies. ... ... $ 531 $(0.5) $592 § (09) 81123 § (14)
Obligations of state and political ' L
subdivisions........... P - . 886 - (0.5 24.0 (0.4) 112.6 (0.9)
Corporate securities. . ............... 12.2 — 45.5 (1.1) 577 (1.1)
Mortgage-backed securities . ......... 143.6 (1.9) 306.2 (7.9 449.8 (9.8)
Asset-backed securities.............. 79.6 (0.1) 765 . (09) 1561 - (1.0)
Foreign government securities. ....... 38.2 ©2) _ 32 (0.1 41.4 (0.3)
Total............... e 34153 $(32)  $5146  $(1L3) $929.9  $(14.5)
As of December 31, 2005
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
i value loss . value loss value loss
. (in millions of U.S, dollars)
U.S. government and agencies. ....... S$169.2  § (1.0) § 132 $(04) 51824 % (1.4)
Obligations of state and political :
subdivisions. ... ....... P 1151 . (1.2) 13.1 (0.4) 1282 (1.6)

Corporate securities. .. .............. . 341 0.6) - 142 (0.6) 48.3 (1.2)
Mortgage-backed securities .......... 334.1 (6.3) 89.3 (2.9) 4234 (9.2)
Asset-backed securities.............. 121.5 (1.0) 0.4 —_ 121.9 (1.0)
Foreign government securities. .-...... 0.7 — . 26 (0.1 33 (0.1)
Total..........0ooviit, P $774.7  $(10.1) $132.8 $(44) $907.5  $(14.5)

The above balances include 224 and 207 fixed maturity securitiés as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Company has considered factors such as sector credit ratings and industry analyst reports
in evaluating the above securities for impairment. The Company has concluded that these securities are
not other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, since it has the ability and intent
to hold these securities until they recover their value or until maturity.

Net investment income is derived from the following sources:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
. i o ) (in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Income from fixed maturity securities ............. ... $105,886 $95,680 $94,246
Income from short-term investments .. ..............covveiiiiinin 7,927 3,624 2,676
Grossinvestmentincome . ... ... it 113,813 99,313 96,922
Less: Investment eXpenses .. ...ttt e .. (2,358) - (24771 . (2,140}

Net investment income .............. e $111,455 - $96,836 $94,782

Under agreements with its cedants and in accordance with statutory requirements, the Company.
maintains fixed maturity securities in trust accounts of $610.5 million and $552.8 million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, for the benefit of reinsured companies and for the protection of
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policyholders, generally in states in Wthh the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable, are not licensed
or accredited. .

As part of its insured CDS business, the Company is party to certain coritractual agreements that
require collateral to be posted for the benefit of either party depending on ratings of the parties to the
agreement and changes in fair value relative to applicable specified thresholds of the insured swap
transactions. As of Decémber 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company posted collateral of $0.9 million and $1.8
million, respectively, for the benefit of CDS customers.

The Company is not exposed to significant concentrations of credit risk within its investment portfolio.

No material investments of the Company were non-income producing for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
10. Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The following table prowdes a reconciliation of the begmnmg and ending balances of reserves for
losses and LAE:

. - - For the Years Ended December 31,
I o ) ‘ 2006 2005 2004

: t ] {in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Balance as of January 1............. e e e $128,421 $ 236,202 § 544,211
Less reinsurance recoverable.............. o e (12,350)  (120,220) (122,124)
Netbalance asof January 1 ........ ... i i ... 116,071 115,982 422,087
Transfers to case reserves from portfolio reserves................ 733 13,747 581
Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses pertaining to case
and IBNR reserves: '
LT Dy ) 11 . O s 772 10,609 56,666
. Prioryears.................. P (13,028) (76,683) (81,259)
co . C , (12,256) (66,074} (24,593)
Transfers to case reserves from portfolio reserves......... e (733) (13,747) (581)
Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses pertaining to _ :
pOrtfollO reSEIVES .. . ..ot e 5,500 (3,490) (7,386)
Total incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses ............ . (6,756) (69,564) (31,979)

Loss and loss adjustment expenses paid and recovered
pertaining to: . : ' _ .
(O3 (=131 =7V S (20) (143) {50,623)

Prioryears. ... ..ottt ©355 0 77,340 - (190,960)

) 335 77,197  (241,583)

Value of reinsurance business assumed . ... ...........co.iie.... — — {14,226)

Change in salvage recoverable.....................oiina., 42 (2,497) (11,919)

Transfer title reSErves ... ...t i e o = —  (6,620)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) onreserves.................... ... 19 (5,047y 222
Netbalance asof December 31 . ... ovvir i i iiiineneanin. 109,711 - 116,071 115,982
Plus reinsurance recoverable . ... ... ... i i e 10,889 12,350 120,220
Balanceasof Decembeér 3l ... ..o e $120,600 $ 128,421 §$ 236,202

The difference between the portfolio reserve transferred to case reserves and the ulnmate case
reserve recorded is included in current year incurred amounts, a

The financial guaranty case basis reserves have been discounted using a rate of 6% in 2006, 2005 and
2004, resulting in a discount of $9.6 million, $10.7 million and $18.4 million, respectively.
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The favorable prior year development in 2006 of 313 0 million is primarily due to $13.5 million of loss
recovertes from third party 11t1gat10n settlements.

In 2004 the favorable prior year development of $81 3 million is pnmarlly related to the reduction of
loss reserves associated with the exiting of certam lines of busmess in connection with the IPO.

The favorable prior year development in 2005 of $76.7 million is primarily due to $71.0 million in loss
recoveries from a third party litigation settlement agreement, with two parties, relating to a reinsurance
claim incurred in 1998 and 1999 as well as a $2.4 million recovery related to the equity layer credit .
protection business. Further contributing to the favorable prior year development is changes in credit’
quality and from continued runoff from maturing CDO exposures, as well as management updating its loss
reserving data, as part of the, Company’s normal portfolio reserve process, to include the most current
rating agency default studies.

Reinsurance recoverables and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves decreased in 2005 compared
with 2004 due to a quota share retrocession agreement that the Company entered into on April 28, 2004
with ACE INA Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. (“AIOIC”), a subsidiary of ACE, whereby it ceded
100% of any potential losses associated with an action filed by World Omni Financial Corp. (“World
Omni”) against AG Intermediary Inc. and AGRO, subsidiaries of the Company, for a premium of $32.2
million. The matter was settled on December 15, 2005 between AIOIC and World Omni. Upon settlement,
the Company released $54.2 million of reinsurance recoverables and loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves, representing its entire obligation to World Omni (see Note 15. Commitments and
Contingencies). Also contributing to the decreases was $53.3 million of released reinsurance recoverables
and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, due to the run-off and novation of the Company’s trade
credit business, which is included in the Company’s other segment.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses (recelved) paid, were $(0.3) million, $(77. 2) million and $241.6
million, respectwely, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The loss recovery of $ 0.3
million in 2006 is due to $13.5 million of net recoveries from third party litigation settlements. These
recoveries were primarily offset by loss payments of which two of the largest were made ona U.S.
Infrastructure transaction and a European Infrastructure transaction. The loss recovery of $ 77.2 million in
2005 is primarily due to $71.0 million in loss recoveries from a third party litigation settlement agreement,
with two parties, relating to a reinsurance claim incurred in 1998 and 1999 as well as a $2.4 million recovery
related to the equity layer credit protection business, mentioned above. Of the total net loss payments in
2004, $56.2 million related to equity layer CDO losses paid in those years. No amounts were paid in 2005
relating to equity layer CDO losses. .

11. Income Taxes

The Company and its Bermuda Subsidiaries are not subject to any income, withholding or capital
gains taxes.under current Bermuda law. The Company has received an assurance from the Minister of
Finance in Bermuda that, in the event of any taxes being imposed, the Company and its Bermuda
Subsidiaries will be exempt from taxation in Bermuda until March 28, 2016.

The Company’s U.S. subsidiaries are subject to income taxes lmposed by U.S. authorities and file U.S.
tax returns.

Prior to the IPO in April 2004, Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc. (“AGUS”), Assured Guaranty
Corp. (“AGC”), Assured Value Insurance Company (“AVIC”), an AGC subsidiary prior to its merger into
AGC in December 2006, AG Financial Products Inc. (“AGFP”) and AFP Transferor Inc. (“AFP”) had
historically filed their U.S. income tax returns in the consolidated U.S. tax return of its former shareholder.
For periods after April 2004, AGUS and its subsidiaries, AGC, AVIC (prior to merger into-AGC in
December 2006), AGFP and AFP file a consolidated federal income tax return. Assured Guaranty
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Overseas US Holdings Inc. (“AGOUS”) and its subsidiaries, AGRQO, Assured Guaranty Mortgage
Insurance Company, ACE Capital Title Reinsurance (for the period ending April 15, 2004) and AG
Intermediary Inc., have historically filed a consolidated federal income tax return. AGRO, a Bermuda
domiciled company, has elected under Section 953(d) of the Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as a U.S.
domestic corporation. Each company, as a member of its respective consolidated tax return group, has paid
its proportionate share of the consolidated federal tax burden for its group as if each company filed on a
separate return basis with current period credit for net losses. -

The following table provides the Company’s income tax provision and effective tax rates:

< . For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Current tax EXPENSe .. ....veurvirrreninirieees $18,644 $45477 $16,106
Deferred tax expense (benefit) . ............. ... 11,596 {4,304) 34,426
Provision for iNCOMeE taXxes. . ..o vrirrrrrrnernns $30,240 $41,173 $50,532
Effective taxrate .. ..., s 15.9% 17.9% 21.7%

Reconciliation of the difference between the provision for income taxes and the expected tax
provision at statutory rates in taxable jurisdictions was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Expected tax provision at statutory rates in taxable

jurisdictions . ... oo il $ 42494 § 52,390 - § 62,448
. Tax-exempt mterest ............................ (11,642) (11,570) (11,194)
Other . ...vovrni. SURCUR O (612) 353 (722)
Total provision for income taxes. ... .. e $ 30,240 § 41,173 $ 50,532

The deferred income tax liability reflects the tax effect of the following temporary differences:

As of December 31, -
2006 2003
‘ (in thousands of
- U.S. dollars}
i Deferred tax assets:
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses............ $15,558 $18,533
Taxandlossbonds ..... ... ..ot e 12,834 15,434
‘ Net operating loss carry forward. . ........... .. ... L 17,231 20,900
‘ Alternative minimum taxcredit .......... ... ... .. 727 - 1,811
‘ Tax basis StEP-UP .. vvvvvrenenraiaeiiaeiinnens L. P 10,639 13,287
‘ L1871 11~ SO AP 2,405 4,056
Total deferred income tax assets. ........ e, 59,394 74,021
Deferred tax liabilities: . ‘
| - Unrealized gains on derivative financial instruments ......... 12,220 11,243
| ' Deferred acquisition Costs . ........ovviiiiiniiianan.s 32,132 26,813
| Unearned premivim reserves. ... .o.vuuniniurrenrneaeniass 7,654 11,155
+ Contingency reserves .. .....cvvveiinnenn.. e 11,674 15,031
Unrealized appreciation on investments................... . 16,963 18,219
| L 11 13 S 11,657 11,189
Total deferred income tax liabilities. . ........................ 92,300 93,650
| Valuation allowance . .. ....vrviiien i iiieiiee e - 71,000 7,000
Net deferred income tax liability. . .......... .ot an, $39,906 $26,629
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As of Decenmiber 31, 2006, AGRO had a standalone net operating loss carry forward of $50.0 million,
which is available to offset future U.S. federal taxable income $29.3 million through 2017 and $20.7 million
through 2023. As a Section 953(d) company, any standalone net operating losses of AGRO are treated as
dual consolidation losses and are not permitted to offset the income of any other members of the
consolidated group. Management.believes it is more likely than not that $20.0 million of AGRO’s $50.0
million net operating loss will not be utilized before it expires and has established a $7.0 million valuation
allowance related to the net operating loss carryforward deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance is
subject to considerable judgment, is reviewed quarterly and will be adjusted to the extent actual taxable
income differs from estimates of future taxable income that may be used to realize net operatmg loss
carryforwards or capital losses.

Liability For Tax Basis Step-Up Adjustment _ o

In connection with the IPO, the Company and ACE Financial Services Inc. (“AFS”), a subsidiary of
ACE, entered into a tax allocation agreement, whereby the Company and AFS made a “Section 338
(h)(10)” election that has the effect of increasing the tax basis of certain affected subsidiaries’ tangible and
intangible assets to fair value. Future tax benefits that the Company derives from the election will be
payable to AFS when realized by the Company.

As a result of the election, the Company has adjusted its net deferred tax liability, to reflect the new
tax basis of the Company’s affected assets. The additional basis is expected to result in increased future
income tax deductions and, accordingly, may reduce income taxes otherwise payable by the Company. Any
tax benefit realized by the Company will be paid to AFS. Such tax benefits will generally be calculated by
comparing the Company’s affected subsidiaries’ actual taxes to the taxes that would have been owed by
those subsidiaries had the increase in basis not occurred. After a 15 year period, to the extent there
remains an ynrealized tax benefit, the Company and AFS will negotiate a settlement of the unrealized
benefit based on the expected realization at that time.

The Company initially recorded a $49.0 million reduction of its existing deferred tax liability, based on
an estimate of the ultimate resolution of the Section 338(h)(10) election. Under the tax allocation
agreement, the Company estimated as of the JPQ date, that it was obligated to pay $20.9 million to AFES
and accordingly has established this amount as a liability. The initial difference, which is attrlbutable to the
change in the tax basis of certain liabilities for which there is no associated step-up in the tax basis of its
assets and no amounts due to AFS, resulted in an increase to additional paid-in capital of $28.1 million.
The Company has paid ACE and correspondmgly reduced its Ilablllty, $5.1 mllhon and $0.7 mllhon in 2006
and 2005 respectively,

12. Analysis Of Preminms Written, Premiums Earned And Loss And Loss Adjustment Expenses

Ta limit its exposure on assumed risks, at the time of the [PQ, the Company entered into certain
proportional and non-proportional retrocessional agreements with other insurance companies, primarily
subsidiaries of ACE, the Company’s former parerit, to cede a portion of the risk underwritten by the ‘
Company. In ‘addition, the Company enters into rclnsurdncc agreements with non-affiliated companies to
limit its exposure to risk on‘an on-going basis,
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In the event that any or all of the reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations, the Company would
be liable for such defaulted amounts. Direct, assumed, and ceded amounts were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31
2006 2005 2004°
{in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Premiums Written

Direct. ..o $189,262 § 96,181 § (21,561) -
Assumed ... ... P 136,408 155,919 212,432
Ceded ...t (6,998)  (34,778) (111,301)
3 =3 2O $318,672 §$ 217322 § 79,570
Premiums Earned
DIreCt. oo $ 91962 §$ 77332 § 96,262
Assumed............ ... e 126,666 158,907 , . 198,673
Ceded -.........coviiiii e R (11,974 (37,513) _(107,071)
CNet. . ... $206,654 $ 198,726 § 187,864
Loss and loss adjustment expenses
Direct. ..o e $(15,556) § (4,547) § 37,971
Assumed ... ... 9,740 (132,491) 22,515
Ceded ... ..ot e C(940) 67,474 © _ (92,465)
Net, o e U $ (6,756) $ (69,564) $ (31,979)

The following table presents the affiliated and third party reinsurance recoverable balances on ceded
losses and provides Standard & Poor’s Inc., a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”)
ratings for individual reinsurers: ‘

As of December 31,

S&P

2006 2005 Rating_
(in thousands of US dollgrs)
ACE AMETICAN . .o\t iieeieeiee eeiiiaaran e aianeannns e $10,806 $12,266 A+
Other non affiliated. . ............. e 83 84 'BBB

Reinsurance recoverable on ceded lossand LAE ...................... $10,889 $12,350

Agreement with Fi.nancial Security Assurance Inc.

During 2005, AGC and AG Re, two of the Company’s subsidiaries, entered into a reinsurance
agreement with Financial Security Assurance Inc. (“FSA”) pursuant to which substantially all of FSA's
financial guaranty risks previously ceded to AGC (the “Ceded Business”) were assumed by AG Re. This .
agreement was effective as of January 1, 2005 and is consistent with the Company’s IPO strategy of AGC
ceasing to write new reinsurance business and transferring its existing reinsurance business to AG Re to
optimize capital utilization. In connection with the transaction, AGC transferred liabilities of $169.0
million, consisting primarily of unearned premium reserves. All profit and loss related items associated
with this transfer were eliminated in consolidation, with the exception of profit commission expense, -
certain other operating expenses, and provision for income taxes. Since this transaction transferred
unearned premium reserve from AGC, a U.S. tax paying entity, to AG Re, a non-U.S. tax paying entity,
the Company released a deferred tax liability related to differences between the book and tax carrying
amounts of unearned premium reserves which resulted in a tax benefit. The total impact of all these items
increased 2005 net income $1.9 million. FSA has released AGC from all liabilities with respect to the
Ceded Business. AG Re has assumed substantially all of AGC’s liabilities with respect to the Ceded
Business. FSA may receive a profit commission on the Ceded Business based on its future performance.
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FSA also reassumed from AG Re during 2005, approximately $12.4 million of unearned premium
reserves, net of ceding commissions, of healthcare related business with an approximate par value of
$820.0 million.

13. Insurance Regulations

AGC js a Maryland domiciled insurance company and a subsidiary of the Company. Under
Maryland’s 1993 revised insurance law, the amount of surplus available for distribution as dividends is
subject to certain statutory provisions, which generally prohibit the payment of dividends in any twelve-
month period in an aggregate amount exceeding the lesser of 10% of surplus or net investment income (at
the preceding December 31) without prior approval of the Maryland Commissioner of Insurance. The
amount available for distribution from the Company during 2007 with notice to, but without prior approval
of, the Maryland Commissioner of Insurance under the Maryland insurance law is approximately $28.6
million. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, AGC declared and paid $13.8 million and
$4.3 million, respectively, in dividends to AGUS. There were no dividends paid in 2004. Under Maryland
insurance regulations, AGC is required at all times to maintain a minimum surplus of $750,000.

AG Re’s and AGRO's dividend distribution are governed by Bermuda law. Under Bermuda law,
dividends may only be paid if there are reasonable grounds for believing that the Company is, or would
after the payment be, able to pay its liabilities as they become due and if the realizable value of its assets
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and issued share capital and share premium
accounts. Distributions to shareholders may also be paid out of statutory capital, but are subject to a 15%
limitation without prior approval of the Bermuda Monetary Authority. Dividends are limited by
requirements that the subject company must at all times (i) maintain the minimum solvency margin
required under the Insurance Act of 1978 and (ii) have relevant assets in an amount at least equal to 75%
of relevant liabilities, both as defined under the Insurance Act of 1978. The amount available at AG Re to
pay dividends in 2007 in compliance with Bermuda law is $599.6 million. However, any distribution which
results in a reduction of 15% of more of AG Re’s total statutory capital, as set out in its previous years
financial statements, would require the prior approval of the Bermuda Monetary Authority. During 2006,
AG Re declared dividends of $46.5 million and paid $42.6 million to its parent, Assured Guaranty Ltd.
During 2005, AG Re declared dividends of $19.4 million and paid $38.4 million to Assured Guaranty Ltd.
During 2004, AG Re declared dividends of $32.0 million and paid $13.0 million to Assured Guaranty Ltd.
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14. Related Party Transactions

The following table summarizes the activity with ACE subsidiaries (“affiliated”) and non-affiliated

entities for each line item where applicable in the income statements:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2006

2003 2004

{in thousands of U.S. dellars)

Net earned premivms
Non-affiliated:

$252,100 §$ 192,366

Gross Written premilms . ... ...vveveenenrenransans e $ 325,846
Ceded Written Premilims. . oo o et iaiir e e e icanans (2,872) (2,556) (3,858)
Net written premiums . ..... e e et e 322974 249,544 188,508
(Increase) decrease in net unearned premium reserves ........... (109,763)  (17,610) ' 91,842
Non-affiliated net earned preminvms . .................L........ 213,211 231,934 280,350
Affiliated: | ‘
Gross Writlen Premilms .. .. ..oouvnt e iaiiananraenaens (176) — (1,493%)
Ceded WHEIEN PrEMIMMS. . . .. ..ottt iiiniiaeieiaeronns (4,126}  {32,222) (107,443)
Net WEHTen Premilms . .o .v v ve et eert et iinan e icsanias (4,302) (32,222) (108,938)
(Increase) decrease in net unearned premium reserves .. .. .. e (2,255) - (986) - 16,452
Affiliated net earned premiums. .. ........ ... o0 (6,557) (33,208) - (92,486)
Total. ... e e 206,654 198,726 - 187,864
Net iNVEStMENT MNCOME . . .+« ve e eaeernneeaneiiaeraanenn. 111,455 96,836 94,782
Net realized investment (losses) gains . ...... e (1,994) 2,248 11,989
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments ' L a
Non-affiliated ............... e e e 5,524 {3,516) 47,276
Affiliated . ...t e e — .= 5,184
8 ] Y S Y 5,524 (3,516) 52,460
Otherincome ..........cooviiiiiiiirenian.. e 419 .., 240 820

Total revenues ............. e e e e $ 322,058

$294,534  $ 347,915
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' + » For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) -~
Loss and loss adjustment expenses
Non-affiliated . ... ... . i e $ (5,758) $(108,926) § 62,238
Affiliated ... .. e e (998) 39,362 (94,217)
Total. o e (6,756) (69,564)  (31,979)
Profit commission expense' . ' . . . ' .
Non-affiliated ........ e PO e P 9,684 ' 13,125 15,799
Affiliated .. ... e e (156) (216) * {258)
Total............ PP e .9,528 12,909 15,541 °
Acquisition costs ' B S B '
Non-affiliated .. ... i e e e e e - 45,690 46,853 56,780
Affiliated ................ e e (716) (1,551) (5,916)
TOtal. .ottt i e e 44974 . 45302, 50,864
Other operating Xpenses. .........v.vniteenieeinaeeaneaann. 68,019 59,015 67,789
Interestexpense ............covviinninnennas et e . 13,772 13,520 10,735
(010175 @15 (o153 1T . 2,547 . 3,731 1,645
Total eXPenses .. ........oiiieiiiiiai i 132,084 64,913 114,595
Income before provision for incometaxes....................... 189,974 229621 233,320
Total provision for income taxes .. .........ooviiiimin . . 30,240 41,173 50,532
Net income ........................ TR ' $159734 § 188,448 $182,788
The following table summarizes the affiliated components of each balince sheet item, wheré
applicable: ) ' ‘ ot ‘ ' ' '
As of December 31,
2006 2005
Gt Vo " : (in thousands of U.S. dollars)
Assets ] : : L
Prepaid reinsurance premiums .. ....o.ene oot e 3 644 $ 3,106
Reinsurance recoverable on ceded losses ...... e . 10,806 ) 12,266
Other assets. . . ovveree e e JUTI . 65 1,401
Total affiliate assets .................0 ...cccovvnennnn. e " o 11,515 16,773
Non-affiliate assets ................. TS UT SISO el oo 2923825 2,679,552
Total ASSetS . . ...t e v $2,935340  $2,696,325
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity ' ‘ ‘ o ,
Liabilities L - . .
Unearned premitm r8SeIVES . ..o vu'tvn s er e eeierateieatane e enaneannn, $§ 203 $ 2178
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expensés . ............ e 34 * 33
Funds held by Company under reinsurance agreemefits. . ............ P 21,412 19,186
Other liabilities............... R L 0 14,990 22,197
Total affiliate liabilities .. ..... DR . 38,472 43,594
Non-affiliate liabilities. ......... P e P 1,246,107~ 991,218
Total liabilities. . ........ et e i IR 1,284,579 1,034,812
Total shareholders’ equity(1). ................ ceeeet e P - 1,650,761 1,661,513
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ........ e e $2,935340 $2,696,325

(1} During December 2006, AGUS purchased 5,692,599 common shares of the Company from ACE.
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The following table summarizes the non-affiliated and affiliated components of cash flows from
operations:

For the Years Eﬁded December 31,

2006 2005 2004
. (in thousands of U.S. dollars}
Affiliated .. ...t i et e e $ (4551) $ (1,984) $ (1,449
Non-affiliated . ... .coiiri i e i 266,125 179,341 (43,325)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities. ........ $ 261,574 § 177,357 § (_44,774).‘
Affiliated . ..o e $ — 3 — §.39,784
Nom-affiliated .. ...t i i i i i e e (228,461)  (155,101) (17,323)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities ... ...... $(228,461) $(155,101) $ 22461
Affiliated® ...t e e e $(152,000) $ —  $(200,000)
Non-affiliated ..................oooiinit, P 116,934 (31,937y 206,094
Net cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities......... $ (35066) $ (31,937) § 6,094

* 2006 amount represents $150.0 million share repurchase from ACE and $2.0 million repayment of
notes issued in connection with IPO.

Transactions and Agreements with ACE

The Company and ACE were involved in the following transaction and reinsurance and service
agreements with subsidiaries of ACE as follows:

On April 15, 2004 Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. (“AGRO") (an indirect subsidiary of Assured
Guaranty Ltd.) sold 100% of the common stock of its subsidiary, ACE Capital Title Reinsurance
Company, to ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd., a subsidiary of ACE, for $39.8 million. There was no gain or
loss associated with the sale.

AGC and AGRO, effective April 1, 2004, entered into 1009 quota share retrocession agreement with
ACE American. ACE American reinsures both existing and new trade credit reinsurance busmess written
by these entities.

On April 28, 2004, AGRO commuted its remaining auto residual value reinsurance business and
transferred assets with a market value of $108.3 million to a subsidiary of ACE. This transaction caused a
$(6.5) million underwriting loss, offset by a $6.8 million realized gain from the asset transfer.

" During the time the Company was a subsidiary of ACE, it was party to a number of service
agreements with subsidiaries of ACE under which either the Company provided services to subsidiaries of
ACE, or they provided services to the Company. Since the IPO, many of these service agreements have ’
been terminated, though some still remain in place.

During 2006, 2005, and 2004 ACE provided certain general and administrative services to some of the
Company’s subsidiaries, including AGC, AG Re and AGRO. Those services prlmarlly included
information technology related services and tax consulting and preparation services. Expenses included in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements related to these services were $0.6 million, $0.9 million
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. . '

" Assured Guaranty Finance Overseas Ltd. and Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. (“AG (UK)”) obtained
staffing, payroll and related services from ACE INA Services (UK) Ltd. For the year ended December 31,
2004, the Company incurred $1.1 million in employee related expenses. Effective December 31, 2004 this -
arrangement was terminated.
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Non-Cash Capital Contribution o : ‘ ’

During 2004, ACE contrlbuted capital of $78.9 mllhon to the Company. This was a non-cash
contribution. The capital contribution in 2004 was  mainly comprised of $75.0 million of cumulative
monthly income preferred shares transferred to ACE, $3.5 million of the aocelerated vesting of options to’
purchase ordmary sharés, and other items related to the formation transactions due to the IPO. No such
contribution occurred during 2006 and 2005.

15. Conimitments and Continigencies

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to various lease agreements. As of December 31, 2006,
future minimum rental payments under the terms of these’ operating | leases for office space are $2.8 million
in 2007, $3.0 million in 2008, $1.7 million in 2009 $0.7 million in 2010, $0.5 million in 2011 and $2.5 million
thereafter. These payments are subject to escalatlons in building operating costs and real estate taxes. Rent

expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approx:mately $3.0 million, $3.1
million and $3.2 million, respectwely

On January 18, 2002, World Omni filed an action against AG Intermedlary Inc., a sub51d1ary of the '
Company, in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York entitled World Omni.
Financial Corp. v. ACE Capital Re Inc., Case No. 02 CV 0476 (RO). On September 20, 2002, World Omni
amended its complaint to add AGRO as a defendant. The dispute arose out of a quota share reinsurance
agreement between AGRO and JCJ Insurance Company (“JCJ”), an affiliate of World Omni, and an . . .
underlying residual value insurance policy issued by JCJ to World Omni, which insured residual value
losses of World Omni with respect to a portfolio of automobile leases. Subject to the terms and conditions
of the policy, the residual value insurance policy insures World Omni against losses (as defined in the
policy) resulting from the value of leased vehicles at the end of the applicable lease term being less than
what such value was assumed to have been at the inception of the applicable lease term. In the District
Court action, World Omni sought a declaratory judgment regarding AGRO’s coverage obligations, if any,
for such alleged losses, as well as damages for breach of contract based upon AGRO’s refusal to pay claims
asserted by World Omm ‘World Omni-sought $157.0 million, which is the limit of liability under the quota
share reinsurance agrcement plus interest. .

On April 28, 2004 the Company entered into a quota share retrocéssion agreement with AIOIC, a’
subsidiary of ACE, whereby it ceded 100% of any potential losses associated with the above litigation for a
premium of $32.2 million. The matter was settled on December 15, 2005 between AIOIC and World -
Omni. Upon settlement, the Company paid its $34.4 million funds held liability to AIQIC, Also in
connection with the settlement the Company released $54.2 million of reinsurance recoverable and loss
and loss adjustment expense reserves, representing its entire obligation to World Omni.

Lawsuits arise in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. It is the opinion of the Company’s
management, based upon the information available, that the expected outcome of these matters, '
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ‘financial
position, results of operatlons or liquidity, although arn adverse resolution of a number of these items could
have a material adverse effect on the Company s results of operatlons or liquidity in a partlcular quarter or
fiscal'year,

In the ordinary course of their respective businesses, cerfain of the Company’s subsidiaries assert
claims in-legal proceedings against third parties to recover losses paid in prior periods. The amounts, if
any, the Company will recover in these proceedings are uncertain, although recoveries in any one or more
of these proceedings during any quarter or fiscal year could be material to the Company’s results of
operations in that particular quarter os fiscal year. PR ‘ .

4
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In April 2005, AGC received a Notice of Order to Preserve (“Order”) from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance, State of Georgia (“Commissioner”). The Order was directed to “ACE
Limited, and all afflhates and requires the preservatlon of documents and other items related to “fmlte
1nsuranee >and a broad group of other insurance arid’ reinsurance agreements Also i in April 2005, AGC,
and niimerous other insurers, received a subpoena from the Commtssnoner related to the “initial phase” of
the Commissioner’s’ mvesttgatton into “finite-risk” transactions. The subpoena requested information on
AGC’s assumed and ceded reinsurance contracts in force during 2004. AGC provided the required
information in response to the subpoena in January 2006 and has not been asked by the Commtsstoner for
any further information.

Durmg 2006, the Company s wholly owned subsidiary, AGRO, and a number of other parttes
completed various settlements with defendants in the I re: National Centuty Financial Enterprises Inc.
Investment Litigation now pendmg in the United States District Court for'thé Southern District of Ohio -
Eastern District. AGRO received approximately $13.5 million (pre-tax) in 2006, from the settlements.
AGRO originally paid Clainis in 2003 of approximately $41.7 million (pre-tax) related to National Century
Financial Enterprises Inc. To date, including the settlements described above, the Company has recovered
$18.8 million (pre-tax), representing a partlal settlement of the lmgatton The litigation will continue -
against other parties. S R :

The Company is party to reinsurance agreements with most of the ' major monoline primary financial
guaranty insurance companies. The Company’s facultative and treaty agreements are generally subject to
termination (i) upon written notlce '(fanging from 90 to 120 days) prior o the specified deadline for -
renewal, (ii) at the option of the primary insurer if the Company fails to maintain certain financial,
regulatory and rating agency critéria which are equivalent to or more stringeat than those the Company is
otherwise required to maintain for its own compliance with state mandated insurance laws and to maintain
a specified financial strength rating for the particular insurance subsidiary or (iii} upon certain changes of
control of the Company. Upon termination under the conditions set forth in (ii) and (iii) above, the
Company may be required (under some of its reinsurance agreements) to return to the primary insurer all
statutory unearned premiums, less ceding commissions, attributable to reinsurance ceded pursuant to such
agreements aftér which the Company would be released from liability with respect to the céded business.
Upon the occurrence of the conditions set forth in (ii) above, whether or not ah agreement is terminated,
the Company may be required to obtain a letter of credit or alternative form of security to collateralize its
obligation to perform under such agreement or it may be obligated to increase the level of ceding .
commission paid.

During 2005 the Company recovered $71 O million relating to a reinsurance claim 1ncurred in 1998
and 1999. This recovery was received in connectton with the completion of two settlements. See Note 10
for further information. .+ -~ : .

16. Concentratlons ' ! ' :

The Company s.client base mcludes al] of the ma]or monoline primary financial guaranty insurance
companies, many banks and several European insurance and reinsurance companies. Of the Company’s
total gross premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2006 17.7% came from FSA. Of the
Company s total gross premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2005, 18.0% and 13.0% came
from FSA and Ambac Assurance Corporation (“Ambac”), respectively, two of the four monoline primary
financial guaranty insurance companies. In'addition, 10.3% of the'Company’s total gross premiums written
came from CGA Group Ltd. (“CGA”). The entire amount related to CGA was retroceded to a subsidiary
of ACE, Of the Company’s total gross premiums written for'the year ended Deceémber 31, 2004, 41.8%,
19.6% and 14.8% came from FSA, Ambac and MBIA Insurance Corporation, respectively, three of the
four monoline primary financial guaranty insurance companies. No other client represented more than
10% of the Company’s total gross premiums written for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004,
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17. Long-Term Debt

"The Company s consolidated financial statements inciude long-term debt used to fund the Company s
insurance operations, and relatcd mterest expense, as described below.’

| Semor Notes

On May 18 2(]04 AGUS a subsidiary of the Company, lssued $200.0 million of 7. 0% Senior Notes
due 2034 for net proceeds of $197.3 million. The proceeds of the offering were used to repay substantially .
all of a $200.0 million promissory note issued to a subsidiary of ACE in April 2004 as part of the IPO
related formation transactions. The coupon on the Senior Notes is 7.0%, however, the effective rate will be
approximately 6.4%, taking into account the effect of a cash flow hedge executed by the Company in
March 2004, The Company recorded interest expense of $13.4 million, $13.4 million and $8.4 million,
including $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.4 million of amortized gain on the cash flow hedge, for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by Assured Guaranty Ltd. . .

Series A Enhanced Juniar Subordinated Debentures

On December 20, 2006 AGUS issued $150.0 million of Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated
Debentures (the “Debentures”) due 2066 for net proceeds of $149.7 million. The Debentures are
guaranteed on'a junior subordinated basis by Assured Guaranty Ltd. The proceeds of the offering were
used to repurchase 5,692,599 of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s common shares from ACE Bermuda Insurance
Ltd., a subsidiary of ACE. The Debemures pay a fixed 6.40% rate 'of interest until December 15, 2016, and
thereafter pay a floating rite of interest, réset quarter]y, at a rate equal to 3 month LIBOR plus a margin
equal 10 2.38%,. AGUS may elect at one or more times to defer payment of interest for one or more
consecutive periods for up to tén years Any unpaid interest bears interest at the then applicable rate.
AGUS may not defer interest past the maturity date.

On any date on which accrued interest through the most recent interest payment date has not been
paid in full, whether because of an optional deferral or otherwise, AGUS and Assured Guaranty Ltd. will
not, and will not permit any subsidiary to, declare or pay any dividends or 4ny distributions on, or make any
payments of interest, principal or premium, or any guarantee payments on, or redeem, repurchase,
purchase, acquire or make a liquidation payment on, any of AGUS’s or Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s capital
stock, debt securities that rank equal or junior to the Debentures or the subordinated guarantees or
guarantees that rank equal or junior to the Debentures or the subordinated guarantees, other than pro rata
payments on debt securities that rank equally with the Debentures and the subordmated guarantees with
certain exceptlons

. - ‘o * v
P . Yooy 4

If AGUS has optionally deferred interest payments otherwise due on the Debentures, then following
the earlier of (i) the fifth anniversaty of the commencement of a deferral period or (ii) a payment, during a
deferral period, of current interest on the Debentures, AGUS and Assured Guaranty Ltd. must make
commercially reasonable efforts to sell qualifying warrants and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock.
If such efforts are successful, AGUS must pay optionally deferred interest out of the net proceeds from the
sale of such securities. AGUS cannot pay optionally deferred interest from sources other than the net
proceeds from the sale of such securities. AGUS’s and Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s obligation to make
commercially reasonable efforts to sell qualifying warrants and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock
to satisfy AGUS’s obligation to pay interest is subject to market disruption events and subject to certain
caps, and does not apply if an event of default with respect to the Debentures has occurred and is
continuing. ’
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In connection with the issuance of the Debentures, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and AGUS entered into a
replacement capital covenant (the “Replacement Capital Covenant”) in which Assured Guaranty Ltd. and
AGUS covenanted that (i) AGUS will not redeem or repurchase the Debentures and (i) Assured
Guaranty Ltd. will not purchase the Debentures, in each case on or before December 15, 2046, except,
subject to certain limitations, to the extent that the applicable redemption, repurchase or purchase price
does not exceed a specified amount of proceeds from the sale, during the 180 days prior to the date of that
redemption, repurchase or purchase, of common shares, rights to acquire common shares, and qualifying
capital securities.

Subject to the Replacement Capital Covenant, the Debentures may be redeemed in whole or in part,
subject to minimum amounts outstanding, at any time, on or after December 15, 2016, at the cash
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures to be redeemed, plus accrued and -
unpaid interest, togethet with any compounded interest, on such Debentures to the date of redemption
(the “par redemption amount”). AGUS may redeem the Debentures prior to December 15, 2016, in whole
but not in part, at a price equal to the greater of (i) the par redemption amount and (ii) the applicable
make-whole redemption amount.

The junior subordinated indenture governing the Debentures provides that only the following
constitute events of default with respect to the Debentures that give a right to accelerate the amounts due
under the Debentures: (1) default for 30 calendar days in the payment of any interest on the Debentures
when such interest becomes due and payable (whether or not such payment is prohibited by the
subordination provnslons) ‘however, a default under this provision will not arise if AGUS has properly
deferred the interest in connection with an optional deferral period, (ii) any non- payment of interest,
whether due to an optlonal deferral or otherwise, that continues for 10 consecutive years without all
accrued and unpaid interest (including compounded interest thereon) having been paid in full, such non-
payment continues for 30 days and Assured Guaranty Ltd. fails to make guarantee payments with respect
thereto, (iii) default in the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, on the Debentures when due,
or (iv) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency, or receivership, whether voluntary or not. Failure to
comply with covenants is not an event of default under the junior subordinated indenture for purposes of
declaring an acceleration of payment of the Debentures.

Credit Facilities _ .
2006 Credit Facility : ' ,

On November 6, 2006, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $300.0 ,
miilion five- -year unsecured revolving credit facility (the “2006 credit facility”) with a syndicate of banks, for
which ABN AMRO Incorporated and Bank of America Securities LLC acted as lead arrangers. Under the
2006 credit facility, each of AGC, AG (UK), AG Re, AGRO and Assured Guaranty Ltd. are entitled to
request the banks to make loans to such borrower or to request that letters of credit be issued for the
account of such borrower. . .

Of the $300.0 million available to be borrowed no more than $100.0 million may be borrowed by
Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re or AGRO, individually or in the aggregate, and no more than $20.0 million
may be borrowed by AG (UK). The stated amount of all outstanding letters of credit and the amount of all
unpaid drawings in respect of all letters of credit cannot, in the aggregate, exceed $100.0 million.

The 2006 credit facility also provides that Assured Guaranty Ltd. may request that the commitment of
the banks be increased an additional $100.0 million up to a maximum aggregate amount of $400.0 million.
Any such incremental commitment increase is subject to certain conditions provided in the agreement and
must be for at least $25.0 million.
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The proceeds of the loans and letters of credit are to be used for the working capital and other general
corporate purposes of the borrowers and to support reinsurance transactions.

. ‘At the closing of the 2006 credit facility, (i) AGC guaranteed the obligations of AG (UK) under such

' facility, (ii) Assured Guaranty Ltd. guaranteed the obligations of AG Re and AGRO under such facility

| and agreed that, if the Company Consolidated Assets {as defined in the related credit agreement) of AGC

' and its subsidiaries were to fall below $1.2 billion, it would, within 15 days, guarantee the obligations of
AGC and AG (UK) under such facility and (iii) Assured Guaranty Overseas US Holdings Inc., as a
Material Non-AGC Subsidiary (as defined in the related credit agreement), guaranteed the obligations of
Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and AGRO under such facility.

The 2006 credit facility’s financial covenants require that Assured Guaranty Ltd. (a) maintain a
minimum net worth of seventy-five percent (75%) of the Consolidated Net Worth of Assured Guaranty
Ltd. as of the most recent fiscal quarter of Assured Guaranty Ltd. prior to the Closing Date and
(b) maintain a maximurmn debt-to-capital ratio of 30%. In addition, the 2006 credit facility requires that
AGC maintain qualified statutory capital of at least 75% of its statutory capital as of the fiscal quarter
prior to the closing date of the facility. Furthermore, the 2006 credit facility contains restrictions on
Assured Guaranty Ltd. and its subsidiaries, including, among other things, in respect of their ability to
incur debt, permit liens, become liable in respect of guaranties, make loans or investments, pay dividends
or make distributions, dissclve or become party to a merger, consolidation or acquisition, dispose of assets
or enter into affiliate transactions. Most of these restrictions are subject to certain minimum thresholds
and exceptions. The 2006 credit facility has customary events of default, including (subject to certain
materiality thresholds and grace periods) payment default, failire to comply with covenants, material
inaccuracy of representation or warranty, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, change of control and
cross-default to other debt agreements. A 'default by one borrower will give rise to a right of the fenders to
terminate the facility and accelerate all amounts then outstanding. As of December 31, 2006, Assured
Guaranty was in compllance wrth all of those financial covenants

As of December 31, 2006, no amounts were outstanding 1 under this facrllty nor have there been any
borrowmgs under this fac1l|ty

- The 2006 credit facility reéplaced a $300:0 million three-year credit facility (the “2005 credit facility”),
discussed below. Letters of Credit for a total aggregate stated amount of approximateiy $19.6 million,
including $19.2 million issued during the term of the 2005 credit facility, remain outstanding as of
December 31, 2006.

’

2005 Credit Facility

On April 15, 2005 Assured Guaranty Ltd and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $300.0 million
three-year unsecured revolving credit facility (the “2005 credit facility”) with a syndicate of banks, for
which ABN AMRO Incorporated and Bank of America, N.A acted as lead arrangers and KeyBank
National Association (“KeyBank”) acted as syndrcanon agent. Effective November 6, 2006, the 2005 credlt
facility was terminated and replaced by the 2006 credit facility discussed above. Under the 2005 credit
facility, each of AGC, AG (UK), a subsidiary of AGC organized under the laws of the United Kingdom,
Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and AGRO were entitled to request the banks to make loans to such
borrower or to request that letters of credit be'issued for the account of such borrower. The 2005 credit
facility replaced (1) the $250 0 million credit fac:1l1ty and (2) the Letter of Credlt Agreement, both
dlscussed below.

The 2005 éredit facility had been available for general corporate purposeé. The proceeds of the loans |
and letters of credit were to be used for working capital and other general corporate purposes of the
borrowers and to support reinsurance transactions. Letters of Credit for a total aggregate stated amount of
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approximately $19.2 million issued during the term of this facility remain outstanding and are deemed
issued under the 2006 credit facility.

~ As of December 31, 2005, no amounts were outstanding under this facility nor have there been any
borrowings under this facility. o

$250.0 million Credit Facility

On April 29, 2004, Assured Guaranty Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $250.0 million
unsecured credit facility (“$250.0 million credit facility”), with a syndicate of banks, for which ABN AMRO
Incorporated and Bank of America, N.A. acted as co-arrangers. Each of Assured Guaranty Lid., AGC and
AG (UK), was a party, as borrower. The $250.0 million credit facility was terminated and replaced by the
2005 credit facility discussed above. .

The $250.0 million credit facility was a 364 day facility available for general corporate purposes. As of
its termination, no amounts were outstanding under this facility nor had there been any borrowings under
the life of this facﬂlty

Letter of Credit Agreement

On November 8, 2004, Assured Guaranty Ltd., AG Re and AGRO entered into a standby letter of
credit agreement (the “LOC Agreement”) with KeyBank. Under the LOC Agreement, KeyBank agreed to
issue up to $50.0 million in letters of credit on the Company’s behalf. The obligations of the Company, AG
Re and AGRO under the LOC Agreement were joint and several. The letters of credit were used to satisfy
AG Re’s or AGRO’s obligations under certain reinsurance agreements and for general corporate
purposes. Under the LOC Agreement, KeyBank issued two letters of credit, both on behalf of AGRO,
with an aggregate stated amount of approximately $20.7 million. The parties to the LOC Agreement have
agreed that no additional letters of credit would be issued, extended or renewed from and after the date of
the closing of the 2005 credit facility and letters of credit that were outstanding on such date will, unless
cancelled and surrendered by the respective beneficiaries thereof, remain outstanding until their respective
stated expiration dates of December 31, 2005. The LOC Agreement contained covenants that limit debt,
liens, guaranties, loans and investments, dividends, liquidations, mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, sales
of assets or subsidiaries and affiliate transactions. Most of these restrictions were subject to certain
minimum thresholds and exceptions. The LOC Agreement also contained financial covenants that
required the Company: (i) to maintain the ratio of consolidated debt to total capitalization at not greater
than 0.30 to 1.0; (ii) to maintain consolidated net worth of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of its
consolidated net worth as of June 30, 2004; and (iii) to maintain the consolidated interest coverage ratio
for any test period ending on the last day of a fiscal quarter at not less than 2.50 to 1.0. In addition, the
LOC Agreement provided that the obligations of KeyBank toissue letters of credit may be terminated, and
the Company’s obligations under the agreement may be acceleratéd, upon an event of default. Asof
December 31, 2004, no amounts were payable under any letter of credit issued under this facility. The LOC
Agreement expired on April 28, 2005 and was replaced by the 2005 credit facility discussed above.

'

Non- Recourse Credit Facility ‘ : o !

AGC is also party to a non-recourse credit fac1llty with a syndicate of banks which provides up to
$175.0 million specifically designed to provide rating agency qualified capital 1o further support AGC'’s
claims paying resources. The facility expires in December 2010. As of December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, no amounts were outstanding under this facility nor have there been any borrowmgs
under the life of this facility.
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..AGC’s failure to'comply with certain covenants under the AGC’s credit facilities could,.subject to
grace periods in the case of certain covenants, Tésult in‘an evént of default. This could require’ AGCto -
repay any outstanding borrowings in an accelerated manner,

CommlttedCapltalSecurltles . . . oL AP AYOURI AL R

On Aprll 8, 2005 AGC entered into four sepatate agreements with four different unaffi llated ‘
custodial trusts pursuant to which AGC may, at it§ option, cause each of ‘the custodial trusts to purchase up
to $50.0 million of perpetual preferred stock of AGC. The custodial trusts were creatéd as a vehlcle for
providing capital support to AGC by allowing AGC to obtam immediate access to new capltal at 1ts sole
discretion at any time through the exercise of the put option If the put option$ were exerciséd; AGC would
recelve $200.0 million in return for the issuance of its'own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds of which
may be used for any purpose including’ the payment of claims. The put options were not exercised duting
2005. Initially, all of the CCS Securities were issued to a special purpose pass-through trust (the “Pass- -
Through Trust™). The Pass—Through Trust is a neiwly created statutory trust ofganized-under the Delaware)
Statutory Trust Act formed for the purposes of (i) issuing $200,000,000 of Pass-Through Trust Securities to
qualified mstltuuonal buyers wnthm the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of ]933 as_
amended, (n) investing the proceeds from the sate of the Pass-Through Trust Securrtres in, and holdmg,
the CCS Securities issued by the Custodial Trusts and (iii) entering into related agreements Neither the
Pass-Through Trust nor the Custodial Trusts are consolidated in Assured Guaramy Lid. S fmancral
statements rose et

raat

For the years ended December 31 2(}06 and 2005 the Company has incurred $2.5 mllllon and $1 7
mitlion, respectwely of put optron premiums which are an on-going expense. 2005 expense also mcluded
$2.0 mlllron of one-timé' investmeént banking fees associated with the committed capital securities. Thesef*!
expenses are’presented in th€ Company’s consolrdared statements of operations and- corhprehenswe
income under other expense. v T

R . ! . r

18. Shareholders’ Equity T R S

General PRV Tl " LT P " e

The Company has an, aulhorlzed share capltal of $5. 0 million d1v1ded 1nto 500 000 000 shares par
value $D 01 per, share. Except as dcscrlbed betow, the Company’s common shares have no preemptive
rrghts or.other. nghts to subscribe for addmonal common shares, no rights of redempnon conversion or | »
exchange and no sinking fund nghts In the event of hquldatlon dlssolutlon or, wmdmg—up, the holders of .
the Company’s common shares are entrtled to share equally,.in propomon to the number of common y
shares held by ; such holder _in the Company’s assets, if any remain after the payment. of all the Company 5.4
debgs and liabilities and the llqu1dat10n preference of any outstandmg preferred shares. Under certain
circumstances, the Company has the right to purchase all or a\pomon of the shares held by-a shareholder
at fair market valie. All of the common shares aré fully paid and non assessable. Holders of the ~ - ="'
Company’s common shares afe entitled to receive sich dividends as lawfully may be déclared from time- to
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Subject to the Company’s Bye-Laws and Bermuda law, the Company’s Board of Directors has the
power to issue any of the Company’s unissued shares as it determines, including the igsuance. of any shares

or class of shares with preferred deferred or other special nghts
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—The following table provides'the lines.of bfusmesses from which each of the Company’s four reporting
segments derive their net earned premiums: 1%

I . Lol At a Y .
- ‘ Pt . Years Ended December 31,
: L | e e 2006, . 152005 2004 -2

St T - L _ '{i.n_millipn_s_ofU$ dollars)‘-ll
Financial guaranty direct: Ny o L . it 09
Pubhc)fmance.' ...... e e RETPPRPITR DI FE ) 67 $ 22r1 5. 034
Strucituredflnance e l x-— ...... U ,',83'.[_)' “ 93 s 883

PH 111 D e ....................... . . ' 7 89.7 y 7’45J| .8,8.8_.\‘
Financial guaranty reinsurance: .} . e e eae ' N PR
Public finance . ...........oouiveere e et e e e e e, 612 570 4..5777
Structured finance ......................... FEP 33.2 48.6 _ 56.7

Total............ jer ey S gy o 944 | 11056, 1144,
Mortgage guaranty:. =~ o v o T E (TN T { BN DV IVUY O P B
Mortgage UAranty. ... .....oo vt ettt LAY L2207 w1860 U337
Other:-» T I VT RGN | BT (T VRSUI POt S (171 [ RN AN PR & T Wi
Equity layer credit protectlon ......................................... el o L— L, 540
Trade credit reinsurance. ............. .o i — — (253
Tit_l? lr‘_\einsur'c\nce ...... e e e — — 32
Auto tesidual value reinsurance ............ oo — — (322
CuTotall Lt i P, e e e L i, (489)
Total net earned Premiums . . ... oo vontoenn s e e e e eeen o, $206.7 ~2$198.7 fa$1879'

Go . o . Ce ce B S i AR T VA L F

<."The followmg table prov1des underwrmng gam (loss) by lin€ of business for the othér segment cen J
“ 't . e

LA . - e e e e .. ...¢b. .Years Ended December3l .

(o R e e e e 2006 200
(m millions of U.S. dollnrs}

Underwrltmg gam/(loss) RN 47 e
Equity Tayer credltprotectlon A T e e .".J. .’.'(‘9.*“ "$13'5 m"15241 $--3.'1~ !
Trade creditreinsurance. ...... ... ..o i e — = 29
LT (T 1T = Lo — — 1.0
Auto residual value reinsurance . .......... .. e L= — (7.9)
TOtal. o e $13.5 324  $(6.7)

The following table summarizes the Company’s gross written premiums by geographic region,
Allocations have been made on the basis of location of risk.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 - 2004
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
North America.......................... ... $237.6  73.0% $212.0  84.1% $1346  70.5%
United Kingdom. ......................... ... 700  21.5% 222 88% 198 104%
Burope.. ... 12.5 3.8% 132 52% 245 12.8%
Australia ............ . ... 4.3 13% 35 14% 65 3.4%
Other ... 1.3 04% 1.2 05% 55 2.9%
Total...............o..o oo 83257 100.0% $252.1  100.0% $190.9  100.0%
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AGC'’s failure to comply with certain covenants under the AGC’s credit facilities could, subject to
grace periods in the case of certain covenants, result in an event of default. This could require AGC to
repay any outstanding borrowings in an accelerated manner.

Committed Capital Securities

On April 8, 2005, AGC entered into four separate agreements with four different unaffiliated
custodial trusts pursuant to which AGC may, at its option, cause each of the custodial trusts to purchase up
to $50.0 million of perpetual preferred stock of AGC. The custodial trusts were created as a vehicle for
providing capital support to AGC by allowing AGC to obtain immediate access to new capital at its sole
discretion at any time through the exercise of the put option. If the put options were exerciséd, AGC would
receive $200.0 million in return for the issuance of its own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds of which
may be used for any purpose including the payment of claims. The put options were not exercised during
2005. Initially, all of the CCS Securities were issued to a special purpose pass-through trust (the “Pass-
Through Trust™). The Pass-Through Trust is a newly created statutory trust organized under the Delaware'
Statutory Trust Act formed for the purposes of (i} issning $200,000,000 of Pass-Through Trust Securities to
qualified institutional buyers within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, (ii) investing the praceeds from the sale of the Pass-Through Trust Securities in, and holding,
the CCS Securities issued by the Custodial Trusts and (iii) entering into related agreements. Neither the
Pass-Through Trust nor the Custodial Trusts are consolidated in Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s financial
statements. o

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has incurred $2.5 million and $1.7
million, respectively of put option premiums which are an on-going expense. 2005 expense also included
$2.0 million of one-time investment banking fees associated with the committed capital securities. These -
EXpenses are ‘presented in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehenswe
income under other expense.

18. Shareholders’ Equity
General _ "

The Company has an authorized share capitat of $5.0 million divided into 500,000,000 shares, par
value $0.01 per share. Except as described below, the Company’s common shares have no preemptive
rights or other rights to subscribe for additional common shares, no rights of redemption, conversion or
exchange and no sinking fund rights. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the holders of
the Company’s common shares are entitled to share equally, in proportion to the number of common
shares held by such holder, in the Company’s assets, if any remain after the payment of all the Company’s
debts and liabilities and the liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares. Under certain
circumstances, the Company has the right to purchase all or a portion of the shares held bya shareholder
at fair market value. All of the common shares are fully paid and non assessable. Holders of the
Company’s common shares are entitled to receive such d1v1dends as lawfully may be declared from tlme to
time by the Company s Board of Directors. '

N

Issuance of Shares

Subject to the Company’s Bye-Laws and Bermuda law, the Company’s Board of Directors has the
power to issue any of the Company’s unissued shares as it determines, including the issuance of any shares
or class of shares with preferred, deferred or other special rights.
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The following table presents changes-in the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding for the
year ended December 31, 2006 and the periods from the IPO date through December 31, 2006.

2006 2005 2004

Beginningbalance . ......... ... L . 74,761,577 75,678,792 75,000,000
Common stock issuance(1)} .................... P 309,065 25,667 —
Restricted stock issuance, net(2). .................... — 277,388 1,000,392
Reclassification to remove nonvested restricted stock R o

" due to adoption of FAS 123R(2) . ....., et '(1,021,124) — —
Share act1v1ty under option and incentive plans, net(3) . 26,645  (204,214) | —
Common stock repurchases(4) ...................... ‘ (6 542,139) (1,016,056)  (321,600)
Endmg balance........... e ey 67,534,024 74,761,577 75,678,792

(1) Primarily includes vesting of restricted stock and shares issued under ESPP.

(2) Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R; the Company reported restricted stock awards as issued common
stock, In accordance with the provisions of FAS 123R, on January 1, 2006, the Company reclassified
any unvested restrrcted stock awards as nonvested restricted stock and as such it is no longer
con51dered lssued .

(3) Includes shares issued from exercises of stock options and shares repurchas-ed from employees in
connection with the payment of withholding taxes due in connectlon with the vesting of restricted
stock awards.

4) Includes 5,692, 599 shares of the Company § common stock purchased by Assured Guaranty US
Holdings Inc..from ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd., a subsidiary of ACE. See Note 17, Long-Term
Debt, for more information. .

Acquisition of Common Shares

+
Under the Company’s Bye-Laws and subject to Bermuda law, if the Company’s Board of Directors

l determines that any ownership of the Company’s shares may result in adverse tax, legal or regulatory
consequences to us, any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any of its shareholders or indirect holders of

| shares or its Affiliates (other than such as the Company s Board of Directors considers de minimis), the

| Company has the option, but hot the obligation, to réquire’such shareholder to sell to the Company or to a
third party to whom the Company assigns the repurchase right the minimum number of common shares
necessary to avoid or cure any such advérse consequences at a price determined in the discretion of the
Board of’ Drrectors to represent the shares fair market value (as defined in the Company s Bye- Laws)

| At the time of the [PO, ACE beneficially owned 26, 000 000 common shares of Assured Guaranty Ltd.
In December 2006, Assured Guaranty US Holdmgs [nc. repurchased 5,692,599 of the Company’s common
shares from a subsidiary of ACE, In addition, in December 2006 ACE sotd 1,150,000 shares of the
Company’s common shares to Banc of America Securities LLC. Assured Guaranty did not receive any
proceeds from this transaction. Following the closing of these two transactions, ACE’s ownership in
Assured Guaranty Ltd. was reduced to approximately 19.2 million of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s outstanding
common shares.

Stock Repurchase Programs

In May 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approyed a share repurchase program for 1.0 million
common shares. Share repurchases will take place at management’s discretion depending on market
conditions. During 2006, the Company paid $21.1 million to repurchase 0.8 million shares of its Common
Stock at an average price of $24.79.
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In April 2005, the Company completed a‘Board of Directors authorized stock repurchase program
spending approximately $25.0 million-to repurchase 1.3 million shares of its Common Stock at an average
price of $18.69. . _ y _ _ .

Dividend Policy

During 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company paid dividends of $10.5 million, or $0.14 per common share,
$9.0 million, or $0.12 per common share, and $4.6 million, or $0.06 per common share, respectively. Any
determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors, and will
depend upon the Company’s results of operations and operating cash flows, its financial position and
capital requirements, general business conditions, legal, tax, regulatory, rating agency and any contractual
restrictions on the payment of dividends and any other factors the Company’s Board of Directors deems
relevant. For more information concerning regulatory constraints that will affect the Company’s ability to
pay dividends, see Note 13. B

19. Employee Benefit Plans
Share-Based Compensation .
Accounting for Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FAS 123R, which replaces FAS 123 and supersedes
AFPB 25. FAS 123R requires all share-based compensation transactions with employees, mc]udmg grants of
employee stock options, to be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite service period based
on their relative fair values,

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, the Cbmpany foliowed the guidance of APB 25 and did not record
share-based compensation expense related to employee stock options in the statement of operations, since
for all grants the exercise price was equal to the market value of the common stock on the grant date.

The Company elected to use the modified prospéctive transition method for implementing FAS 123R.
Under this transition method, compensation expense includes: (a) compensation expense for all share-
based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FAS 123, and (b) compensation expense for
all share-based payments granted on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123R. Because the Company elected to use the modified
prospective transition method, results for prior periods have not been restated and new awards are valued
and accounted for prospectively upon adoption.

Beginning January 1, 2006, upon adoption of FAS 123R, the Company recorded share-based
compensation for the cost of stock options, restricted stock and the Company sponsored employee stock
purchase plan. Also, the Company began recording the cost associated with the accelerated vesting of
retirement-eligible employees. As a result of adopting FAS 123R on January 1, 2006, the Company’s 2006
income before income taxes and net income are $4.9 million and $4.0 million lower, respectively, than if it
had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted earnings per
share for the year ended December 31, 2006 were both $0.05 lower, than if the Company had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB 25.

Share-based compensation expense in 2006 was $12.1 million ($10.0 million after tax). The effect on
basic and diluted earnings per share for 2006 was $0.14 and $0.13, respectively. Included in 2006 expense
was $2.2 million for stock award grants to retirement-eligible employees. FAS 123R requires these awards
be expensed over the period through the date the employee first becomes eligible to retire and is no longer
required to provide service to earn part or all of the award, regardless of the employee’s intent of
retirement. Share-based compensation expense in 2005 and 2004 was $5.3 million ($4.8 million after tax)
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and $3.1 million ($2.8 million after tax), respectively. The amount of share-based compensation capitalized
in 2006, 2005 and 2004 as DAC was $2.6 million, $1.1 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

The following table presents pre-DAC and pre-tax, share-based compensation cost by share-
based type:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 - 2008 2004(1)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Share-Based Employee Compensation Cost

Restricted Stock
Recurring amortization ........... e $ 7676 $5,481 $2,674
Accelerated amortization for retirement eligible
employees............cooevnnin. e ' 1,534 — -—
Subtotal. ............... e 9,210 5,481 2,674
Stock Options
Recurring amortization ... 3,581 — —
Accelerated amortization for retirement eligible
employees. ... 655 — —
Subtotal. . ... .. e e 4,236 — —
ESPP . e e ~ 125 — —
Total Share-Based Employee Compensation Cost . ... .. 13,571 5,481 2,674
Share-Based Directors Compensation Cost
Restricted Stock. .. ... 289 275 184
Restricted Stock Units. . ... . iuiiiniennnnns 843 ~ 663 420
Total Share-Based Directors Compensation Cost....... © 1,132 938 604
Total Share-Based Compensation Cost. .. . ... e $14.703 $6,419 $3,278

(1) 2004 excludes $0.6 million of share-based cost recognized for ACE restricted stock.
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The following table outlines the Company’s net income, basic and diluted earnings per share for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004; had the compensation expense been determined in accordance
with the fair value method recommended in FAS 123, N S

1] 1,
2005 2004
(in thousands of
U.S. dollars, except
per share amounts}

Net income as reported ........... UUUIURRURURTTRO . $188448  $182,788 -
Add: Stock-based compensation expense due to accelerated o ST
vesting of ACE awards included in reported net income, net o

ofincometax .. ... .. ... Ce— 9,652
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported . .

net income, netof incometax...........cocvieennen... 5,618 _ 3,310
Deduct: Compensation expense, net of income tax. .. ........ (9349 (15,184) g
Proformanetincome(l) ............. ... il $184,717 $180,566
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Asreported...:.......ivinin.. PO $ 255 § 244
Proforma ... ... ..o i $ -250 $ 241
Diluted Earnings Per Share: - o
ASTEPOItEd. ..t e e $§ 253§ 244

§ 241

Proforma ... .......... .. ... il s 3 248

[

(1) Excludes share-based_compensatiori capitalized as DAC. ' v

Upon completion of the [PO, any unvested options to purchase ACE ordinary shares.granted to the
Company’s officers or employees under the ACE employee long term incentive plans immediately vested
and any unvested restricted ACE ordinary shares were forfeited. These officers and employees g'enerally
had 90 days from the date of the IPO to exercise any vested options to acquire ACE ordinary shares. The
acceleration of vesting of optlons to purchase ordinary shares resulted in a pre-tax charge to the Company
of approximately $3.5 million. Based upon a price of $42.79 per ACE ordinary share, the Company
incurred a pre-tax charge of $7.8 million and contributed cash in'the same amount to fund a trust, with a
trustee, for the value of the restricted ACE ordinary shares forfeited by all of the Company’s officers and
employees. These pre-tax charges took place during 2004 and were included in other operating expenses
on the consolidated statements of operation and comprehensive income,

L)

Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan

As of April 27, 2004, the Company adopted the Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (the “Incentive Plan”). The number of common shares that may be delivered under the Incentive
Plan may not exceed 7,500,000. In the event of certain transactions affecting the Company’s common
shares, the number or type of shares subject to the Incentive Plan, the number and type of shares subject to
outstanding awards under the Incentive Plan, and the exercise price of awards under the Incentive Plan,
may be adjusted. £

The Incentive Plan'authorizes the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualiﬁed stack options, stock
appreciation rights, and full value awards that are based on the Company’s common shares. The grant of
full value awards may be in return for a participant’s previously performed services, or in return for the
participant surrendering other compensation that may be due, or may be contingent on the achievement of
performance or other objectives during a specified period, or may be subject to a risk of forfeiture or other
restrictions that will lapse upon the achievement of one or more goals relating to completion of service by
the participant, or achievement of performance or other objectives. Awards under the Incentive Plan may
accelerate and become vested upon a change in.control of Assured Guaranty. L -,

147




'The Incentive Plan is administered by a committee of the Board of Directors. The Compensation

" Committee of the Board serves as this committee except as otheiwise determined by the Board. The Board
may amend or terminate the Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2006, 2,748,171 common shares were
available for grant under the Incentive Plan.

Stock Options

Nonqualified or incentive stock options may be granted to employees and directors of the Company.
Stock options are generally granted once a year with exercise prices equal to the closing price on the date
of grant. To date, the Company has only issued nonquallfled stock options. All stock options granted to ,
employees vest in equal annual installments over a three-year period and expire 10 years from the date of i
grant. None of the Company’s options have a performance or market condition. Following is a summary of |
Assured Guaranty Ltd. options issued and outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004
Options for
Year of - Average Common
Expiration  Exercise Price Shares

Balance as of December 31,2003............. —_
Optionsgranted . ............... ..ot 2014 . $17.88 2,011,800
Optionsexercised ................ooiiine — _
Options forfeited...................... e $17.95 (217,400)
Balance as of December 31,2004 . ............ $17.88 1,794,400
Options granted. ..............coovvnnn ..+ 2015 $18.42 788,767
Optionsexercised .............. ... $18.00 (4,136)
Options forfeited........... e el $17.77 (121,729)

. ‘Balance as of December 31,2005 .. ... .. SET “ o $1805 . 2,457302
Optionsgranted. . ........ooviiiinrnrnnnns 2016 $25.49 797,067
. Optionsexercised .................. e . $17.96 (141,715)
Options forfeited . ...................ooa. S .. %2073 (102,494)
Balance as of December 31 2006, ... ..., $19.92 3,010,160
Exercisable as of December 31, 2004...... Cee ) —— —
Exercisable as of December 31, 2005. ... . e ) $17.89 - 582,701

- Exercisable as of December 31,2006.......... . $18.00 1,272,211

The following table summarizes the range of exercise prices for outstandmg optlons as of

December 31, 2006:

v ) ' Optlons outstandmg ‘ Options exercisable
' . . Weighted . Weighted Weighted A
Range of . . . Average . Average . Average | |
Exercise ’ b ! Remaining Exercise © Exercise
Prices . Number + Contractual Life . Price ' Number Price
$15.46 - $18.04 . ... 2,179.901 76 -, $17.93 1,246,875  $17.91
$18.04 - $20.62 .. .. 14,000 8.2 $18.71 6,001  $18.63
$20.62 - $23.19 ... 33,000 8.7 $22.37 1,001 $22.37
$23.19-825.77". ... 783,259 9.1 $25.44 - 8,334 $23.84
- 3,010,160 _ ) 1,272,211 . $18.00

Apggregate Intrinsic ' o ‘ '

Value(1) (in . . ' , . 2

thousands) ..... $ 20108 - ' . § 22894

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated based on the positive difference between the closing price
of the Company’s common stock on December 29,2006 (i.e. $26.60) and the weighted average !
exercise price of the underlying options.
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The Company recorded $4.2 million ($3.3 million after tax) in share-based compensation related to
stock options during the year ended December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006 the total unrecognized
compensation expense related to outstanding non-vested stock options was $3.3 million, which will be
adjusted in the future for the difference betweén estimated and actual forfeitures. The Company expects to
recognize that expense over the weighted-average remaining service period of 1.1 years.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted were $6.71, $4.63 and $4.00 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of options issued is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the fo]lowmg weighted- -average
assumptions used for grants in 2006, 2005 and 2004:

It

S , 2006 - 2005 2004 !
Dividendyield ................... R FU 0.5% 0.7% 0.7% '
Expected volatility: ..................... e 2043% 20.80% . 17.03%
Risk free interestrate... ............. e Y. C 46% - 41% 44%
Expectedlife. ............. ... .. .. ... S5years ‘Syears Syears o

Forfeiture rate .. ... . it annns 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

These assumptions were based on the following:

¢ The expected dividend yield is based on the current expected annual dividend and share price on
the grant date,

* Expected volatility is estimated at the date of grant based on the historical share price volatility,
calculated on a daily basis, '

» The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon
issues with an equivalent remaining term to the granted stock options,

¢ The expected life is based on the average expected term of the Company’s guideline companies,
which are defined as similar or peer entities, since the Company has insufficient expected life data,

¢ The forfeiture rate is based on the rate used by the Company’s guideline companies, since the
Company has insufficient forfeiture data. Estimated forfeitures will be reassessed at each grant
vesting date’and may change based on new facts and circumstances.

For options granted before January 1, 2006, the Company amortizes the fair value on an accelerated
basis. For options granted on or after January 1, 2006, the Company amortizes the fair value on a straight-
line basis. All options are amortized over the requisite service periods of the awards, which are generally
the vesting periods, with the exception of retirement-eligible employees. For retirement-eligible
employees, options are amortized over the period through the date the employee first becomes eligible to
retire and is no longer required to provide service to earn part or all of the award. The Company may elect
to use different assumptions under the Black-Scholes option valuation model in the future, whnch could
materially affect the Company’s net income or earnings per share.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1.2
million. During the year ended December 31, 2006, $2.5 million was received from the exercise of stock
options and a $0.2 million related tax benefit was recorded and included in the financing section in the
statement of cash flows. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded $4.1
million and $5.4 million, respectively, in benefits for tax deductlons in excess of recognized compensation
expense, which were reported and included in the operating section in the statement of cash flows. In order
to satisfy stock option exercises, the Company will either issue new shares or reissue shares held at AGUS
due to the repurchase of 5,692,599 of the Company’s common shares from ACE Bermuda. SeeNote 18 for
further information. .
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+ Restricted Stock Awards

4

Under the Company s Incentive Plan 460,083, 402 747 and 1,088,292 restricted common shares were.
awarded durmg the years ended December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, to employees and non-
employ¢e directors of the Company. These shares vest at varlous dates through 2010. '

The Company has granted restricted stock awards to employees and directors of the Company
Restricted stock awards generally vest in equal annual installments over & four-year period. Reéstricted
stock awards are amortlzed on a’straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which -
are generally the vesting periods, with the exception of retirement-eligible employees, discussed above.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, the Company presented restricted stock issuances on the balance sheet
in common stock and additional paid-in capital with an offset in unearned stock grant compensation as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity. In accordance with the provisions of FAS 123R, on January 1,
2006, the Company reclassified the balance in unearned stock grant compensation to common stock and
additional paid-in capital in shareholders’ equity. The following table summarizes restricted stock award
activity for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted Average

‘ Number of Grant-Date

Nonvested Shares . 3 Shares - Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31 2005 ..................... 1,021,124 $18.12
e Granted. e s e 460,083 $25.49
VEStEd . oottt e e (285,763) $18.05
... Forfeited..... P P e (57,161) $20.23
Nonvested at December 35,2006, .00 1,138,283 $21.01

The Company recorded $9.5 million ($7.5 million after tax) in'share-based compensation, related to
restricted stock awards, during the year ended December 31,'2006.

The following table includes a roll-forward of unearned stock grant compensation:

Unearned stock
o, grant
n ' - ' ' Lo ._compensation

- (in thousands of

’ U.S. dollars}
Balance, December 31, 2003(1) .........oovvvniannnt. e $ 5479 | .
Settlement received from ACE. ... ... e h e e . (4,506)
Stock grants awarded in 2004 ............. e 19,450
Stock grants forfeited in 2004 ... .. ... U e . {(1,988)
- Amortization in 2004(2).......... [ e . (3,856)
Common shares purchased by trust . ... at (7.850)
. Balance, December 35,2004 .. ...l e 6,729
Stock grants awarded in2005 ............ T U v 8,209
Stock grants forfeited in 2005 . ................... e (1,613)
Amortizationin 2005 ........... e v ' (6,419)
Vesting of common shares held in trust .......... S U 7850 -
, Balance, December 31,2005............. T R _ 14,756
' ' Reclassnflcauon due to adoption of FAS 123R ................... (14,756)
Balance December 31,2006, ......... P | i

§))] 'Balan'ce related to ACE restricted stock award_s'prior to the IPO.

(2) Includes amortization of $0.6 million for ACE restricted stock.
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As of December 31, 2006 the total unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding nonvested
restricted stock awards was $15.6 million, which the Company expects to recognize over the weighted-
average remaining service period of 1.9 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $5.2 million.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock units to directors of the Company. Restricted stock units
vest over a one-year period.

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity (excluding dividend equivalents) for the
year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted Average

Number of . Grangt-Date
Nonvested Stock Units Stock Units Fair Value
Nonvested at December31,2005............. e 36,301 $20.25
Granted..:....... O 34,030 $24.39
Vested ..o R e s (36,301) $20.25
Forfeited .. ... ..o e e aaes — —
Nonvested at December31,2006..................... 34,030 $24.39

The Company recorded $0.8 million ($0.8 million after tax) in share-based compensation during the
year ended December 31, 2006. The compensation for restricted stock units is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period. As of December 31, 2006, the total unrecognized compensation cost related
to outstanding nonvested restricted stock units was $0.3 million, which the Company expects to recognize
over the weighted-average remaining service period of (0.3 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In January 2005, the Company established the Assured Guaranty Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “Stock Purchase Plan”) in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 423. The Stock Purchase
Pian was approved by shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting. Participation in the Stock
Purchase Plan is available to all eligible employees. Maximum annual purchases by participants are limited
to the number of whole shares that can be purchased by an amount equal to 10 percent of the participant’s
compensation or, if less, shares having a value of $25,000. Participants may purchase shares at a purchase
price equal to 85 percent of the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the first day or the last day of
the subscription period. The Company reserved for issuance and purchases under the Stock Purchase Plan
100,000 shares of its common stock. Employees purchased 23,302 shares for aggregate proceeds of $0.5
million in the year ended December 31, 2006, and 19,488 shares for aggregate proceeds of $0.4 million in
the year ended December 31, 2005. The Company recorded $0.1 million ($0.1 million after tax) in share-
based compensation during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Defi_ned Contribution Plan

The Company maintains savings incentive plans, which are qualified under Section 401(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The U.S. savings incentive plan is available to all full-time employees with a
minimum of six months of service, Eligible participants may contribute a percentage of their salary subject
to a maximum of $15,000 for 2006. Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company has amended the U.S. savings
incentive plan. The Company matches employee contributions up to 6%, subject to IRS limitations. Any
amounts over the IRS limits, are contributed to and matched by the Company into a nonqualified
supplemental executive retirement plan. The Company also makes a core contribution of 6% to the
quatified plan and the nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan, regardless of whether the

151




employee contributes to the plan. In addition, employees become fully vested after 1 year of service, as
defined in the.plan. Plan eligibility is immediate upen hire. Prior to 2006, contributions were matched by
the Company at a rate of 100% up to 7% of the participant’s compensation, subject to IRS limitations. In.
addition, the Company might contribute an additional profit sharing amount to eligible employees’ savings
incentive plan accounts at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For 2005, the Company made a
discretionary contribution equal to 5% of the compensation of eligible participants, which discretionary
contribution was made to a U.S. savings incentive plan up to the amount permitted by IRS limits, with
amounts in excess of those permitted by the IRS limits contributed to the U.S. nonqualified plan.
Participants generally vested in Company contributions at a rate of 33.3% per year starting with the
completion of one year of service. .

In Bermuda the savings incentive plan is available to all full-time employeés upen their first date of
employment. Eligible participants may contribute a percentage of their salary subject to a maximum of
$15,000 for 2006. Contributions are matched by the Company at a rate of 100% up to 6% of the
participant’s compensation, subject to IRS limitations. Eligible participants also receive a Company core’
contribution equal to 6% of the participant’s compensation, subject to IRS limitations, without requiring
the participant to contribute to the plan. Participants generally vest in Company contributions upon the
completion of one year of service. With respect to those employees who are Bermudian or spouses of
Bermudians and who must participate in the Bermuda national pension scheme plan maintained by the
Company, a portion of the foregoing contributions are made to the Bermuda national pension scheme
plan. If employee or employer contributions in the Bermuda savings incentive plan are limited by the tax-
qualification rules of Code section 401(a), then contributions in excess of those limits are allocated to a
nonqualified plan. The Company may contribute an additional amount to eligible employees’ Bermuda
nonqualified plan accounts at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For the 2004 plan year, the
Company made a discretionary contribution equal to 2% of the compensation of eligible participants to
the Bermuda nongualified plan. No such contribution was made for plan year 2006 or in 2005.

The Company contributed approximately $2.6 million in 2006, $1.7 million in 2005 and $1.7 million in
2004 in nondiscretionary contributions under all these plans. Total dlscretlonary expense under all these
plans amounted to approximately $2.4 million in 2006, $0.9 million in 2005 and $0.9 million in 2004,

20. Earnings Per Share

T

. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnfngs per share (“EPS”):

o For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

. (in thousands of U.S. dollars except
per share amounts) |

Net income .. ..... IO e e .. $159,734  $188,448 $182,788

Basic shares(1) ....... DU U TP 73260 73978 74981

Effect of dilutive securities: . A -

T T v . 989 509 13

Diluted shares(1), (2) . ... oo or i 74,248 74,487 74,994
Basic EPS ...\ttt $ 218 $ 255 § 244

Diluted EPS ... T $ 215 $ "253 § -244

(1) Since the shares held as treasury stock were required to be settled by delivery of employer stock, those
shares are included in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS in 2005 and 2004.

{2) Totals,may not add due to rounding.
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21. Fair Value of Financial Instruments ‘ .

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of financial instruments are presented in the following
table: : - Co

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005

. : Co Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets: " ' - C '
Fixed matirity securities. ..................... $2,331,071  $2,331,071  $2,133,997 - $2,133,997
Cash and short-term investments ... ........... 138,849 138,849 122,016 122,016

Liabilities: ' ' . : - .

Unearned premium reserves .............. L 644,496 598,220 537,149 - 494,530
Long-term debt: .
Senior Notes............. fe sz 197,375 222,064 197,344 223,080
Series A Enhanced Junjor Subordinated o : :
Debentures....................oocieey. 149,708 150,284 — —

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments: R _ i

Financial guaranty instaliment premiums ....... ' — 585,561 ' —_ 427,954

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value
disclosure for financial instruments. These determinations were made based on available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is required to interpret
market data to develop the estimates and therefore, they may not necessarily be indicative of the amount
the Company could realize in a current market exchange.

Fixed Maturity Securities

The fair value for fixed maturity securities shown in Note 9 is based on quoted market prices.

C'ash t;nd Short-Term Investments

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for these instruments is cost, which approximates
fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Unearned Premium Reserves

The fair value of the Company’s unearned premium reserves is based on the estimated cost of
entering into a cession of the entire portfolio with third party reinsurers under current market conditions.
This figure was determined by using the statutory basis unearned premium reserves, net of deferred
acquisition costs. ‘

e

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of the Company’s $200.0 million of Senior Notes and $150.0 million of Series A
Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures are determined by calculating the midpoint of quoted bid/ask
prices over the U.S. Treasury yield at the year-end date and the appropriate credit spread for the similar
debt instruments. '

Financial Guaranty Installment Premiums

" The fair value is derived by calculating the p‘resent value of the estimated future cash flow stream
discounted at 6.0%.
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22. Segment Reporting

The Company has four principal business segments: (1) financial guaranty direct, which includes
transactions whereby the Company provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty that indemnifies
the holder of a financial obligation against non-payment of principal and interest when due, and could take
the form of a credit derivative; (2) financial guaranty reinsurance, which includes agreements whereby the
Company is a reinsurer and agrees to indemnify a primary insurance company against part or all of the loss
which the latter may sustain under a policy it has issued; (3) mortgage guaranty, which includes mortgage . |
guaranty insurance and reinsurance whereby the Company provides protection against the default of
borrowers on mortgage loans; and (4) other, which includes several lines of business in which the Company
is no longer active, including trade credit reinsurance, title reinsurance, auto residual value reinsurance |
and the credit protection of equity layers of CDOs, as well as life, accident and health reinsurance. |

The Company does not segregate assets and liabilities at a segment level since management reviews
and controls these assets and liabilities on a consolidated basis. The Company allocates operating expenses
to each segment based on a comprehensive cost study. During 2006, the Company implemented a new
operating expense allocation methodology to more closely allocate expenses to the individual operating
segments. This new methodology was based on a comprehensive study and is based on departmerital time.
estimates and headcount. 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified to show this new methodology on
a comparative basis. Management uses underwriting gains and losses as the primary measure of each
segment’s financial performance

The following table summarizes the components of underwriting gain (loss) for each reporting

segment:
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Financial Financial
Guaranty Guaranty Mortgage .
Direct Reinsorance  Guaranty Other Total
_ . . (in millions of U.S. dollars) .
Gross written premiums . ..............coovennns $189.2 $123.9 $ 84 $ 41 83257
Net written premiums ... ...................... 187.0 1232 8.4 — 3187
Net earned premiums .. ..............coevn.n.. 89.7 944 227 — 2067
Loss and loss adjustment expenses .............. o (2.0) 13.1 (4.4) (13.5) (6 8)
Profit commission expense..................... C— 2.7 6.8 C— 95
ACQUISTON COSES. . ..o ivv i 8.5 34.1 23 — 45.0
Other operatingexpenses. ..................... 52.3 14.5 1.3 — 68.0
Underwriting gain .............cooooiioioa.. $ 308 $ 300 $16.7 $1335 $ 910
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Financial Financial ]
Guaranty Guaranty Mortgage o
Direct Reinsurance Guaranty Other Total
(in millions of U.S. dellars)

Gross Written premiums ... .....ovvvvennninen.n. $96.2 $ 98.0 $25.7 $322 82521
Net written premiums . ..........c.........oo .., 939 97.8 25.7 — 2173
Net earned premiums ..........coovviiininnnnn, . 745 105.6 - 18.6 — 1987
Loss and loss adjustment expenses . .............. (2.2) ®L3)y - (39 (24) (69.6)
Profit commission expense................ouvne. — 4.8 8.0 —_ 12.9
AcqQuUisition COstS. . ... .o 6.3 369 2.0 — 453
Other operating expenses. ..............co v ns 44.3 13.8 12 — 59.0
Underwriting gain ..........ooiiiiiniiiinnen, $26.1 $111.4 $11.1 § 24 $151.1
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Year Ended December 31, 2004

Financial Financial
Guaranty Guaranty Mortgage
Direct Reinsurance Guaranty Other Total
{in millions of U.S. dollars)

Gross Written premiums .. .....o.overenran... $80.8 $160.3 $244 $ (746) $1909
Net Written premitms ... ...ovev v vinnnernnnns 717 160.1 244 (182.5) 79.6
Net earned premiums .................... ... 38.8 1144 33.7 (48.9) 1879
Loss and loss adjustment expenses . ............ 14.8 15.4 (11.9) (50.3) " (32.0)
Profit commission expense. . .. .. i — 1.1 14.1 0.3 155
Acquisition costs. . ... i 4.5 38.8 37 39 50.9
Other operating expenses{1) .................. 41.8 10.1 1.1 3.9 56.5
Underwriting gain (loss) . ..................... $27.6 $ 49.0 $267 $ (67) $970°

(1) Excludes $11.3 million of operating expenses, included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, related to the accelerated vesting
of stock awards at the TPO date. :

The following is a reconciliation of total underwriting gain to income before provision for income
taxes for the years ended:

December 31,

2006 2005 2004

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Total underwriting gain. .. ........ .. ... . i $ 91.0 $1511 § 97.0
Net investment iNCOME .. . ... ... ..ottt iiineeeeinn, 111.5 96.8 04.8
Net realized investment (losses) gains ............................ .. ... (2.0) 22 12.0
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments . ............. 5.5 (35) 525
Otherincome . ... ... .. i 0.4 0.2 0.8
Accelerated vesting of stockawards . ........... ... .o o o i — — (11.3)
I erEst ERPEISE . ..ottt e e e e (13.8) (13.5) (10.7)
Other expense. .. ... i i i e e e e (25 . (3.7 (1.6)
Income before provision for income taxes. .................... .., $190.0 $229.6 32333
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The following table provides the lines of businesses from which each of the Company’s four reporting
segments derive their net earned premiums:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 * 2005 2004
(in millions of U.S, dollars)

Financial guaranty direct:

Public finance . . ... .. oot i i i et .. $67 8 22 % 05
Structured fINANCE .. ... .. 830 723 883
Total. ...oveiee e A 89.7 _ 745 _ 888,
Financial guaranty reinsurance: : oo ‘ o
Publicfinance ............... ... ... ..., e 612 . 570 5771
Structured finance .. ... 33.2 48.6 56.7
Total................ e e, 944 1056 . 1144
Mortgage guaranty: : . : . : '
MOTtBAZE BUATANLY. .« .t e ettt ettt ereaetaetaeeaenn ST 22.7 18.6 33.7
Other: - . ‘ ' ) . , . ,
Equity layer credit protection ....... ... oot - — . .54
Trade credit reinsurance. .......co.oiiiii it e — —  (25.3)
Title TEINSUIance. .. ... o e e — — 32
Auto residual value reinsurance ... it e i e e - — (32.2)
o Total. .o DU — . — (489
Total net earned Premitms .. ... ....vint it ittt i $206.7 $198.7 §$187.9.

. . . R
The following table provides underwriting gain (loss) by line of business for the other segment.
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in millions of U.8. dollars)’

Underwriting gain/(loss): : : :
Equity layer credit protection .........cvevrevnrnneiennvarraeneannnss .- #8135 - %24 § 31
Trade credit TEINSUTANCE . .. ..o v ae e e e — — 2.9
Title FEIMSUTANCE. . .« oottt ittt e e e e e e e eee i aae e — — 1.0
Auto residval value reinsurance . ...... ... ... i — — (7.9
) O $135 $24  $(6.7)

The following table summarizes the Company’s gross written premiums by geographic region.
Allocations have been made on the basis of location of risk.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
North America . .....oovveiveiinniinrnnennnns $237.6  73.0% $2120 84.1% $1346  70.5%
United Kingdom. ................. ..ot s, 700  215% 222 88% 198 10.4%
Europe......ocoiii i 12.5 38% 132 52% 245 12.8%
Australia .. ... e e 4.3 1.3% 3.5 1.4% 6.5 3.4%
Other ... . e 1.3 0.4% 1.2 0.5% 5.5 2.9%
Total. ... e $325.7 100.0% $252.1 100.0% $190.9 100.0%
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23. Subsidiary Information . . ‘ .

The following tables present the condensed consolidated financial information for Assured Guaranty
Ltd., Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc., of which AGC is a subsidiary and AG Re and other subsidiaries
of Assured Guaranty Ltd. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004. :

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006
(in thousands of U. S. dollars)

Assured AG Re and ‘ o - Asstired
Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Lid,
(Parent Company) US Holdings Inc.  Subsidiaries Adjustments  (Consolidated)

1

Assets
Total investments and cash. . . $ 1,523 © $1,258,865  $1,209,532 § —  $2,469,920
Investment in subsidiaries. . . . 1,648,358 — —  (1,648,358) —
Deferred acquisition costs . .. — 70,305 146,724 o 217,029
Reinsurance recoverable. . . .. — 8,826 4,547 (2,484) 10,889
Goodwill .................. — 85,417 —_ — . 85,417
Premiums receivable ........ — 21,846 38,738 (19,019) -41,565
Other ........ooiiiiiinnn 5,152 146,021 46,873 (87,526) 110,520

Total assets .............. $1,655,033 $1,591,280  $1,446,414 $(1,757,387) $2,935,340
Liabilities and shareholders’

equity
Liabilities
Unearned premium reserves . s — $ 266800 § 447,785 $ (70,089) $ 644,496
Reserves for losses and loss _

adjustment expenses ... ... — 65,388 57,696 (2,484) 120,600
Profit commissions payable . . —_ 3,683 32,311 — 35994
Deferred income taxes ...... : — 41,415 (1,509) T — '39,906
SeniorNotes............... —_ 197,375 — — 197,375
Series A Enhanced Junior

Subordinated Debentures. . —_ 149,708 — —_ 149,708
Other ........covvvvvvenn.. 4,272 89,157 39,527 (36,456) 96,500

Total liabilities . .......... 4,272 813,526 575,810 (109,029) 1,284,579

Total shareholders’ equity . 1,650,761 777,754 870,604 (1,648,358) 1,650,761

Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity. . . .. $1,655,033 $1,591,280  $1,446,414 $(1,757,387) $2,935,340
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005
(in thousands of U. §S. dollars)
Assured ' . AG Re and ' Assured
Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Ltd.
(Parent Company) US Holdings Inc.  Subsidiaries Adjustments  (Consolidated)
Assels
Total investments and cash. . . $ 163 $1,116,387 = $1,139463 § —  $2.256,013
Investment in subsidiaries. . . . 1,665,392 —_ —  (1,665,392) —
Deferred acquisition costs .. . -— 73,803 119,639 — 193,442
Reinsurance recoverable. . . .. — 11,410 4,108 (3,168) 12,350
Goodwill 1................. ‘ —_ . 85417 . — 85,417
Premiums receivable ........ —_ 17,168 17,278 (1,435) 33,011
Other ......oovvvviveein... 1,172 114,413 27,121 (26,614) 116,092
Totalassets . ............. $1,666,727 $1,418,598  $1,307,609 3$(1,696,609) $2,696,325
Liabilities and shareholders’ ’ R
equity
Liabilities : '
Unearned premium reserves . 3 — ' § 196,435 § 362,273 $§ (21,559) $ 537,149
Reserves for losses and loss '
adjustment expenses ... ... — - 70,693 60,896 (3,168) . 128,421
Profit commissions payable .. — 4,237 48,756 — 52,993
Deferred income taxes ...... — 35,997 (9,368) — 26,629
SeniorNotes . .............. — 197,344 — — 197,344
Other .........coovviviin, _ 5,214 55,384 38,168 (6,490) 92,276
Total liabilities ........... 5,214 560,090 500,725 (31,217) 1,034,812
Total shareholders’ equity . 1,661,513 858,508 806,884  (1,665,392) 1,661,513
Total liabilities and .
shareholders’ equity. . . . ., $1,666,727 . $1,418598  $1,307,609 $(1,696,609) $2,696,325
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(in thousands of U. §: dollars)

Assured . AG Re and Assured
b A Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Lid.
o {Parent Company) .»" US Holdings Inc. 1 Subsidiaries  Adjustments* (Consolidated)
Revenues R
Net premiums written . . . . "8 - $123,072 - $195600 $ — .+ $318,672
Net premiums earned . . .. = 99,606 107,048 _ 206,654
Net investment income . . . 2 * 55,710 T 55,782 (39) - 111,455
Net realized investment : r . Lt S
losses ................ ' — (1,175) - (819) — (1,994)
Unrealized gains on - '
derivative financial S
instruments ........... — - 4,105 1,419 — - 5524
Equity in earnings of N .
subsidiaries ........ T 176,060 — — 176,060y - - —
Otherrevenues.......... ' 2 _ 393 ) 24 - - 419
Total revenues ... .. T 176,064 ' 158,639 163,454 (176,099) +1 322,058
Expenses : e
Loss and loss adjustment . o
15415 1 £1 . - 6,849 (13,605) ©— - (6,756)
Acquisition costs and : . I
other operating ST
€XPENSES. .. ..... R 16,317 ' 56,688 - 49,516 . — . 122521
Other .................. 13 ©. 16,304 2 — 16,319
Total expenses ........ 16,330 ' 79,841 35,913 — 132,084
Income before provision C T
for income taxes....... © 159,734 78,798 - 127541 (176,099) 189,974
Total provision for R ‘
income taxes ... ....... o — ' 16,508 13,712 20 7 30,240
Netincome ............. $159,734 © $ 62,290 $113,829  $(176,119)  $159,734

*  Due to the accounting for subsidiaries under. common control, netincome in the consolidating
adjustment column does not equal parent company equity in earnings of subsidiaries, due to thé FSA
agreement discussed in Note 12. . . T .
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(in thousands of U. S. dollars)

Assured AG Re and Assured
Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Ltd.
] (Parent Company) _US Holdings Inc. ~ Subsidiaries  Adjustmenis*  (Consolidated)
Revenues s
Net premiums written . . .. $ — $ 94,480 $122,842 3 c— $217,322
Net premiums earned . ., . - 106,116 92,610 — 198,726 -
Net investment income . . . 2 51,512 45,379 (57) 96,836

Net realized investment
gains (losses).......... — 733 1,643 (128) . 2,248
Unrealized losses on ' ' :
derivative financial

instruments ........... — . (1,042) . (2,474) — (3,516)
Equity in earnings of s -
subsidiaries ...:....:.. 202,137 — . — (202,137) L e
Other revenues.......... — - 240 e 2400
Total revenues ...:.... 1202,139 157,319 137,398 (202,322) . 294,534
Expenses ... ............ '
Loss and loss , . )

adjustment expenses . . . — (1,374) ~ (68,190) — (69,564)

Acquisition costs and
other operating

CXPEnsSes. .. ... ... ... 13,623 62,372 39,699 11,532 117,226
Other ...............00 68 - .. 17,147 36 — . 17,251

Total expenses ........ . 13,691 78,145 . (28,455) 1,532 64,913
Income before provision . , ’

for income taxes....::. 188,448 79,174 165,853 (203,854) 229,621
Total provision for : -. -

income taxes .......... L — 17,030 29,841 (5,698) - 41,173
Netincome ............. $188,448 - § 62,144 $136,012  $(198,156)  $188,448

*  Due to the accounting for subsidiaries under common control, net income in the consolidating
adjustment column does not equal parent company equity in earnings of subsidiaries, due to the FSA
agreement discussed in Note 12. :
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
{in thousands of U. S. dollars}

N .+ Assured AG Re and Assured
: : v Guaranty Ltd. - Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Ltd.
Lo ' L -(Parent Company) _US Holdings Inc. .+ Subsidiaries _Adjustments  (Consolidated)
Revenues ) . . o et
Net prémiums written.... - $.0 — -~ $ 61,732 .. - § 17838 —  $ 79570
Net premiums earned .. .. — 123,838 64,026 . — . 187,864,
Net investment income . . . ¢, — ., 52332 42,450 L— .. 94,782,
Net realized investment ' o . ,
BAINS. ...eviierriennn. — 973 11,016 oA =1a1;*989

Unrealized gainson
derivative financial

t

instruments .. ......... TR 50,313 2,147 — 52,460
Equity in earnings of ' ' ) '
subsidiaries ........ eee L 198208 — —  (198208) —
Other revenues.......... — , 266 554 C= 820
Total revenues ........ 198,208 . 227,722 120,193 (198,208) 347,915
Expenses ' ' * )
Loss and loss adjustment : P
€XPENSES. .. v.ouvnrnnn, : — 403 (32,382) - (31,979) -

Acquisition costs and
other operating R ' L .
‘expenses. .. .... . 14,020 - 80,302 39,872 —_ 134,194

Other .....vvveeeennnns. 2,152 . 10,228 - — 12380
Total expenses ........ 16,172 90,933 7,490 — 114,595
Income before provision . . . L
forincome taxes....... ' 182,036 - . - 136,789 112,703 {198,208) 233,320
Total provision for R . Coe
income taxes . ......... 752 40,538 10,746 — -+ 50,532
“Netincome ..... e $182,788 $ 96251 ° $101,957  $(198,208) ' $182,788
' b
M M S 1
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF. CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(in.thousands of U.-S: dollars)

i Assured © AGRe and Assured
Yot 1% P B Guaranty Ltd. - Assured. Guaranty - Other Consolidating Guaranty Ltd.
ERAERE A el + +(Parent Company) _US Holdings Inc: - ._Subsidiaries Adjustments  (Consolidated)
Dividends received. . ... $ 42,563 $ — $ —  $(42563) § . =
Other operating activities... . =~ (7,759) < 148982 - 120,351 . .— 261,574
Net cash flows provided by o , - SRR

operating activities . . .. .. T 234,804 7 - 148,982 120,351 (42,563) 261,574
Cash flows from investing =~ .., B ! )

activities ' .
Fixed maturity securities: ‘ : . ST )

Purchases............... _ — . - - (508,406) (374,815) — (883,221)

Sales..... TR — T 341,373 315,585 ' — 636,958

Maturities .............. — 7,064 . 9,431 — 16495 °
Other .......... L @360) 12,172 T (29,505) — . (18,693)
Net cash flows used in , . S AR T

investing activities-. ... .-. .. S ,360) T - (147,797) ¢ (79,304) - ” (228,461)
Cash flows from financing R ' ‘

activities ' o '
Repurchases of common A ' . B

Stock .. o.iiiii e (21,063) (150,000) — T (171,063)
Dividends paid ............ ~ (10,458) . - (42,563) 42,563 (10,458)
Tax benefits from stock - T ' T

optiofis exercised ........ e = e 1m0 - — 10
Proceeds from issuance of - ! =l | ' c

Debentures ............. — 149,708 — nLo— 149,708 -
Debt financing costs. .. ... ° v— G(1,500) 0 e o— 7 {1,500)
Repayment of note payable . (2,000) — — — {2,000)
Proceeds from employee RE o VR e

stock purchase plan,...... -, . 501 - B, . — - ., 50
Share activity under option - o o

and incentive plans ...... (424) — — — {424)
Net cash flows used in

financing activities. ... ... (33,444) (1,622) (42,563) 42,563 (35,066)
Effect of exchange rate o

changes ................ — 290 258 — 548
Decrease in cash and cash .

equivalents ............. C - (147) (1,258) — - (1,405)
Cash and cash equivalents at o :

beginning of year ........ e 2,923 3,267 - — 6,190
Cash and cash equivalents

atend ofyear ........... $ —_ $ 2,776 $ 2,009 $ — $ 4,785

162




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(in thousands of U. S, dollars)
Assured AG Re and Assured
Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating  Guaranty Ltd.
" '~ {Parent Company) US Holdings Inc. Subsidiaries Adjustments  (Consolidated)
Dividends received......... $ 38,414 $ — . 3 —  $(38414) §$ —
Other operating activities . . . (6,389) 23,130 206,876 — 171,357
Net cash flows provided by '
(used in) operating .
activities. ............... 32,025 (23,130) 206,876 (38,414) 177,357
Cash flows from investing
activities
Fixed maturity securities:
Purchases............... -— (349,778) (607,025) —  (956,803)
Sales................... L - - 347,708 379,308 — 727,016
Maturities .............. — 9,675 5,000 — . 14,675
Other .....covvveenunienn. C o (88) - 6,568 53,531 — 60,011
Net cash flows provided by
(used in) investing .
activities. . .............. (88) 14,173 (169,186) — (155,101)
Cash flows froem financing '
activities
Repurchases of common
StOCK . .- (19,014) — — —  (19,014)
Dividendspaid ............ (9,012) — (38,414) 38,414 (9,012)
Proceeds from employee
stock purchase plan ... ... 356, — — — ‘356
Share activity under option o
and incentive plans ... ... (4,267) — — L — (4,267)
Net cash flows used in
financing activities. . ..... (31,937) — (38,414) 38,414 (31,937)
Effect of exchange rate '
changes ................ o — (216) (891) (1,107}
Decrease in cash and cash : '
equivalents ............. — (9,173) (1,615) — (10,788)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year ........ — 12,096 4,882 — 16,978
Cash and cash equivalents o '
atendofyear ........... $ — $ 2923 ° § 3267 $ — % 6,19
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2004
(in thousands of U. S. dellars)

Assured . AG Re and Assured
Guaranty Ltd. Assured Guaranty Other Consolidating Guaranty Ltd.
(Parent Company} _US Holdings Inc. _Subsidiaries _Adjustments  (Consolidated)

Dividends received. ......... ) $ 12,986 $ — $ . —  $(12986) § -
Other operating activities.. . . .. (2,367) 52,036 (94,443) — (44,774)

Net cash flows provided by
(used in) operating

activities. . ....... ... ..., 10,619 52,036 (94,443) (12,986) (44,774)
Cash flows from investing ‘ '

activities
Fixed maturity securities:

Purchases................. — (216,681) (556,964) — (773,645)

Sales...........oll - 145,789 634,716 — 780,505

Maturities ................ — 7,457 8,200 —_ 15,657
Other ...................... (15) (15,717) 15,736 — (56)
Net cash flows provided by : .

(used in) investing activities (75) (79,152) 101,688 — 22,461
Cash flows from financing -

activities
Repurchases of common stock (5,986) - — — — (5,986)
Dividendspaid .............. (4,558) — (12,986) . 12,986 (4,558)
Net proceeds from issuance : -

of Senior Notes............ — 197,300 — — 197,300
Repayment of note payable . . — (200,000) — — (200,000)
Proceeds from cash flow . :

hedge ............ ..t — 19,338 — — 19,338

Net cash flows (used in)
provided by financing

activities. . ................ (10,544) 16,638 (12,986) 12,986 6,094
Effect of exchange rate ’
changes .......... PR — 499 333 — 832
Decrease in cash and cash
equivalents ............... — (9,979) (5,408) — (15,387)
Cash and cash equivalents at '
‘beginning of year .......... — 22,075 10,290 — 32,365
Cash and cash equivalents
atendof year ............. L § - $ 1209 $ 4882 $ — $ 16978

24. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

14
The Company’s cash paid during the periods preseated for federal income taxes and interest, and
non-cash financing activities were as follows: ‘
For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cash paid during the vear for:

Federal income tax .. .........c.ovieninenunnnns $ 938 $40,014 $18,968

Interest ... ..o e 14,081 14,000 7,722
Non-cash financing activities:

Section 338(h)(10) tax election................... $ — & — 828124

Transferofdebt. ... ...t — — 75,000

Notes assumed during formation transactions. . . ... — — 2,000
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25. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited) o f

A summary of selected quarterly statement of operations information follows:
(in thousands, except per share data)
2006 . __First .__Second Third Fourth
Gross written premiums ................................ $55,384 $111,484 $73,634 $ 85,168
Net written premlums ...... e v mn t e . 50,784 110,345 73,074 84,469
Net earned premlums.. N e 48,055 - 48,184 51,947 58,468
Net investment ifCome .. ... irareraineeees 26,238 27,255 28472 29,490
Net realized 1nvestment gains (losses) and unrealized gams .o .

(losses) on denvatlve financial instruments. ........... e (97D 4,708 (1,519) 1,318
All other i NCOME. ool O P L — 23 1 395
Loss and foss adjustment expenses RO e . (382) (6,513) 888 (749
Income before prov:snon for i mcome taxes. e e L. 40,466 54,004 44,546 50,958
Net income ....... N A 34,882, 44514 37,902 42,436
Earnings per share(2):" i ‘ I ' '

Basic(1)............. L, L ... 8 047 § 060 S 052 % 059

Diluted(1)........ PR A $ 047 3 060 $ 051 § 058
Dividends per share.......... e ... $0035. % 0035 $003 $ 0035
005 ' ‘ o S : ' *_ First Second Third Fourth
Gross written premiums ............ . ... L .. 878097 $ 40470 $75567 $ 57,966
Net written premiums .. ... ..o vvvi i iiiiinrennas 76,469 30,156 53,230 57,467
Net earned premiums .................................. 48,090 48264 54,545 47,827
Net investment income ... .......coovnerncintneinnnnn. . 23,132 23,668 24378 25,658
Net realized mvestment gams (losses) and unrealized gains . )

(losses) on derivative financial instruments. ............. 4,863 {(10,836) 464 4,241
All'other income (€Xpense) & .........ciitieirneenaennnns 283 . (190) 147 —
Loss and loss adjustment expenses . ................. . (9,396)  (59,133) (790} (245)
Income before provision for income taxes. ................ 56,757 84,596 46,259 42,009
NEtincome .......ovuriieiiiiiiniiannrerrnens PR 44,348 66,750 39,185 38,165
Earnings per share(2): # . - e _ -

Basic(1) . oovvvnriiii e $ 060 $ 090 $ 053 § 052

Diluted(1) . ..ov e e $ 059 § 09 $ 053 § 051
Dividends per share........ e e e . $ 003 $. 003 § 003 § 003

(1) Since the shares held as treasury stock were reqmred to be settled by delwery of employer stock, those
shares are mcluded in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS.

(2) Per share'amounts for the garters and the full years have each been calculated separately.
Accordingly, quarterly amounts may not add to the annual amounts because of differences in the
average common shares outstanding during each period and, with regard to diluted per share amounts
only, because of the inclusion of the effect of potentially dilutive: securities only in the periods in which
such effect-would have been dilutive.- .

P e
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND , -
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. - Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s management, with the
participation of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s Chief Executive Officer and-Chief Financial Officer, has -
evaluated the effectiveness of Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is
defined in Rules 13a 15(¢) and 15d 15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the  *
“Exchange Act”))'as of the end of the period covered by this report. Baséd on this evaluation, Assured’ :
Guaranty Ltd.’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of
such period, Assured Guaranty Ltd.’s disclosure controls and procedures are effect:ve in recording, \
processing, summarizing and rcportmg, on a timely basis, information required to be disclosed by Assured
Guaranty Ltd. (including its consolidated subsidiaries) in the reports that it files or submits under the . '
Exchange Act. The Company’s management report on internal control over financial reporting is included
in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data as is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s attestation.

There has been no.chan'ge in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during thé * *-

Company’s quarter ended December 31, 2006, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

This item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “Executive Compensation— * '
Compensation Discussion and Analysis” of the definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders to be héld on May 3,'2007, which will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days aftcr
the close of the fiscal year pursuant to regulation 14A.

¥ . ' i

PART III _ ‘
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE S
Code of Conduct ‘ '

" The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct, Wthh sets forth standards by which all Assured
Guaranty Ltd. employees, officers and directors must abide as they work for the Company. The Company
has posted this Code of Conduct on its internet site (www.assuredguaranty.com, under Investor .
Information / Corporate Governance / Codé of Conduct). The Company intends to disclose on its internet
site any amendments to, or waivers.from, its Code of Conduct that are required to be publicly disclosed
pursuant to the rules of the SEC or the NYSE. -

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION o o

This item is incorporated by reference to the section entltled “Executive Compensation” of the
definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders to be held on May 3, 2007,
which will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year pursuant to
regulation 14A.

[
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans‘as of December 31, 2006: Jary
Number of securities to be Weighted average Number of securities remaining
issued upon exercise of exercise price of available for future issuance under
outstanding options, warrants  outstanding options, equity compensation plans (excluding
and rights warrants and rights securities reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) {c)
Equity conipensation ' ' :
plans approved by , . .
security holders. . ... .. 3,010,160(1) = $1992 2,805,381(2)

Equity compensation
plans not approved by o _ e , ,
security holders. . ... .. " ‘N/A U UNA ’ N/A
Total................ 3,010,160 $19.92 2,805,381

* " B e . - ) A '

.

(1) Includes common shares to be issued upon exercise of stock options granted under the Assured
Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan. .«

(2) Includes 57,210 common shares reserved for issuance under the Assured Guaranty I Ltd. Employee
Stock Purchase Plan and 2,748,171 common shares available for future stock options granted,
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units reserved for future issuance under the Assured
Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The grants of restricted stock units have been
deducted from the number of shares available for future issuance. "

Additional information is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “Information about our
Common Share Ownership” of the definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 3, 2007, which will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the
close of the fiscal year pursuant to regulation 14A. '

' 'y

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT TIONS, AND DIRECTOR
oo INDEPENDENCE . o oo I S . .

This item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled “Corporate Governance-What is Our’
Related Party Transactions Approval Policy. and What Procedures Do We Use To Implement 1t27,
“Corporate Governance-What Related Party Transactions Do We Have?” and “Corporate Governance-
Director Independence” of the definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 3, 2007, which will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after:the
close of the fiscal year pursuant to regulation 14A.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERV]CES

This item is incorporated by reference to the sectlon entitled “Proposal No. 2: Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accountmg Firm-Independent Auditor Fee information”
of the definitive proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 3,
2007, which will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year pursuant to
regulation 14A. . ‘ . : '

) PR <t - . « T
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PARTIV - . - 7" ' (B
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits
oo . w o L ' .7

' 1. Financial Statements . -

The following financial statements of Assured Guaranty Ltd. have been included in Item 8 hereof: -

o

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

| ' Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 ' S
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements T -

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedu]es are filed as part of this report

Schedule Title ot v ' '

Il - Condensed Financial Inforrnatlon of Registrant (Parent Company Only)

1 . * Supplementary Insurance Information @+ Ca o
v Reinsurance C :

v Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

The report of the Registrant’s independent registered public accounting firm with reéspect to the above

listed financial statement schedules is included with the schedules. S

All other schedules are omitted because they are not appllcable or the required information is shown
in the consolidated fi nanc1al statements or notes thereto. R
. : . Lo N
3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number . Descnptlon of Document

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation and Memorandum of Association of the Reglstrant (Incorporated
by reference to exhibit 3.1 to Form S-1 of the Company {#333- 111491)) |
1.

3.2 Bye-laws of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to Forrn S-1 of the
, Company (#333-111491)) .- o - :

4.1 Specimen Common Share Certificate (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to Form $-1 of
the Company (#333-111491))

4.2  Certificate of Incorporation and Memorandum of Association of the Registrant
(See exhibit 3.1)

43 Bye-laws of the Registrant (See exhibit 3.2)

[
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

4.4
4.5

4.6

4.7

10.1
10.2
103
10.4
10.5
10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.11

10.12

Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2004, among the Company, Assured Guaranty U.S. Holdings Inc.

-+ and The Bank of New York, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to exhlbtt 4.1of Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2006, entered into'among Assured Guaranty Ltd., Assured
Guaranty U-S. Holdings Inc. and The ‘Bank of New York, as trustee (Incorporated.by reference
to exhibit 4.1 to the current report on form 8-K filed on December 20, 2006)

. First Supplemental Subordinated Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2006, entered into:
among Assured Guaranty Ltd., Assured Guaranty U.S. Holdings Inc, and The Bank of New
York, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 to the current report on form 8-K
filed on December 20, 2006)

- Replacement Capital Covenant, dated as of December 20, 2006 between Assured Guaranty
U.S. Holdings Inc. and Assured Guaranty Ltd., in favor of and for the benefit of each Covered
Debtholder (as defined therein) (Incorporated by reference tg ¢xhibit 4.1 to the current report
on form 8-K flled on December 20, 2006) et

Employment Agreement between Dominic J. Frederico and the Registrant (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.1 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

Employment Agreement between Robert B. Mills and the Registrant (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.2 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

Employment Agreement between Michael J. Schozer and the Registrant (Incorporated by .
reference to exhibit 10.3 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*-

Employment Agreement between James M. Michener and the Reglstrant (Incorporated by
. reference to exhibit 10.4 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)* i

Pierre Samson Separation Agreement (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5 of Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005)* '

Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plari (Incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.6 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)*

Master Separation Agreement dated April 27, 2004, among the Company, ACE Limited, ACE
Financial Services Inc. and ACE Béermuda Insurance Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.7 to Form $-1 of the Company (#333 111491))

Transition Services Agreement, dated April 27, 2004 between the Company and ACE Limited
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.8 to Form’ S-1 of the Company (#333-111491))

Registration Rrghts Agreement dated Apl’l] 27, 2004 among the Company, ACE, Limited and
ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.9 to Form 5-1 of the
Company (#333-11 1491))

‘Tax Allocation Agreement dated April 27 2004, among the Company, ACE Financial Serv1ces
Inc., ACE Prime Holdings, Inc., Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc., Assured Guaranty Corp.,
AGR Financial Products Inc. and ACE Risk Assurance Company (Incorporated by reference to

1

* exhibit 10.11 to Form S-1 of the Company (#333 111491))

Credit Agreement with Deutsche Bank AG as.Agent, as amended (Incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.21 to Form $-1 of the Company (#333-111491))

P . . b
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Exhibit
Number

¢ Description of Document

10.14

10.15

10.16

10,17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22.

10.23

10.24

10.25

1026

10.27

Retrocession Agreement between Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. and ACE American

+ Insurance Company (Incorporated by reference to exh1b1t 10.29 to Form S§-1 of the Company

(#333-111491))
Guaranty by Assured Guaranty Re International Ltd. in favor of Assured Guaranty Re -

- Overseas Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exh1b1t 10.31 to Form S- 1 of the Company

(#333-111491))

Guaranty by Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. in favor of Assured Guaranty Mortgage .
Insurance Company (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32 to Form S-1 of the Company
(#333-111491)) :

Retrocessional Memorandum between ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. and Assured Guaranty Re
International Ltd. (Incofporated by reference to exhibit 10.34 to Form S-1 of the Company
(#333-111491)) .

Quota Share Reinsurarice Agreement between Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. and JCJ
Insurance Company (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.35 to Form S- 1 of the Company
(#333-111491)) : .

Quota Share Retrocession Agreement between Assured Guaranty Re Overscas Ltd. and ACE
INA Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.37 to Form S-1
of the Company (#333 111491)). N .

Quota Share Retrocession Agreement between Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd: and ACE
American Insurance Company (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.38 to Form S-1 of the
Company (#333-111491)) o ' o _ ..

Assignment and Indemnification Agreement between Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. and
ACE INA Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. {Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.41 to
Form $-1 of the Company (#333-111491)) '

UK Title Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement between ACE European Markets Insurance Ltd.
and Assured Guaranty Re International Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.45 to
Form S-1 of the Company (#333-111491)) '

Aggregate Loss Portfolio Reinsurance Agreement between Commercial Guaranty,
Assurance, Ltd. and Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Lid. (Incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.49 to Form S-1 of the Company (#333- 111491))

Quota Sbare Retrocession Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, between Assured Guaranty Re
Overseas Ltd. and ACE Tempest Re USA, Inc. for and on behalf of ACE American Insurance
Company (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10. 13 of Form 10—0 for the quarter ended

June 30, 2004)

Quota Share Retrocession Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, between Assured Guaranty Corp.
and ACE Tempest Re USA, Inc. for and on behalf of ACE American Insurance Company
{(Incorporated by refereénce to exhibit 10.14 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Quota Share Retrocession Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, between Assured Guaranty Re -
Overseas Ltd. and ACE INA Overseas Insurance Company Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.15 of Férm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2004) - =

Commutation and Release Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, between Westchester Fire
Insurance Company and Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.16 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)
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Exhibit

Number

10.28
10.29
10.30

10.31
10.32

10.34

10.35
10.36
1037

10.38
10.39
10.40
10.41

1042

10.43

10.45

10.46

Description of Document

Assignment and Termination Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, among Assured Guaranty Re
International Ltd., ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. and ACE Capital Title Reinsurance Company
(Incorporated by- reference to exhibit 10.18 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Assignment Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, among Assured Guaranty Re Overseas L,
ACE European Markets Insurance Limited and ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.19 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Assignment Agreement, dated April 15, 2004, among Assured Guaranty Re Overseas Ltd.,
ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. and ACE Capital Title Reinsurance Company (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.20 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

. Directors Compensation Summary* .* o

'

Summary of Annual Compensation*

Non- Quallfied Stock Option Agreement under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long—Term
Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.34 of Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005)*

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (lncorporated by reference to exhibit 10 35 of Form 10-K for the year énded
December 31, 2005)*

' Restncted Stock Agreement for Out51de Directors under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-

Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10. 1of Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2006)*

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for'Out51de. Dlrectors'under Assured Gudrantj} Ltd. 2004
Long Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to exhlblt 10.37 of Form IO-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005)* - . .

Restricted Stock Agreement under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.38 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)*

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.39 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)*

Assured Guaranty-Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.40 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)‘ :

Letter Agreement between Robin Conner and Assured Guaranty Corp (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.41 of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)*

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its executive officers and
directors (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.42 of Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005)

Robert A. Bailenson Employment Letter (Incorporated b)} reference to exhibit,10.43 of
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)*

Put Agreement between Assured Guaranty Corp. and Woodbourne Capital Trust
(D] [I1T][1V] (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005)

Custodial Trust Expense Reimbursement Agreement (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7
of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)
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Exhibit

Number bescription of Document
1047 Assured Guaranty Corp. Articles Supplementary Classifying and Designating Series of
. Preferred Stock as Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock; Series B Perpetual Preferred Stock,
Series C Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series D Perpetual Preferred Stock (Incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.8 of Form 10-Q.for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)
10:48  -Assured Guaranty Corp. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Highlights Booklet 2006
Plan Year (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2005)*
10.49  Assured Guaranty Ltd. Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan, as-amended through the
second amendment (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of Form 8-K filed on
December 28, 2005)* - ; ‘ :
10.50  Assured Guaranty Ltd. Performance Retention Plan (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.50
of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)* .
10.51 Five Year Chff Vest Restricted Stock Agreement under Assured Guaranty Ltd. 2004 Long-
Term Incentive Plan (Inoorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2006)*
1052 Employment agreement dated as of October 5, 2006, between Assured Guaranty Ltd Assured
Guaranty Corp and Robert Bailenson (Incorporated by reference 10 exhibit 10.1 of Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)*
10.53  Share Purchase Agreement, dated December 7, 2006, between Assured Guaranty US Holdings
' Inc. and ACE Bermuda Insurance Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 of Form 8-K
filed on December 13, 2006)
1054 $300,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility Credit Agreement (Incorporated by reference to exhibit
~99.1 of Form 8-K filed on Novernber 9, 2006) .
10.55 Performance Retention Plan*
141 Code of Conduct (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 14.1 of Form 10-K for the year ended .-
December 31,.2004) oo : _ '
21.1  Subsidiaries of the registrant s S [ B ot
231  Accountants Consent ' oo
31.1  Certification of CEQ Pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13A-14 and 15D- 14, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13A- 14 and 15D- 14 as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 '
321 Certification of CEQ Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanés-Oxley Act of 2002 ‘
322 Certification of CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Sectlon 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 '
99.1

Assured Guaranty Corp. 2006 Consolidated Financial Statements

*

Management contract or compensatory plan
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or IS(H) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD. .o T

By:. /s/f DoMINIC }. FREDERICO"

Name: Dominic J. Frederico .
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 27, 2007 ' : o )

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Position , Date
/s{f WALTER A. SCOTT Chairman of the Board; Director February 27, 2007
Walter A. Scott
s/ DOMINIC J. FREDERICO President and Chief Executive ' February 27, 2007
Dominic J. Frederico Officer; Director
/s{ ROBERT B. MILLS Chief Financial Officer (Principal February 27, 2007
Robert B. Mills Financial and Duly Authorized Officer)
/s/ NEIL BARON Director February 27, 2007
NEIL BARON
/s/ G. LAWRENCE BUHL Director February 27, 2007
G. Lawrence Buhl
s/ STEPHEN A. COZEN Director February 27, 2007
Stephen A. Cozen
s/ JOHN G. HEIMANN Director February 27, 2007
John G. Heimann
/s/ PATRICK W. KENNY Director February 27, 2007
Patrick W. Kenny
/s/ DONALD H. LAYTON Director February 27, 2007
Donald H. Layton
/s/ ROBIN MONRO-DAVIES Director February 27, 2007
Robin Monro-Davies
/s/ MICHAEL (’KANE Director February 27, 2007
Michael O’Kane
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
. on
' - Financial St#i!e:ment Schedules

L] . N [ +

Pt v L

To the Board of Directors
of Assured Guaranty Ltd.: ; o

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements, of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial repoiting and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
referred to in our report dated February 26, 2007 appearing in the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders of
Assured.Guaranty Ltd. on Form 10-K also included an audit of the financial statement schedules listed in
Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, these financial statement schedules present fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements.. L
Pricewaterhous'eC()operé LLP

New York, NY

February 26, 2007

Lo . . N : ‘
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Schedule 11
Assured Guaranty Ltd. (Parent Company)
-. Condensed Balance Sheets
{in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates on equitybasis .. .................
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fair value . .............
Otherassets..........................................._.......: ........

Liabilities
Other Habilities. .. ..ot e e e e e e

Shareholders’ equity

Commonstock .......... N

Additional paid-in capital. ... .....ooioii i e

Unearned stock grant compensation ..............coiiiiiuinninienana..

Retained earnings . ........ ottt i e e et

Accumulated other comprehensive income. ........ ... .. oo
Total shareholders’ equity . ............. ... ... .o i i,

Total liabilities and shareholders’equity ..............................

175

As of December 31,

2006 2005
$1,648,358  $1,665,392
1,523 163
5,152 1,172
$1,655,033. .$1,666,727
3 4272 § 5214
4,272 5,214
732 - 748
711,199 881,998

— (14,756)

896,947 747,691
41,883 45,832
1,650,761 1,661,513
$1,655,033  $1,666,727




Schedule IT
Assured Guaranty Ltd. (Parent Company)
Condensed Statements of Operations
For the years ended Decémber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{in thousands of U.S. dollars)

. 2006 2005 2004
Revenues ‘
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ..........:.......... .. ... L... -8176,060 $202,137 $198,208
Net investment iNCOME . . . ... .o vveiveneeeerieeniniaaiiiiinn. b -2 o2 —
Othérrevenucé.'..._..............; ...................... S 2 = —
TOtal FEVENUES . ... ...\ e oot eeneantaieeneeeeiane s 176,064 202,139 198,208
Expenses ‘ g "
Other Operating eXpenses. . .. ... .viueiurirerrrrracaneieaennenn. 16,317 13,623 14,020
TNterest EXPemse ..t ot v ittt v 13 68 - 2,152
TOLAl EXPEIISES. . . .« oo vt e e et a e e 16,330 13,691 ° 16,172
Income before benefit for incometaxes .................. ... . 159,734 188,448 182,036
Total benefit for inCome taxes ... ......cooveiiiiiiiiiiininiian.n. — — (752)
$182,788-

Netincome .....,................. OO e $159,734.

176

$188,448




Schedule 11

Assured Guaranty Ltd. (Parent Company)
Cendensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

C ) : 2006 2005 2004

Dividends received.......... e e ....... el $ 42563 § 38,414 § 12,986
Other operating actiVities . . ... ....vueriire i iiieieereeennnnn. {7,759) (6,389) (2,367)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities .................... 34,804 32,025 10,619
Cash flows from investing activities ’ * ‘

Purchases of short-term investments, net ........ S S (1,360) (88) A7)
Net cash flows used in investing activities. ... ......._......... ... : (1,360) (88) 7(75)
Financing activities _ ,

Repurchases of common stock ................................ : (21,063) (19,014)  (5,986)

Dividends paid ................ e (10,458) 9,012) (4,558)

Repayment of note payable e e (2,000) —_ —_—

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan ................... 501 356 —

Share ‘activity under option and incentive plans.................. (424) (4,267) —
Net cash flows used in financing activities ................. e - (33,444) (31,937). (10,544)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . ... e Seenen. ' — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period .................. e, 8 — § — —
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Schedule IV—Reinsurance

Net Earned Premiums (in millions.of U.S. dollars)(1):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Percentage of

Type of Business: Direct Ceded Assumed Net assumed to net
Financial guaranty ........ 0 .............. ... $920 § 31 §$952 §1841 50.7%
. Mortgage guaranty............... e — 23 . 249 22.7 110.2%
Other ... ... — 6.6 6.6 — NMF
Total. ... $92.0 $ 120 $126.7  $206.7 61.3%
. ‘ : '
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Financial guaranty ........................... $77.3 $ 3.6 $1064  $180.1 59.1%
' Mortgage guaranty............c.coviirinnnn... — 0.4 19.0 18.6 102.2%
| | 8 . e — 33 3.3 — ' NMF
| Other ..ottt e —" 7302 302 — NMF
Total. .o e e $£77.3 $375 $1589  $1987  80.0%
- '.. For the Year Ended December 31, 2004 :
Financial guaranty ...................c..o.... $962 § 58 $1186  $209.1 56.7%
Mortgage guaranty......... ... ..., — 0.4 34.1 337 101.2%
Title ..o e — 0.6 38 3.2 118.8%
Life .. oo — 3.4 34 —  NMF
Other ... e — 96.9 38.8 (58.1) NMF
Total ... .o e $96.2  $107.1  $198.7  $1879 105.7%

(1) Some amounts may not add due to rounding.

NMF = Not meaningful
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Schedule V—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in millions of U.S. dollars)

Valuation and qualifying accounts for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 .and 2004 are as
follows: :

Balance at Charged to Balance at end

- beginning of year  Expense/Deduction of year

2006 Taxvaluationallowance .................... $ 70 -5 - 570
Allowance for Uncollectible Reinsurance.. . ... — T —_

Total. ot e e e $ 70 § — $ 70

2005 Taxvaluationallowance .................... $ 7.0 5 — $70
Allowance for Uncollectible Reinsurance . . . .. 21.1 21.1)(1) —

Total. ... e, $28.1 $(21.1) $ 7.0

2004 Taxvaluationallowance ...........co.vvnn... $70 $ — $ 70
Allowance for Uncollectible Reinsurance . . . .. 21.1 — 21.1
Total........ccovvviiinnt. et $28.1 $ — $28.1

|
|
|

(1) This item had no income statement impact, as it was offset by an equal change in Funds held liability.

fa L. n
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Exhibit 31.1

Assured Guaranty Ltd.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Domiric J. Frederico, certify that;

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Assured Guaranty Ltd.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a matetial fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the ¢ircumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inciuded in this
report, fairly present in-all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; :

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining »
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(e).and 15d - 15(e)) and
intérnal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and 15d -

15(f) for the registrant and have ‘

(a) Designed such dlsclosure controls and procedures,.or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
. the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; « -

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; -

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s.other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of.the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in-the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reglstrant s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. | -

' ) By: /s/ DOMINIC J, FREDERICO
' Dominic J. Frederico
-; President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 27, 2007




Exhibit 31.2

Assured Guaranty Ltd.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Robert B. Mills, certify that:
1. I'have reviewed this annval report on Form 10-K of Assured Guaranty Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit .
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misieading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; o

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(e) and 15d - 15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rulcs 13a - 15(f) and 15d - IS(f)
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b. Designedsuch internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal controf over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. - The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which-are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reglstrant s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ ROBERT B. MILLS
Robert B. Mills
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 27, 2007




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CEO PURSUANT.TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS'ADOPTED PURSUANT. TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

. In connection with the Annual Report on Form:10-K of Assured Guaranty Ltd. (the “Company”) for
the year ended December31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date " *
hereof (the “Report”’), Dominic J. Frederico, as Chief Exécutive Officer of the. Company, heteby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Ox]ey Act of 2002, that, .
to the best of his knowledge: ; SRR AT AL .

(1) The Report fully complies with.the requirements of-Section 13(3) or 15(d) of the:Sécurities.
Exchange Act of 1934; and oLt

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly prcsents in afl matenal respects, the finanéial
condition and results of operations of the Company. - « " .. P

/s/ DOMINIC J. FREDERICO o RN A
Name: Dominic J. Frederico P P
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer STEO A A A
Date: February 27, 2007 ' s W




ER Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

" In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Assured Guaranty Ltd. (the “Company”) for
the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.on the date
hereof (the “Report”), Robert B. Mills, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, -
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §'1350, as adopted pursuant to.Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 that, -
to the best of his knowledge: . 1.

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secuntles
Exchange Act of 1934; and _ .

(2) - The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materlal respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company D et :

/s/ ROBERT B. MILLS .
Name: Robert B. Mills S . .
Title: Chief Financial Officer . e
Date: February 27, 2007 ' Ce oo







END

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD.
30 Woodbourne Avenue
Hamilton HM 08
Bermuda
441-299-9375
www.assuredguaranty.com




